

GIS by ESRI[™]



Copyright © 2000, 2002 ESRI All rights reserved. Printed in the United States of America. Reprinted 2003.

The information contained in this document is the exclusive property of ESRI. This work is protected under United States copyright law and other international copyright treaties and conventions. No part of this work may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, including photocopying and recording, or by any information storage or retrieval system, except as expressly permitted in writing by ESRI. All requests should be sent to Attention: Contracts Manager, ESRI, 380 New York Street, Redlands, CA 92373-8100, USA.

The information contained in this document is subject to change without notice.

DATA CREDITS

Graphical Editing Map: Wilson, North Carolina Universal Data Editor Map, Editing in data view and layout view map: Greeley, Colorado Context menus and shortcut keys map: P.F.R.A., Regina, Saskatchewan, Canada Quick-Start Tutorial Data: Wilson, North Carolina; Greeley, Colorado

CONTRIBUTING WRITERS

Bob Booth, Jeff Shaner, Scott Crosier, Phil Sanchez, Andy MacDonald

U.S. GOVERNMENT RESTRICTED/LIMITED RIGHTS

Any software, documentation, and/or data delivered hereunder is subject to the terms of the License Agreement. In no event shall the U.S. Government acquire greater than RESTRICTED/LIMITED RIGHTS. At a minimum, use, duplication, or disclosure by the U.S. Government is subject to restrictions as set forth in FAR §52.227-14 Alternates I, II, and III (JUN 1987); FAR §52.227-19 (JUN 1987) and/or FAR §12.211/12.212 (Commercial Technical Data/Computer Software); and DFARS §252.227-7015 (NOV 1995) (Technical Data) and/or DFARS §227.7202 (Computer Software), as applicable. Contractor/Manufacturer is ESRI, 380 New York Street, Redlands, CA 92373-8100, USA.

ESRI, ArcView, the ESRI globe logo, ArcMap, ArcInfo, ArcSDE, SDE, Spatial Database Engine, ArcEditor, ArcGIS, ArcCatalog, GIS by ESRI, the ArcGIS logo, and www.esri.com are trademarks, registered trademarks, or service marks of ESRI in the United States, the European Community, or certain other jurisdictions.

Other companies and products mentioned herein are trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective trademark owners.

Contents

1 Introduction 1

Rich suite of graphical editing tools 2 ArcGIS data editor 3 Editing in data view and layout view 4 Tools for editing and managing topologies 5 Tools for editing and managing networks in a geodatabase 6 Context menus and shortcut keys for increased productivity 7 Tools for rubber sheeting, adjusting, and edgematching feature data 8 Multiuser editing with version management and conflict detection 9 Remote editing of data checked out from your versioned geodatabase 10 Editing in projected space 11 Tips on learning how to edit in ArcMap 12

2 Editing basics 13

An overview of the editing process 14 The Editor toolbar 16 Exploring the Editor toolbar 17 Editor keyboard shortcuts 23 The Advanced Editing toolbar 24 Adding editing toolbars 25 Upgrading a geodatabase 26 Adding the data you want to edit 27 Starting and stopping an edit session 28 Managing the edit cache 31 Changing the options of the task menu 33 Selecting features 34 Moving features 38 Copying and pasting features 42 Deleting features 43 Setting the number of decimal places used for reporting measurements 44

3 Creating new features 45

How to create a new feature 46 Creating point features and vertices 52 Creating lines and polygons 63 Creating segments using directions and lengths 69 Creating segments using angles from existing segments 73 Creating segments that are circular arc curves 77 Creating segments by tracing features 82 Duplicating features with the Copy Feature tool 83 Creating a fillet curve between two lines 84 Extending a line 85 Trimming a line 86 Proportionally dividing a line 87 Getting a COGO description of a feature with the Inverse tool 89 Creating edit sketch geometry with the Traverse tool 90 Creating two-point line features to populate COGO attributes 95 Obtaining a closure report 97 Techniques for adjusting a traverse 98 Saving a traverse 100 Loading a traverse 101 Exploding a multipart feature 102 Generalizing a feature 103 Smoothing a feature 104 The Snapping Environment window 105 Types of snapping properties 106 Using the snapping environment 107 The Snap to Feature command 110 Setting the direction measuring system and units for editing tools 111 Setting the direction type and angular units 113 Setting the ground to grid conversion 115 Using a ground to grid correction 116 Setting the distance units for tools 118

4 Editing topology 121

What is topology? 122 Topology basics for data editors 123 Topology rules 126 Topology errors and exceptions 130 Geometric elements of a topology 131 Editing features in a topology 133 Correcting topology errors 136 Making new features with topology tools 137 Adding the topology toolbar 139 Map topology concepts 140 Creating a map topology 141 Editing shared geometry 143 Rebuilding the topology cache 152 Clearing selected topology elements 153 Finding out what features share topology elements 154 Using the edit sketch to make topology edits 158 Stretching features when editing topology elements 164 Snapping to topology nodes 166 Changing the symbology for selected error features 167 Changing the symbology for topology elements 168 Changing the symbology for topology layers 169 Validating edits to a topology 171 Summarizing topology errors 172 Correcting errors 174 Creating new polygons from lines 178 Creating new features from the geometry of existing features 179

5 Using a digitizer 183

Setting up your digitizing tablet and preparing your paper map184Registering your paper map185Creating features using a digitizer189Digitizing features in point mode190Digitizing features in stream mode192

6 Creating features from other features 195

Copying a line at a specific interval 196 Creating a buffer around a feature 198 Creating a mirror image of a feature 200 Merging features from the same layer into one feature 202 Combining features from different layers into one feature 204 Creating a feature from features with common areas 206

7 Editing existing features 209

Splitting a line or polygon 210 Trimming a line 214 Extending a line 217 Flipping a line 219 Placing points along a line 220 Reshaping a line or polygon 222 Adding and deleting sketch vertices 224 Moving a vertex in a sketch 226 Changing the properties of a sketch 231 Scaling features 235 Clipping features 237 Stretching geometry proportionately 238 Stretching a feature's geometry proportionately 239

8 Spatial adjustment 241

About spatial adjustments 242 The Spatial Adjustment toolbar 246 An overview of the spatial adjustment process 247 Adding the Spatial Adjustment toolbar 249 Choosing the input data for adjustment 250 Choosing a transformation method 251 Choosing a rubber sheet method 252 Choosing an edge snap method 253 Setting the edge snap properties 254 Creating displacement links 255 Creating multiple displacement links 256 Creating identity links 258 Using the Limited Adjustment Area tools 259 Using the Edge Match tool 260 Modifying the link and limited adjustment area symbols 261 Selecting links 262 Modifying displacement links 264 Deleting displacement links 266 Viewing the Link Table 268 Opening a link file 269 Saving a link file 270 Opening a Control Point file 271 Creating displacement links from control points 272 Previewing the adjustment 274 Performing the adjustment 275 Attribute Transfer Mapping 276 Using the Attribute Transfer tool 278

9 Editing attributes 279

Viewing attributes 280 Adding and modifying attributes 282 Copying and pasting attributes 284

10 Editing geodatabase attributes 287

Editing a geodatabase with ArcMap 288 Editing features with subtypes and default values 289 Editing attribute domains 293 Validating features 294

11 Editing related objects 297

Understanding relationships and related objects 298 Editing relationships and related objects 303

12 Editing geometric networks 323

Editing network features 324 Creating network edges 329 Subsuming network junctions 336 Enabled and disabled network features 340 The Network Editing toolbar 341 Validating network features 347

13 Editing annotation 349

Annotation in the geodatabase 350 Editing annotation 351 Converting labels to annotation 361 Converting coverage annotation to geodatabase annotation 363

14 Editing dimension features 365

Editing dimension features 366 Adding the Dimensioning toolbar 372 Creating dimension features 373 Modifying dimension features 397

15 Working with a versioned geodatabase 401

Integrating versioning with your organization's work flow 402 Registering data as versioned 404 Creating and administering versions in ArcCatalog 405 Working with versions in ArcMap 412 Editing and conflict resolution 415 Editing a version 420 Versioning scenarios 424

Glossary 427

Index 449

Introduction

IN THIS CHAPTER

- Rich suite of graphical editing tools
- ArcGIS data editor
- Editing in data view and layout view
- Tools for editing and managing topologies
- Tools for editing and managing networks in a geodatabase
- Context menus and shortcut keys for increased productivity
- Tools for rubber sheeting, adjusting, and edgematching feature data
- Multiuser editing with version management and conflict detection
- Remote editing of data checked out from your versioned geodatabase
- Editing in projected space
- Tips on learning how to edit in ArcMap

In addition to mapmaking and map-based analysis, ESRI® ArcGISTM ArcMapTM is the application for creating and editing geographic data and tabular data. With ArcMap, you can edit features in shapefiles and geodatabases with one common user interface. ArcMap contains sophisticated, computer-aided design (CAD)-based editing tools that help you construct features quickly and easily while maintaining the spatial integrity of your geographic information system (GIS) database. ArcEditorTM and ArcInfoTM seats of ArcMap can be used to edit geometric networks and geodatabase topologies as well as simple features. ArcView[®] seats of ArcMap can be used to edit simple features in shapefiles and geodatabases. ArcView seats also let you create a temporary Map Topology that can be used to edit simple features that share geometry.

Whether you use ArcView or ArcInfo, you use the same editing tools in ArcMap to work on your geographic data. In cases where your organization has multiple users simultaneously editing on a shared geodatabase, ArcMap, in concert with ArcSDE[®], provides the tools necessary to manage long editing transactions as well as to manage versions and resolve potential conflicts. ArcEditor and ArcInfo seats of ArcMap can check out features from a master geodatabase to a checkout geodatabase for disconnected editing.

Whether you use ArcView, ArcEditor, or ArcInfo, the goal of this book is to help you learn and use the editing capabilities in ArcMap for any level of geographic database maintenance. The next few pages highlight some of the features you will find invaluable while editing in ArcMap.

Rich suite of graphical editing tools

ArcMap helps you create and edit geographic features quickly and easily by including many of the graphic editing functions popular with the latest CAD editing packages.



Sketch construction tools in ArcMap will allow you to quickly and accurately edit street rights-of-way.

ArcGIS data editor

ArcMap lets you edit shapefiles and geodatabases. Also, you can edit an entire folder of data at once. ArcEditor and ArcInfo seats can take advantage of a geodatabase's coded value and range domains and validation to make editing attributes quicker and maintain high data quality.



Pick the geodatabase or folder of data that you want to edit when you start editing in ArcMap.

Editing in data view and layout view

ArcMap provides two different ways to view a map: data view and layout view. Each view lets you look at and interact with the map in a different way. Data view hides all of the map elements on the layout such as titles, North arrows, and scale bars. In layout view, you'll see a virtual page upon which you can place and arrange map elements. You can edit your geographic data in either data view or layout view.



When you are preparing a map, you can edit features directly using layout view.

Tools for editing and managing topologies

ArcMap provides tools to edit features that have topological relationships defined in a geodatabase or in a map topology. ArcView seats are limited to editing map topology, a simpler, temporary form of topology that allows shared parts of features to be simultaneously edited.



Tools for editing and managing networks in a geodatabase

ArcMap provides tools to edit geometric networks stored in a geodatabase.



Context menus and shortcut keys for increased productivity

ArcMap contains numerous context menus and shortcut keys to help you create and edit features quickly.



Use the Sketch tool context menu and shortcut keys to access advanced feature creation tools.

Tools for rubber sheeting, adjusting, and edgematching feature data

ArcMap provides tools to transform, adjust, rubber sheet, and edgematch feature data from different sources.



Multiuser editing with version management and conflict detection

If you have several users that need to edit the same data at the same time, ArcMap can help you manage versions of your ArcSDE geodatabase.



Sophisticated version management tools in ArcMap will help you maintain a multiuser editing environment.

Remote editing of data checked out from your versioned geodatabase

If you have people who need to work with part of your geodatabase away from your network, ArcEditor and ArcInfo seats allow you to check out features to a personal geodatabase, edit them in the field, and check them back into the master geodatabase upon their return.



Editing in projected space

If you've collected data from a variety of sources, chances are that not all layers contain the same coordinate system information. Using ArcMap, you can set the coordinate system for a data frame. As you add layers to your map, they are automatically transformed to that projection. That means that you can edit the shapes and attributes of a layer regardless of the coordinate system it was stored in.



ArcMap has project-on-the-fly capabilities that let you edit layers in the coordinate system that are most important to you without having to transform your data.

Tips on learning how to edit in ArcMap

If you're new to GIS, remember that you don't have to learn everything about editing in ArcMap to get immediate results. To learn how to edit your GIS data, see the *Geodatabase Workbook*. ArcMap comes with the data used in the tutorial, so you can follow along step by step at your computer. You can also read the tutorial without using your computer.

Finding answers to your questions

Like most people, your goal is to complete your tasks while investing a minimum amount of time and effort in learning how to use software. You want intuitive, easy-to-use software that gives you immediate results, without having to read pages of documentation. However, when you do have a question, you want the answer quickly so that you can complete your task. That's what this book is all about—getting you the answers you need, when you need them.

This book describes editing tasks—from basic to advanced—that you'll perform with ArcMap. Although you can read this book from start to finish, you'll likely use it more as a reference. When you want to know how to do a particular task, such as creating a new feature, just look it up in the table of contents or index. What you'll find is a concise, step-by-step description of how to complete the task. Some chapters also include detailed information that you can read if you want to learn more about the concepts behind the tasks. You may also refer to the glossary in this book if you come across any unfamiliar GIS terms or need to refresh your memory.

About this book

This book is designed to introduce editing in ArcMap and its capabilities. If you have never used a GIS before or feel you need to refresh your knowledge, please take some time to read *Getting Started with ArcGIS*, which you received in your ArcGIS package. It is not necessary to do so to continue with this book, but you should use it as a reference if you encounter tasks with which you are unfamiliar.

Getting help on your computer

In addition to this book, use the ArcGIS Desktop Help system to learn how to use ArcMap. To learn how to use the ArcGIS Desktop Help system, see *Using ArcMap*.

Contacting ESRI

If you need to contact ESRI for technical support, see the product registration and support card you received with ArcMap or refer to 'Contacting Technical Support' in the 'Getting more help' section of the ArcGIS Desktop Help system. You can also visit ESRI on the Web at *www.esri.com* and *support.esri.com* for more information about ArcMap and ArcGIS.

ESRI education solutions

ESRI provides educational opportunities related to geographic information science, GIS applications, and technology. You can choose among instructor-led courses, Web-based courses, and self-study workbooks to find educational solutions that fit your learning style. For more information go to *www.esri.com/education*.

Editing basics

IN THIS CHAPTER

- An overview of the editing process
- Exploring the Editor toolbars and keyboard shortcuts
- Adding editing toolbars
- Upgrading a geodatabase
- Adding the data you want to edit
- Starting and stopping an edit session
- Managing the edit cache
- Changing the options of the task
 menu
- Selecting, moving, copying and pasting, and deleting features
- Setting the number of decimal places used for reporting measurements

In addition to mapmaking and map analysis, ArcMap is also the application for creating and editing your spatial databases. ArcMap has tools to edit shapefiles and geodatabase feature datasets.

This chapter provides an introduction on how to edit in ArcMap and describes the basic tasks you need to know before you can start to create and edit spatial data. For instance, this chapter shows you how to perform such tasks as adding the Editor toolbar; adding other editing toolbars, such as the Edit cache, Advanced Editing, Spatial Adjustment, Topology, and Network Editing toolbars; starting and stopping an edit session; and selecting features.



An overview of the editing process

The following is a general overview of how to use ArcMap and the Editor toolbar to edit your data. Each of the following steps is outlined in detail in this chapter or other chapters in this book.

- 1. Start ArcMap.
- 2. Create a new map or open an existing one.



3. Add the data you want to edit to your map.



If there are no existing layers for the feature classes you want to edit, you can create them using ArcCatalogTM. For more information on creating a feature layer, see *Using ArcCatalog*.

4. Add the Editor toolbar to ArcMap.



5. Choose Start Editing from the Editor menu.



6. Create or modify features and/or their attributes.

7. Choose Stop Editing from the Editor menu and click Yes when prompted to save your edits.



There is no need to save the map—all edits made to the database will automatically be reflected the next time you open the map.

The Editor toolbar



Exploring the Editor toolbar

This section shows you how editing in ArcMap helps you complete the tasks that you need to do. You'll learn about the types of data you can edit as well as the basics of creating and modifying features and their attributes.

The structure of vector datasets

ArcMap provides a common editing environment for features stored in geodatabase feature datasets and shapefiles.

When you edit data with ArcMap, you edit feature classes (collections of features) that the layers on your map represent.

Editing the feature classes lets you edit the actual data source, not just the representation on the map.

A feature class is a collection of the same type of features, for example, a collection of points or a collection of polygons.

A dataset is a collection of feature classes that share the same spatial reference. A dataset might be a collection of land base

	Geodatabase	Shapefile	
Collections of datasets	A <i>geodatabase</i> is a collection of feature datasets.	A shapefile folder is a collection of shapefiles.	
Datasets	A <i>feature dataset</i> is a collection of feature classes.	A <i>shapefile</i> has one shapefile feature class.	
Collections of features	A <i>feature class</i> is a collection of features of the same type.	A shapefile feature class is a collection of shapefile features.	
Features	Point, multipoint, polyline, polygon, annotation, and network.	Point, multipoint, line, and polygon.	
Topology	Geodatabase datasets may contain topologies or a Geometric Network.	Map Topology may be used to integrate and edit shapefile feature classes.	

Comparing the structure of vector datasets

feature classes or a collection of utility feature classes. Shapefiles are an exception; they do not hold a collection of feature classes but only one shapefile feature class.

A collection of feature datasets is stored in a geodatabase. Shapefiles are stored in a shapefile folder. Although you may add multiple collections of datasets to your map (geodatabases, ArcInfo workspaces, and shapefile folders), you can only edit feature classes within one collection at a time. Coverage feature classes can't be edited with ArcMap.

What is a sketch and how does it work with a task?

ask: Create New Feature	Target: Distribution	i mains 💽
Isk: Create New Feature	Iarget: Distribution	mains 💌

Current Task dropdown list

A *sketch* is a shape you draw that performs various tasks when editing, such as adding new features, modifying features, and



reshaping features. Tasks are listed in the Current Task dropdown list. You must create a sketch in order to complete a task.



Sketch intersects parcels to be selected.



Parcels intersected by the sketch are now selected.

For instance, the Create New Feature task uses a sketch you create to make the new feature.



Sketch showing where the polygon is to be cut.



Polygon divided into two features where the sketch was drawn.

The Select Features Using a Line task uses a sketch you create to select features; the features the line intersects are selected.



The Cut Polygon Features task uses a line sketch you draw to cut a polygon.

Creating new features



You can create three main types of features with the Editor toolbar: points, lines, and polygons.

To create a line or polygon, you must first create a sketch. A sketch's shape is composed of all the vertices and segments of the feature. *Vertices* are the points at which the sketch changes direction, such as corners, and *segments* are the lines that connect the vertices.



Snap To Feature	•
Direction	Ctrl+A
Deflection	Ctrl+F
Length	Ctrl+L
Change Length	
Absolute X, Y	F6
Delta X, Y	Ctrl+D
Direction/Length	Ctrl+G
Parallel	Ctrl+P
Perpendicular	Ctrl+E
Segment Deflection	F7
Replace Sketch	
Tangent Curve	Ctrl+T
Streaming	F8
Delete Sketch Ctrl-	+Delete
Finish Sketch	F2
Square and Finish	
Finish Part	

Sketch tool context menu

You can create a sketch by creating the vertices and segments that make up the features. Vertices are marked in green, with the last vertex added marked in red.

The Sketch tool is the tool you use most often to create a sketch. It has an accompanying context menu that helps you place vertices and segments more accurately. The Arc tool, the Distance–Distance tool, and the Intersection tool—located with the Sketch tool on the tool palette—also help you create vertices and segments using other construction methods.

When you're creating a new feature, the target layer determines in which layer a new feature will belong. The Target layer dropdown list contains the names of all the layers in the datasets with which you're working. Subtypes are also listed, if applicable. For instance, if you set the target layer to Buildings: Commercial, any features you create will be part of the Commercial subtype of the Buildings layer.



Target layer dropdown list

You must set the target layer whenever you're creating new features—whether you're creating them with the Sketch tool, by copying and pasting, or by buffering another feature.

Modifying features

For every feature on the map, there is an alternate form, a sketch. In the same way that you must create a sketch to create a feature, to modify a feature you must modify its sketch. Because the vertices are visible in a sketch, you can edit the feature in detail; you can move the vertices, delete them, or add new ones using the Sketch context menu.

Besides editing a feature by working with its sketch, you can also use another sketch you create to modify the feature for certain tasks. An example of this type of task is Cut Polygon Features, where a sketch you construct is used to divide one polygon into two.



When you edit a feature's sketch, you edit its vertices using the Sketch context menu.

Simple modifications to features, such as moving, copying, or deleting, can be made by selecting the feature and choosing the appropriate tool or command.



Attributes button

Attributes 🛛 📃		
E- Roads B- 16th Av B- Deerfoot Trail B- Spiller Road B- 17th Av B- Barlow Trail E- Wards B- WARD 3 B- WARD 4 B- WARD 5 B- WARD 10	Property OBJECTID AREA PERIMETER WARDS_ID LABEL ALDERMAN WARD_NUM Shape_Length Shape_Area	Value 8 21237064.022583 22103.7438028993 9 18 WARD 10 DIANE DANIELSON 10 22103.7438490877 21237064.0811026
9 features	4	

Attributes dialog box

Editing attributes

Attributes can be created or edited in the Attributes dialog box. After selecting the features whose attributes you want to edit, click the Attributes button to see the dialog box.

Editor keyboard shortcuts

There are keyboard shortcuts associated with a number of the editing tools and commands. You can use keyboard shortcuts to make editing quicker and more efficient.

Sketch tool

Direction	Ctrl + A
Deflection	Ctrl+F
Length	Ctrl+L
Absolute X,Y	F6
Delta X,Y	Ctrl+D
Direction/Length	Ctrl+G
Parallel	Ctrl+P
Perpendicular	Ctrl+E
Segment Deflection	F7
Tangent Curve	Ctrl + T
Streaming	F8
Delete Sketch	Ctrl + Delete
Finish Sketch	F2
Show Vertices	V
Show Tolerance	Т
Zoom In	Z
Zoom Out	Y
Pan	С
Suspend Snapping	Spacebar
Add/Remove Selection	Shift
Move Selection Anchor	Ctrl

Trace tool

Change Side	Tab
Erase Trace	Esc
Offset	Ο
Endpoint Arc tool	
Radius	R
Direction-Distance tool	
Direction	D
Distance	D
Edit tools	
Select Anchor	Ctrl + Left mouse click
Сору	Ctrl+C
Paste	Ctrl + V
UndoCreate	Ctrl + Z
Next Feature	Ν
Topology Edit tool	
Select Node	Shift + N
Select Edge	Shift + E
Move Selection Anchor	Ctrl + Left mouse click
Split/Move Node	S + Left mouse click
Validate tool	
Validate Area within sketch	Ctrl
Scale/Rotate	
Insert second anchor	S

ArcInfo and ArcEditor

The Advanced Editing toolbar

While the Advanced Editing toolbar is available with ArcEditor and ArcInfo, it is not a feature available with ArcView.



Adding editing toolbars

Before editing geographic feature data within ArcMap, you must first add the Editor toolbar.

Tip

Adding the Editor toolbar from the Tools menu

You can also add the Editor toolbar from the Tools menu. Click Tools and click the Editor Toolbar button.

Тір

Adding the Editor toolbar from the View menu

You can also add the Editor toolbar by clicking the View menu, pointing to Toolbars, and checking Editor.

Тір

Adding the Editor toolbar using the Customize dialog box

Click the Tools menu and click Customize. Click the Toolbars tab and check Editor.

Adding the Editor toolbar

- 1. Start ArcMap.
- Click the Editor Toolbar button to display the Editor toolbar.
- Click the toolbar's title bar and drag it to the top of the ArcMap application window.





Adding other editing toolbars

 Click Editor, point to More Editing Tools, and click the toolbar that you want to add.



Upgrading a geodatabase

Geodatabases built using previous versions of ArcGIS do not support some of the newer functions of ArcGIS.

If your geodatabase was developed using a previous version of ArcGIS, you may wish to upgrade your geodatabase.

Тір

Creating a backup copy of your geodatabase

Bear in mind that once a geodatabase is upgraded, previous versions of ArcGIS can view, but cannot edit, the geodatabase. For this reason, you may wish to make a copy of the geodatabase and upgrade the copy, thus leaving you with both an original and an upgraded geodatabase.

- 1. Start ArcCatalog.
- 2. Right-click the geodatabase you want to upgrade and click Properties.
- 3. Click the General tab.
- 4. Click Upgrade Personal Geodatabase.
- 5. Click OK.



3

atabase Properties	? ×
General Domains	
Name: D:\OldData\MuOldGendatabase.mdb	
Tune: Remonal Geodatabase	
This database does not contain data checked out from another database.	
Check-out Name:	
Properties Unregister As Cheok-out	
Configuration Keywords Personal geodatabases don't support configuration keywords.	
Configuration Keywords	
Upgrade Status	
This database can be upgraded to the ArcGIS release you are currently using to support additonal capabilities.	
Upgrade Personal Geodatabase	
OK Cancel	Apply
5	
Adding the data you want to edit

Before you can start editing, you must add the data you want to edit to your map. In ArcMap, you can edit feature data in shapefiles or geodatabases.

Тір

Stopping the drawing of data

You can stop the drawing process without clearing the map by pressing the Esc key.

Тір

Loading data from a geodatabase

You can import features from a geodatabase into a layer on your map using the Load Objects command. For more information, see Building a Geodatabase.

- 1. Start ArcMap.
- 2. Click the Add Data button.
- 3. Navigate to the location of your data and click Add.

The data is added to your map.







Data is added to the map.

Starting and stopping an edit session

All editing takes place within an *edit session*. To begin, choose Start Editing from the Editor menu. The edits you make are immediately visible on your map but are not saved to the database until you choose to do so.

If you're working with large amounts of data, you can speed up the editing and selection of features by creating an edit cache. An *edit cache* holds the features visible in the current map extent in memory on your local machine. An edit cache results in faster editing because ArcMap doesn't have to retrieve data from the server. You can create an edit cache by clicking the Build Edit Cache ►

Тір

Editing a map with more than one collection of datasets

You can only edit one collection of datasets at a time. These can be geodatabases or folders containing a collection of shapefiles. If your map contains more than one collection, when you choose Start Editing you will be prompted to choose which one you want to edit.

Starting an edit session

- 1. Start ArcMap and add the Editor toolbar.
- 2. Click Editor and click Start Editing.

The Editor toolbar is now active.





The Editor toolbar is now active.

command on the Edit Cache toolbar.

When you're finished editing, you can save any changes you've made or quit editing without saving. You can also save the edits you've made at any time by choosing Save Edits from the Editor menu.

Тір

Zooming to your edit cache extent

You can quickly return to your edit cache extent at any time in your edit session. Click the Zoom to Edit Cache button on the Edit Cache toolbar.

Creating an edit cache

- 1. Add the data you want to edit.
- 2. Click the Zoom In button on the Tools toolbar.
- Zoom in to the area on the map that you want to edit.
- Click the Build Edit Cache button on the Edit Cache toolbar.

The features visible in the current extent are held in memory locally.

Saving your edits in the middle of an edit session

- 1. Click Editor.
- 2. Click Save Edits.

Any edits you have made are saved to the database.





Тір

Editing a map with more than one data frame

If your map contains more than one data frame, you will be editing the data frame that is active when you choose Start Editing. To edit a different data frame, you must choose Stop Editing, then choose Start Editing with the desired data frame active.

For a discussion of data frames, see Using ArcMap.

Тір

Editing in layout view

You can also edit data in a map that you're preparing. Click the View menu and click Layout View. For more information about working in layout view, see Using ArcMap.

Stopping an edit session

- 1. Click Editor and click Stop Editing.
- 2. To save changes, click Yes. To quit without saving, click No.





Managing the edit cache

Using the edit cache when editing data stored in an ArcSDE geodatabase will greatly improve performance. Since the edit cache caches features on the client, it cuts down on the number of queries that the client needs to execute on the server during editing.

This improves the performance of your edit session and also reduces the load on the server itself in a multiuser environment. When editing network features or when using the shared geometry editing tools on ArcSDE geodatabases, you should always use the edit cache.

ArcMap has tools to build and help you work with the edit cache. These tools are found on the Edit Cache toolbar.

Tip

Adding the toolbar

You can also add the toolbar by clicking the View menu, pointing to Toolbars, then clicking Edit Cache or clicking the Editor context menu under More Editing Tools.

Adding the Edit cache toolbar

- 1. Right-click the Main menu.
- 2. Click Edit Cache.
- Dock the toolbar to the ArcMap window. Now each time you start ArcMap, the toolbar will be displayed.



Тір

Using the edit cache

You can't build or use an edit cache unless you have started editing.

Тір

Edit cache tools

Click the Show Edit Cache command on the Edit Cache toolbar to display the extent of the current edit cache. This command will only be enabled if your map's extent intersects the extent of the current edit cache.

Click the Zoom To Edit Cache command on the Edit Cache toolbar to zoom to the extent of the current edit cache.

The Show Edit Cache and the Zoom To Edit Cache commands are enabled only when you have built an edit cache.

Auto-cache builds a new edit cache for the current extent each time you pan or zoom. This is convenient when you do not know the exact bounds of the area you want to cache, but it can have a large performance cost. It is a good idea to set a maximum scale for autocaching, so you do not retrieve every feature when you pan or zoom at the full extent of the data.

Тір

Read-only features

In an ArcSDE geodatabase, the features that you do not have write privileges to are not cached, nor are features in feature classes that are not registered as versioned.

Building an edit cache

- Pan and/or zoom to the area of your map where you will be performing your edits.
- Click the Build Edit Cache command on the Edit Cache toolbar.





Using auto-cache

- 1. Zoom out just beyond the scale at which you'll be editing.
- 2. Click Set Auto-Cache Scale on the Edit Cache toolbar.
- 3. Click the Auto-Cache command on the Edit Cache toolbar.





Changing the options of the task menu

Many times your project may call for specific editing tasks to be used more than others. Task options can be added to or removed from the task dropdown menu. This will simplify your editing interface and facilitate your selection process.

Modifying the task dropdown menu

- 1. Click Editor and click Options.
- 2. Click the Edit Tasks tab.
- 3. To remove tasks, select the task to be removed and click Remove.
- 4. To add tasks, click Add.
- 5. On the Add Tasks dialog box, select the tasks to add and click OK.

The task dropdown menu will be modified according to the changes made.





Selecting features

Selecting features identifies the features on which you want to perform certain operations. For example, before you move, delete, or copy a feature, you must select it. You must also select features before you can view their attributes.

You can select features in several different ways, either by clicking them with the Edit tool or by creating a line or a polygon that intersects the features you want to select. The number of features selected is shown immediately after you make the selection, in the lowerleft corner of the ArcMap window. ►

Тір

Selecting more than one feature

To select more than one feature, hold down the Shift key while you click the features. You can also use the Edit tool to drag a box around a group of features.

Тір

Removing features from the selection

To remove features from the selection set, hold down the Shift key while you click the features.

Selecting features using the Edit tool

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Move the pointer over a feature and click.

The selected feature is highlighted.





The selected building is highlighted.

The small "x" located in the center of the selected features is the *selection anchor*. The selection anchor is used when rotating features, moving features using snapping, and scaling features.

You can choose which layers you can select by choosing Set Selectable Layers from the Selection menu and using the Selectable Layers list.

For example, suppose you wanted to select a large number of buildings by drawing a box around them but selected a parcel by mistake as you drew the selection box. To avoid this, you might uncheck the Parcels layer in the Selectable Layers list so that parcels cannot be selected.

Тір

Adding options to the task dropdown menu

Tasks on the task dropdown menu can be added or removed from the selection on the Edit Options dialog box under the Edit Tasks tab. For further details, see 'Modifying the task dropdown menu' in this chapter.

See Also

For more information on creating a line, see Chapter 3, 'Creating new features'.

Selecting features using a line

- Click the Task dropdown arrow and click Select Features Using a Line.
- Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Sketch tool or any of the other construction tools in the tool palette.
- Construct a line that intersects the features you want to select.

The features that the line intersects are now selected.







Tip

Use the Selection menu for more control over your selection

The Selection menu gives you more tools with which to make a selection, such as adding to the current selection, selecting all features onscreen, or creating an SOL statement.

Tip

Pan and zoom while you select features

You can pan and zoom while selecting features without having to change tools. Hold the Ctrl key and press Z to zoom in, X to zoom out, or C to pan.

See Also

For more information on creating a polygon, see Chapter 3, 'Creating new features'.

See Also

For more information on the selection anchor, see 'Moving features' in this chapter and Chapter 7, 'Editing existing features'.

See Also

For more information on selecting features in ArcMap, see Using ArcMap.

Selecting features using a polygon

- Click the Task dropdown arrow and click Select Features Using an Area.
- Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Sketch tool or any of the other construction tools in the tool palette.
- Construct a polygon that intersects the features you want to select.

The features that intersect with the polygon you created are now selected.



3



•

Features that intersect with the area are now selected.

Тір

Adding the Selection tab to the ArcMap table of contents

You can quickly change the selectable layers from the ArcMap table of contents if you add the Selections tab. You can add the Selections tab to the table of contents from the TOC tab of the ArcMap Tools Options dialog box.

Making a layer selectable

- 1. Click Selection and click Set Selectable Layers.
- 2. Click the check boxes next to the layer names you want to be able to select. Uncheck the boxes next to the names you don't want to be able to select.

Layers whose names are unchecked are still visible in your map but cannot be selected.

Selection

	Select By Attributes	
5	Select By Location	
Ъ	Select By Graphics	
Ð	Zoom To Selected Features	
Σ	Statistics	
	Set Selectable Layers	-
Ø	Clear Selected Features	
	Interactive Selection Method	



Moving features

You can move features in three different ways: by dragging; by specifying delta x,y coordinates; or by rotating.

Dragging is the easiest way to move a feature. Use this method when you have a general idea of where you want to move the feature.

Specify delta x,y coordinates when you want to move a feature to a precise location. ArcMap uses the current location of the selected feature or features as the origin (0,0)and moves them from that location according to the coordinates you specify. \blacktriangleright

Тір

Avoiding accidental moves

The Sticky move tolerance allows you to set a minimum number of pixels your pointer must move on the screen before a selected feature is moved. This can be a useful way to prevent features from being accidentally moved small distances when they are clicked with the Edit tool. You can set the sticky move tolerance on the General tab of the Editing Options dialog box.

Dragging a feature

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the feature or features you want to move.
- Click and drag the feature or features to the desired location.





The selected building is dragged to a new location.

The coordinates are measured in map units. The graphic below illustrates the change in location when delta x,y coordinates of 2,3 are specified for a building.



In the example above, the building is moved up and to the right, as positive coordinate values are specified. To move the building left or down, you would specify negative values.

You can rotate features in ArcMap using the Rotate tool. After selecting the features, drag the mouse pointer so that the features rotate to the desired position. Features rotate around the selection anchor, the small x located in the center of selected features.

If you want to move a feature to a precise location in relation to another feature, you can use the snapping environment. For example, you can move a \blacktriangleright

Moving a feature relative to its current location

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the feature or features you want to move.
- 3. Click Editor and click Move. ►





parcel and have one of its corners jump, or snap, precisely to a corner of another parcel. Simply move the parcel's selection anchor to its corner vertex after setting the appropriate snapping properties. Then move the parcel toward its new location until the selection anchor snaps to the corner vertex of the other parcel. Snapping is discussed in Chapter 3, 'Creating new features'.

Тір

Moving the selection anchor

To move the selection anchor, move the pointer over it, press the Ctrl key, and drag the selection anchor to the desired location.

Tip

Undoing a move

You can undo any edit you make to a feature by clicking the Undo button on the ArcMap Standard toolbar.



4. Type the desired coordinates and press Enter.

The feature is moved according to the specified coordinates.





The feature is moved 10.5 map units to the left.

Тір

Rotating by degree

To specify the exact amount of rotation, click the Rotate tool, press A, and type the number of degrees. A positive number rotates the feature in the clockwise direction, a negative number in the counterclockwise direction.

Tip

Rotating with snapping

If you want to rotate a feature until a point on it snaps to a feature specified in the current snapping environment, add an Auxiliary selection anchor and drag it to the part of the feature that you want snapped to another feature. You can add an Auxiliary selection anchor by pressing the S key when using the Rotate tool. The Auxiliary selection anchor also works with the Scale tool.

Тір

Rotating a point's symbology

If your data already has a field that contains the rotation angle for each point symbol, you can use ArcMap to rotate the symbology.

Right-click the point layer name in the map's table of contents and click Properties. Click the Symbology tab. Click the Advanced button, then click Rotation. From the dropdown list, choose the field that contains the rotation angle. Click the option that describes how you want that angle calculated.

Rotating a feature

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the feature or features you want to rotate.
- 3. Click the Rotate tool.
- Click anywhere on the map and drag the pointer to rotate the feature to the desired position.

The feature or features rotate around the selection anchor. You can drag the selection anchor to a new location to change the center of rotation.





The selected features are rotated.

Copying and pasting features

To copy an existing feature, use the tools on the ArcMap Standard toolbar. From the Target layer dropdown list, choose the layer containing the type of features you want the new feature to be—for example, a building.

You can copy a feature and paste it as part of another layer, but it must be the same type of layer (point, line, or polygon) as the one from which you copied. There is one exception to this rule—you can copy polygons into a line layer.

Attributes from the original feature are only copied to the new feature if you are copying and pasting within the same layer.

See Also

For more information on attributes, see Chapter 9, 'Editing attributes'. You can also see Using ArcMap.

- Click the Target layer dropdown arrow and click the layer containing the type of features you want the new features to be.
- 2. Click the Edit tool.
- 3. Click the feature or features you want to copy.
- 4. Click the Copy button.
- 5. Click the Paste button.

The feature is pasted on top of the original feature.



The selected feature is pasted on top of the original feature.

Deleting features

To delete a feature from the map and from the database, use the Delete button on the ArcMap Standard toolbar.

Тір

Deleting features using the Delete key

You can also press the Delete key on the keyboard to remove selected features.

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the feature or features you want to delete.
- 3. Click the Delete button.

The selected features are deleted.





The selected building is deleted.

Setting the number of decimal places used for reporting measurements

When creating or editing a feature with the Sketch tool, you can use the Sketch tool context menu to view such measurements as the distance between two vertices, the angle between two segments, or the current coordinate location of the pointer.

By default, ArcMap displays these measurements using three decimal places. However, you can easily change the number of decimal places displayed. After you set the number of decimal places, ArcMap will report all measurements using that number of decimal places.

- 1. Click Editor and click Options.
- 2. Click the General tab.
- 3. Type the number of decimal places you want to use.
- 4. Click OK.



Creating new features

IN THIS CHAPTER

- Creating new point, line, and polygon features
- Creating segments using directions and lengths or angles
- Creating segments that are circular arc curves
- Copying, filleting, extending, and trimming lines
- Proportionally dividing a line
- Creating features from a traverse
- Getting COGO attributes of features
- Exploding multipart features
- Generalizing and smoothing features
- Using the snapping environment
- Setting direction type and units

It's easy to create a wide array of new features using the editing sketch construction tools. To begin, simply specify the layer in which you want to create the new feature. Then, use the appropriate tool to digitize the vertices of the feature.

With the editing tools you can create new point, line, or polygon features for many practical purposes. Using the Sketch tool and its accompanying context menu, you can add a water main perpendicular to an existing water main in a subdivision. The Distance–Distance tool lets you create a land parcel that begins 55 meters from one corner of an existing lot and ends 40 meters from another lot corner. Creating a cul-de-sac is simplified using the Arc tool to create a circular curve. With the Intersection tool, you can add a parcel to a subdivision by establishing a corner vertex using segments of an adjoining parcel.

Using the editing tools, you can create a variety of features by constructing segments at specific angles and of specific lengths. You can create features that are parallel or perpendicular to other features. You can also create multipoint features, such as a system of oil wells, and multipart features, such as a group of islands that form a country or state.

These are just a few examples of how you can use ArcMap to easily and accurately create new features for your database.

How to create a new feature

To create a new feature using ArcMap, you create an edit sketch. A *sketch* is a shape that you draw by digitizing vertices. You can use a sketch to complete various tasks; these tasks are listed in the Task dropdown list shown below.



This chapter focuses on using sketches to create new features. When the current task setting is Create New Feature, the shape you create becomes the new feature.



A sketch is composed of *vertices*—the points at which the sketch changes direction, such as corners—and *segments*—the lines that connect the vertices. You create a sketch using the Sketch tool located on the tool palette.

Task dropdown list

Tasks you can complete with a sketch include creating new features, modifying features, extending or trimming features, and reshaping features.



Building as sketch

Building as feature



Target layer dropdown list

The type of feature you create is determined by the setting of the Target layer dropdown list. This list contains the names of all the layers in the datasets with which you're working.

Choose the layer to which you want to add new features before you start to create them.

To create point features, click once on the map. To create line or polygon features (see the example below), use the Sketch tool to click on the map to digitize the vertices that make up that feature.



To create the last vertex and finish the sketch, double-click with the mouse. After you finish the sketch, ArcMap adds the final segment of the sketch and the sketch turns into a feature.

Of course, you won't always be able to place vertices or segments interactively. When you're using the Sketch tool, you can see a menu called the Sketch tool context menu. You can access this menu when you right-click the mouse away from the sketch you're creating. The menu has choices to help you place

Snap To Feature	I	▶
Direction	Ctrl+A	
Deflection	Ctrl+F	
Length	Ctrl+L	
Change Length		
Absolute X, Y	F6	
Delta X, Y	Ctrl+D	
Direction/Length	Ctrl+G	
Parallel	Ctrl+P	
Perpendicular	Ctrl+E	
Segment Deflection	F7	
Replace Sketch		
Tangent Curve	Ctrl+T	
Streaming	F8	
Delete Sketch Ctrl-	+Delete	
Finish Sketch	F2	
Square and Finish		
Finish Part		

Sketch tool context menu

the vertices and segments exactly where you want them. For example, you can set a segment to be a certain length or angle, or create a vertex at a specific x,y coordinate location.

All the tools on the tool palette help you create a sketch. Three tools use more specific construction methods to create either points or vertices: the Distance–Distance tool, Direction–Distance tool, and the Intersection tool.



The Distance–Distance tool lets you create a point or vertex at the intersection of two distances from two other points. You



The Distance–Distance tool allows you to choose one of two intersection points of two circles; the size of the circles is determined by the radius you set.

might use this tool to place a new electrical primary based on field measurements. Suppose you know that the next point for the primary is 50 feet from one building corner and 75 feet from another.

The Distance–Distance tool creates two circles based on these distances and finds two possible intersection points where the primary can be placed.



The Direction–Distance tool, like the Distance–Distance tool, allows you to create a vertex using a distance from a known point, plus information from another point. Instead of using a distance from the second point, the Direction–Distance tool uses a direction from a known point to define a bearing line. You can choose which of the intersection points will be the new vertex.

You could use the Direction–Distance tool to place a tree location point based on field notes stating that the tree is on a bearing of 212 degrees from a fence corner and 112 feet from the northeast corner of a building. The Intersection tool creates a point or vertex at the place where two segments would intersect if extended far enough.



The Intersection tool creates a vertex here at the place where the two segments would intersect.

Suppose you want to create a parking lot adjoining an L-shaped building. The outer corner of the lot should be located at the point where the two outermost walls of the building would intersect if they were extended. You could use the Intersection tool to find this implied intersection point and create the corner vertex of the lot. The Midpoint tool lets you define the location of the next vertex by clicking two points—the new vertex is placed at the midpoint of the line between these points.



You might use the Midpoint tool to place the next vertex of a street centerline midway between the parcels on either side of the street.

The Arc tool helps you create a segment that is a circular arc.



The Endpoint Arc tool, like the Arc tool, helps you create a segment that is a circular arc. The Endpoint Arc tool allows you to specify the start and endpoints of the curve, then define a radius for the curve.



The Tangent Curve tool helps you create a segment that is a circular arc. This tool adds a segment that is tangential to the previously sketched segment. The Tangent Curve tool can only be used if you have already sketched a segment using one of the other sketch tools.



Curve tool will draw a circular arc off of the previous line segment.

The Trace tool helps you create segments that follow along existing segments. Suppose you want to add a new road casing feature that is offset 15 feet from the front of a parcel subdivision.



You could use the Trace tool to trace along the existing line features instead of typing the angle and length of each segment.

You can use any combination of the following methods for creating vertices or segments to create a new line or polygon feature:

- Sketch tool
- Sketch tool context menu
- Distance–Distance tool
- Direction–Distance tool
- Intersection tool
- Midpoint tool
- Arc tool
- · Endpoint Arc tool
- · Tangent Curve tool
- Trace tool

ArcMap has another context menu—the Sketch context menu that works more directly with the sketch as a whole. With this menu, you can add, move, or delete vertices; switch the direction of the sketch; reduce its length; or display the properties of the sketch shape.

Route Measure Editing	
Insert Vertex	
Delete Vertex	
Move	<u> </u>
Move To	Sketch
Flip	context
Trim to Length	menu
Delete Sketch Ctrl+Delete	
Finish Sketch F2	
Finish Part	
Properties	

From the properties dialog box, you can remove parts from a multipart feature, remove many vertices in one operation, add points, and/or modify x,y values as well as m- and z-values. The Sketch context menu is available when you right-click while the pointer is positioned over any part of the sketch using any tool. It differs from the Sketch tool context menu, which you can access only when working with the Sketch tool and when you right-click away from your sketch.

Creating point features and vertices

You can think of vertices as being much the same as point features, except that vertices are connected by segments and make up line or polygon features.

Point features and vertices are created using the same methods. The Target layer setting determines whether you're creating a point feature or a vertex that is part of a line or polygon sketch.

You can create point features or vertices of a sketch in several different ways:

- By digitizing freehand with the Sketch tool (you can also use the snapping environment to help)
- By using Absolute X, Y or Delta X, Y on the Sketch tool context menu ►

Тір

The snapping environment can help you create points and vertices

The snapping environment can help you create points or vertices at more exact locations relative to other features. For more information, see 'Using the snapping environment' in this chapter.

Creating a point or vertex by digitizing

- Click the Current Task dropdown arrow and click Create New Feature.
- 2. Click the Target Layer dropdown list and click a point layer.
- Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Sketch tool.
- 4. Click on the map to create the point.

The point is created on your map and marked as selected.



• By using the Distance– Distance, Direction– Distance, Midpoint, or Intersection tools

To create new features, you must have an existing layer to which you want to add them. If you do not, you can create one using ArcCatalog. For more information on creating a feature layer, see Using ArcCatalog.

To digitize freehand, simply click the Sketch tool and click on the map.

Absolute X, Y on the Sketch tool context menu lets you create a point or vertex at a specific location using the map's coordinate system. You might use Absolute X, Y to create a pole in a utility database if you have the x,y coordinates of a pole from using a global positioning system (GPS) unit. ►

Тір

Shortcut for Absolute X, Y

After clicking the Sketch tool, you can press F6 to set the x,y coordinates.

Тір

Closing the Sketch tool context menu

You can close the Sketch tool context menu by pressing the Esc key.

Creating a point or vertex using the coordinate system of the map (Absolute X, Y)

- 1. Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Sketch tool.
- 2. Right-click anywhere on the map and click Absolute X, Y.
- 3. Type the coordinates and press Enter.

A vertex or point is created at the specified coordinates.





A point is created at (2222264,394370). Delta X, Y on the Sketch tool context menu lets you create a vertex using the last vertex in the sketch as the origin. You can think of it as another way of measuring angle and length from a point already on the map.

For example, just as the red point in the diagram below can be measured at a distance of 20 feet from the last point at an angle of 53 degrees, it can also be measured in coordinates measured from the last point.



Point measured using an angle and length



Same point measured using delta x,y coordinates

Тір

Shortcut for Delta X, Y

After clicking the Sketch tool, you can press Ctrl + D to set the delta x, y coordinates.

Creating a vertex relative to the location of the last vertex (Delta X,Y)

- Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Sketch tool after creating at least one vertex.
- 2. Right-click away from the vertex or sketch and click Delta X, Y.
- 3. Type the coordinates and press Enter.

A vertex is created at the specified coordinates.





The Distance–Distance tool offers another way to create a point or vertex at a specific location. Suppose you want to create a pole feature. If you don't have the exact coordinate location but know that it is at the intersection of 50 map units from the corner of one building and 70 map units from the corner of another, you can use the Distance-Distance tool to place the point. The Distance-Distance tool lets you create a point or vertex at the intersection of two distances from two other points.

Тір

Undoing and redoing a vertex

You can undo any vertex you create by clicking the Undo button on the ArcMap Standard toolbar. Click the Redo button if you want to readd the vertex.



Creating a point or vertex using the Distance– Distance tool

- Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Distance–Distance tool.
- Click once to establish the centerpoint of the first circle and press the D key on the keyboard.
- 3. Type the radius length for the first circle and press Enter.

A circle is created with the specified radius. ►







A circle with a 50-map unit radius is created.

As shown in the example, you'd create one circle with the centerpoint on the corner of the first building and a radius of 50 map units. You'd create another circle with the centerpoint on the corner of the other building and a radius of 70 map units. The Distance– Distance tool calculates the two locations where the radii of the circles intersect.

Tip

Choosing an intersection point

Press Tab to alternate between the two points of intersection and press Enter to create the point.

- 4. Click once to establish the centerpoint of the second circle and press the D key on the keyboard.
- 5. Type the radius length for the second circle and press Enter.

A second circle is created with the specified radius. The two locations where the radii of the circles intersect are highlighted when you move the pointer over them.

6. Position the pointer over the location you want and click.

A vertex or point is added to your map.





radius is created.



A point is created at one of two places where the radii of the circles intersect.

The Midpoint tool is ideal for placing a vertex directly between two known features. For example, you may want to place the road center line directly between two parcels or place an additional power pole directly between two preexisting power poles.

Тір

Pan and zoom while adding points

Hold down the Control key and press Z to zoom out, X to zoom in, or C to pan the display when using any sketch tool.

Creating a point or vertex using the Midpoint tool

- Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Midpoint tool.
- 2. Click once to establish the first of two points. The new vertex will be created between this point and the next point you click.
- 3. Click the second point.

A vertex or point is placed at the midpoint of the line between the two points you clicked.









A point is created at the midpoint along the line defined by the two points you clicked.

The Intersection tool creates a point or vertex at the implied intersection of two segments. Implied means that the segments don't have to actually intersect on the map. In the example, suppose you want to create a new parcel. One corner of the parcel must be placed at the implied intersection of two segments of an adjoining parcel. You can use the Intersection tool to find this implied intersection point and create the corner vertex of the new parcel.

Creating a point or vertex using the Intersection tool

1. Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Intersection tool.

The pointer turns into crosshairs.

- 2. Position the crosshairs over the first segment and click.
- Position the crosshairs over the second segment and click.

A vertex or point is added at the implied intersection of the two segments.



Often a vertex location is only known according to the direction and the distance from two known features. For example, the location of a tree on a lot could be located at a particular direction from the corner of the lot and a given number of feet from another corner. In this situation, the Direction–Distance tool will place a vertex at the specified location.

As illustrated in this example, the direction is specified from one corner of the parcel. ►

Creating a point or vertex using the Direction– Distance tool

- Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Direction–Distance tool.
- 2. Click a point to specify from where the direction to the next vertex was measured.
- 3. Move the pointer to get the approximate direction toward the next vertex.

As you move the pointer the direction from the point you clicked to, the pointer is displayed in the lower-left corner of the ArcMap window.

Press the D key and type the direction to the vertex from the point you clicked, then press Enter.

You can also click again on the map to set the direction.

 Click a point to specify from where the distance to the next vertex was measured. ►



The distance is specified from another corner of the parcel, and the locations where both the direction and distance criteria are met, a potential vertex is placed. By clicking one of the two vertices, the new vertex is placed.

Тір

Determining map units

With many of these sketch tools you must specify a distance in map units. The map units are specified under the Coordinate System tab of the Data Frame Properties dialog box. This is found by clicking View on the main menu, then clicking Data Frame Properties. 5. Move the pointer to get the approximate distance from the point you clicked to the next vertex.

As the cursor is moved, a circle, centered at the second point you clicked, is dragged out to intersect the direction line you just defined. The radius of the circle is displayed in the lower-left corner.

Optionally, you can press the D key and type a distance, in map units, to the next vertex from the point you specified. Pressing the Enter key will set the size of the circle.

The new vertex will be at one of the intesection points of this circle and the direction line.

 Click the intersection of the circle and the direction line which corresponds to the position of the new vertex.

The intersection point nearest the cursor will be highlighted and, once clicked, the new vertex is placed.

Optionally, you can use the Tab key to switch between the two intersection points and press Enter to select one of them.





A vertex is added at the intersection you chose. It is at the angle you specified from the first point and the distance you specified from the second point. You can also create a *multipoint feature*, a feature that consists of more than one point but only references one set of attributes in the database. For example, a system of oil wells could be created as a multipoint feature; the database references a single set of attributes for the main well and the multiple well holes in the system.

Тір

Creating multipoint layers

When creating multipoint features, your target layer must also be a multipoint feature class.

Creating a multipoint feature

- 1. Click the Task dropdown arrow and click Create New Feature.
- Click the Target layer dropdown arrow and click a multipoint layer.
- Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Sketch tool.
- 4. Click the map to create parts of the multipoint feature.
- Right-click anywhere on the map when you have created the last point of the multipoint feature and click Finish Sketch. ►







Тір

Modifying existing features

Double-click a feature or select single features and change the task in the Editor toolbar to Modify Feature. Use the Sketch Properties dialog box to edit vertices. You can open the sketch properties by clicking the Sketch Properties button on the Editor toolbar. Now when you click one part of the multipoint feature to select it, all points are automatically selected because they all belong to one multipoint feature.



All points of the feature are selected.
Creating lines and polygons

You can create lines or polygons by digitizing the vertices that make up the feature. For example, to create a square building, you would digitize the four corners. Using any combination of methods for creating vertices or segments.

By selecting in the target list a feature class that is represented by lines or polygons, the editor tools will create the corresponding feature type.

Тір

Shortcut for finishing the sketch

You can double-click the last vertex of the feature to finish the sketch. Or, press F2 when you've finished creating the sketch.

Creating a line or polygon feature by digitizing

- Click the Task dropdown arrow and click Create New Feature.
- 2. Click the Target layer dropdown arrow and click a line or polygon layer.
- Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Sketch tool.
- 4. Click the map to digitize the feature's vertices.
- Right-click anywhere on the map when finished and click Finish Sketch. ►







Тір

Deleting a vertex

To delete a single vertex from a sketch, center the pointer over the vertex, right-click, then click Delete Vertex.

Тір

Deleting the sketch

To delete the entire sketch of the feature you are creating, position the pointer over any part of the map, right-click, and click Delete Sketch. You can also delete a sketch by pressing Ctrl + Delete.

If the sketch has already been finished, select the feature with the Edit tool, right-click, and click Delete Sketch. The line or polygon is created on your map.



A new feature is created on your map.

ArcMap also provides a way to create a *multipart feature*, a feature that is composed of more than one physical part but only references one set of attributes in the database. For example, the State of Hawaii could be considered a multipart feature. Although composed of many islands, it would be recorded as one feature. A multipart feature can only share vertices, not edges.

Тір

Replace sketch

You can add the shape of a line or polygon feature to the sketch by right-clicking over the feature with the Sketch tool and clicking Replace Sketch. The sketch will contain the shape of the feature you clicked over. Using the Edit tool, the sketch can be dragged and dropped anywhere on the map.

Tip

Undoing and redoing a vertex

You can undo the last vertex you created by clicking the Undo button on the ArcMap Standard toolbar. Click the button again to undo the second-to-last vertex you created, and so on. Click the Redo button if you want to readd the vertex.



Creating a multipart line or polygon

- 1. Create a line or polygon feature.
- 2. Right-click anywhere on the map when you have finished creating the first part of the feature and click Finish Part.
- 3. Create the next part of the feature.
- Right-click anywhere on the map when you have finished the last part of the feature and click Finish Sketch. ►





Тір

Shortcut for finishing the sketch

You can double-click the last vertex of the new feature to finish the sketch.

Тір

Shortcut for finishing a part

When creating a multipart sketch, you can hold down the Shift key and double-click on the last vertex of a part to finish it. Now when you click one part of the feature to select it, all parts are automatically selected because they all belong to one multipart feature.



The Square and Finish command on the Sketch tool context menu is a way of completing a polygon. It finishes a polygon by adding two new segments at 90-degree angles. Square and Finish saves you time and ensures precision when creating square-cornered buildings.

Squaring a polygon or polyline

- Click the Current Task dropdown arrow and click Create New Feature.
- Click the Target layer dropdown arrow and click a polygon or polyline layer.
- Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Sketch tool.
- 4. Digitize at least two segments.
- Right-click anywhere away from the sketch and click Square and Finish. ►





Tip

Streaming

You can also create lines and polygons with the mouse using stream mode digitizing (streaming). For more information, see Chapter 5, 'Using a digitizer'.

Тір

Adding attributes to created features

To add attributes to the newly created features, with the Edit tool, right-click the feature and click Attributes. The Attributes dialog box will open, which allows you to modify the attributes. The angles from the first vertex and the last vertex are squared. A new vertex is added, and the sketch is finished where the resulting segments intersect.



Creating segments using directions and lengths

The edit tools help you create segments in specific directions, measured either using the map coordinate system (Direction) or from the last segment (Deflection).

The Direction command uses east as 0 degrees and measures positive angles counterclockwise by default. For example, a 90-degree angle represents north and a 180-degree angle represents west. You can change the direction measuring system and angular units on the Units tab of the Editing Options dialog box.

The Deflection command uses the last segment as 0 degrees and calculates the angle you specify from there. Positive values are calculated in a counterclockwise direction from the existing segment, while negative values are calculated clockwise. ►

Тір

Shortcut for direction angle

After clicking the Sketch tool and creating at least one vertex, you can press Ctrl + A to set the direction angle.

Creating a segment using an angle and a length

- Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Sketch tool after creating at least one vertex.
- 2. Right-click away from the sketch and click Direction.
- 3. Type the direction and press Enter.

The segment is constrained to the specified direction. ►



Direction

33

Angle constrained to 33 degrees



You might use Deflection to create the bent end of a water or gas line at a 33-degree angle to a house.

Both the Direction and Deflection commands constrain the angle of the segment. For example, if you type 45 as the Direction, the segment will be constrained to a 45-degree angle one way and a 225-degree angle the other.

Use the Length command to specify the length of a segment you're creating.

Тір

Shortcut for length

After clicking the Sketch tool and creating at least one vertex, you can press Ctrl + L to set the length.

Тір

Changing the length of a segment

If you want to change the length of a segment you have already created, you can use Change Length on the Sketch tool context menu. This undoes the last vertex while keeping the direction constraint.

- 4. Right-click anywhere on the map and click Length.
- 5. Type the length and press Enter.

The vertex that makes the segment the desired angle and length is created.

Snap To Feature		F	
Direction	Ctrl+A		
Deflection	Ctrl+F		
Length	Ctrl+L		-(
Change Length			
Absolute X, Y	F6		
Delta X, Y	Ctrl+D		
Direction/Length.	Ctrl+G		
Parallel	Ctrl+P		
Perpendicular	Ctrl+E		
Segment Deflecti	on F7		
Replace Sketch			
Tangent Curve	Ctrl+T		
Streaming	F8		
Delete Sketch	Ctrl+Delete		
Finish Sketch	F2		
Delete Sketch Finish Sketch	Ctrl+Delete F2		



The vertex that makes the segment the desired angle and length is created.

Тір

Shortcut for deflection

After clicking the Sketch tool and creating at least one vertex, you can press Ctrl + F to set the deflection angle.

Creating a segment at an angle from the last segment (deflection)

- Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Sketch tool after creating at least one vertex for the new segment.
- 2. Right-click away from the sketch.
- 3. Click Deflection.
- Type the desired angle from the last segment and press Enter. ►



The segment is constrained to the specified angle.

5. Click once to digitize the endpoint of the segment or choose Length from the Sketch tool context menu.





Creating segments using angles from existing segments

Three commands on the Sketch tool context menu—Segment Deflection, Parallel, and Perpendicular—help create segments with angles relative to segments that already exist.

The Segment Deflection command lets you create a segment at an angle relative to any existing segment. While Deflection creates a segment at a specific angle from the last segment in the sketch you're creating, Segment Deflection lets you choose a segment in an existing feature.

As with the Deflection command, the segment you work from with Segment Deflection is 0 degrees, and the deflection \blacktriangleright

Tip

Shortcut for segment deflection

After clicking the Sketch tool, creating at least one vertex, and positioning the pointer over the segment from which you want to be the specific angle, you can press F7 to set the angle.

Creating a segment at an angle from any other segment

- Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Sketch tool after creating at least one vertex.
- 2. Position the pointer over the segment of a feature class from which you want to create a segment and right-click with the mouse.
- 3. Click Segment Deflection.
- Type the desired angle from the segment you chose and press Enter. ►



angle you specify for the new segment is calculated from there. Positive values are calculated in a counterclockwise direction from the existing segment, while negative values are calculated clockwise. The example given shows a cross street created at a -45-degree angle to the existing streets.

Tip

Using only positive values with segment deflection

If you wish to work only with positive angle values, convert negative angles to positive angles by adding 180 to the negative value. For example, a -45-degree angle, measured clockwise, becomes a 135degree angle, measured counterclockwise. The segment is constrained to the specified angle.

 Click once to digitize the endpoint of the segment or choose Length from the Sketch tool context menu.



The Parallel command on the Sketch tool context menu constrains a segment to be parallel to any segment you choose. For instance, you might use this command to create a gas main line parallel to the street.

The Perpendicular command on the Sketch tool context menu constrains a segment to be perpendicular to an existing segment. You might use this command to place a service line perpendicular to the main line.

Тір

Shortcut for parallel

After clicking the Sketch tool, creating at least one vertex, and positioning the pointer over the segment to which the new segment will be parallel, you can press Ctrl + P to make the segment parallel.

Creating a segment parallel to another segment

- Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Sketch tool after creating at least one vertex.
- 2. Position the pointer over the segment to which the new segment will be parallel and right-click.
- 3. Click Parallel.

The segment is constrained to be parallel to the specified segment.

 Click once to digitize the endpoint of the segment or choose Length from the Sketch tool context menu.



Тір

Shortcut for perpendicular

After clicking the Sketch tool, creating at least one vertex, and positioning the pointer over the segment to which the new segment will be perpendicular, you can press Ctrl + E to make the segment perpendicular.

Creating a segment perpendicular to another segment

- Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Sketch tool after creating at least one vertex.
- 2. Position the pointer over the segment to which the new segment will be perpendicular and right-click with the mouse.
- 3. Click Perpendicular.

The segment is constrained to be perpendicular to the specified segment.

 Click once to digitize the endpoint of the segment or choose Length from the Sketch tool context menu.



Creating segments that are circular arc curves

When creating features, it is often necessary to create a circular arc. Instead of being made of numerous vertices, a circular arc has only two vertices as endpoints. ArcMap offers four ways to create a segment that is a circular arc. These include the Arc tool, the Endpoint Arc tool, the Tangent Curve tool, and the Tangent Curve command.

First, you can create a circular arc using the Arc tool. You might use the Arc tool to digitize a cul-de-sac using an aerial photo image as a backdrop.

A circular arc can also be created using the Endpoint Arc tool. This tool allows you to place the vertices for both ends of the arc and adjust the radius.

The Tangent Arc tool creates a circular arc based on the previously sketched segment.

You can also create a circular arc using the Tangent Curve command on the Sketch tool context menu. You can use the Tangent Curve command to ►

Creating a segment that is a circular arc using the Arc tool

- 1. Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Arc tool.
- 2. Click once to establish the starting point of the arc.

A vertex is created.

3. Click once to establish the axis of the arc.

This is the invisible point through which the curve passes.

4. Click once again to establish the endpoint of the arc.

A segment that is a true curve is created.





A segment that is a true curve is created.

add a circular arc to an existing segment. For example, you might use this command to add a curved segment to extend a centerline along a curved road.

When you create a tangent curve, you must specify two parameters for the curve from the following options: arc length, chord, radius, or delta angle. You must also specify whether you want to create the curve to the right of the line or to the left of the line, according to the direction in which the line was drawn. The curve is created from the last vertex of the existing segment based on the parameters you defined.

If you choose chord length and radius to construct the curve, there are two possible solutions: the major and minor portions of the circle.

Creating a segment that is a circular arc using the Endpoint Arc sketch tool

- Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Endpoint Arc tool.
- 2. Click the starting point of the arc.
- 3. Click the endpoint of the arc.
- 4. Move the pointer to get the approximate radius for the curve.

Press the R key and type the radius for the curve.

You can also click again on the map to set the radius.









The Minor check box will appear at the bottom of the Tangent Curve dialog box. Check it to construct the minor portion of the circle.

Minor

Тір

Differentiating between the Arc tools



The Arc tool: Creates a circular arc from three points that lie on the circular arc.



The Endpoint Arc tool: Creates a circular arc from two points on the circle and from the radius.



The Tangent Curve Tool: Creates an arc tangent to the previous segment in the sketch.

Creating a segment that is a circular arc using the Tangent Curve tool

1. Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Tangent Curve tool once a segment has been created using one of the other sketch tools.

As the cursor is moved, the arc will bend and change length to remain tangent to the previous segment.

2. Click again to place the endpoint of the arc.





Creating a segment that is a circular arc using the Tangent Curve command

- 1. Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Sketch tool after creating at least one segment.
- 2. Right-click anywhere on the map and click Tangent Curve.
- 3. Click the dropdown arrows and click two parameters by which you want to define the curve.
- 4. Type the appropriate values for the parameters (distance in map units for arc length, chord, and radius; degrees for delta angle).
- Click Left to create the tangent curve to the left of the segment. Click Right to create the curve to the right.
- 6. Press Enter.►







A segment that is a true curve is created from the last vertex of the segment according to the parameters you specified.

Q,

A circular arc curve with a chord length of 80 map units and a delta angle of 20 degrees is created to the left of the last vertex.

Creating segments by tracing features

You can create segments by tracing over the segments of selected features using the Trace tool.

Suppose you want to create a new water main that is offset seven meters from the parcel boundaries. Using the Trace tool, you can create new segments in the sketch that are at the same angle as the selected parcel boundaries yet constructed at an offset value of seven meters.

Tip

Backing up a trace

If you traced too far or have traced the wrong direction, move the mouse backwards over what you have traced. If you have clicked to stop the trace, click Undo to remove all vertices added during the trace.

Тір

Canceling a trace

Press Esc to quickly cancel a trace.

Тір

Finishing the sketch

When you're finished tracing, double-click to finish the sketch.

Creating segments by tracing features

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Select the feature or features you want to trace.
- Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Trace tool.
- 4. Press O to open the Trace Properties dialog box.

The Trace Properties dialog box lets you specify many of the properties of the trace segment.

- 5. Type an offset value. If you want to trace directly on top of existing features, enter a value of 0.
- 6. Optionally, you can limit the length of the trace segment.
- Click the corresponding radio button to specify type of corners.

Close the Trace Options dialog box by clicking OK.

- 8. Click to start tracing.
- 9. Click to stop tracing.



Duplicating features with the Copy Feature tool

You can quickly create a duplicate of a selected feature or features by using the Copy Feature tool. The Copy Feature tool is located on the Advanced Editing toolbar. Only the geometry, not the attributes, of the selected feature are copied to the Target layer.

If the Target feature class or subtype has default values, feature-linked annotation, or connectivity rules defined in a geodatabase, the copy will have the default values and behavior appropriate for the Target layer. Attributes without default values will have a null value.

Тір

Using the Advanced Editing toolbar

The Advanced Editing toolbar has a more complex step of editing features. This toolbar is only available with ArcEditor and ArcInfo licenses.

Тір

Opening the Advanced Editing toolbar

The Advanced Editing toolbar is found on the Editor context menu under More Editing Tools.

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Select the features that you want to copy.
- 3. Click the Copy Feature Tool.
- Click the place where you want a copy of the feature to be placed.

A copy of the geometry of the selected feature is created at the location you clicked. The feature is created in the Editor's current Target layer.







۰.

The duplicate feature has whatever default values and behavior are defined for the Target feature class in the geodatabase

Creating a fillet curve between two lines

Fillets are segments of a circular arc that are often used to connect two intersecting lines. Fillets are used to create smoothly curving connections between lines, such as edge of pavement lines at street intersections, or rounded corners on parcel features.

Tip

Shortcut for fillet radius

After clicking the Fillet tool, you can set a default fillet radius on the Fillet Options dialog box by pressing the R key. If a default radius is set, the fillet curve will be constructed immediately with that radius when you click the second line of those you want to fillet.

Тір

Radius units

The Fillet Options will use current data frame coordinate system units for the fillet radius, unless you specify another unit of measure when you type the fillet radius.

Тір

Placement of the fillet

If you specify a fixed radius, the fillet curve is created on the side of the second line where the pointer was when you clicked.

- 1. Click the Fillet tool.
- Click first one line then the other to specify which lines you want to construct the fillet between.

The radius of the fillet curve will change as you drag the pointer away from the first line you clicked.

When the curve looks like it has the right radius, you can click to finish the curve. If you want the curve to have a specific radius, you can set the radius from the Fillet Options window.

- 3. Press the R key to set the Fillet Options.
- Optionally, check Trim existing segments if you want to remove the segments outside of the curve's radius.
- Optionally, check Fixed radius if you want to specify a radius for the curve.
- 6. Type a radius for the curve and press Enter, or click OK.
- Click the map to indicate the quadrant of the intersection of the lines where the fillet will be created.

A new fillet curve joins the two selected lines. The extra line segments outside the curve are trimmed off, if you checked Trim existing segments.









Extending a line

You can extend a line segment that's a little too short so that it touches another line segment. The Extend tool on the Advanced Editing toolbar lets you click a line feature and extend it to another selected line feature.

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Select the line segment to which you want to extend a line.
- 3. Click the Extend tool.
- 4. Click the end of the feature that you want to extend.



Trimming a line

You can trim off the part of a line that crosses another line segment. The Trim tool on the Advanced Editing toolbar lets you click one side of a line feature that crosses a selected line in order to trim it off.

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Select the line segment at which you want to trim a line.
- 3. Click the Trim tool.
- 4. Click the end of the feature that you want to trim.









The line you clicked is trimmed at the selected line.



Proportionally dividing a line

One common coordinate geometry editing task is to divide an existing line feature into a number of segments of a specified length.

Sometimes the task can be complicated by measuring errors. For example, the length of the line in the geographic information system (GIS) might not be exactly equal to the total length of the segments, as measured in the field. The Proportion tool allows you to divide a selected line into a number of segments and allocate the difference between the length of the line feature and the total length of the segments between all of the new segments.

Suppose you have a line that you want to divide into segments that you can snap to when creating new parcel corners. The length of the line feature in the GIS is 320.38 ft. The lot plan you've been given shows that the lot corners are at 111.78 ft, 70.43 ft, and 138.65 ft along this line. Unfortunately, there is a difference of 0.48 ft between the measurements and the feature length. ►

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Select the line that you want to proportionally divide.
- 3. Click the Proportion tool. ►



The Proportion dialog box lets you enter the lengths of the segments. As you do it reports the length of the selected feature, the sum of the lengths of the segments, the amount that is left over, and the relative error, expressed as the ratio between the leftover and the original feature length.

The Proportion tool creates new proportioned features of 111.61 ft, 70.32 ft, and 138.44 ft, dividing the difference between the features.

If the line feature that you are splitting has an attribute named Distance the new line features will have the values that you typed as the attributed length, and the Shape_length field will show the true length.

- 4. Type the lengths of the segments into which to divide the line.
- Optionally, click Reverse to switch the orientation of the line if the arrows indicating the orientation of the feature on the map are the reverse of the order in which you entered the segments.
- 6. Click OK.

The line is split proportionally to the length of the measured segments. Any difference between the line length and the sum of the length of the segments is allocated proportionately to the new lines' length.





Getting a COGO description of a feature with the Inverse tool

You can get the COGO description of a feature using the Inverse tool. The Inverse tool will calculate the direction and length of the feature as well as curve parameters, if required, and populate appropriate attributes on the feature.

In order to use the Inverse tool, the feature must have the following attributes as text fields: Direction, Distance, Radius, Delta, Tangent, Arclength, and Side.

The feature must be either a straight line or circular arc. It typically only has two vertices but more are allowed as long as the feature is consistently straight or consistently curved. The current direction type and angular units are used when populating the attributes.

Тір

Changing the COGO attribute names

The names of the COGO attributes can be changed by using the Advanced ArcMap settings utility.

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- Select the feature that you want to generate a COGO description for.
- 3. Click the Inverse tool.



Creating edit sketch geometry with the Traverse tool

Another common coordinate geometry editing task is to create a line or polygon edge using a set of survey measurements collected in the field. The data may be in the form of directions and distances, angles and distances, curves, or tangent curves, measured from a known point. These are collectively known as a traverse.

The Traverse tool lets you create edit sketch geometry from a wide variety of traverse measurements. ►

Тір

Interactive start point

You can click the Interactive Start Point Selection tool to set a start point by clicking on the map.

Tip

Starting from a sketch

If you have already started an edit sketch when you click the Traverse tool, the start point will be the last vertex of the edit sketch.

Starting a traverse from a known coordinate

- 1. Click the Traverse tool.
- 2. Click Edit, to the right of the Start box.
- 3. Type X and Y values for the starting coordinate.
- 4. Click OK.

The start point of the traverse is set in the Start Point text box. The next vertex of the edit sketch will be placed on the measurements you specify from this location.







Once you've started a traverse you can add segments or curves to the edit sketch using Direction–Distance, Angle– Distance, Curve, and Tangent Curve methods.

The Traverse tool adds each segment as a line in the Traverse course table and to the edit sketch. You can select each course segment by clicking it in the table—the corresponding segment will flash on the map.

Тір

Duplicating segments

You can insert a duplicate of a segment by right-clicking it in the table and clicking Insert.

Тір

Reordering segments

You can reorder a segment by selecting it in the table and clicking the up and down arrows.

Tip

Removing segments

You can remove a segment by selecting it in the table and clicking Remove.

Adding a segment to a traverse using a Direction–Distance course

- 1. Click the course type dropdown arrow and click Direction–Distance.
- 2. Type a direction.

The Traverse tool uses degrees measured counterclockwise from east by default. You can change the angular measuring system and units on the Editing Options dialog box, Units tab.

3. Type a distance.

The Traverse tool uses the data frame's coordinate system units of measurement by default. You can change these units by modifying the coordinate system description, but not during an edit session.

4. Click Add.

The course is added to the course table, and the segment is added to the edit sketch.

You can continue to add segments using any of the traverse methods.





Тір

Limitations to first course

The first course in your traverse table cannot be based on an Angle Distance or Tangent Curve because these techniques are calculated from the direction of the previous course.

Adding a segment to a traverse using an Angle– Distance course

- 1. Click the course type dropdown arrow and click Angle–Distance.
- 2. Type an angle.

The Traverse tool uses degrees measured counterclockwise from the previous course of the traverse. You can change the angular measuring system and units on the Editing Options dialog box, Units tab.

3. Type a distance.

The Traverse tool uses the data frame's coordinate system units of measurement by default. You can change these units by modifying the coordinate system description, but not during an edit session.

4. Click Add.

The course is added to the course table, and the segment is added to the edit sketch.

You can continue to add segments using any of the traverse methods.





Тір

Productivity with the Traverse tool

You can use the keyboard to enter and manage courses in the traverse. Enter can be pressed whenever there is enough information to add a course. The Tab key and Shift + Tab can be used to navigate between the fields. For dropdown lists, the first letter of the choice can be used as a shortcut or you can use the Up/ Down Arrow keys to make your selection.

Adding a segment to a traverse using a Curve course

- Click the course type dropdown arrow and click Curve.
- 2. Click the dropdown arrows and choose two parameters to use in determining the curve.
- 3. Type the appropriate values for the parameters. Distance values will use map units.
- 4. Type a chord direction for the curve.
- 5. Click the dropdown arrow to choose whether the curve will be to the right or left.
- 6. Click Add.



Adding a segment to a traverse using a Tangent Curve course

- 1. Click the course type dropdown arrow and click Tangent Curve.
- 2. Click the dropdown arrows and choose two parameters to use in determining the curve.
- 3. Type the appropriate values for the parameters. Distance values will use map units.
- 4. Click the dropdown arrow to choose whether the curve will be to the right or left.
- 5. Click Add.



Creating twopoint line features to populate COGO attributes

You can easily create features using the Traverse tool to populate COGO attributes in a feature class. Using the Create 2-Point Line Features task allows you to not only create the feature geometry with the Traverse tool, it also allows you to save each course in the traverse as a COGO two-point line feature.

To create two-point line features using this process, the target layer must have the following attributes as text fields: Direction, Distance, Radius, Delta, Tangent, Arclength, and Side.

Tip

Adding options to the Task dropdown menu

Tasks on the Task dropdown menu can be added or removed from the selection on the Edit Options dialog box under the Edit Tasks tab. For further details, see Chapter 2, 'Editing basics'.

- 1. On the Task dropdown menu, select Create 2-Point Line Features.
- On the Editor toolbar, set your target layer to a layer that contains COGO attributes.
- 3. Using the Traverse tool, specify the courses of the traverse.
- 4. When you finish the traverse, the new line features will be saved as COGO two-point line features.



Тір

Opening the Course properties dialog box

You can open the properties for the Course dialog box using three different methods. You can doubleclick the segment in the course list, select the segment and click Properties on the Traverse dialog box, or right-click the course and select Properties.

Modifying a segment in a traverse

- 1. Select the segment in the course list.
- 2. Click the Properties button.
- 3. In the Course properties, adjust the values as required.
- 4. Click OK.

The traverse and the sketch are updated.



0K

3

Cancel

Obtaining a closure report

A traverse must always start from a known coordinate. It can also end at a known coordinate. When this occurs a difference can be calculated between the specified endpoint and the traversed endpoint.

A closure report is a summary of the difference between the endpoint coordinate of a traverse and the calculated endpoint.

Тір

Interactive endpoint

Click on the Endpoint Selection tool to set the endpoint by clicking on the map.

Тір

Starting and ending at the same point

Checking the Closed Loop check box sets the beginning and ending points the same.

- 1. Click Edit to the right of the End box.
- 2. Type the x,y coordinates for the ending point.
- 3. Click OK.
- 4. Click Closure.

The closure report lists the following:

- Number of courses
- Total length of the traverse
- The specified and calculated endpoints
- The difference of misclosure in both x,y and direction/ distance values
- Relative error that is a ratio of the distance misclosure over the total length





Techniques for adjusting a traverse

Often when generating a traverse, the coordinates of an ending destination are known. You have already discovered that ArcMap provides a method to specify this endpoint and determine the difference between the traverse endpoint and the desired ending point. This difference is know as the misclosure.

ArcMap also provides three different techniques for adjusting the traverse to eliminate misclosure. Each of these adjusting techniques vary in the amount of adjustment of the direction and distance of the individual courses of the traverse. These techniques include compass correction, transit correction, and Crandall correction.

The compass correction technique specifies that the misclosure, or difference in x and y between the resulting endpoint and the desired endpoint, are equally distributed among the individual two-point arcs and curves that make up the traverse. This is done by adjusting the location and distance of each arc proportional to the difference in closure. The compass correction technique is the most often used to resolve errors in misclosure. It assumes that the errors are related to both errors in the direction measurements as well as the distance measurements. Thus, the corrections are reflected in each distance and direction value. This technique is also known as the Bowditch rule.

Much like the compass correction technique, the transit correction method specifies that the misclosure is equally distributed among the individual two-point arcs and curves that make up the traverse. However, this technique favors the direction measurements over the distance measurements. In determining the location change required of each arc, the proportion assigned to each arc is proportional to the total x or y values of all the arcs. This results in changes that will affect both the direction and the distance of each arc, but will alter the distance to a greater extent. The Crandall correction technique is used when the direction values are assumed to be precise and accurate and that any misclosure is due solely to errors in distance measurements. This adjustment will preserve all of the direction measurements and will alter only the distance measurements to eliminate the closure error.

With this array of correction techniques, you will be able to not only correct the errors in the traverse, but you will also be able to place greater or lesser value on specific characteristics of the traverse data.
Adjusting a traverse

- 1. Ensure that an endpoint is set.
- 2. Click Adjust.
- 3. Choose an adjustment method from the dropdown menu.
- Optionally, you can save the adjusted values in a text file by clicking Save Report.
- 5. Click Accept.

The traverse will be adjusted based on the adjustment method chosen and feature created.

Traverse					
Tangent Curve	Chord	90	Angle	▼ 45	
			Turn: Left	-	Add 1
			rum. juen		A00
#	Description				
1	Straight Direction: Straight Direction:	: 45 Distance: 45 : 90 Distance: 45			
3	Curve Chord: 90	Angle: 45 Direction:	135 Left		
4	Tangent Curve Ch	hord: 90 Angle: 45 L	.ert		
Start: 50010	9.4201, 675501.78	394 Edit 🍾	Closed L	.oop	iust.
- End: 4000	07 007 075041 01			1	
4999	187.387, 673641.31	124 Edit	Llosure	FI	nish
			Y		
Adjust Traverse					
Adjustment Metho	d: Compass F	Rule	-		
	Compass R	lule			
# Descrip	tion Transit Crandall			esidual Values 0.0648	
2 90 45		90 44.9439	3	60 0.0561	
3 135 90		135 89.9711 180 90.0712	3	50 0.0289 50 -0.0712	
		100 00.0112			
Cause Dana d	1			A 1	Canad
Save Report				Accept	Cancel
Save Report				Accept	Cancel

Saving a traverse

You can save a traverse to a text file to share with others or for your own use later.

- 1. Right-click the Traverse dialog box and click Save Traverse.
- 2. Navigate to the place where you want to save the traverse.
- 3. Type a name for the traverse.
- 4. Click Save.

The traverse information is saved to the text file.



3

Loading a traverse

You can load a traverse that has been saved to a text file.

- 1. Right-click the Traverse dialog box and click Load Traverse.
- 2. Navigate to the traverse text file.
- 3. Click the traverse you want to open.
- 4. Click Open.

The traverse information is loaded from the text file.

 Traverse
 Image: Distance: Image: Distance: Image: Add

 #
 Description

 #
 Description

 Image: Coad Traverse...
 Image: Coad Traverse...

 Image: Coad Traverse From Sketch
 Image: Image: Coad Traverse From Sketch

 Insert
 Remove

 Remove
 Del

		2	
Open		?	×
Look jn:	🔄 MyTraverses	📃 🖻 🖻 🛨	
Traverse_	01_A_02.txt		- 3
File name:	Traverse 01 A 02 txt		1
Files of tupe:	Tout file (* htt)		4
r nes-or <u>type</u> .		Cancel	
	Open as read-only		



Exploding a multipart feature

You can use the Explode tool to separate a multipart feature into its component features.

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Select the multipart feature that you want to Explode.
- 3. Click the Explode tool.

The parts of the multipart feature become independent features.









Generalizing a feature

You can use the Generalize tool to simplify the shape of features. The Generalize tool uses the Douglas–Poiker algorithm to simplify the input geometry of the selected feature.

The degree to which the geometry is simplified depends on the Maximum allowable offset, which limits how far the output geometry can be from the input geometry.

For features composed of linear segments, the output vertices will be a subset of the original feature vertices.

If you use the Generalize tool on a true curve, the output will be a series of straight line segments. The vertices may fall on all parts of the original curve, not just the vertices. The output of the Generalize tool on lines with nonlinear curves may have more vertices than the original curve, but all of the segments will be straight.

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Select the feature that you want to Generalize.
- 3. Click the Generalize tool.
- 4. Type the Maximum allowable offset.

The Maximum allowable offset is the maximum distance any part of the output geometry can be from the input geometry, in map units.

5. Click OK.





Smoothing a feature

You can use the Smooth tool to smooth the straight edges and angular corners of a feature. The feature geometry is replaced by a series of smoothed line segments.

The degree to which the geometry is smoothed depends on the Maximum allowable offset, which limits how far the output geometry can be from the input geometry.

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Select the feature that you want to Smooth.
- 3. Click the Smooth tool.
- 4. Type the Maximum allowable offset.

The Maximum allowable offset is the maximum distance any part of the output geometry can be from the input geometry, in map units.

5. Click OK.











The Snapping Environment window



Types of snapping properties

When you use the snapping environment to create or place a new feature in an exact location relative to other features, you must choose to which part of existing features—vertex, edge, or endpoint—you want your feature to snap. These choices are called layer *snapping properties*. You can also specify snapping properties for the edit sketch and for topology elements; these are called sketch and topology snapping properties. You can set all three types of snapping properties using the Snapping Environment window. The following table briefly explains each of the layer snapping and sketch snapping properties.



Using the snapping environment

The *snapping environment* can help you establish exact locations in relation to other features. Suppose you're creating a new segment of primary that begins from an existing transformer; you want to ensure that the vertex of the primary connects precisely to the transformer.

The snapping environment makes this type of task accurate and easy. Setting the snapping environment involves setting a snapping tolerance, snapping properties, and a snapping priority. ►

Тір

Showing snap tips

You can choose to display the layer name or target being snapped to. Check Show snap tips on the General tab of the Editing Options dialog box. A small text box will appear when snapping, which identifies the layer you have snapped to.

Тір

Viewing the snapping tolerance

To see the current snapping tolerance area, hold down the T key while using the Sketch tool.

Setting the snapping tolerance

- 1. Click Editor and click Options.
- 2. Click the General tab.
- Click the Snapping tolerance dropdown arrow and click the type of measurement unit you want to use for the snapping tolerance—pixels or map units.
- Type the desired number of measurement units in the Snapping tolerance text box.
- 5. Click OK.

E	dita	r	
	Edit	or 🕶 🕨 🌈 💌 Tas	
1		Start_Editing	
		Stop Editing	
		Save Edits	
		Move	
		Split	
	1	Divide	
	/	Buffer	
	4	Copy Parallel	
		Merge	
		Union	
		Intersect	
		<u>⊆</u> ip	
		More Editing Tools	
	Q,	Validate Features	
		S <u>n</u> apping	
	_	Options1	
ļ	_		
		9	
		4	
		Editing Options	
		General Topology Versioning Units Edit Tasks Edit Cache	
		Display measurements using decimal places	
		Snapping tolerance: 7 map units	
ć	•	Sticky move tolerance: 0 map units	
		Stretch geometry proportionately when moving a vertex	
		Show shap tips.	
		Stream Mode	
		Stream tolerance: 0 map units	
		Group 50 points together when streaming	

107

Apply

Cancel

ΟK

5

? ×

3

The *snapping tolerance* is the distance within which the pointer or a feature is snapped to another location. If the location being snapped to—vertex, edge, or endpoint—is within the distance you set, the pointer automatically snaps (jumps) to the location.

The circle around the pointer in the graphics below represents the snapping tolerance. When the location being snapped to (orange point) is outside the



snapping tolerance, the snapping location (blue dot) stays with the pointer (top graphic). When the location being snapped to is inside the snapping tolerance, the snapping location moves away from the pointer and snaps to the target location (bottom graphic).

You can choose the part of the feature—vertex, edge, or endpoint—to which you want your new feature to snap by ►

Setting snapping properties

1. Click Editor and click Snapping.

The Snapping Environment window appears.

2. Check the snapping properties you want.

The snapping properties are effective as soon as they are checked or unchecked.





setting the layer *snapping properties*. For example, if you want your new feature—a segment of primary—to snap to the vertex of an existing transformer in the transformers layer, you would check the box under Vertex and next to the transformers layer in the Snapping Environment window. When the pointer comes within the snapping tolerance of the transformer, the first vertex of the primary snaps to the vertex of the transformer.

You can also set the *snapping priority* for layers on your map. The order of layers listed in the Snapping Environment window determines the order in which snapping will occur. Snapping occurs first in the layer at the top of the list, then in each consecutive layer down the list. You can easily change the snapping priority by dragging the layer names to new locations.

Tip

Sketch and topology snapping properties

You can set snapping properties that apply specifically to the edit sketch and to topology elements in the Snapping Environment dialog box; these are located at the bottom of the Snapping Environment window. For more information, see 'Types of snapping properties' in this chapter.

Setting the snapping priority

1. Click Editor and click Snapping.

The Snapping Environment window appears.

 Click and drag the layer names to arrange them in the order in which you want snapping to occur. (The first layer in the list will be snapped to first.)

The snapping priorities you set are effective immediately.

Edito	or 👘 👘	
Edit	o <u>r</u> 🔻 🕨 🖍 Ta	sl
	Star <u>t</u> Editing	Ē
	Stop Editing	
	<u>S</u> ave Edits	
	<u>M</u> ove	
	Spljt	
/	Divide	
	<u>B</u> uffer	
4	Cop <u>y</u> Parallel	
	Merge	
	Union	
	Intersect	
	⊆lip	
	More Editing Tools	
9	⊻alidate Features	
	S <u>n</u> apping	-1
	Options	



The Snap to Feature command

Apart from the rules set in the Snapping Environment, you can also snap on the fly to specific features. This is done through the Snap to Feature command of the sketch context menu.

By specifying a feature and the part of the feature to which you wish to snap, your next vertex will automatically be placed regardless of the Snapping Environment settings.

Snapping to a specific feature

- Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Sketch tool.
- Right-click the feature to which you want to snap your next vertex.
- 3. On the dropdown menu, choose Snap to Feature.
- 4. Click the part of the feature to which you want to snap the next vertex.

The vertex will be placed at the nearest location that matches your selection.





Setting the direction measuring system and units for editing tools

Some of the ArcMap editing tools allow you to enter an angle, direction, or deflection when constructing an edit sketch. These include the Direction–Distance tool and Traverse tool as well as several of the commands on the sketch context menu. You can change the direction measuring system and units these tools use on the Units tab of the Editing Options dialog box. When you change the direction measuring system and units, the editing tools will all recognize inputs in the new system and units.

Direction measuring systems

You can choose from the following direction measuring systems: North Azimuth, South Azimuth, Quadrant Bearing, and Polar. By default, the tools accept angular measurements in the Polar direction measuring system.

Polar angles are measured counterclockwise from the positive x-axis.



In the *North Azimuth* system the azimuth of a line is the horizontal angle measured from a meridian to the line, measured in the clockwise direction from north.



In the *South Azimuth* system the angles are measured clockwise from south.



In the *Quadrant Bearing* system the bearing of a line is measured as an angle from the reference meridian, either the north or the south, and measured toward the east or the west. Bearings in the Quadrant Bearing system are written as a meridian, an angle, and a direction. For example, a bearing of N 25 W defines an angle 25 degrees west measured from north. A bearing S 18 E defines an angle 18 degrees east measured from the south.



Valid input formats for Quadrant Bearing measurements include:

- [NS] dd.dddd [EW] where the first letter is an N or S, indicating the meridian of origin, and the last letter is an E or W, indicating which direction the angle is toward.
- dd.ddd-[1234] where the second to last character is a (dash) and the last digit indicates the quadrant that the bearing is in. The quadrants are numbered 1 - NE, 2 - SE, 3 - SW, 4 - NW.

Direction measuring units

The editing tools use decimal degrees as their default units of angular measure. You can choose from the following direction measurement units: decimal degrees, degrees/minutes/seconds, radians, gradians, and gons.

Degrees are the standard unit of angular measurement, where one degree represents 1/360 of a circle, and fractions of a degree are represented as decimal values.

Degrees Minutes Seconds also uses the degree, but fractions of a degree are represented in minutes and seconds, where one minute equals 1/60 of a degree, and one second equals 1/60 of a minute.

Valid input formats for degrees/minutes/seconds values include:

- dd-mm-ss.ss
- dd.mmssss
- dd^mm'ss.ss"

Radians are the Standard International (SI) unit of plane angular measure. There are 2pi, approximately 6.28318, radians in a circle. One radian is equivalent to about 57.296 degrees. The length of a circular arc with an angle of one radian is equal to the radius of the arc.

Gradians are a unit of angular measure where the right angle is divided into 100 parts. One gradian equals 1/400 of a circle.

Gons are the same as gradians. One gon equals 1/400 of a circle. The term gon is primarily used in German, Swedish, and other northern European languages where the word grad means degree.

Setting the direction type and angular units

You can set the direction measurement system and the units with which you measure angles from the Units tab of the Editing Options dialog box. All of the editing tools that accept angular measurements will interpret angular measurements using the direction type and units that you specify here.

Setting the direction type

- 1. Click Editor and click Options.
- 2. Click the Units tab.
- Click the Direction Type dropdown list and choose a direction measuring system.
- 4. Click OK.

	Editing Options	? ×
	General Topology Versioning Units Edit Tasks Edit Cache	
3—	Angular Units Used by editing functions in which directions are specified Direction Type: North Azimuth Direction Units: South Azimuth Polar Precision: Question t Bearing Ground to Grid Correction Conversion factors used where distance and directions are specified Distance Eactor: Direction Offset: D	
	NK Parcel/	
		עקי
	4	

0

Setting the direction units

- 1. Click Editor and click Options.
- 2. Click the Units tab.
- Click the Direction Units dropdown list and click the type of direction measurement unit you want to use.
- 4. Set Precision to specify the number of decimal places used when displaying angles and directions.
- 5. Click OK.

	2	
	Editing Options	? ×
3 4	General Topology Versioning Units Edit Tasks Edit Cache Angular Units Used by editing functions in which directions are specified Direction Type: Polar Image: Polar </th <th></th>	
	5	

Setting the ground to grid conversion

Sometimes when creating features using the coordinate geometry tools in ArcMap, you need to convert angles and distances measured in the field so they match the coordinate system of your data. For example, if you are given distances measured in ground units at a high elevation, the distances will need to be adjusted slightly to fit your GIS dataset's coordinate system, in which distances are assumed to have been measured at a given ellipsoid—or sea level—surface. The distance conversion is applied as a scale factor to distances you type into the coordinate geometry editing tools.

Sometimes you need to correct angular measurements taken in the field as you enter them in your GIS. For example, suppose you are creating features using coordinate geometry from a set of measurements on a surveyor's field notes. The surveyor's angular measurements were based on True North—defined using the astronomical meridian. Your GIS dataset has a coordinate system where north differs by 0 degrees, 2 minutes, and 3 seconds from true north. Instead of going through the field notes and manually converting the measurements, you can set a direction offset to automatically correct the angles as you type them.

Direction and distance corrections can be calculated by measuring directions and distances between control points in the GIS and comparing them to directions and distances measured on the ground, as shown on a survey plan.

Using a ground to grid correction

You can set distance and direction conversion factors to allow you to correct for differences between your GIS coordinate system and the angles and distances a surveyor may have measured in the field.

Setting a ground to grid distance conversion factor

- 1. Click Editor and click Options.
- 2. Click the Units tab.
- 3. Check Ground to Grid Correction.
- 4. Type a conversion factor to convert distances measured in the field (ground distance) to distances in the GIS (grid distance).
- 5. Click OK.

General Topology V	ersioning Units Edit Lasks Edit Lache
Used by editing fur	nctions in which directions are specified
Direction Type:	Polar
Direction Units:	Decimal Degrees
Precision:	0
Ground to Grid	Correction
Conversion factors	used where distance and directions are specified
Distance Factor:	1
Direction Offset:	0

Setting a ground to grid direction offset

- 1. Click Editor and click Options.
- 2. Click the Units tab.
- 3. Check Ground to Grid Correction.
- 4. Type the desired number of measurement units in the Direction Offset text box.
- 5. Click OK.

	Editing Options
	General Topology Versioning Units Edit Tasks Edit Cache
	- Angular Units
	Used by editing functions in which directions are specified
	Direction Tupe: Polar
	Direction Units: Decimal Decrees
	Diedalina Degrees
	Precision:
	Ground to Grid Correction
	Conversion factors used where distance and directions are specified
	Distance Factor:
4 –	Direction Offset: 0
	OK Cancel Apply

Setting the distance units for tools

Sometimes when creating features using the editing tools in ArcMap you need to enter data that was recorded in different distance units than the coordinate system of your data.

For example, suppose your data is in a State Plane coordinate system and the linear units are U.S. Survey Foot (1 Foot_US = 0.3048006096 m). You are given measurements in International Feet (1 Foot = 0.3048 m). Rather than convert all of the measurements, you can type the abbreviation for International Foot, ft, after the measurements and the tools will convert the distance correctly. You could also change the dataset coordinate system definition to use International Feet, and type the distances without a unit suffix.

Whenever you are typing a distance into one of the editing tools, you have the option to specify the linear units to use or to simply type a number, which the tool will interpret as being in the dataset's coordinate system units.

Distance Units	Abbrev.	Meters per Unit	Description			
	Metric Units					
Kilometer	km	1,000	1,000 meters exactly			
Meter	m	1	International meter			
Millimeter	mm	0.001	1/1000 meter exactly			
Imperial or international units						
Foot	ft	0.3048	Standard foot used in the United States. Also known as international foot or imperial foot that was used in most non-U.S. countries before the metric system.			

Distance Units	Abbrev.	Meters per Unit	Description
	Imperial o	r internation	al units (Cont'd)
Mile	mi	1,609.344	Also referred to as a statute mile, equal to 5,280 international feet.
Nautical mile	nm	1,852	The nautical mile is a unit of distance used primarily in sea and in aviation. The nautical mile is defined to be the average distance on the earth's surface represented by one minute of latitude. In 1929, the nautical mile was defined to be exactly 1,852 meters or 6,076.11549 feet, a distance known as the international nautical mile.
Chain	ch	20.1168	66 international feet
Yard	yd	0.9144	Three international feet
Rod	rd	5.0292	1/4 chain or 16.5 international feet
Link	lk	0.201168	1/100 international chain or 66/100 international feet
Inch	in	0.0254	1/12 of an international foot

ī.

Т

ī.

Distance Units	Abbrev.	Meters per Unit	Description			
U.S. survey units						
Survey foot	ftUS	0.304800- 6096	The U.S. survey foot is used in the State Plane Coordinate Systems. In the United States, fundamental survey units such as rods, chains, statute miles, acres, sections, and townships all depend on the U.S. survey foot. An exact conversion to meters can be accomplished by multiplying U.S. survey feet by the fraction 1200/3937.			
Survey mile	miUS	1609.347- 2186944	5,280 survey feet			
Survey chain	chUS	20.11684- 02337	66 survey feet			
Survey rod	rdUS	5.029210- 0584	1/4 survey chain			
Survey link	lkUS	0.201168- 4023	1/100 survey chain			
Survey yard	ydUS	0.914401- 8288	3 survey feet			

Editing topology

IN THIS CHAPTER

- An introduction to topology
- Topology rules, errors, and exceptions
- Editing features in a topology
- Adding the topology toolbar
- Creating a map topology
- · Editing shared geometry
- Rebuilding the topology cache
- Using the edit sketch to make topology elements
- Changing symbology for errors and topology features
- Validating edits to a topology
- Creating new features from existing features

In addition to simple features, ArcMap lets you edit collections of features related by a topology. In a geodatabase, a topology contains rules that define how features share space.

Topologies are useful for maintaining high-quality spatial data by ensuring that your features conform to simple rules. When you set up a geodatabase with a topology, you specify which feature classes participate in the topology and define rules that control when and how features can share geometry. For example, in a geodatabase of states and coastlines, you might have a rule that states polygons cannot overlap each other and another rule that the coastline must coincide with the boundaries of the states. These rules would help you ensure, when updating the state boundaries to match the coastline, that you don't inadvertently create places where the states overlap, or where a state's coastal edge doesn't match the shape of the coastline.

ArcMap allows you to simultaneously edit multiple features from layers that share geometry. Only those features that participate in the topology will be affected by these edits. For instance, you can update lot lines that define a parcel, and update the corresponding parcel polygon feature in your geodatabase. Similarly, you could move a road centerline and, at the same time, update all of the bus routes that follow that road. In this respect, editing topologies is a bit like editing features in a geometric network. However topologies offer many more possible ways that polygon, arc, and point features can be related than networks do. ArcMap provides some new tools for editing and managing topologies. With ArcView licensed seats of ArcMap you can edit shared geometry by creating a map topology.

What is topology?

Topology has historically been viewed as a spatial data structure used primarily to ensure that the associated data forms a consistent and clean topological fabric. With advances in objectoriented GIS development, an alternative view of topology has evolved. The geodatabase supports an approach to modeling geography that integrates the behavior of different feature types and supports different types of key relationships. In this context, topology is a collection of rules and relationships that, coupled with a set of editing tools and techniques, enables the geodatabase to more accurately model geometric relationships found in the world.

Topology, considered from the feature behavior perspective, allows a more flexible set of geometric relationships to be modeled than the data structure perspective. It also allows topological relationships to exist between more discrete types of features within a feature dataset. In this alternative view, topology may still be employed to ensure that the data forms a clean and consistent topological fabric; but also, more broadly, it is used to ensure that the features obey the key geometric rules defined for their role in the database.

Why use topology?

Topology is used most fundamentally to ensure data quality and to allow your geodatabase to more realistically represent geographic features. A geodatabase provides a framework within which features can have behavior, such as subtypes, default values, attribute domains, validation rules, and structured relationships to tables or other features. This behavior enables you to more accurately model the world and maintain referential integrity between objects in the geodatabase. Topology may be considered an extension of this framework for behavior that allows you to control the geometric relationships between features and to maintain their geometric integrity. Unlike other feature behavior, topology rules are managed at the level of the topology and dataset, not for individual feature classes.

How do I work with topology?

Different people work with topology in different ways, depending upon their role in an organization and its GIS design and management work flow.

Initially, creating a topology requires a geodatabase designer. A topology organizes the spatial relationships between features in a set of feature classes. The designer analyzes an organization's data modeling needs, identifies the key topological relationships required in the geodatabase, and defines the rules that will constrain different features' topological relationships.

Once the participating feature classes have been added to the topology and the rules defined, the topology is validated. Data quality managers use the topology tools to analyze, visualize, report, and, where necessary, repair the spatial integrity of the database after it is initially created as well as after editing. Topology provides these users with a set of validation rules for the topologically related features. It also provides a set of editing tools that let users find and fix integrity violations.

As the geodatabase is used and maintained, new features are added and existing features are modified. Data editors update features in the geodatabase and use the topology tools to construct and maintain relationships between features, within the constraints imposed by the database designer. Depending on the work flow of the organization, the topology may be validated after each edit session or on a schedule.

Topology basics for data editors

Topologies store three sets of parameter rules, ranks, and a cluster tolerance. When editing a geodatabase, you will not typically need to modify these parameters, but you will need to be aware of them, especially the rules.

Topologies also maintain a feature layer that stores *dirty areas*, *errors*, and *exceptions*. You use these to maintain the quality of data in your topology.

The sections that follow describe each of these parameters and concepts in more detail.

Rules

Rules define the permissible spatial relationships between features. The rules you define for a topology control the relationships of features allowed within a feature class, between features in different feature classes, or between subtypes of features.



Example of a "Must Not Overlap" rule applied to polygons and lines. The red polygon and line mark the places where the rule is violated. These are stored in the topology as error features. Such rules can apply to features within the same feature class, to pairs of feature classes, or to subtypes of features.

The initial validation of the topology checks all of the features against all of the rules. This initial check can take some time, but subsequent checks are performed only on the areas that have been edited—the dirty areas.

Cluster tolerance

The *cluster tolerance* defines how close vertices must be to each other in order to be considered coincident and limits the distance features can move during *validation*. The cluster tolerance is the minimum distance between vertices of features that are not coincident. Vertices that fall within the cluster tolerance are defined as coincident and are snapped together. The cluster tolerance is typically a very small actual distance to minimize the movement of correctly placed features.



When you validate a topology, features within the cluster tolerance are snapped together.

Ranks

Ranks control which features may be moved to other features when snapping the topology together during validation. The ranks you specify for feature classes in the topology control which feature classes will be moved when snapping coincident vertices during the initial validation of the topology as well as subsequent validations.



When you validate a topology, the ranks of the feature classes in the topology control how features are snapped together. Lower-ranking features snap to higher-ranking features. Equally ranked features snap to the geometric average of their position.

When different feature classes have different levels of intrinsic reliability, such as when one was collected by survey or differential global positioning system (GPS) and another was digitized from less accurate source material or collected with uncorrected GPS, ranks can allow you to ensure that reliably placed vertices are not snapped to the location of less reliable vertices. Lowerranked features' vertices will be snapped to the location of higher-ranked vertices, if they fall within the cluster tolerance. The location of equally ranked vertices are geometrically averaged when they fall within the cluster tolerance.

Feature layers maintained by a topology

Instead of storing topological information for all features, the topology discovers those relationships when the information is requested, such as when you are editing using the Topology Edit tool. The topology stores some feature layers that let it efficiently track the places where the topology may have been violated during editing—dirty areas—and features that were found to violate topology rules after validation—error features. Certain errors may be acceptable, in which case the error features are marked and stored as exceptions.

Dirty areas

Dirty areas are areas that have been edited, updated, or affected by the addition or deletion of features. Dirty areas allow the topology to limit the area that must be checked for topology errors during topology validation. Dirty areas track the places where topology rules may have been violated during editing. This allows selected parts, rather than the whole extent of the topology, to be validated after editing.



When you edit features in a topology, the topology creates a dirty area to mark the area that should be checked for violations of the topology rules.

Dirty areas are created when:

- A feature is created or deleted
- A feature's geometry is modified
- A feature's subtype is changed
- Versions are reconciled
- The topology properties are modified

Dirty areas are stored in the topology as a single feature, with each new dirty area joined with the existing dirty area, and each area that has been validated removed from the dirty area.

Errors and exceptions

Errors and exceptions are stored as features in the topology layer and allow you to render and manage the cases in which features do not obey the rules of the topology. Error features record where topological errors were discovered during validation. Certain



When you validate a topology, features that violate the rules are marked as error features. You can edit the features to fix the errors, or you can mark the errors as exceptions. In this example, the street line features cannot have dangles, which are endpoints that do not connect to other street features. Because cul-de-sac streets are a legitimate exception to this rule, they may be marked as exceptions in the topology. The remaining errors should be fixed by editing the street features. errors may be acceptable, in which case the error features can be marked as exceptions.

ArcMap and ArcCatalog allow you to create a report of the total number of errors and exceptions for the feature classes in your topology. You can use the report of the number of error features as a measure of the data quality of a topological dataset. The error inspector in ArcMap lets you select different types of errors and zoom to individual errors. You can correct topology errors by editing the features that violate the topology's rules. After you validate the edits, the error is deleted from the topology.

EDITING TOPOLOGY

Topology rules

Many topology rules can be imposed on features in a geodatabase. A well-designed geodatabase will have only those topology rules that define key spatial relationships needed by an organization.

Some topology rules govern the relationships of features within a given feature class, while others govern the relationships between features in two different feature classes. Topology rules can also be defined between subtypes of features in one or another feature class. For example, a topology rule can require street features to be connected to other street features at both ends, except in the case of streets belonging to the cul-de-sac or dead-end subtypes.

Some of the key topological rules that you may encounter are discussed in the following pages.

Polygon rules

Must Not Overlap

This rule requires that the interior of polygons in the feature class not overlap. The polygons can share edges or vertices. This rule is used when an area cannot belong to two or more polygons. It is useful for modeling administrative boundaries, such as ZIP Codes or voting districts, and mutually exclusive area classifications, such as land cover or landform type.

Must Not Have Gaps

This rule requires that polygons not have voids within themselves or between adjacent polygons. Polygons can share edges, vertices, or interior areas. Polygons can also be completely disconnected. This rule is used when polygons or blocks of contiguous polygons should not have empty spaces within them. It is useful for modeling landownership, as in a parcel fabric, where a given area is completely allotted to various polygons, but where external areas—roadways, for example—are not modeled in the same feature class.

Must Not Overlap With

This rule requires that the interior of polygons in one feature class must not overlap with the interior of polygons in another feature class. Polygons of the two feature classes can share edges or vertices or be completely disjointed. This rule is used when an area cannot belong to two separate feature classes. It is useful for combining two mutually exclusive systems of area classification, such as zoning and water-body type, where areas defined within the zoning class cannot also be defined in the water-body class and vice versa.

Must Be Covered By Feature Class Of

This rule requires that a polygon in one feature class must share all of its area with polygons in another feature class. An area in the first feature class that is not covered by polygons from the other feature class is an error. This rule is used when an area of one type, such as a state, should be completely covered by areas of another type, such as counties.

Must Cover Each Other

This rule requires that the polygons of one feature class must share all of their area with the polygons of another feature class. Polygons may share edges or vertices. Any area defined in either feature class that is not shared with the other is an error. This rule is used when two systems of classification are used for the same geographic area and any given point defined in one system must also be defined in the other. One such case occurs with nested hierarchical datasets, such as census blocks and block groups or small watersheds and large drainage basins. The rule can also be applied to nonhierarchically related polygon feature classes, such as soil type and slope class.

Must Be Covered By

This rule requires that polygons of one feature class must be contained within polygons of another feature class. Polygons may share edges or vertices. Any area defined in the contained feature class must be covered by an area in the covering feature class. This rule is used when area features of a given type must be located within features of another type. This rule is useful when modeling areas that are subsets of a larger surrounding area, such as management units within forests or blocks within block groups.

Boundary Must Be Covered By

This rule requires that boundaries of polygon features must be covered by lines in another features class. This rule is used when area features need to have line features that mark the boundaries of the areas. This is usually when the areas have one set of attributes and their boundaries have other attributes. For example, parcels might be stored in the geodatabase along with their boundaries. Each parcel might be defined by one or more line features that store information about their length or the date surveyed, and every parcel should exactly match its boundaries.

Area Boundary Must Be Covered By Boundary Of

This rule requires that boundaries of polygon features in one feature class be covered by boundaries of polygon features in another feature class. This is useful when polygon features in one feature class, such as subdivisions, are composed of multiple polygons in another class, such as parcels, and the shared boundaries must be aligned.

Contains Point

This rule requires that a polygon in one feature class contain at least one point from another feature class. Points must be within the polygon, not on the boundary. This is useful when every polygon should have at least one associated point, such as when parcels must have an address point.

Line rules

Must Not Overlap

This rule requires that lines not overlap with lines in the same feature class. This rule is used where line segments should not be duplicated—for example, in a stream feature class. Lines can cross or intersect but cannot share segments.

Must Not Intersect

This rule requires that line features from the same feature class not cross or overlap each other. Lines can share endpoints. This rule is used for contour lines that should never cross each other or in cases where the intersection of lines should only occur at endpoints, such as street segments and intersections.

Must Not Have Dangles

This rule requires that a line feature must touch lines from the same feature class at both endpoints. An endpoint that is not connected to another line is called a dangle. This rule is used when line features must form closed loops, such as when they are defining the boundaries of polygon features. It may also be used in cases where lines typically connect to other lines, as with streets. In this case, exceptions can be used where the rule is occasionally violated, as with cul-de-sac or dead-end street segments.

Must Not Have Pseudonodes

This rule requires that a line connect to at least two other lines at each endpoint. Lines that connect to one other line, or to themselves, are said to have pseudonodes. This rule is used where line features must form closed loops, such as when they define the boundaries of polygons or when line features logically must connect to two other line features at each end, as with segments in a stream network, with exceptions being marked for the originating ends of first-order streams.

Must Not Intersect Or Touch Interior

This rule requires that a line in one feature class must only touch other lines of the same feature class at endpoints. Any line segment in which features overlap, or any intersection not at an endpoint, is an error. This rule is useful where lines must only be connected at endpoints, such as in the case of lot lines, which must split (only connect to the endpoints of) back lot lines and which cannot overlap each other.

Must Not Overlap With

This rule requires that a line from one feature class not overlap with line features in another feature class. This rule is used when line features cannot share the same space—for example, roads must not overlap with railroads or depression subtypes of contour lines cannot overlap with other contour lines.

Must Be Covered By Feature Class Of

This rule requires that lines from one feature class must be covered by the lines in another feature class. This is useful for modeling logically different but spatially coincident lines, such as routes and streets. A bus route feature class must not depart from the streets defined in the street feature class.

Must Be Covered By Boundary Of

This rule requires that lines be covered by the boundaries of area features. This is useful for modeling lines, such as lot lines, that must coincide with the edge of polygon features, such as lots.

Endpoint Must Be Covered By

This rule requires that the endpoints of line features must be covered by point features in another feature class. This is useful for modeling cases where a fitting must connect two pipes or a street intersection must be found at the junction of two streets.

Must Not Self Overlap

This rule requires that line features not overlap themselves. They can cross or touch themselves, but must not have coincident segments. This rule is useful for features such as streets, where segments might touch, in a loop, but where the same street should not follow the same course twice.

Must Not Self Intersect

This rule requires that line features not cross or overlap themselves. This rule is useful for lines, such as contour lines, that cannot cross themselves.

Must Be Single Part

This rule requires that lines must have only one part. This rule is useful where line features, such as highways, may not have multiple parts.

Point rules

Must Be Covered By Boundary Of

This rule requires that points fall on the boundaries of area features. This is useful when the point features help support the boundary system, such as boundary markers, which must be found on the edges of certain areas.

Must Be Properly Inside Polygons

This rule requires that points fall within area features. This is useful when the point features are related to polygons, such as wells and well pads or address points and parcels.

Must Be Covered By Endpoint Of

This rule requires that points in one feature class must be covered by the endpoints of lines in another feature class. This rule is similar to the line rule 'Endpoint Must Be Covered By' except that, in cases where the rule is violated, it is the point feature that is marked as an error, rather than the line. Boundary corner markers might be constrained to be covered by the endpoints of boundary lines.

Must Be Covered By Line

This rule requires that points in one feature class must be covered by lines in another feature class. It does not constrain the covering portion of the line to be an endpoint. This rule is useful for points that fall along a set of lines, such as highway signs along highways.

Topology errors and exceptions

Topology rules may represent an ideal situation, but geodatabases are flexible enough to handle exceptions to the rules found in real-world data. Violations of topology rules are initially stored as errors in the topology, but where appropriate, you can mark them as exceptions. Exceptions are thereafter ignored, though you can return them to error status if you decide that they are actually errors and that the features should be modified to comply with the topology rules.

Exceptions are a normal part of the data creation and update process. An assessor's geodatabase might have a topology rule requiring that building features not cross parcel lines as a quality control for the building digitizing effort. This rule might be true for 90 percent of the features in the city, but it could be violated by some high-density housing and commercial buildings.



If you create a condominium building feature that crosses parcel boundaries, it will be discovered as an error when you validate your edits, but you can mark it as a legitimate exception to the rule. Similarly, a street database for a city might have a rule that centerlines must connect at both ends to other centerlines. This rule would normally ensure that street segments are correctly snapped to other street segments when they are edited. However, at the boundaries of the city you might not have street data. Here, the external ends of streets might not snap to other centerlines. These cases could be marked as exceptions, and you would still be able to use the rule to find cases where streets were incorrectly digitized or edited.



Topology errors can be fixed quickly using the Fix Topology Error tool. This tool allows you to select a topology error and choose from a number of fixes that have been predefined for that error type. You can also use the tool to get more information about the rule that has been violated or mark the error as an exception.

Geometric elements of a topology

When you create a topology, you specify the feature classes that participate in the topology. These feature classes may contain point, line, or polygon features. In the topology, the geometric relationships are between the parts of the features rather than the features themselves. Polygons in a topology have edges that define the boundary of the polygons, nodes where edges intersect, and vertices, which define the shape of the edges.



Polygon features share edges and nodes, in red. Vertices define the shape of the edges, in green.

Similarly, line features are made up of an edge, at least two nodes that define the endpoints of the edge, and vertices that define the shape of the edge. Point features behave as nodes when they are coincident with other features in a topology.



Line features share edges and nodes, in red. Vertices define the shape of the edges, in green.

When features in the topology have parts that intersect or overlap, the edges and nodes that define these parts are shared.



You can use the Topology Edit tool to move nodes and whole edges that are shared between features or to move the vertices that define the shape of shared edges.



Moving a node stretches the connected edges so they stay connected. Moving an edge with its endpoint nodes also stretches the edges attached to the nodes.

EDITING TOPOLOGY

When you move nodes or vertices, you can choose whether you want the segment between the vertex and the closest vertex to be stretched or whether you want the whole edge to be proportion-ately stretched.



You can choose whether to stretch the feature geometry proportionally when moving a vertex, or whether to just stretch the segments between the vertex and the next vertices.

You can also temporarily add new topology nodes to split edges. This simply splits the edge for the topology; it does not break the feature into two features. This can be useful when you want to move one part of an edge without affecting other parts of the edge or when you want to create a new node to snap to.





If two or more features share an edge or node, you can use the Show Shared Features tool to turn off geometry sharing for one or more of the features. Changes that you make to that topology edge or node with the Topology Edit tool will only affect the features for which the geometry is still shared.



Uncheck a feature with the Shared Features tool in order to make a shared topology element independent of that feature.



Moving an edge that defines a single feature without selecting its nodes moves the whole edge without maintaining connections to the nodes. Moving a split edge that is a part of a single feature does maintain connectivity within the feature.

Editing features in a topology

Editing features that participate in a topology is similar to editing simple features—in fact, you can use the same sketch tools to create new features that participate in a topology that you would use for features that do not. When you want to modify a feature that shares edges or nodes with other features in the topology, you can use the Topology Edit tool.

When editing topological features, you often have a choice of several ways of doing something. For example, suppose you manage a forest and there are two polygon feature classes, Forest and Stand, in your forest dataset.



The Forest and Stand polygons are related by three topology rules: Stand must not overlap, Forest must cover Stand, and Stand must cover Forest. These rules prevent Stand polygons from overlapping, since no area can be in two stands at once. They also prevent stands from extending outside of the official boundary of the whole forest, or the forest boundary from covering an area not in a stand.

Suppose you are editing the Stand feature class and need to change the boundary between two of the stands. You could start editing; use the Topology Edit tool to select the shared edge; double-click the edge to edit its vertices; then add, remove, and move vertices along that edge to shape it to fit the new boundary.



Use the Topology Edit tool to edit an edge shared by two polygons from the same feature class.

You could also use the Topology Edit tool to modify edges shared by the Stand and Forest polygons. For example, suppose the actual boundary of the forest has been determined to be 150 meters east and 20 meters north of the corner where two stand features meet at the edge of the forest. You could use the Topology Edit tool to select the topology node at this intersection of features and move it to the correct location.



Forest polygon boundary.

Stand polygon.

Move shared node with Topology Edit

Both Stand polygons and the Forest polygon have updated boundaries at the shared edges connected to the node.

Use the Topology Edit tool to edit a topology node shared by two polygons from the same feature class and a third polygon from another feature class. You can move the node freehand, move it relative to its current position, or move it to an absolute location. When the node moves, the edges connected to it in both the Forest and Stand polygon feature classes are stretched to stay connected to it.

You can also use the regular editing tools to edit individual features that participate in a topology. When you edit topologically related features using the nontopological editing tools, you are only modifying one feature at a time. If this feature shares geometry with other features, the shared geometry is not updated. If the edits create a violation of the topology rules, you can use the Error Inspector to find the error and the Fix Topology Error tool to fix the error. There are several predefined ways that you can fix a given type of topology error. The Fix Topology Error tool allows you to right-click an error and choose which fix to use for the error

1) Edit a feature with an editing tool.



You can also edit features with the nontopological Edit tool. If the features participate in a topology rule, you can validate the topology to identify errors that your edits may have caused. If the edit created an error, you can use the Fix Topology Error tool to fix it using one of the predefined topology error fixes. The shared geometry is updated by the fix. You can also apply edits to shared edges using an edit sketch with the Modify Edge and Reshape Edge topology edit tasks.
The Modify Edge and Reshape Edge topology edit tasks allow you to update a selected shared edge using an edit sketch.

1. Reshape an edge using Reshape Edge editing task and the edit sketch tools.



You can use the editor tools and the Reshape Edge and Modify Edge edit tasks to simultaneously edit several features that share an edge.

Correcting topology errors

There are a couple of ways to correct topology errors once you've discovered them. You can select the error on the map with the Fix Topology Error tool, or select the error from within the Error Inspector and apply one of the fixes listed in the context menu for that error type.



Different error types have different predefined fixes available for them. For example, a dangling line can be trimmed or extended to another line. Errors caused by overlapping polygons can be merged into one of the polygons, subtracted from both, or turned into a separate new polygon feature.

Errors caused by violations of the "must be covered by" rules can be fixed by creating a new feature or deleting a feature.

Making new features with topology tools

There are several ways that you can use topology tools to make new features from existing ones. In ArcCatalog you can create a whole new polygon feature class from an input set of line features. In ArcMap you can construct new polygon features from the intersection of selected existing line and polygon features or create new line features by splitting selected line features where they cross each other.

Creating polygons from lines in ArcCatalog

In ArcCatalog, the Polygon Feature Class From Lines tool takes one or more existing line or polygon feature classes in a feature dataset and creates new polygon features from the closed shapes that are defined by the intersection of all of the lines or polygon edges.



You have the option to use a point feature class to supply attributes for the new polygons. If a point falls within one of the new polygons, the polygon is assigned the point's attributes.

Creating features in ArcMap

In ArcMap, the Construct Features tool takes selected features from one or more feature classes and creates new features in the target feature class.

The tool uses the input geometries of the selected features to construct polygons or lines following polygon boundaries, depending upon the geometry of the target feature class.



Selected lines can be turned into a polygon in the target feature class.

You can use this tool to build parcel polygons from selected lot line features or lake shorelines from selected lake polygon features.



Selected polygon features can be turned into line features in the target feature class.

You can also use the Planarize tool to create separate line features from selected touching or crossing line features. This can be useful when you have nontopological linework that has been spaghetti digitized or imported from a computer-aided design (CAD) drawing.



Selected line features can be split into separate features where they touch or cross other selected line features.

Adding the topology toolbar

The topology toolbar contains tools that you can use to create a map topology as well as tools that you can use to work with map and geodatabase topologies.

The topology tools operate within an edit session, so you will need to start editing before any of the topology tools are available. Click Editor, point to More Editing Tools, and click Topology.

The Topology toolbar appears.



Topology						×
Topology:	\[\begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \end{aligned} \] \[\lefted{aligned} \] \[\begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \] \[\begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \] \[\lefted{aligned} \] \[\begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \] \[\begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \] \[\begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \] \[\begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \] \[\begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \] \[\begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \] \[\begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \] \[\begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \] \[\begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \] \[\begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \] \[\begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \] \[\begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \] \[\begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \] \[\begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \] \[\begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \] \[\begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \] \[\begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \] \[\begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \] \[\begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \] \[\begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \] \[\begin{aligned} \lefted{aligned} \] \[\begin{aligned} \] \[N H	RI 🖓	9	₽ P	E)

Map topology concepts

A *map topology* is a simple topology that you can impose upon simple features on a map during an edit session. A map topology allows you to simultaneously edit simple features that overlap or touch each other using the tools on the topology toolbar. The features can be in one or more feature classes and may have different geometries. Line features and the outlines of polygon features become topological edges when you create a map topology. Point features, the endpoints of lines, and the places where edges intersect become nodes.

There are two steps to creating a map topology. First, you specify which feature classes on the map will participate in the topology; then you specify a cluster tolerance. The cluster tolerance is a distance within which features will be coincident.

After you create a map topology, you can use the Topology Edit tool to edit the edges and nodes shared by the features. Editing an edge or node shared by two or more different features results in each feature being modified. This lets you move a border to update two forest polygons or move a corner vertex and update several parcel polygons and a few lot boundaries at the same time.

A map topology can be applied to simple features in a shapefile or to simple feature classes in a geodatabase. The feature classes that participate in the map topology must be in the same folder or geodatabase. A map topology cannot be applied to feature classes that participate in a geometric network.

Although they cannot edit geodatabase topologies, ArcView seats of ArcMap can be used to edit a map topology.

A map topology creates topological relationships between the parts of features that are coincident. You can choose the distance, or *cluster tolerance*, that defines how close together edges and vertices must be in order to be considered coincident. You can also specify the feature classes that you want to participate in the map topology.

You do not specify any topology rules for a map topology. All edges or vertices of features in the map topology that fall within the cluster tolerance are considered to be topologically shared. You edit shared edges and vertices in a map topology in the same way, and with the same tools, as you would edit a geodatabase topology. Since there are no topology rules, there is no need to validate a map topology, and there is no creation of error features.

At the geometry level, topologies are about simple relationships, such as coincidence, covering, and crossing, between the geometric primitives that make up features. While all simple feature class geometries—point, line, polygon—may participate in topologies, internally, the types of geometry that are acted on when editing a topology are:

- Edges—line segments that define lines or polygons.
- Nodes—points at the end of an edge.
- Pseudonodes—a node connecting only two edges or a logical split defined in the topology cache while editing. Pseudonodes of the latter sort become a vertex after editing.

When you create a map topology, the cluster tolerance that you specify is used to determine which parts of the features are coincident and which edges and nodes in the topology are shared. The cluster tolerance is typically a very small actual ground distance. Setting large cluster tolerances can result in features being collapsed or distorted when vertices within a given feature snap together.

Creating a map topology

Once the data that you want to create a map topology for is on the map and you've started an edit session, you can create a map topology.

- 1. On the Editor toolbar, click Editor and click Start Editing.
- Click the source folder or geodatabase that contains the data that you want to edit.
- 3. Click OK.
- On the Topology toolbar, click the Map topology button. ►





5. Check the feature classes that will participate in the map topology.

Annotation, dimension, and relationship classes as well as feature classes in a geometric network or geodatabase topology, cannot be added to a map topology.

 Optionally, set a cluster tolerance for the map topology.

> The default cluster tolerance is the minimum possible cluster tolerance. Increasing the cluster tolerance may cause more features to be snapped together and considered coincident, but this may reduce the spatial accuracy of your data.

- 7. Click OK.
- Click the Topology Edit tool and click on the features you want to edit using the map topology.

The map topology is created for the features that are visible in the current display extent.



Editing shared geometry

The Topology Edit tool allows you to select and modify edges and nodes that may be shared by more than one feature. It also allows you to select and move the individual vertices that define the shape of edges. When you move vertices, edges, or nodes with the Topology Edit tool, all of the features that share the node or edge are updated.

Тір

Adding to a topology selection

Pressing the Shift key while selecting a node or edge adds that node or edge to the currently selected topology elements.

Тір

Selecting only nodes

You can select nodes by holding the N key while clicking the node or while dragging a box around the node with the Topology Edit tool.

Тір

Selecting only edges

You can select edges by holding the E key while clicking the edge or while dragging a box around the edge with the Topology Edit tool.

Selecting a node

- 1. Click the Topology Edit tool on the Topology toolbar.
- 2. Click the node that you want to select.

You can ensure that edges are not selected by holding the N key while selecting the node. Another easy way to select a node is to drag a rectangle around it, while holding the N key.



11



Selecting an edge

- 1. Click the Topology Edit tool on the Topology toolbar.
- 2. Click the edge that you want to select.

You can ensure that nodes are not selected by holding the E key while selecting the node.



- 1. Click the Topology Edit tool on the Topology toolbar.
- Double-click the edge that you want to move the vertices of.
- 3. Click and drag the vertex that you want to move.





When you move a node in a topology, all of the edges that connect to it are stretched to stav connected to the node. When you move an edge, edge segments stretch to maintain the connection of shared endpoint nodes to their previous location. Sometimes you may want to move a node and a connected edge without stretching the other connected edge. Moving a shared endpoint node of an edge requires you to temporarily split the topological relationship between the node and the other shared edges, then reestablish it. This is known as a Splitmove of the node. You'll need to snap the node to an edge or to another topology node.

Тір

Stretching geometry proportionately

You can choose to have the entire geometry of features stretch proportionately when you move a vertex or a topology node. On the Editor Options dialog box, click the General tab, then click the check box to Stretch geometry proportionately when moving a vertex. This overrides the default behavior of stretching the segments between the moved vertex and adjacent vertices.

Moving a node

- 1. Click the Topology Edit tool on the Topology toolbar.
- 2. Click the node that you want to move.

You can ensure that edges are not selected by holding the N key while selecting the node. Another easy way to select a node is to drag a rectangle around it, while holding the N key.

3. Click and drag the node that you want to move.

Moving an edge

- 1. Click the Topology Edit tool on the Topology toolbar.
- 2. Click the edge that you want to move.
- Click and drag the edge to a new location. Edge segments stretch to connect the edge's endpoint nodes to their previous positions, where they are shared.







Moving a topology element by a given X and Y distance

- 1. Click the Topology Edit tool on the Topology toolbar.
- 2. Click the node or edge that you want to move.
- 3. Right-click and click Move.
- 4. Type an X and a Y distance to move the topology element relative to its current location and press Enter.

If you are moving an edge, or more than one topology element, the Move command moves the selection anchor to the specified location and moves the topology element to maintain its position relative to the selection anchor.







Moving a topology element to a given location



- 1. Click the Topology Edit tool on the Topology toolbar.
- 2. Click the node or edge that you want to move.
- 3. Right-click and click Move To.
- Type the absolute X and Y coordinate to which you want to move the topology element and press Enter.

If you are moving an edge, or more than one topology element, the Move To command moves the selection anchor to the specified location and moves the topology element to maintain its position relative to the selection anchor.







Splitting an edge with the selection anchor

- 1. Click the Topology Edit tool on the Topology toolbar.
- 2. Click the edge that you want to split.
- Hold the Ctrl key and click and drag the selection anchor to the place where you want to split the edge.
- 4. Right-click and click Split Edge At Anchor.







Splitting an edge at a distance from an endpoint



- 1. Click the Topology Edit tool on the Topology toolbar.
- 2. Click the edge that you want to split.
- 3. Right-click and click Split Edge At Distance.

Arrows appear along the edge to indicate the edge direction. The edge can be split at a distance or a percentage of its length, measured from the start point or the endpoint of the edge. ►





Arrows indicate edge direction for purposes of splitting from an endpoint.

- 4. Optionally, click the button to specify a percentage of the edge length.
- 5. Type a distance or a percentage if you chose to make the split at a percentage of the edge length.
- 6. Optionally, click the button to indicate that you want the distance to be measured from the endpoint of the edge.
- 7. Click OK.

Split Edge /	At Distance	? ×	
Edge	10990.1798	ОК	-7
– Split – – –		Cancel	
<u> D</u> istar	nce along the edge		
C Perce	entage of the edge length ——		-4
7000			_6
- Orientation	n		
From	start point of edge		
C From	end point of edge		-6



Тір

Split-move

Holding the S key when you move a topology node and a selected edge makes the move a split-move. In a Split-move, the topological relationship of the node and any unselected edges is temporarily broken, then reestablished at the new location where you place the node. You must snap the node to an edge or another topology node to reestablish the topological relationship, otherwise the move will be cancelled.

Moving a shared endpoint node of an edge

 Set the snapping environment to snap to Topology nodes. See Chapter 3, 'Creating new features'.

> You can also set snapping to edges of the feature to which you want to move the endpoint node.

- 2. Click the Topology Edit tool on the Topology toolbar.
- Click the edge to which you want to move the endpoint node.
- Hold the Ctrl key and click and drag the Selection Anchor to the place where you want to snap the edge's endpoint node.

Holding the Ctrl key allows you to move the selection anchor.

5. Right-click and click Split Edge At Anchor.

Splitting the edge creates a new node to which you can snap the endpoint node of the edge. ►



- 6. Click the edge that you want to move the end of.
- Hold the N key and drag a rectangle around the endpoint node you want to move.

The N key limits the Topology Edit tool selection to nodes.

 Hold the S key and click and drag the node that you want to move to the node you created.

Holding the S key changes the pointer to the Split-Move tool pointer.

The endpoint node of the edge is moved to the new location and the topology is maintained. If you do not snap the node to the new node or to the edge, the split move will be cancelled.





Split-Move pointer



Rebuilding the topology cache

When you select a topology element using the Topology Edit tool, ArcMap creates a topology cache. The topology cache stores the topological relationships between edges and nodes of the features that fall within the current display extent. If you are editing with the map zoomed in to a very small area and you go back to a previous extent, some of the features in the new extent may not be in the topology cache. You can rebuild the topology cache to include these features. You can also rebuild the topology cache to remove temporary topology nodes that you created for snapping and editing.

- 1. Click the Topology Edit tool on the Topology toolbar.
- 2. Right-click on the map and click Build Topology Cache.

The topological relationships between edges and nodes are rediscovered for all of the features in the current display extent.







Clearing selected topology elements

When you are editing topological edges and nodes, you may sometimes want to unselect some elements. You can unselect a given element by holding the Shift key and clicking it, or unselect all selected edges and nodes by clearing all selected topology elements.

You can also click on the map with the Topology Edit tool away from edges and nodes to clear the selection.

Unselecting a single topology element

- 1. Click the Topology Edit tool on the Topology toolbar.
- Hold the Shift key and click a selected edge or node to unselect it.

The topology element is unselected.



Unselecting all topology elements

- 1. Click the Topology Edit tool on the Topology toolbar.
- 2. Right-click and click Clear Selected Topology Elements.

All of the topology elements are unselected.



Finding out what features share topology elements

Topology elements may be shared by multiple features. It can be useful to know which features share a given node or edge. You can find out which features share a given topology element by selecting them, then choosing Show Shared Features.

You can also control whether or not the shared features will be affected by edits that you make to a given edge or node. By default, all features that share a topology element are updated when you edit that element with the Topology Edit tool. However, when you turn off a feature in the Shared Features dialog box, the feature will not be modified if you edit the topology element.

Showing shared features

- 1. Click the Topology Edit tool on the Topology toolbar.
- 2. Click an edge or node to select it.
- 3. Right-click and click Show Shared Features.

You can also click the Show Shared Features button on the Topology toolbar.

- Click the plus sign to show all of the features in a given feature class that are shared. A given topology element may be shared by feature in multiple feature classes, so more than one feature class may be listed.
- 5. Click a feature in the list to make it flash on the map.





Temporarily turning off topology element sharing for a feature

- 1. Click the Topology Edit tool on the Topology toolbar.
- 2. Click an edge or node to select it.
- 3. Right-click and click Show Shared Features.

You can also click the Show Shared Features button on the Topology toolbar.

- Click the plus sign to show all of the features in a given feature class that are shared. A given topology element may be shared by features in multiple feature classes, so more than one feature class may be listed.
- Uncheck a feature in the list to turn off topology element sharing. Edits that you make with the Topology Edit tool to the topology element will not update this feature.

The unshared status of the feature is temporary. It only lasts while the topology element is selected.

 Click the Close button to close the Shared Features dialog box.





Selecting features that share a topology element

- 1. Click the Topology Edit tool on the Topology toolbar.
- 2. Click an edge or node to select it.
- 3. Right-click and click Select Shared Features.

The features that share the topology element are selected.





Merging connected edges within a feature

- 1. Click the Topology Edit tool on the Topology toolbar.
- 2. Click an edge of a feature that has been topologically split by adding nodes.
- 3. Right-click and click Merge Connected Edges.

The selected edge is merged with the adjacent edge and the topology node is removed.





Using the edit sketch to make topology edits

In addition to editing topology elements with the Topology Edit tool, you can also modify and reshape a selected topology edge using an Edit Sketch.

The Modify Edge topology edit task takes the selected edge and makes an edit sketch from it. You can then use the standard editing tools to insert, delete, or move the vertices that make up the edge.

With the Reshape Edge topology edit task you can use the basic editing tools to create a new line to replace an existing edge line.

Modifying an edge

- 1. Click the Topology Edit tool on the Topology toolbar.
- 2. Click an edge to select it.
- Click the Task dropdown arrow on the Editor toolbar and click Modify Edge. ►







 Optionally, right-click a segment of the edge that has no vertices and click Insert Vertex.

A new vertex is inserted into the edge and into all features that share it.

5. Optionally, right-click a vertex and click Delete Vertex.

The vertex is removed from the edge and from all features that share it.

 Optionally, click a vertex and drag it to a new location. ►







- 7. Optionally, right-click a vertex, then click Move.
- 8. Type an X and a Y distance and press Enter to move the vertex relative to its current position.
- 9. Optionally, right-click a vertex and click Move To.
- 10. Type the new coordinates for the vertex and press Enter. ►





11. Right-click anywhere on the map and click Finish Sketch.



Reshaping an edge

- 1. Click the Topology Edit tool.
- 2. Click an edge to select it.
- Click the Task dropdown arrow on the Editor toolbar and click Reshape Edge. ►





- 4. Click the Sketch Tool on the Editor toolbar.
- 5. Start an edit sketch.

You can either snap the edit sketch to the selected edge or cross the edge to indicate where to start reshaping the edge.

 Use the Sketch tools to digitize a new shape for part of the selected edge.

Once you've started the edit sketch, you can use any of the tools on the Sketch Tool Palette to create your edit sketch.

You can either snap the edit sketch to the selected edge or cross the edge to indicate where to stop reshaping the edge.

7. Right-click anywhere on the map and click Finish Sketch.





Stretching features when editing topology elements

Just as you can stretch a single feature geometry proportionately when moving a vertex, you can also stretch the geometry of features that share a topology element when moving a node or vertex on a topology edge.

- 1. Click Editor and click Options.
- 2. Click the General tab.
- 3. Check Stretch geometry proportionately when moving a vertex.
- 4. Click OK. ►



OK

Cancel

Apply

? ×

3

4

- 5. Click the Topology Edit tool on the Topology toolbar.
- Click a topology node or double-click a topology edge and click a vertex.
- 7. Click and drag the node or vertex to a new location.

The features that share the node or vertex stretch proportionately.









Snapping to topology nodes

When you are editing topology elements, it can be useful to snap to topology nodes. You can turn on snapping to topology nodes on the Snapping Environment dialog box.

- 1. Click Editor and click Snapping.
- 2. Check Topology nodes.



napping Environmen	t			×
Layer	Vertex	Edge	End	
My_points				
My_lines				
My_polygons				
🗐 🔲 Edit Sketch				
🗌 Edit sket	ch vertices	;		
Edit sket	ch edges			
- Perpend	icular to sk	etch		
🗄 – 📋 Topology Ele	ements			
🦾 🗹 Topolog	y nodes —			_

Changing the symbology for selected error features

You can change the way selected error features are drawn on the map. Error features are drawn with point, line, and area symbols of a given color by default. When you select errors, for example, when you are using the Fix Topology Error tool, the selected errors change color so that you can more easily identify the errors that you are fixing. You can change the symbology of selected topology errors to make them stand out better against a given map background.

- 1. Click Editor and click Options.
- 2. Click the Topology tab.
- Click the Active Errors Symbology buttons to change the way error features look when they are selected.
- 4. Pick a new symbol for the selected error feature and click OK.
- 5. Click OK to close the Editing Options dialog box.

	Star <u>t</u> Ed	iting								
	Sto <u>p</u> Ed	iting		_						
	<u>S</u> ave Ec	lits		_						
	Move									
1	<u>D</u> ivide									
and a second sec	Buffer									
· 2	цору на Мегае									
	Meige									
	Intersec									
	More Ec	liting T	ools	•						
	⊻alidate	Featu	res							
	S <u>n</u> appin	g		_						
Options	Options.								1	
Options ral Topolo	2 2 Vers	 sioning	Units	Edit T	asks	Edit C	ache		1	2 ×
Options ral Topolo tive Errors S	2 2 Symbology	 iioning)	Units) Edit T	asks	Edit C	ache			? ×
Options ral Topolo tive Errors S	2 2 Symbology hoose hou	ioning) , w errors	Units will appr	Edit T	°asks ∙n you :	Edit C select t	ache) hem.			
Options ral Topolo rive Errors S Topolo Point Error	2 2 Symbology hoose hou	 sioning] , w errors	Units will appr	Edit T ear whe	'asks •n you :	Edit C select t	ache hem.		2	2 ×
Options ral Topolo tive Errors S Roint Error Line Error	2 2 Symbology hoose hou rs: s:	 sioning) , w errors	Units will appr	Edit T ear whe	'asks •n you : 	Edit C select t	ache hem.			
Options al Topolo ive Errors S Roint Error Line Error Area Erro	2 2 y Vers Symbology noose how rs: s:	ioning	Units will appr	Edit T Bar whe	iasks in you :	Edit C	ache		3	X
Options al Topok ive Errors S © C Point Error Area Error Area Erro	2 versions ver	ioning j , w errors	Units will appr	Edit T Bar whe	iasks m you : 	Edit C	ache		3	
Options al Topolo ive Errors S C C C Point Error Area Error Area Error	ptions. Vers wy Vers wy vers s: s: s: s:	 ioning] y w errors ubology- w nodes	Units will appr	Edit T Bar whe	in you :	Edit C select t	ache		<u>•</u>	
Options al Topolo ive Errors S Point Error Area Error Area Error Area Error Selected	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	ioning view of the second seco	Units will app	Edit T Bar whee	iasks in you : appea	Edit C select t	ache		3	×
Options al Topolo tive Errors S Point Error Area Error Area Error Area Error Selected Selected	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	ioning γ w errors ubology-	Units will approved the second	Edit T Bar whe	asks m you :: appea	Edit C select t	ache			
Deptions ral Topole tive Errors S Point Error Area Error Area Error Area Error Selected Selected Selected	Deptions:	ioning) , , w errors ibology w nodes	Units will approved the second	Edit T Bar whe	appea	Edit C select t	ache		3	×
Deptions ral Topolot tive Errors S Point Error Area Error Area Erro pology Eler Selected Selected Selected	Options. Vers	ioning , w errors ibology w nodes	Units will approve the second	Edit T Bar whee	appea	Edit C	ache		3	
Options al Topole tive Errors S Point Error Area Error Area Error Selected Selected Selected	Detions: Vers	ioning) , , we refore abology we nodes	Units will approve	ges will	appea	Edit C select t	ache)			

Changing the symbology for topology elements

You can change the way topology elements are drawn on the map. Topology nodes and edges are drawn with point and line symbols of a given color by default and unselected topology nodes are not drawn by default. You can change the symbol for selected topology nodes and edges and for unselected nodes. Turning on the symbol for unselected nodes can make it easier to identify nodes to snap to when you are editing topology elements.

- 1. Click Editor and click Options.
- 2. Click the Topology tab.
- 3. Click the Topology Elements Symbology buttons to change the way topology elements look on the map.
- 4. Pick a new symbol for the topology element and click OK.
- 5. Optionally, check Unselected Nodes to show the nodes in the topology cache that have not been selected.
- 6. Click OK.

	Star <u>t</u> Editing
	Stop Editing
	<u>S</u> ave Edits
	<u>M</u> ove
Z	<u>D</u> ivide
	<u>B</u> uffer
2	Copy Parallel
	Merge
	<u>U</u> nion
	Intersect
	More Editing Tools
Q,	⊻alidate Features
	S <u>m</u> apping
_	Options

1



Changing the symbology for topology layers

You can change the way error features, exceptions, and dirty areas are drawn on the map. Point, line, and polygon errors are drawn with symbols of a single color by default. Exceptions and dirty areas are not drawn by default. Changing the symbology of error features and exceptions that relate to different topology rules can make it easier to understand what the problems are with your data. Drawing dirty areas can make it easier to see the areas that have been affected by edits and that have yet to be validated.

Changing topology error and exception symbology

- Right-click the Topology layer in the ArcMap table of contents and click Properties.
- 2. Click the Symbology tab.
- 3. Check the error types that you want to see on the map.
- 4. Click the error type that you want to change the symbol for.
- 5. Optionally, click the button to draw all of the errors of this type with a single symbol.
- 6. Pick a new symbol for this type of error feature and click OK.
- Optionally, click the button to draw the errors of this type with unique symbols.
- Double-click the error symbol for the rule that you want to draw with a new symbol.
- 9. Pick a new symbol for this type of error feature and click OK.
- 10. Click OK to close the Layer Properties dialog box.



3 4 2



Showing dirty areas and changing their symbology

- Right-click the Topology layer in the ArcMap table of contents and click Properties.
- 2. Click the Symbology tab.
- 3. Check Dirty Areas to draw dirty areas in the Topology layer.
- 4. Click Dirty Areas to set the symbology for dirty areas.
- 5. Click the button to change the dirty area symbol.
- 6. Pick a new symbol for dirty areas and click OK.
- 7. Click OK to close the Layer Properties dialog box.


Validating edits to a topology

Once you've made edits to a feature that participates in a topology, the next step is to validate the topology. Validating the topology checks the features to identify any violations of the rules that have been defined for the topology.

You can validate the whole topology, validate the visible extent of your map, or drag a box around the area to validate.

Validating the whole topology

1. Click the Validate Entire Topology button on the Topology toolbar.

Validating the entire extent may take a while for complex or large datasets or where there are many topology rules.

You will be prompted to specify whether or not you wish to validate the whole topology.

2. Click Yes.

Validating topology in the visible extent of the map

1. Click the Validate Topology in Current Extent button on the Topology toolbar.

The visible extent is validated. Areas that are not currently visible on the map are not validated.

Validating topology in a selected area

- 1. Click the Validate Topology in Specified Area button on the Topology toolbar.
- 2. Drag a box around the area you want to validate.



Validate Topology

Are you sure you want to validate the full extent for the topology 'Forest_10_22_Topology'?

<u>N</u>o –

Yes





🛛 🖉 🗐 🖉

123



Summarizing topology errors

Once you've made edits to a feature that participates in a topology and validated your edits, you may see one or more topology errors. You can manage topology errors with the Error Inspector.

The Error Inspector lets you view topology errors in a table that tells you the rule violated, the feature class or classes involved in the error, the geometry of the error, the feature ID of the features involved in the error, and whether or not the error has been marked as an exception. You can sort the errors by any of the fields in the table, so you can work with all of the errors of a given type. You can also limit the errors shown in the table to errors of a given type, errors that occur in the currently visible map extent, or errors that have been marked as exceptions.

In addition to letting you view and sort errors, the error inspector lets you select errors, pan or zoom to selected errors, and apply topology fixes of various types to errors.

Opening the Error Inspector

 Click the Error Inspector button on the Topology toolbar.

The Error Inspector can be docked to the ArcMap window or it can float free as a separate window.



Error Inspector						F	
Show: <errors all="" from="" ru<="" th=""><th colspan="7">w: <errors all="" from="" rules=""></errors></th></errors>	w: <errors all="" from="" rules=""></errors>						
Search Now	Errors	: Г	Exception	s 🔽 Vis	ible Extent on	ly .	
Rula Turca	Close 1	Class 2	Chappa	Footure 1	Footure 2	Eucoption	
Thate Type	Cidss I	01033-2	Jilape	Teature I	Teature 2	Exception	

Finding all topology errors

- 1. On the Error Inspector, check Errors.
- Click the Show dropdown arrow and click Errors from all rules.
- 3. Click Search Now.



Finding only the errors in the visible extent

- 1. On the Error Inspector, check Visible Extent only.
- 2. Click Search Now.



Finding errors for a particular topology rule

- 1. On the Error Inspector, click the Show dropdown arrow and click the rule that you want to search for violations of.
- 2. Click Search Now.

					•			
Error Insp	pector							×
Show:	<errors al<="" from="" td=""><td>I rules></td><td></td><td></td><td>+</td><td></td><td></td><td></td></errors>	I rules>			+			
	<errors al<br="" from="">Parcels - Must</errors>	l rules> Not Overlap			only			
Rule	Parcels : Resid	dential - Must Be Llass I	Covered By Blocks : R	esidential Shape	Feature 1	Feature 2	Exception	

End mapoolor	
Show: Parcels : Residential - Must Be Covered By - Blocks : Residential 32 errors	
Search Now From Exceptions Visible Extent only	
Rule Type Class 1 Class 2 Shape Feature 1 Feature 2 Excep	tion 🔺
Must Be Covered By Parcels : Residential Blocks : Residential Polygon 961 0 False	
Must Be Covered By Parcels : Residential Blocks : Residential Polygon 453 0 False	
Must Be Covered By Parcels : Residential Blocks : Residential Polygon 454 0 False	
Must Be Covered By Parcels : Residential Blocks : Residential Polygon 605 0 False	-

2

Finding exceptions

1. On the Error Inspector, check Exceptions.

Exceptions are errors that have been marked as acceptable exceptions to the topology rule.

- 2. Uncheck Errors.
- 3. Click Search Now.



Correcting errors

You can apply a variety of predefined topology fixes to the errors you find. The sort of fix that will be appropriate for a given error depends on the error type and the geometry of the features involved. You can choose from different fixes or mark the error as an exception.

The topology fixes are available from the Fix Topology Error tool and by right-clicking a selected error in the Error Inspector. Depending on the type of error and the features involved, you can select, delete, merge, extend, trim, dissolve, subtract, or create features.

You can also pan and zoom to a selected error, show a description of the error, and mark an error as an exception.

Merging an error area into a polygon

- 1. Click Fix Topology Error on the Topology toolbar.
- Click the error feature that you want to merge into one of the overlapping polygons.
- 3. Right-click and click Merge.
- 4. Click the feature that you want to merge the error feature into.
- 5. Click OK.



4



Merging an error area into a polygon from the Error Inspector

- 1. On the Error Inspector, click the error that you want to fix.
- 2. Right-click the error and click Merge.
- Click the feature that you want to merge the error feature into.
- 4. Click OK.



Finding the features that are affected by an error

- 1. On the Error Inspector, click the error.
- Click the Feature 1 field in the error to see the first feature that is affected by it.
- Click the Feature 2 field to see the second feature that is affected by it.

The features flash on the map.



Marking an error as an exception

- 1. On the Error Inspector, click the error that you want to mark as an exception.
- 2. Right-click the error and click Mark as Exception.

The error is marked as an exception. It is no longer symbolized as an error in the Topology layer on the map.

You can use the Error Inspector to find exceptions as well as errors.

1	1
Error Inspector	×
Show: <errors a<br="" from="">Search No</errors>	ll rules> ■ 1 error w F Errors Exceptions Visible Extent only
Rule Type	Class 1 Class 2 Shape Feature 1 Feature 2 Exception
[Must Not Overlap	Zoom To
	Pan To
	Select Features
	Show Rule Description
	Subtract
	Merge
	Dissolve
	Create Feature
	Mark as Exception2
	Mark as Error

Getting a description of the rule that is violated for an error

- 1. On the Error Inspector, click the error that you want a description of.
- 2. Right-click the error and click Show Rule Description.

A dialog box appears with a description of the error and some pictures of geometries that would and would not result in this error.

The errors are marked in red.

- Optionally, uncheck Show Errors to compare the feature geometries without the errors.
- 4. Click OK.







4

Creating new polygons from lines

Sometimes you need to create polygon features from line feature data. For example, you might have digitized the boundaries of a set of features into a line feature class, or you may have only been able to obtain line features from a data provider. Perhaps you have a detailed coastline feature class that you would like to use to update some existing, less detailed data. In ArcCatalog the Polygon Feature Class From Lines tool lets you create new polygon features from line and polygon features in one or more feature classes. You have the option of specifying a point feature class that will supply attributes for the new polygon features.

Creating a polygon feature class from lines

- In ArcCatalog, navigate to the dataset in which you want to create a polygon feature class from an existing line feature class.
- 2. Right-click the dataset, point to New, and click Polygon Feature Class From Lines.
- 3. Type a name for the new polygon feature class.
- 4. Optionally, type a cluster tolerance.

The default cluster tolerance is the minimum possible cluster tolerance.

- Check the line feature classes that you want to be considered in creating the polygons.
- Optionally, choose a point feature class in the dataset to provide attributes for the polygons.
- 7. Click OK.





Creating new features from the geometry of existing features

Sometimes you need to create new features from the geometry of existing features. For example, you might need to create a new parcel feature from some parcel boundary lines or some parcel boundary lines from parcel features. In ArcMap you can select features and use their geometry to create new polygons or lines in the Editor Target Feature Class. You can create new features from existing features' geometry using the Construct Features tool.

You can create multiple line features by splitting longer features at the places where they intersect using the Planarize tool.

Constructing polygons from the geometry of other features

- 1. In ArcMap, click the Select Features tool.
- Select the features whose geometry you want to use to construct new polygon features.
- On the Editor toolbar, click the Task dropdown arrow and click Create New Feature.
- 4. On the Editor toolbar, click the Target dropdown arrow and click the polygon feature class that you want to create a new feature in.
- 5. On the Topology toolbar, click the Construct Features button.
- 6. Optionally, type a cluster tolerance.
- Optionally, check the box to Consider existing features of the target layer in the current extent.

This will use the boundaries of existing polygons as input geometry and will split such features where selected lines or polygons cross them.

8. Click OK.

The new features are created in the target feature class.



Constructing lines from the geometry of other features

- 1. In ArcMap, click the Select Features tool.
- Select the features whose geometry you want to use to construct new line features.
- 3. On the Editor toolbar, click the Task dropdown arrow and click Create New Feature.
- 4. On the Editor toolbar, click the Target dropdown arrow and click the line feature class that you want to create a new feature in.
- 5. On the Topology toolbar, click the Construct Features button.
- 6. Optionally, type a cluster tolerance.
- Optionally, check the box to Consider existing features of the target layer in the current extent.

This will use existing lines as input geometry and will split such features where selected lines or polygons cross them.

8. Click OK.

The new features are created in the target feature class.





Using Planarize to split lines at intersections

- 1. In ArcMap, click the Select Features tool.
- 2. Select the line features that you want to split at intersections.
- 3. Click the Planarize button.
- 4. Optionally, type a cluster tolerance.
- 5. Click OK.



Using a digitizer

IN THIS CHAPTER

- Setting up your digitizing tablet and preparing your paper map
- Registering your paper map
- Creating features using a digitizer
- Digitizing features in point mode
- Digitizing features in stream mode

Digitizing is the process of converting features on a paper map into digital format. To digitize a map, you use a *digitizing tablet* connected to your computer to trace over the features that interest you. The x,y coordinates of these features are automatically recorded and stored as spatial data.

Digitizing with a digitizing tablet offers another way, besides digitizing freehand, to create and edit spatial data. You can convert features from almost any paper map into digital features. You can use a *digitizer* in conjunction with the tools in ArcMap to create new features or edit existing features on a digital map.

You may want to digitize features into a new layer and add the layer to an existing map document or you may want to create a completely new set of layers for an area for which no digital data is available. You can also use a digitizer to update an existing layer on your digital map.

Chapter 3, 'Creating new features', introduced you to the Sketch tool and other useful editing tools in ArcMap and discussed how these are used to digitize features freehand. This chapter will teach you the fundamentals of editing features in ArcMap using a digitizer. You may want to read Chapter 3, 'Creating new features', first to get an understanding of editing before reading this chapter.

Setting up your digitizing tablet and preparing your paper map

Before you can start digitizing, you must set up your digitizing tablet and prepare your paper map. This can be done after you have installed the digitizer driver software.

Installing the driver software and configuring puck buttons

To use a digitizing tablet with ArcInfo, it must have WinTabTMcompliant digitizer driver software. To find out if a WinTabcompliant driver is available for your digitizer, see the documentation that came with the tablet or contact the manufacturer.

After installing the driver software, use the WinTab manager setup program to configure the buttons on your *digitizer puck*. (You may have to turn on your digitizer and reboot your machine before you can use the setup program.) One puck button should be configured to perform a left mouse click to digitize point features and vertices; another button should be configured to perform a left double-click to finish digitizing line or polygon features.

With any development programming language, you can configure additional buttons to run specific ArcMap commands—such as the Zoom In or Sketch tools—normally accessed through toolbar buttons and menus. *Exploring ArcObjects* contains sample Visual Basic[®] for Applications (VBA) code that you can use to run a variety of ArcMap commands from the digitizer puck.

Preparing the map

After you have set up your digitizing tablet and configured the puck buttons, you can prepare your paper map for digitizing. Your map should ideally be reliable, up-to-date, flat, and not torn or folded. Paper expands or shrinks according to the weather. To minimize distortion in digitizing, experienced digitizers often copy paper maps to a more stable material such as Mylar[®].

If you know what coordinate system (projection) your paper map is in, you should set the same projection for the layer you're digitizing into. If you are digitizing features into an existing feature layer, you must ensure that your paper map and digital layer share the same coordinate system. For more information on specifying a coordinate system in ArcMap, see *Using ArcMap*.

Establishing control points on your paper map

Before you can begin digitizing from your paper map, you must first establish *control points* that you will later use to register the map to the geographic space in ArcMap. If your map has a grid or a set of known ground points, you can use these as your control points. If not, you should choose between four and 10 distinctive locations such as road intersections and mark them on your map with a pencil. Give each location a unique number and write down its actual ground coordinates.

Once you've identified at least four well-placed control points, you can place your map on the tablet and attach it with masking tape. You don't have to align the map precisely on your tablet; ArcMap corrects any alignment problems when you register the map and displays such adjustments in the error report.

The error report includes two different error calculations: a pointby-point error and a root mean square (RMS) error. The point-bypoint error represents the distance deviation between the transformation of each input control point and the corresponding point in map coordinates. The RMS error is an average of those deviations. ArcMap reports the point-by-point error in current map units. The RMS error is reported in both current map units and digitizer inches. If the RMS error is too high, you can reregister the appropriate control points. To maintain highly accurate data, the RMS error should be kept under 0.004 digitizer inches. For less accurate data, the value can be as high as 0.008 digitizer inches.

Registering your paper map

Before you can start digitizing, you must register your paper map into real-world coordinates. This allows you to digitize features directly in geographic space.

Registering your map involves recording the ground coordinates for the control points you identified while preparing your map. These are recorded using the Digitizer tab of the Editing Options dialog box. You must first use the digitizer puck to digitize the control points on the paper map; with the puck over each control point on the map, press the button you configured to perform a left mouse click. You must then type the actual ground coordinates for each control point.

When registering your map, you have the option of saving the ground coordinates you entered for later use—for example, if you want to reregister your map or register another map that uses the same control points. These ►

See Also

For information on configuring puck buttons and establishing control points, see 'Setting up your digitizing tablet and preparing your paper map' in this chapter.

Registering your map for the first time

- After adding a layer to your map, click the Editor menu and click Start Editing.
- 2. Click Editor and click Options.
- 3. Click the Digitizer tab.
- With the digitizer puck, digitize the control points you established earlier on your paper map.

A record appears in the X Digitizer and Y Digitizer columns for each control point you digitized.

5. Type the actual ground coordinates for each control point in the X Map and Y Map fields.

An error in map units is displayed at each control point. An RMS error is displayed in map units and in digitizer inches.

 Click OK to register the map and close the Editing Options dialog box.



	3	4		5		
liting ()	ptions				?	X
General	Digitizer T	opology Versi	oning Units	Edit Tasks	Edit Cache	
Point 2 3 4	X Digitizer 1169 5300 5301 1111	Y Digitizer 5028 5007 1368 1394	X Map 711907 713030 713040 711900	Y Map 943420 943420 942430 942430 942430	Error 0.3985 0.3980 0.3924 0.3929	
En En	abled		<u>Clear</u> Digitize	Load er Location (X,)] <u>S</u> ave	
	0.0029	inches	OK _	1111 Cance	1394	

ground coordinates are stored in tic text files.

After you've entered the ground coordinates, ArcMap displays an error at each control point as well as an RMS error. If the RMS error is too high—greater than 0.004 digitizer inches for highly accurate data or greater than 0.008 digitizer inches for less accurate data—you can register the appropriate control points again. For more information on errors, see 'Setting up your digitizing tablet and preparing your paper map' in this chapter.

Тір

Missing Digitizer tab

If you installed ArcInfo before installing your digitizer, the Digitizer tab may be missing from the Editing Options dialog box. To add the tab, you must register the digitizer.dll file. Go to the DOS prompt, type "cd" followed by the path to the directory where you installed ArcInfo (%ARCHOME%\bin), and type "regsvr32 digitizer.dll". When you restart ArcMap, the Editing Options dialog box will have the Digitizer tab.

Saving new ground coordinates

- 1. Follow steps 1 through 5 for 'Registering your map for the first time' in this chapter.
- 2. Click Save.
- Navigate to the directory in which you want to save the coordinates and type a filename.
- 4. Click Save.
- 5. Click OK.

enerar	origitizer	T Opology					
Point	X Digitizer	Y Digi	tizer X	Мар	Y Map	Err	or
1	1169	5028	71	1907	943420	0.3	985
2	5300	1000/	/1	13030	943420	0.3	980 9934
3 4	1111	1300	7	13040	942430 942430	0.3	924 929
🗖 Ena	abled		<u>C</u> lear		<u>L</u> oad].	<u>S</u> ave
🗖 En	abled		<u>C</u> lear	Digitizer	Load		<u>S</u> ave
🗖 Ena	abled rror: 0.395	54 maj	<u>C</u> lear	Digitizer	<u>L</u> oad Location (X, [*]	1 n	<u>S</u> ave
□ En RMS E	abled rror: 0.395 0.002	54 maj 29 incl	<u>C</u> lear p units hes	Digitizer	Load Location (X, 1111	n	<u>S</u> ave 1394

Save As				? ×
Save jn:	a digitizing		💽 🗈 🖻	
E ControlPo Mytics.txt E Tic1.txt	ints.txt			
File <u>n</u> ame: Save as <u>t</u> ype:	parcelpoints Text file (*.txt)			<u>S</u> ave Cancel
		3		4

Тір

Removing records

If you want to remove all the ground coordinate records and start over, click Clear on the Digitizer tab. To remove an individual record, click the number in the Point column corresponding to the coordinates you want to remove and press the Delete key.

Tip

Adding records

If you want to add additional control points after entering a few, click below the last record with the mouse and digitize the new points with the digitizer puck.

Тір

Digitizer location

The Digitizer tab also displays the current x,y location of the digitizer puck on the tablet. The coordinates change as you move the puck along the tablet surface. This helps orient you to the location you're digitizing.

Registering your map using existing tic files or saved coordinates

- After adding a layer to your map, click the Editor menu and click Start Editing.
- 2. Click the Editor menu and click Options.
- 3. Click the Digitizer tab.
- 4. Click Load.
- 5. Navigate to the file you want to use.
- 6. Click Open. ►

eneral Digitizer	Topology Versioning U	nits Edit Tasks E	Edit Cache
	T Digitizer X Map	і мар	
_			
Enabled	<u>C</u> lear	Load	Save



Тір

Digitizing accuracy

Always register your map at the start of each digitizing session, even if this means registering the same map more than once. Your paper map might shift between sessions; reregistering helps ensure that your digitizing is accurate. The ground coordinates appear under the X Map and Y Map fields.

- Click the first record and digitize the first control point with the digitizer puck.
- 8. Digitize each of the other control points.

The digitized coordinates appear in the X Digitizer and Y Digitizer columns. An error is displayed for each control point, and an RMS error is displayed in map units and in digitizer inches.

9. Click OK to register the map.

The ground coordinates are displayed.

	Editing Options			? ×
	General Digitizer Top	oology Versioning Units	Edit Tasks Ed	lit Cache
3	Point X Digitizer	Y Digitizer X Map 711907 713030 713040 711900	Y Map 943420 943420 942430 942430 942430	Error
	RMS Error:	<u>C</u> lear map units inches	Load	<u>S</u> ave
		OK	Cancel	Apply

The digitized coordinates are displayed.

9

liting O	ptions				3
General	Digitizer	opology Versio	oning Units	Edit Tasks E	dit Cache
Point	X Digitizer	Y Digitizer	XMap	Y Map	Error
1 2 3 4	1169 5300 5301 1111	5028 5007 1368 1394	711907 713030 713040 711900	943420 943420 942430 942430	0.3985 0.3980 0.3924 0.3929
l Ena	abled	(lear	Load	Save
Ena	abled	<u>(</u>	<u>C</u> lear	Load	<u>S</u> ave
I End	abled rror: 0.3954 0.0029	map units	<u>Digitize</u>	Load er Location (X,Y 1111) <u>S</u> ave) 1394

Creating features using a digitizer

It's easy to digitize features in ArcMap. You can digitize features into a new map layer or edit an existing layer.

Digitizing modes

Digitizing tablets generally operate in two modes: digitizing (absolute) mode and mouse (relative) mode.

In *digitizing mode*, the location of the tablet is mapped to a specific location on the screen. In other words, moving the digitizer puck on the tablet surface causes the screen pointer to move to precisely the same position. When you are in digitizing mode, you can only digitize features; you can't choose buttons, menu commands, or tools from the ArcMap user interface because the screen pointer is locked to the drawing area.

In *mouse mode*, the digitizer puck behaves just like a mouse; there is no correlation between the position of the screen pointer and the surface of the digitizing tablet, but you can choose interface elements with the pointer.

ArcMap lets you switch between digitizing and mouse modes using the Editing Options dialog box. This means you can use the digitizer puck to both digitize features and access user interface choices (as a substitute to the mouse) as you digitize.

Whether your digitizer is in mouse mode or digitizing mode, you can still use your mouse at any time to choose interface elements.

Two ways to digitize features on a paper map

You can digitize features on a paper map in two ways: using point mode digitizing or stream mode digitizing (streaming). You can switch back and forth between the two modes as you digitize by pressing F8.

Digitizing by point

When you start a digitizing session, the default is point mode. With *point mode digitizing*, you convert a feature on a paper map by digitizing a series of precise points, or vertices. ArcMap then connects the vertices to create a digital feature. You would use point mode when precise digitizing is required—for example, when digitizing a perfectly straight line.

Digitizing using stream mode

Stream mode digitizing (streaming) provides a quick and easy way to capture features on a paper map when you don't require as much precision—for example, to digitize rivers, streams, and contour lines. With stream mode, you create the first vertex of the feature and trace over the rest of the feature with the digitizer puck. When you're finished tracing, you use the puck to complete the feature.

As you stream, ArcMap automatically adds vertices at an interval you specify; this interval, expressed in current map units, is called the stream tolerance. You can change the stream tolerance at any time, even while you're in the process of digitizing a feature.

You can also digitize using stream mode when you create features "freehand" with the sketch construction tools. You can digitize in stream mode with the Sketch tool, for example, in the same way you do from a paper map. The only difference is that you use the mouse pointer to digitize freehand.

Adding topology to digitized features

Digitizing creates lines or points that have no topological relationships. ArcMap provides tools to improve such spagetti digitized data, for example, by splitting lines at intersections or creating polygons from lines. To learn more about topology, see Chapter 4, 'Editing topology'.

Digitizing features in point mode

Point mode digitizing works the same way with a digitizer as freehand digitizing with the Sketch tool; the only difference is that with the digitizer you're converting a feature from a paper map using a digitizer puck instead of a mouse.

Point mode digitizing involves converting point, line, and polygon features from a paper map by digitizing a series of precise points, or vertices. You digitize each vertex by pressing the puck button you configured to perform a left mouse click. To finish the feature, press the puck button you configured to perform a left double-click. ArcMap connects the vertices to create a digital feature.

Before you begin digitizing, you must set the digitizer to work in digitizing mode rather than in mouse mode; this constrains the screen pointer to the digitizing area. When the puck is in ►

See Also

For information on configuring puck buttons and establishing control points, see 'Setting up your digitizing tablet and preparing your paper map' in this chapter.

- 1. Click Editor and click Options.
- 2. Click the Digitizer tab.
- 3. Check Enabled to use the puck in digitizing mode.
- 4. Click OK. ►



liting ()	2 Iptions				?)
General Point 1 2 3 4	Digitizer Tr X Digitizer 1169 5300 5301 1111	opology Versic Versic 5028 5007 1368 1394	ning Units X Map 711907 713030 713040 711900	Edit Tasks Y Map 943420 943420 943420 942430 942430 942430	Edit Cache 0.3985 0.3980 0.3924 0.3929
FM En	abled Fror: 0.3954 0.0029	map units	lear Digitize	Load er Location (X,Y 1111) <u>S</u> ave ') 1394
	,		ОК	Cancel	I <u>A</u> pply

digitizing mode, you must use your mouse to choose items in the ArcMap interface—unless you have used VBA or another development programming language to configure additional puck buttons to run specific ArcMap commands.

Тір

Snapping

To help you digitize features in a precise location on an existing layer, you can use the snapping environment. For information on snapping, see Chapter 3, 'Creating new features'.

Тір

Deleting vertices

Click the Undo button on the ArcMap Standard toolbar to delete a vertex as you digitize.

See Also

For information on creating features by digitizing freehand with the sketch creation tools, see Chapter 3, 'Creating new features'.

See Also

For information on configuring puck buttons with programming code, see 'Setting up your digitizing tablet and preparing your paper map' in this chapter.

- 5. Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Sketch tool.
- With the digitizer puck, digitize the first vertex of the feature.
- 7. Trace the puck over the feature on the paper map, creating as many vertices as you need.
- 8. Finish the feature by pressing the appropriate puck button.

The feature is created.





Digitizing features in stream mode

When you digitize line or polygon features from a paper map in stream mode (streaming), you create the first vertex of the feature by pressing the digitizer puck button you configured to perform a left mouse click. You then trace over the rest of the feature with the digitizer puck. When you're finished tracing, press the puck button you configured to perform a left double-click to complete the feature.

Before starting to digitize in stream mode, you must set the *stream tolerance*—the interval at which ArcMap adds vertices along the feature you're digitizing. Because the default stream tolerance is 0, you must enter a tolerance value before you start digitizing or the vertices will join together or overlap each other. You can change the stream tolerance any time in the digitizing process.

You must also specify the number of streaming vertices you want to group together. The number you set tells ArcMap how many vertices to delete when you click the Undo button. For example, if you set this ►

Setting the stream tolerance

- 1. Click the Editor menu and click Start Editing.
- 2. Click the Editor menu and click Options.
- 3. Click the General tab.
- Type the stream tolerance in map units—in the Stream tolerance text box.
- 5. Click OK.

3 Editing Options ? × General Digitizer Topology Versioning Units Edit Tasks Edit Cache Display measurements using 4 decimal places Snapping tolerance: 7 pixels -Stretch geometry proportionately when moving a vertex Stream Mode 4 Stream tolerance: 50 map units Group 50 points together when streaming 5 0K Cancel Apply

Setting the number of vertices to be grouped

- 1. Click the Editor menu and click Options.
- 2. Click the General tab.
- 3. Type the number of vertices you want to group together.
- 4. Click OK.

Now when you click the Undo button while digitizing in stream mode, the number of vertices you specified are deleted.

2	
Editing Options	
General Digitizer Topology Versioning Units Edit Tasks Edit Cache	
Display measurements using 4 decimal places	
Snapping tolerance: 7 pixels	
$\square \ \underline{\underline{S}}{tretch geometry proportionately when moving a vertex}$	
Stream Mode	
Stream tolerance: 50 map units	
Group 50 points together when streaming	3
OK Cancel Apply	-4

number to 20 and click the Undo button while you're digitizing a feature, ArcMap deletes the last 20 digitized vertices from your feature.

To begin digitizing in stream mode, you must choose Streaming from the sketch context menu. You can switch back to point mode at any time by pressing F8; press F8 again to switch to stream mode again.

Before streaming, remember to set the digitizer to work in digitizing mode rather than in mouse mode; this constrains the screen pointer to the digitizing area.

Tip

Snapping

To help you digitize features in a precise location on an existing layer, you can use the snapping environment. For information on snapping, see Chapter 3, 'Creating new features'.

Digitizing a feature in stream mode

- 1. Click the Editor menu and click Options.
- 2. Click the General tab.
- 3. Type the stream tolerance in map units—in the Stream Tolerance text box.
- 4. Type the number of vertices you want to group together.
- 5. Click the Digitizer tab.
- 6. Check Enabled to use the puck in digitizing mode.
- 7. Click OK.
- Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Sketch tool. ►

	5				
Editing O	ptions				? ×
General	Digitizer T	opology Versio	ning Units	Edit Tasks E	dit Cache
Point 1 2 3 4	× Digitizer 1169 5300 5301 1111	Y Digitizer 5028 5007 1368 1394	X Map 711907 713030 713040 713040 711900	Y Map 943420 943420 942430 942430 942430	Error 0.3985 0.3980 0.3924 0.3929
En En	abled	<u></u>	lear Digitize	Load	<u>Save</u>
RMS E	rror: 0.3954 0.0029	map units inches	- Digitize	1111	1394
			ОК	Cancel	
6			7		



Тір

Choosing interface elements while streaming

When you're in the process of digitizing a feature in stream mode and want to interact with the ArcMap interface using your mouse—for example, to change the stream tolerance or undo an action—you must first switch back to point mode by pressing F8. After you have finished interacting with the interface, you can resume streaming by pressing F8 again.

Tip

Configuring a puck button for streaming

Instead of choosing Streaming from the context menu, you can configure one of your puck buttons using any development programming language, such as C++ or VBA, to activate stream mode digitizing. To learn more about configuring your puck buttons and customization in general, see Exploring ArcObjects.

- 9. With the mouse pointer, rightclick anywhere on the map and click Streaming.
- 10. With the digitizer puck, digitize the first vertex of the line or polygon feature.
- 11. Trace the puck over the feature on the paper map.

ArcMap creates vertices at the stream tolerance you specified.

12. Finish the feature by pressing the appropriate puck button.

The feature is created.

Snap To Feature 🕨 🕨
Direction Ctrl+A
Deflection Ctrl+F
Length Ctrl+L
Change Length
Absolute X, Y F6
Delta X, Y Ctrl+D
Direction/Length Ctrl+G
Parallel Ctrl+P
Perpendicular Ctrl+E
Segment Deflection F7
Replace Sketch
Tangent Curve Ctrl+T
Streaming F8 -
Delete Sketch Ctrl+Delete
Finish Sketch F2
Square and Finish
Finish Part





Creating features from other features

IN THIS CHAPTER

- Copying a line at a specific interval
- Creating a buffer around a feature
- Creating a mirror image of a feature
- Merging features from the same layer into one feature
- Combining features from different layers into one feature
- Creating a feature from features
 with common areas

In spatial data editing, many new features can be created using the shapes of other features. ArcMap has many tools you can use to create new features based on features already in your database.

For example, you can construct a line that is a parallel copy of an existing line to create a centerline on a street. You can create a buffer around a point, line, or polygon feature to show a specific area, such as a floodplain around a river. You can also create a new feature by combining or intersecting existing features or even create a mirror image of a feature or set of features.

In this chapter, you'll learn how easy it is to perform these tasks using various tools in ArcMap.

6

Copying a line at a specific interval

The Copy Parallel command copies a line parallel to an existing feature at a distance you specify. If you give a distance that is positive, the line is copied to the right side of the original feature. A negative distance value copies the line to the left.

You might use the Copy Parallel command to create a street centerline or to create a gas line that runs parallel to a road.

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the line you want to copy.
- Click the Target layer dropdown arrow and click the layer to which you want the new line to belong. ►





- 4. Click Editor and click Copy Parallel.
- Specify the copy parameters including the distance—in map units—from the original feature where you want to copy the line, the corner style, and the behavior of intersecting loops.
- 6. Click OK or press Enter.

A parallel copy of the line is created at the specified distance.



Creating a buffer around a feature

You can create a buffer around a feature using the Buffer command. For instance, you might use Buffer to show the area around a well that's contaminated or to represent a floodplain around a river.

You can buffer more than one feature at a time, but a separate buffer will be created around each feature.

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the feature or features around which you want to create a buffer.
- Click the Target layer dropdown arrow and click the layer with the type of features you want the buffer to be. (This can only be a line or polygon layer.) ►





- 4. Click Editor and click Buffer.
- 5. Type the distance—in map units—from the feature around which you want to create the buffer and press Enter.

A buffer is created at the specified distance.







A buffer of 1,000 map units is created around the point.

Creating a mirror image of a feature

The Mirror task creates a mirror image of selected features on the other side of a straight line you create. You might use the Mirror task to create houses in a housing development where houses are mirror images of the ones on the opposite side of the street.



Also, as shown in the example, the Mirror task provides an easy way to add gas services to parcels that mirror the services on the other side of the street.

Тір

Other ways to construct a line

You can also use the Distance– Distance and Intersection tools to create the endpoints of the line. For more information, see Chapter 3, 'Creating new features'.

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the feature or features that you want to mirror.
- Click the Task dropdown arrow and click Mirror Features.
- 4. Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Sketch tool.
- Construct a line by clicking once on the start point and once on the endpoint. ►





Merging features from the same layer into one feature

The Merge command combines features from the same layer into one feature. The features must be part of a line or polygon layer. You could use the Merge command to combine two parcels into one.

You might also want to merge nonadjacent features to create a multipart feature. For example, you could merge the individual islands that make up Hawaii to create a multipart polygon feature.

When you merge features in a geodatabase, the original features are removed and the new feature's attributes are copied from the feature that was selected first. If you merge shapefile features, the attributes of the feature with the lowest ID number (the oldest feature) are used.

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the features that you want to merge.

(The features must be from the same layer, either a line or polygon layer.)

 Click the Target layer dropdown arrow and click the layer to which you want the new feature to belong. ►



- 4. Click Editor and click Merge.
- 5. Click the feature that you want to merge the other feature or features into.

The selected features are merged into one.

6. Click OK.





Parcels are merged into one.

Combining features from different layers into one feature

The Union command lets you combine features from different layers into one feature while maintaining the original features and attributes. You might use this command to create a sales territory from several ZIP Codes.

You can also create a multipart feature using the Union command by combining nonadjacent features from different layers. For example, suppose you want to create a sedimentary rock polygon in a new rock classification layer given selected clay and quartz polygons in an existing rock composite layer. You would use the Union command to combine the clay and quartz features to create a new, multipart sedimentary rock feature in the rock classification layer.

When you use the Union command, the features you combine must be from layers of the same type—line or polygon. The new feature is created in the current layer with no attribute values.

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the features that you want to combine into one.

(The features may be from different layers, although they must be the same layer type—line or polygon.)

 Click the Target layer dropdown arrow and click the layer to which you want the new feature to belong. ►





4. Click Editor and click Union.

The selected features are combined into one.





ZIP Codes are combined into one sales territory.

Creating a feature from features with common areas

The Intersect command creates a new feature from the area where features overlap. For instance, you might create a new sales territory out of overlapping trade areas.

You can find the intersection between features of different layers, but the layers must be of the same type—line or polygon. The original features are maintained, and the new feature is created in the current layer with no attribute values. You must enter attribute values for the new feature yourself.

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the features from whose intersection you want to create a new feature.

(The features may be from different layers, although they must be the same layer type—line or polygon.)

3. Click the Target layer dropdown arrow and click the layer to which you want the new feature to belong.

(The layer must be of the same type as the selected features—line or polygon.) ►




4. Click Editor and click Intersect.

A new feature is created from the areas in common between all selected features.

	Edit	o <u>r</u> 🔻	
Ī		Start_Editing	
		Stop Editing	
		<u>S</u> ave Edits	
		<u>M</u> ove	
		Split	
	/	Divide	
	1	<u>B</u> uffer	
	4	Cop <u>y</u> Parallel	
		Merge	
		<u>U</u> nion	
		Intersect —	-4
		⊆ip	
		More Editing Tools	
	s.	Validate Features	
		S <u>n</u> apping	
		S <u>n</u> apping Options	



A single sales territory is created from the areas in common between two other sales territories.

Editing existing features

IN THIS CHAPTER

- Splitting a line or polygon
- Trimming a line
- Extending a line
- Flipping a line
- Placing points along a line
- Reshaping a line or polygon
- Adding and deleting sketch vertices
- Moving a vertex in a sketch
- · Changing the properties of a sketch
- Scaling features
- Clipping features
- Stretching geometry proportionately
- Stretching a feature's geometry proportionately

This chapter shows you how to modify features that already exist in your database. Suppose you need to change the shape of a parcel to accommodate a newly added cul-de-sac—you can use the Reshape Feature task to modify the parcel to the proper shape. Suppose the street you've digitized doesn't intersect with the correct cross street—you can use the Extend task to extend the line to the correct location. If you need to divide a parcel, you can use the Cut Polygon Feature task to cut the feature into two.

These are just a few examples of how easy it is to modify features while editing in ArcMap. The editing tools, commands, and tasks provide a variety of ways to make changes to existing features.

Many of the functions described in this chapter will react differently with data involved in a topology. If your project involves working with topological data, you should also read Chapter 4, 'Editing topology', to further understand the tools and functions related to topological rules and relationships.

Splitting a line or polygon

Using the editing tools, you can easily split line and polygon features.

To manually split one line into two, use the Split tool. The line is split at the location where you clicked with the mouse. The attributes of the original line are copied to each of the new lines. In the example shown, the Split tool is used to divide a street centerline into two features in anticipation of a new centerline being added between the parcels.

You can also split a line into two using the Split command on the Editor menu. Use the Split command when you know the distance at which you want to split the line, measured from either the first or last vertex. You can also use this command when you want to split a line at a certain percentage of the original length. You might use the ►

Тір

Using snapping to split a line

If you want to use the Split tool to split a line at a specific vertex, use the snapping environment to snap the pointer precisely to the vertex. For more information on snapping, see Chapter 3, 'Creating new features'.

Splitting a line manually

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the line you want to split.
- 3. Click the Split tool.
- Click the spot on the line where you want it to split.

The line is split into two features.





Split command to split a power line at a known distance along the line when you want to add an electrical pole that requires its own service.

The Split dialog box displays the length of the original feature in current map units to help you split it accurately. When you split the line using the Split command, the attributes of the original line are copied to each of the new lines.

To split one polygon into two, use the Cut Polygon Features task. The polygon is split according to a line sketch you create. The attributes of the original feature are copied to each of the new features.

Splitting a line at a specified distance or percentage

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- Click the line you want to split.
- 3. Click Editor and click Split. ►



Controlling how attributes are handled

If you're working with geodatabase features, you can set up split policies that control the behavior of an object's attributes when it is split. For more information on split policies, see Building a Geodatabase. 4. Click the first Split option to split the feature at a certain distance.

Click the second Split option to split the feature at a certain percentage of the whole.

- 5. Type a distance or percentage, as desired.
- 6. Select From Start Point of Line if you want to split the feature starting from the first vertex.

Select From End Point of Line if you want to split the feature starting from the last vertex.

7. Click OK.

The line is split into two features according to the parameters you specified.

Split	? ×	
Line Length: 254.5305	ОК –	-7
Split	Cancel	
 Distance along the line 		
C Percentage of the line length		
O Measure along the line		
12		_6
Orientation		
From Start Point of Line		
C From End Point of Line		-6

4



The line is split into two according to the distance and orientation you specified.

Cutting a polygon shape out of a polygon

You can use the Cut Polygon Features task to create a sketch that acts like a "cookie cutter," splitting the polygon in two. Simply create a line sketch that closes in on itself by doubleclicking precisely on the first vertex of the sketch to finish it.

Tip

Other ways to construct a sketch

You can also use the Distance– Distance tool, the Arc tool, or the Intersection tool to create a sketch. For more information, see Chapter 3, 'Creating new features'.

Splitting a polygon

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the polygon you want to split.
- Click the Task dropdown arrow and click Cut Polygon Features.
- 4. Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Sketch tool.
- 5. Construct a line or polygon sketch that cuts the original polygon as desired.
- 6. Right-click anywhere on the map and click Finish Sketch.

The polygon is split into two features.





The sketch divides the polygon into two features.

Trimming a line

The Trim command on the Sketch context menu reduces the length of a line, trimming a distance you specify from the last vertex.

The Trim task in the Current Task dropdown list also trims lines, but instead of trimming them a given distance, the Trim task uses a *sketch* you draw. ►

Тір

Shortcut for modifying features

Instead of using the Modify Feature task to change a feature to its sketch, you can click the Edit tool and double-click the feature you want to modify.

Tip

Trimming from the first vertex of a line

You can trim a line from the first vertex instead of the last. See 'Flipping a line' in this chapter.

Тір

Shortcuts for finishing a sketch

When you're finished modifying a sketch, you can press F2 to finish it. Simply selecting another feature with the Edit tool will also finish the sketch.

Trimming a specific length from the last point

- 1. Click the Task dropdown arrow and click Modify Feature.
- 2. Click the Edit tool.
- 3. Click the line that you want to trim.

The line appears as a sketch with vertices.

- 4. Right-click over any part of the line and click Trim.
- 5. Type the length to trim the line to and press Enter.

If you type a positive value it trims the line to the specified length. If you type a negative value it removes that much from the length of the line, starting from the last vertex.

The line is trimmed.

 When finished modifying the line, right-click over any part of the sketch and click Finish Sketch.



20 map units are trimmed from the original line.

This is useful if you don't know the exact distance you want to trim but have a physical boundary where the features should end or begin.

Suppose your database has some roads that should end at the coastline, but overshoot it instead. Using the Trim task, you can draw a line sketch on top of the coastline and the lines will be trimmed where you have drawn the sketch.

Portions of the lines that are on the right side of the sketch are trimmed. The right side of the sketch is based on the direction in which the sketch was drawn. Imagine riding a bicycle along the sketch in the direction in which the vertices were added.

Tip

Other ways to construct a sketch

You can also use the Distance– Distance tool, the Arc tool, the Trace tool, or the Intersection tool to create a sketch. For more information, see Chapter 3, 'Creating new features'.

Tip

Shortcuts for finishing a sketch

You can double-click on the last vertex of a sketch to finish it. You can also press F2.

Trimming based on a line you draw

- Click the Task dropdown arrow and click Extend/Trim Features.
- 2. Click the Edit tool.
- 3. Click the line or lines you want to trim.
- Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Sketch tool.
- Construct a line that trims the selected line or lines as desired. The direction of the sketch line determines the part of the features to be removed. The portion of the selected features to the right of the sketch is trimmed.
- Right-click anywhere on the map and click Finish Sketch. ►



If you looked to your right, you would be looking at the right side of the sketch.

The lines are trimmed on the right side of the line you constructed.



The lines are trimmed where the sketch was drawn.

Extending a line

The Extend task is the opposite of the Trim task, extending selected lines to a line you construct. Consider the roads and coastline example shown in the Trim task. If your database has some roads that should end at the coastline, but instead stop short, you could use the Extend task. By drawing a sketch on top of the coastline, you can extend the roads to the sketch you drew.

Тір

Other ways to construct a sketch

You can also use the Distance– Distance tool, the Arc tool, the Trace tool, or the Intersection tool to create a sketch. For more information, see Chapter 3, 'Creating new features'.

- Click the Task dropdown arrow and click Extend/Trim Features.
- 2. Click the Edit tool.
- 3. Click the line or lines you want to extend.
- 4. Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Sketch tool.
- Construct a line to which you want to extend the selected line or lines.
- Right-click anywhere on the map and click Finish Sketch. ►



Other methods of extending or trimming a line

Beyond the basic Extend/Trim Features task, lines can be extended using the advanced editor Trim and Extend tools as well as specific topology correction methods when working with topologies. These additional functions are only available with ArcEditor and ArcInfo software packages. The lines are extended to the line you constructed.



The lines are extended to where the sketch was drawn.

Flipping a line

When you modify a line by trimming or extending it, the line is automatically trimmed or extended from its last vertex.

However, if you prefer to trim or extend a line from the first vertex instead of the last, you can use the Flip command. The Flip command reverses the direction of a line so that the last vertex of the sketch becomes the first.

Тір

Working with topologies

For line feature classes or shapefiles that are part of a topology, the line direction is involved with the topological rules and the flip function will not be permitted. For more information on working with topologies, see Chapter 4, 'Editing topology', in this book.

- 1. Click the Task dropdown arrow and click Modify Feature.
- 2. Click the Edit tool.
- 3. Click the line whose direction you want to change.
- 4. Right-click over any part of the sketch and click Flip.

The sketch becomes inverted (the first vertex becomes the last, marked in red).

5. When finished modifying the line, right-click over any part of the sketch and click Finish Sketch.





The first and last vertices of the line are reversed.

Placing points along a line

The Divide command creates points at a given interval along a line. For instance, you could use Divide to place utility poles along a primary.

You can create a specific number of points that are evenly spaced or you can create points at a distance interval you choose.

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the line you want to divide.
- 3. Click the Target layer dropdown arrow and click the point layer containing the type of points you want to place along the line.
- Click Editor and click Divide. ►



5. Click the first option and type a number to place a specific number of points evenly along the line.

Or click the second option and type a number to place the points at a specific interval in map units.

If the data has M values, you can click the third option and type a number to place the points at a specific interval of measure units

6. Click OK.

The line is divided by points placed along the line as specified.





Reshaping a line or polygon

The Reshape Feature task lets you reshape a line or polygon by constructing a sketch over the feature. The feature takes the shape of the sketch from the first place the sketch intersects the feature to the last.

When you reshape a polygon, if both endpoints of the sketch are within the polygon, the shape is added to the feature.



Тір

Other ways to construct a sketch

You can also use the Distance– Distance tool, the Arc tool, the Trace tool, or the Intersection tool to create a sketch. For more information, see Chapter 3, 'Creating new features'.

- 1. Click the Task dropdown arrow and click Reshape Feature.
- 2. Click the Edit tool.
- 3. Click the feature you want to reshape.
- Click the tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Sketch tool.
- Create a line according to the way you want the feature reshaped.
- Right-click anywhere on the map and click Finish Sketch. ►



Finish Part

6

If the endpoints are outside the polygon, the feature is cut away.



When you reshape a line, both endpoints of the sketch must be on the same side of the line. The line takes the shape of the sketch you draw.



The feature is reshaped.



The feature is reshaped according to the sketch you constructed.

Adding and deleting sketch vertices

You can easily add vertices to or delete vertices from a sketch using the Insert Vertex and Delete Vertex commands on the Sketch context menu. By adding or deleting vertices, you can reshape a feature when you obtain new or better geographic data.

Suppose you have an existing layer with curb lines and receive an aerial photo that shows that the lines in the layer are incorrectly shaped. Using the aerial **>**

Тір

Adding vertices from the last vertex

You can add vertices to a feature beginning from the last vertex of the sketch. Click the Edit tool and double-click the feature to see its sketch. Then, click the Sketch tool to begin digitizing vertices.

Adding a vertex to a sketch

- 1. Click the Task dropdown arrow and click Modify Feature.
- Click the Edit tool and click the line or polygon to which you want to add a vertex.
- Move the pointer to where you want the vertex inserted and right-click.
- 4. Click Insert Vertex.

A vertex is added to the sketch.

5. When finished modifying the line, right-click over any part of the sketch and click Finish Sketch.



photo as a backdrop, you can add vertices to the curb lines as needed, then reshape the feature to match the photo by moving the vertices to new locations. You can also reshape the curb line features by deleting existing vertices from their sketches.

See Also

To learn how to move a vertex, see 'Moving a vertex in a sketch' in this chapter.

Deleting a vertex from a sketch

- 1. Click the Task dropdown arrow and click Modify Feature.
- 2. Click the Edit tool.
- Click the line or polygon from which you want to delete a vertex.
- 4. Position the pointer over the vertex you want to delete.

The pointer will change appearance to have four small arrows surrounding a circle.

5. Right-click and click Delete Vertex.

The vertex is deleted from the sketch.

6. Right-click over any part of the sketch and click Finish Sketch.

The feature is reshaped.



The vertex is deleted, and the feature is reshaped.

Moving a vertex in a sketch

Moving a vertex in a sketch offers another way to modify or reshape a feature.

ArcMap lets you move a vertex in several ways: by dragging it, by specifying new x,y coordinates, or by moving it relative to its current location.

You might choose to drag a vertex to a new location when you want to reshape a feature according to additional data you receive. For instance, you can drag a vertex to reshape a road feature in an existing layer in order to match it to the feature in a more accurate aerial photo.

You might move a vertex by specifying new x,y locations when you obtain additional data that provides the exact coordinate location at which the vertex should be. For example, suppose a parcel is resurveyed and a new global positioning system (GPS) point is obtained for the parcel corner. You can move the corner of the parcel to match the location found by the GPS by specifying the equivalent location in x,y coordinates. ►

Dragging a vertex

- 1. Click the Task dropdown arrow and click Modify Feature.
- 2. Click the Edit tool and click the line or polygon whose vertex you want to move.
- 3. Position the pointer over the vertex you want to move.

The pointer will change appearance to have four small arrows surrounding a circle.

- 4. Click and drag the vertex to the desired location.
- 5. Right-click over any part of the sketch and click Finish Sketch.

The feature is reshaped.



The vertex is moved, and the feature is reshaped.

The sketch context menu also provides a way to move a vertex relative to its current location. Suppose an electrical pole must be moved 15 feet east and 5 feet north of its current location due to a road widening. Before moving the pole, you must reshape its electrical line so that the pole can connect to the line in the new location; you can do this by moving the vertex of the electrical line on which the pole sits using relative (delta) x,y coordinates.

The original location of the vertex as the origin (0,0) is used, and the vertex is moved to the new location using the map unit coordinates you specify [(15,5) in this example]. After the vertex is moved and the electrical line is reshaped, you can snap the pole feature to the vertex in its new location.

Тір

Maintaining a feature's shape when moving a vertex

You can also move a vertex without changing the shape of the feature. For more information, see 'Stretching a feature's geometry proportionately' in this chapter.

Moving a vertex by specifying x,y coordinates

- Click the Current Task dropdown arrow and click Modify Feature.
- Click the Edit tool and click the line or polygon whose vertex you want to move.
- Position the pointer over the vertex you want to move until the pointer changes.
- 4. Right-click and click Move To.
- 5. Type the x,y coordinates where you want to move the vertex.

The vertex is moved. ►



Undoing a vertex move

If you move a vertex and don't want it to stay in the new location, click the Undo button on the ArcMap Standard toolbar. The vertex returns to its last position. Click the Redo button if you want to move the vertex back to the new location. Right-click over any part of the sketch and click Finish Sketch.

The feature is reshaped.

Snap To Feature	•	
Direction	Ctrl+A	
Deflection	Ctrl+F	
Length	Ctrl+L	
Change Length		
Absolute X, Y	F6	
Delta X, Y	Ctrl+D	
Direction/Length	Ctrl+G	
Parallel	Ctrl+P	
Perpendicular	Ctrl+E	
Segment Deflection.	F7	
Replace Sketch		
Tangent Curve	Ctrl+T	
Streaming	F8	
Delete Sketch Ctr	1+Delete	
Finish Sketch	F2 -	- 6
Square and Finish		
Finish Part		



Moving a vertex relative to its current location

- 1. Click the Task dropdown arrow and click Modify Feature.
- Click the Edit tool and click the line or polygon whose vertex you want to move.
- Position the pointer over the vertex you want to move until the pointer changes.
- 4. Right-click and click Move.
- Type the delta x,y coordinates where you want to move the vertex. ►



The vertex is moved.

 Right-click over any part of the sketch and click Finish Sketch.

The feature is reshaped.



Changing the properties of a sketch

When creating a new feature or modifying an existing one, you can easily change the properties of the sketch shape using the Sketch Properties dialog box.

Using the Sketch Properties dialog box, you can remove parts from a multipart feature, insert and delete vertices, and alter the m- and z-values of vertices.

Suppose you are editing a layer that contains river features whose shapes contain too many vertices. You could use the Sketch Properties dialog box to select unwanted vertices and delete them.

Tip

How do I know which vertices I have selected?

As you select vertices in the dialog box, they change color on the map.

Deleting multiple vertices from a feature

- 1. Click the Edit tool and select the feature whose shape you want to modify.
- Click the Task dropdown arrow and click Modify Feature to place the shape of the feature in the edit sketch.
- 3. Right-click the sketch and click Properties.
- Select the vertices that you want to remove by holding down the Shift key and clicking vertices from the table. Use the Shift and Ctrl keys to select more than one vertex.
- Click the Delete key or rightclick over the selected vertices and click Delete.

The selected vertices are deleted from the sketch.

6. Click Finish Sketch.







Modifying the x,y coordinates

If you don't want the added point to be exactly at the midpoint between two vertices, click the x or y column and type in a new coordinate for the point.

Тір

Insert vertices after a selected vertex

You can insert vertices either before or after the vertex that you right-click on top of.

Inserting a vertex at the midpoint of a segment

- Right-click over a segment of the edit sketch and click Properties.
- 2. Select the vertex before which you wish to insert a new vertex.
- 3. Right-click the selected vertex and click Insert Before.



	ch Proj	berties			×
Part		×	Y		
0	46	484918,4688	3767091.0		
	47	484914.6250	3767096.5		
	48	484911.2188	3767101.5		
	49	484907.9063	3767106.7		
	50	484904.6875	3767111.7		
	51	484901.4688	3767117.2		
	52	484960.6563	3767156.5		
	53	484995.2500	3767179.2		
	54	485020.2188	3767140.0		
	55	485114.0938	3767200.5		
	56	485124.6563	3767193.5	_	
	57	485163.3750	3767167.0	1	
				Insert Berore	
					iish Sketch
				Zoom To	
				Delete	
	2	9			
					3
2	01 01	co co	- 71 - 4	0.0000	
2.	-91.01	62 66	5.7124	0.0000	
2 -	-91.01 -89.60	62 66 05 63	5. 71 24 7.9351	0.0000 0.0000	

Vertex inserted at midpoint

How do I know which parts I have selected?

When you select a part from the Sketch Properties dialog box, the segments for that part will appear thicker.

Removing a part from a multipart feature

- Click the Edit tool and select the feature you want to remove a part from.
- Click the Task dropdown arrow and click Modify Feature to place the multipart shape in the edit sketch.
- 3. Right-click the sketch and click Properties.
- 4. Right-click the part that you want to remove and press the delete key or right-click and click Delete.
- 5. Click Finish Sketch.



Part		X	Y	^
L	0	484502.2500	3769064.5	
		β4520.7500	3769064.2	
200	om io	84538.6875	3769064.2	
De	ete	84556.8125	3769064.2	
	4	484575.0625	3769064.2	
	5	484593.3438	3769064.0	
	6	484593.2500	3769012.5	-
	7	484593.2500	3769000.2	
	8	484593.2500	3768988.0	
	9	484593.3750	3768936.5	
	10	484575.2188	3768936.2	
	11	484556.6250	3768936.2	
	1.10	404500 4400	07/000/ 0	





Using the Current Z control

When you add points to the edit sketch, you can control the z-value for each vertex using the Current Z tool.

To use the Current Z tool, you must first add it to a toolbar from the Commands tab of the Customize dialog box. The Current Z tool is listed in the Editor category.

Editing z- and m-values of a feature

- Click the Edit tool and select the feature whose z- or mvalues you wish to edit.
- 2. Click the Task dropdown arrow and click Modify Feature.
- 3. Right-click on top of the sketch and click Properties.
- 4. Select the vertex you wish to modify.
- 5. Click the z or m field in the table and type a new value.
- 6. Click Finish Sketch.



	X	Y	M	▲
0	-111.9979	38.1178	0.0000	
1	-111.9977	38.1179	24.8646	
2	-111.9976	38.1180	39.2018	
3	-111.9970	38.1186	123.0869	
4	-111.9964	38.1190	193.7935	
5	-111.9949	38.1193	338.3745	
6	-111.9946	38.1194	372.6918	
7	-111.9943	38.1197	406.0593	
8	-111.9942	38.1203	463.9155	
9	-111.9942	38.1204	478.2564	
1	0 -111.9938	38.1206	518.2978	
1	1 -111.9928	38.1209	621.5128	-
	0 111.0000	00.1010	200.2510	
			[Finish Sketch
	_			

Scaling features

You can scale a feature—make the entire feature larger or smaller—using the Scale tool. The feature is scaled based on the location of the selection anchor—the small x located in the center of selected features.

You might use the Scale tool when working with data from a new source in which the scale is slightly different—for example, subdivision parcels from a surveyor. You can use the Scale tool to scale parcels so that they fit together properly.

To use the Scale tool, you must first add it to a toolbar from the Commands tab of the Customize dialog box. The Scale tool is available from the Editor category. For more information on adding a tool to a toolbar, see *Exploring ArcObjects* or *Using ArcMap*.

Тір

Moving the selection anchor

To move the selection anchor of a feature you want to scale, hold the scaling pointer over the anchor until the icon changes. Then, click and drag the anchor to a new location.

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the feature you want to scale.
- 3. Click the Scale tool.
- 4. Move the selection anchor if necessary.
- Click and drag the pointer over the feature to scale it as desired. ►







Scaling more than one feature

You can scale more than one feature at the same time. Simply select all the desired features and move the selection anchor to the desired location before using the Scale tool.

Тір

Undoing scaling

To return a feature to its original size after scaling it, click the Undo button on the ArcMap Standard toolbar.

Тір

Scale factor

You can scale features using a scale factor instead of dragging the mouse. Press the F key to set the scale factor.

Тір

Scaling with snapping

Press the S key to add an auxiliary selection anchor to the feature that you are scaling. The auxiliary selection anchor can be dragged anywhere on the feature and will snap to the features specified in the current snapping environment. Release the mouse button when you're finished scaling the feature.

The feature is scaled.



The feature is scaled.

Clipping features

You can easily clip features that touch or are within a buffered distance of selected features.

Suppose that you want to model the effect of a proposed road-widening project on the lots of a subdivision block. You can do this using the Clip command. Select the road centerline where the proposed widening is to occur, then click Clip from the Editor menu. Type the length measurement of the widening and click the option to Discard the area that intersects to clip the subdivision lots.

When using the Discard the area that intersects option, the Clip command will buffer the selected road feature and then clip all portions of editable features that are within the buffered region. Using the Preserve the area that intersects option, all features that touch the buffered feature will be deleted.

- 1. Select the feature you want to use to clip features.
- 2. Click Editor and click Clip.
- Type a buffer value. You can leave the value as 0 if you are using a polygon feature to clip with.
- 4. Click the type of clip operation you wish to use.
- 5. Click OK to clip the feature.







Stretching geometry proportionately

Sometimes you want to stretch a feature without changing its geometry (shape). Suppose you want to change the position of a feature in relation to other features by moving a vertex. For example, perhaps the data you have for an electric transmission system is not as accurate as you would like. However, you have other layers containing accurate surveyed points that coincide with some of the transmission towers, power generating plants, and substations. By moving the vertices of the transmission lines, you can adjust the positions of the lines to the known surveyed positions of the features in the more accurate layer. You can change the positions of these vertices without changing the general shape of the transmission lines by stretching the features proportionately. When you stretch a feature proportionately, the proportions of the feature's segments are maintained, thereby maintaining the general shape of the feature. This is different from moving a vertex to reshape a feature.

The graphics below show the difference between moving a vertex to reshape a feature and moving a vertex while maintaining the shape of the feature. The three graphics on the top show how a feature is modified when its upper-right vertex is moved with proportionate stretching turned on. The three graphics on the bottom show how the same feature is reshaped when its upperright vertex is moved with proportionate stretching turned off.

Proportionate stretching on



Proportionate stretching off











Stretching a feature's geometry proportionately

Within the Editing Options menu, you can choose to stretch the geometry of features proportionately when moving vertices. When you drag a vertex to a new location with this option turned on, the proportions of the feature's segments are maintained, thereby maintaining the general shape of the feature.

You might want to stretch features proportionately when merging data from different data sources—for example, utility lines from one source and subdivision parcels from another.

Suppose the data for the subdivision parcels is very accurate, but the data for the utility lines is not as accurate. While the shapes of the utility lines are generally correct, you want to change the position of one line relative to the parcels by moving a vertex. By stretching the utility line feature proportionately, you can make it fit accurately with the parcels without losing the general shape of the line. ►

- 1. Click the Task dropdown arrow and click Modify Feature.
- Click the Edit tool and click the feature you want to stretch.
- 3. Click Editor and click Options.
- 4. Click the General tab.
- 5. Check the check box to stretch the feature proportionately.

Uncheck the check box if you want to reshape the feature without maintaining proportionate geometry.

6. Click OK. ►



	Editing Options	? ×
4—	General Topology Versioning Units Edit Tasks Edit Cache	
_	Display measurements using decimal places	
	Snapping tolerance: 7 pixels	
_	Sticky move tolerance: 0 pixels	
5	Stretch geometry proportionately when moving a vertex Show snap tips. Stream Mode	
	Stream tolerance: 0 map units Group 50 points together when streaming	
6		
	OK Cancel	Apply

You can turn on proportionate stretching by checking a box on the General tab of the Editing Options dialog box. Uncheck the box if you simply want to reshape a feature without maintaining proportionate geometry.

See Also

To see how stretching a feature proportionately looks in comparison to stretching a feature to reshape it, see 'Stretching geometry proportionately' in this chapter.

- Position the pointer over the vertex you want to move until the pointer changes.
- 8. Drag the vertex to the desired location.
- 9. Right-click over any part of the sketch and click Finish Sketch.

The feature is stretched proportionately.







The feature is stretched proportionately.

Spatial adjustment

IN THIS CHAPTER

- About spatial adjustment
- The Spatial Adjustment toolbar
- About the transformation process
- Creating displacement and identity links
- Using the Limited Adjustment Area tools
- Modifying the link and limited adjustment area symbols
- Selecting, modifying, and deleting links
- The Link Table and link files
- Previewing and performing the adjustment
- Attribute Transfer Mapping and tools

The Spatial Adjustment toolbar lets you transform, rubber sheet, and edgematch features in your map. It works within ArcMap Editor to provide a highly productive adjustment environment. Spatial adjustment supports a variety of adjustment methods and will adjust all editable data sources.

Spatial adjustment commands and tools are located on an additional editing toolbar called the Spatial Adjustment toolbar. These tools and commands allow you to define a spatial adjustment. Since spatial adjustment operates within an Edit session, you can leverage existing editing functionality, such as snapping, to enhance your adjustments.

Along with the ability to spatially adjust your data, the Spatial Adjustment toolbar also provides a way for you to transfer the attributes from one feature to another. This tool is called the Attribute Transfer tool and relies on matching common fields between two layers. Together, the adjustment and attribute transfer functions available in the Spatial Adjustment tool allow you to improve the quality of your data.

About spatial adjustments

The following section briefly describes the spatial adjustment methods and related concepts.

Transformations

Transformations convert data from one coordinate system to another. They are often used to convert data from digitizer or scanner units to real-world coordinates. Transformations can also be used to shift your data within a coordinate system, such as converting feet to meters.

The transformation functions are based on comparing the coordinates of source and destination points, also called control points, in special graphical elements called displacement links. You may create these links interactively, pointing at known source and destination locations, or by loading a link text file or control points file.

By default, ArcMap supports three types of transformations: affine, similarity, and projective.



An *affine* transformation can differentially scale, skew, rotate, and translate the data. The graphic below illustrates the four possible changes:



The affine transformation function is:

 $\begin{aligned} \mathbf{x}' = \mathbf{A}\mathbf{x} + \mathbf{B}\mathbf{y} + \mathbf{C} \\ \mathbf{y}' = \mathbf{D}\mathbf{x} + \mathbf{E}\mathbf{y} + \mathbf{F} \end{aligned}$

where x and y are coordinates of the input layer and x' and y' are the transformed coordinates. A, B, C, D, E, and F are determined by comparing the location of source and destination control points. They scale, skew, rotate, and translate the layer coordinates.

The affine transformation requires a minimum of three displacement links.
The *similarity* transformation scales, rotates, and translates the data. It will not independently scale the axes, nor will it introduce any skew. It maintains the aspect ratio of the features transformed.

The similarity transform function is:

$$x' = Ax + By + Cy' = -Bx + Ay + F$$

where:

 $A = s \cdot \cos t$ $B = s \cdot \sin t$

C = translation in x direction

F = translation in y direction

and:

s = scale change (same in x and y directions)

t = rotation angle, measured counterclockwise from the x-axis

A similarity transformation requires a minimum of two displacement links.

The *projective* transformation is based on a more complex formula that requires a minimum of four displacement links:

x' = (Ax + By + C) / (Gx + Hy + 1)y' = (Dx + Ey + F) / (Gx + Hy + 1)

This method is used to transform data captured directly from aerial photography. For more information, please refer to one of the photogrammetric texts listed in 'References' at the end of this section.

Understanding residual and root mean square (RMS)

The transformation parameters are a best fit between the source and destination control points. If you use the transformation parameters to transform the actual source control points, the transformed output locations won't match the true output control point locations. This is known as the residual error; it is a measure of the fit between the true locations and the transformed locations of the output control points. This error is generated for each displacement link.

An RMS error is calculated for each transformation performed. It indicates how good the derived transformation is. The following example illustrates the relative location of four destination control points and the transformed source control points:



The RMS error measures the errors between the destination control points and the transformed locations of the source control points.

RMS error =
$$\sqrt{\frac{e_1^2 + e_2^2 + e_3^2 + \dots + e_n^2}{n}}$$

The transformation is derived using least squares, so more links can be given than are necessary.

Rubber sheeting

Geometric distortions commonly occur in source maps. They may be introduced by imperfect registration in map compilation, lack of geodetic control in source data, or a variety of other causes. Rubber sheeting corrects flaws through the geometric adjustment of coordinates.



The source layer—drawn with solid lines—is adjusted to the more accurate target layer.

During rubber sheeting, the surface is literally stretched, moving features using a piecewise transformation that preserves straight lines. Similar to transformations, displacement links are used in rubber sheeting to determine where features are moved.

Conflation applications use rubber sheeting to align layers in preparation for transferring attributes.

Edgematching

The edgematching process aligns features along the edge of one layer to features of an adjoining layer. The layer with the leastaccurate features is adjusted, and the other adjoining layer is used as the control.







Attribute transfer

Attribute transfer is typically used to copy attributes from a less accurate layer to a more accurate one. For example, it can be used to transfer the names of hydrological features from a previously digitized and highly generalized 1:500,000-scale map to a more detailed 1:24,000-scale map.

In ArcMap, you can specify what attributes to transfer between layers, then interactively choose the source and target features.

References

Maling, D.H. *Coordinate Systems and Map Projections*. George Philip, 1973.

Maling, D.H. "Coordinate systems and map projections for GIS." *Geographical Information Systems: Principles and Applications*, Maguire, D.J., M.F. Goodchild, and D.W. Rhind (eds.) vol. 1, pp. 135–146. Longman Group UK Ltd., 1991.

Moffitt, F.H., and E.M. Mikhail. *Photogrammetry*. Third edition. Harper & Row, Inc., 1980.

Pettofrezzo, A.J. *Matrices and Transformations*. Dover Publications, Inc., 1966.

Slama, C.C., C. Theurer, and S.W. Henriksen (eds.). *Manual of Photogrammetry*. Fourth edition. Chapter XIV, pp. 729–731. ASPRS, 1980.

The Spatial Adjustment toolbar



An overview of the spatial adjustment process

The following is a general overview of how to use ArcMap, the Editor toolbar, and the Spatial Adjustment toolbar to adjust your data. Each of the following steps is outlined in detail in this chapter or other chapters in this book.

- 1. Start ArcMap.
- 2. Create a new map or open an existing one.



3. Add the data you want to edit to your map.



If there are no existing layers for the feature classes you want to edit, you can create them using ArcCatalog. For more information on creating a feature layer, see *Using ArcCatalog*.

4. Add the Editor toolbar to ArcMap.



5. Add the Spatial Adjustment toolbar to ArcMap.

Toolbars	✓ Main Menu
	✓ Standard
	✓ Tools
	✓ Draw
	✓ Editor
	🖌 Spatial Adjustment

6. Choose Start Editing from the Editor menu.

Edit	or 🔻
	Start Editing
	Stop Editing
	Save Edits
	Move
	Split
/	Divide
٩,	Buffer
ŀ./	Copy Parallel
	Merge
	Union
	Intersect
	Clip
8	Integrate
1.	Validate Selection
	Snapping
	Options

7. Click Spatial Adjustment, point to Adjustment Methods, and click one of the Transformation methods to choose a spatial adjustment method.



8. Click the Displacement Link tools to create displacement links.



9. Perform the adjustment.



10. Choose Stop Editing from the Editor menu and click Yes when prompted to save your edits.

Edit	or 🔻
	Start Editing
	Stop Editing
	Save Edits
	Move
	Split
/	Divide,
٩,	Buffer
ŀij	Copy Parallel
	Merge
	Union
	Intersect
	Clip
8	Integrate
28	Validate Selection
	Snapping
	Options

There is no need to save the map—all edits made to the database will automatically be reflected the next time you open the map.

Adding the Spatial Adjustment toolbar

Before adjusting geographic feature data within ArcMap, you must first add the Spatial Adjustment toolbar.

Тір

Adding the Spatial Adjustment toolbar using the Customize dialog box

Click the Tools menu and click Customize. In the Customize dialog box, click the Toolbars tab and check Spatial Adjustment.

- 1. Start ArcMap.
- Click the View menu, point to Toolbars, and click Spatial Adjustment to display the Spatial Adjustment toolbar.
- Click the toolbar's title bar and drag it to the top of the ArcMap application window.

<u>T</u> oolbars >	~	Main Menu	
	~	Standard	
	~	Tools	
	~	Draw	
	~	Editor	
	~	Spatial Adjustment 🛛 —	-2



Choosing the input data for adjustment

The first step in the spatial adjustment process is to choose the input data for the adjustment. You have the option to adjust selected features or all the features in the layer. These settings are available in the Choose Input for Adjustment dialog box.

Tip

All selection methods are supported

The Spatial Adjustment tool will honor selections performed interactively or by an attribute query. Click the Spatial Adjustment menu and click Set Adjust Data.

The Choose Input For Adjustment dialog box appears.

2. Choose whether to adjust selected features in a layer or all features in a layer.

Spal	tial Adjustment 💌			
	<u>S</u> et Adjust Data	_	-	ľ
	Adjustment Methods	►		
4	<u>A</u> djust			
	Preview Window			
	Links	►		
ATT HAP	Attribute <u>T</u> ransfer Mapping			
	Options			



Choosing a transformation method

The Spatial Adjustment tool supports three types of transformation methods: affine, projective, and similarity. Choose a transformation method from the Adjustment Methods submenu.

See Also

For more information on the spatial adjustment methods, see the introductory material with this chapter. Click the Spatial Adjustment menu, point to Adjustment Methods, and click a Transformation method.



Choosing a rubber sheet method

The Spatial Adjustment tool supports two types of rubber sheet methods: Natural Neighbor and Linear. Choose Rubbersheet from the Adjustment Methods submenu. Once you have chosen Rubbersheet, you may specify a rubber sheet method in the Adjustment Properties dialog box. The Natural Neighbor method is the default.

- Click the Spatial Adjustment menu, point to Adjustment Methods, and click Rubbersheet.
- 2. Click the Spatial Adjustment menu and click Options.

The Adjustment Properties dialog box appears.

- 3. Click the Adjustment method dropdown arrow and choose Rubbersheet.
- 4. Click the Adjustment method Options button.

The Rubbersheet properties dialog box will appear.

- 5. Click the Natural Neighbor or Linear method and click OK.
- Click OK to dismiss the Adjustment Properties dialog box.







Choosing an edge snap method

The Spatial Adjustment tool supports two types of Edge Snap methods: Smooth and Line. Choose Edge Snap from the Adjustment methods submenu. Once you have chosen Edge Snap, you may specify an edge snap method in the Adjustment Properties dialog box.

When using the Smooth edge snap method, vertices at the link source point are moved to the destination point. The remaining vertices are also moved to give an overall smoothing effect.

When using the Line edge snap method, only the vertices at the link source point are moved to the destination point. The remaining vertices on the feature remain unchanged.

The Smooth method is the default.

- Click the Spatial Adjustment menu, point to Adjustment Methods, and click Edge Snap.
- 2. Click the Spatial Adjustment menu and click Options.

The Adjustment Properties dialog box appears.

- Click the Adjustment method dropdown arrow and click Edge Snap.
- 4. Click the Adjustment method Options button.

The Edge Snap dialog box will appear.

- 5. Click the Smooth or Line method.
- Check the box if you want to adjust to the midpoint of the links, then click OK.
- 7. Click OK to close the Adjustment Properties dialog box.



Setting the edge snap properties

The Edge Snap adjustment method requires more property settings than other methods. These property settings are located in the Edge Match tab of the Adjustment Properties dialog box.

Choose the source and target layers. The source layer's features will be edgematched to the target layer's features. If you choose to adjust to the midpoints of the links, features from both layers will be adjusted.

You have the option to specify one link per destination point and to prevent duplicate links. These settings can help you avoid creating unnecessary links. The Spatial Adjustment tool supports the ability to use attributes to enhance the edgematching process. Based on the Attribute Transfer Mapping dialog box, you have the option to match fields between the source and target lavers and use common attributes to define the edgematch. This function can help ensure the accuracy of the edgematch.

1. Click the Spatial Adjustment menu and click Options.

The Adjustment Properties dialog box appears.

- 2. Click the Edge Match tab.
- Click the Source Layer dropdown arrow and choose a source layer.
- 4. Click the Target Layer dropdown arrow and choose a target layer.
- 5. Check Use Attributes if you want to use attributes to enhance the edgematch.
- If you only want one link for each destination point, check the appropriate box.
- If you want to prevent duplicate links, check the appropriate box.
- 8. Click the Attributes button if you chose to use attributes.

The Edgematch Attributes dialog box appears.

- 9. Match the source and target layer fields.
- 10. Click Add.
- 11. Click OK when finished matching fields.
- 12. Click OK to close the Adjustment Properties dialog box.



Creating displacement links

Before you adjust your data, you must create displacement links to define the source and destination coordinates for the adjustment. Links are represented as arrows with the arrowhead pointing toward the destination location. Links can be created manually or loaded by means of a link file.

Displacement links are represented as graphic elements in the map. You can change the symbol, size, and color of displacement links.

Тір

Use snapping to ensure accurate link placement

Use the Snapping Environment tool to set the snapping agents and features. Snapping will ensure that links are created at the vertices, edges, or endpoints of features.

- Click the New Displacement link tool on the Spatial Adjustment toolbar.
- Position the cursor over the source location and click once to start adding a link.
- Position the cursor over the destination location and click once to finish adding the link.

A displacement link now connects the source location to the destination location.







Creating multiple displacement links

You can create multiple displacement links using the Multi Displacement Links tool. The Multi Displacement Links tool is useful for areas that require many links, such as curve features. This tool can also help you save time by allowing you to create many links at once.

Тір

Snap to edges when using the Multi Displacement Links tool

It is best to snap to the edges of features when creating multiple links.

- Click the Multi Displacement Links tool on the Spatial Adjustment toolbar.
- Position the cursor over the source feature and click once.
- 3. Position the cursor over the target feature and click once.

The Number of links dialog box will appear. This dialog box allows you to specify how many links to create.



4. Enter a Number of Links value and press Enter. The default is 10.

> Based on the value you entered, the multiple links are created, and now connect the source feature to the target feature.





Creating identity links

Identity links can be used to hold features in place at specified locations. Identity links can serve as anchors because they prevent the movement of features during an adjustment.

Identity links are only available when using the Rubbersheet adjustment method. Like displacement links, identity links are represented as graphic elements in the map.

- Click the New Identity Link tool on the Spatial Adjustment toolbar.
- 2. Position the cursor over the source location and click once.

Add identity links to locations to prevent the movement of features during an adjustment. 

Using the Limited Adjustment Area tools

You can limit the scope of an adjustment area by using the Limited Adjustment Area tool. This tool is only available for the Rubbersheet adjustment method.

This tool allows you to draw a polygon shape around the features you wish to adjust. Any features that are outside this polygon area will not be affected by the adjustment, regardless of whether or not they are selected. The Limited Adjustment Area tool provides similar feature anchoring as identity links. However, in cases where you must add many identity links, using the Limited Adjustment Area tool may help you save time.

Creating a limited adjustment area

- Click the New Limited Adjustment Area tool on the Spatial Adjustment toolbar.
- 2. Using the cursor on the map, draw a polygon around the area you wish to rubber sheet. Double-click to complete the polygon.

Features outside of this polygon will not be affected during the adjustment.

3. Click the Clear Limited Adjustment Area tool on the Spatial Adjustment toolbar to remove the limited adjustment area polygon.





Using the Edge Match tool

The Edge Match tool allows you to create multiple displacement links that connect the edges of two adjacent layers. Once you have set the appropriate snapping agents and tolerance, use the tool to drag a box around the features you wish to edgematch. This will create links between the closest source and target features by default.

You can also use additional properties to enhance the link creation process, such as restricting one link per destination point and preventing duplicate links.

These properties, combined with the proper snapping settings, can help ensure an accurate edgematch.

Тір

Use attributes to refine the edgematch

The Use Attributes option located in the Edge Match properties dialog box can assist in the creation of links by ensuring they connect to features that share common attribute values.

- Click the Edge Match tool on the Spatial Adjustment toolbar.
- 2. Drag a box around the features you want to edgematch.

Links will now connect the edges of the source layer to the edges of the target layer.



Modifying the link and limited adjustment area symbols

You can customize the symbology of the displacement links, identity links, and limited adjustment area. These settings are in the Adjustment Properties dialog box. When you click the Displacement Link Symbol, Identity Link Symbol, or Limited Adjustment Area Symbol buttons, the Symbol Selector dialog box appears. Use this window to choose a new style, size, and color for the links and limited adjustment area. The Symbol Selector will present options to modify the symbols based on the graphical element's geometry type.

1. Click the Spatial Adjustment menu and click Options.

The Adjustment Properties dialog box appears.

2. Click the Displacement Link Symbol, Identity Link Symbol, or Limited Adjustment Area Symbol button.

The Symbol Selector dialog box appears.

- Choose a different symbol, change the symbol size, and/ or specify a new symbol color, then click OK.
- 4. Click OK to close the Adjustment Properties dialog box.

Spa	tial Adjustment 💌		
<u>1</u>	Set Adjust Data Adjustment Methods Adjust	•	
	Preview Window		
	Links	►	
RTT HRP	Attribute Transfer Mapping		
	Options	٦	-1

Adjustment Properties	
General Edge Match	
Rubbersheetptions	
Displacement Link Symbol	6
Identity Link Symbol	
Limited Adjustment Area Symbol	
	4
OK Cancel Apply	



Selecting links

Displacement and identity links are selected with the Select Elements tool located on the Spatial Adjustment toolbar.

Links must be selected prior to modifying or deleting a link.

Тір

Use the Select Elements tool on the ArcMap standard toolbar

You can also select links by using the Select Elements tool.

Selecting a link

- 1. Click the Select Elements tool on the Spatial Adjustment toolbar.
- 2. Position the cursor over the link you want to select and click once.

Selection grips will appear at the endpoints of the link.







Тір

Use the Shift key to select more than one link at a time

You can select multiple links by holding down the Shift key while clicking links with the Select Elements tool.

Тір

Use the Select All Elements command

You can select all the links in the map by using the Select All Elements command. Click the Edit menu and click Select All Elements.

Selecting multiple links

- 1. Click the Select Elements tool on the Spatial Adjustment toolbar.
- 2. Drag a box around the links you want to select.

Selection grips will appear at the endpoints of the links.







Modifying displacement links

Displacement links can be modified by using the Modify Link tool. They must be selected prior to modifying them. Links can be modified both inside or outside of an edit session. You can modify links at their source or destination location or move the entire link to a new location.

Тір

Use the Select Elements tool to modify identity links You can modify identity links with

the Select Elements tool. Simply click an identity link and drag it to a new location.

- 1. Click the Select Elements tool on the Spatial Adjustment toolbar.
- 2. Position the cursor over the link you want to modify and click once.

Selection grips will appear at the endpoints of the link. ►







 Click the Modify link tool on the Spatial Adjustment toolbar.



4. Position the cursor over the source or destination point of the link.

The link cursor changes to an arrow cursor.

5. Move the endpoint of the link to the desired location.





Deleting displacement links

Displacement links can be deleted by using the Delete command or pressing the Delete key. Links must first be selected in order to delete them. Links can be deleted both inside or outside of an edit session.

Tip

Use the Delete command to remove links

Click the Edit menu and click Delete to remove links.

Tip

Delete links with the Link Table

You can also delete links with the Link Table. Right-click a link record to open the context menu and click Delete link(s) to open the link table; see 'Viewing the Link Table' later in this chapter.

Deleting a link

- 1. Click the Select Elements tool on the Spatial Adjustment toolbar.
- 2. Position the cursor over the link you want to delete and click once.

Selection grips will appear at the endpoints of the link.

3. Press the Delete key.







Deleting multiple links

- 1. Click the Select Elements tool on the Spatial Adjustment toolbar.
- 2. Drag a box around the links you want to delete.

You can also select multiple links by holding down the Shift key while selecting links.

3. Press the Delete key.







Viewing the Link Table

The Link Table displays displacement links in a tabular format. This table displays the source and destination coordinates of the links, the link IDs, and the residual error of the adjustment (residual errors will only be displayed for Transformation adjustments).

You can select links by clicking a row in the table. Coordinate values can be edited for the selected links. You can select multiple links by holding down Shift while selecting rows. When a link is selected, rightclick to open the Link Table context menu. This menu supports commands to flash links, pan and zoom to links, and delete links.

Тір

Open the Link Table from the toolbar

You can also open the Link Table by clicking the View Link Table button (shown below), located on the Spatial Adjustment toolbar. Click the Spatial Adjustment menu, point to Links, and click View Link Table.

The Link Table dialog box appears.

- 2. Click a row in the link table to highlight a link.
- 3. With a link record highlighted, you can edit the coordinates of the link or delete the link by clicking Delete Link.
- 4. Right-click the highlighted link to access the Link Table context menu. You can pan to the link, zoom to the link, select the link, and delete the link with the commands offered in this menu.
- 5. When finished working with the Link Table, click Close to close the window.



))間 Lir	nk Table							? ×
1D 1 2 3 4 5 6 7	X Source 5566253.814352 5566362.873713 556630.356851 5566330.103870 5566329.873422 5566293.427050 5566253.677001	Y Source 4948173,918503 4948175,004338 4948103,816009 4948103,333714 4948059,952600 4948037,456249 4948037,525141	X Destination 556556 392962 5566657 250000 Flash link Zoom to link Pan to link Pan to source po Pan to destinatio	Y Destinat 4948137.9 4948199.1 4948199.1	iion 330066 150000 141018 546575 330755 149999 200000	Error 0.014434 0.158141 0.059028 0.384748 0.123050 0.023050 0.079015 0.023780	Clo	se
RMS	Error: 0.168473		Delete link(s)					11.
			Select link(s)				5	

Opening a link file

Link files are text files that contain source and destination coordinates that define an adjustment. The Spatial Adjustment tool supports tabdelimited link files that contain either four or five columns. A four-column link file consists of two pairs of source and destination coordinate values. A five-column link file consists of an ID column (string or numeric) that precedes two pairs of source and destination coordinate values.

When you open a link file, the Spatial Adjustment tool automatically creates displacement links in the map based on the source and destination coordinate values in the file. Link files can help you save time by automating the link creation process. Click the Spatial Adjustment menu, point to Links, and click Open Links File.

The Open dialog box appears.

- Click the Look in dropdown arrow and navigate to the folder where the link file resides.
- 3. Double-click the link file to load it.

Displacement links will be automatically created in the map.

Set Adjust	Data								
Adjustmen	Methods	•							
Adjust									
Preview W	ndow								
Links		►		Open Links File			1)	
Attribute T	ansfer Mapp	ing		Save Links File					
Options			==	View Link Table					
				Open Control Points	; File				
				View Control Points					
)pen				2				? ×	1
)pen Look jn: 管	Data			2	← € (* 🗉		? ×	
)pen Look jn: 🔄 🗐 Subdivisio) Data 1LinkFile.txt			2	← E	 * I	•	? ×	
Dpen Look jn: 🔄 I Subdivisio	Data hLinkFile.txt			2	(주 탄)	- * I		?×	
Dpen Look jn: 🔁 Subdivisio File name:	Data hLinkFile.txt	nLinkFile	.txt	2	← È			? ×	
Dpen Look jn: 🔁 Subdivisio File game: Files of type:	Data hLinkFile.txt	nLinkFile	e.txt	2	← È		 ⊡+ Qpen Cancel	? ×	

Saving a link file

You can create a link file from the existing displacement links in the map using the Save Links File command. This command opens a Save dialog box and allows you to navigate to the folder of your choice and name the new link file. You also have the option to save link IDs. The link file is saved as a tabdelimited text file. Click the Spatial Adjustment menu, point to Links, and click Save Links File.

The Save Links dialog box appears.

- 2. Click the Save in dropdown arrow and navigate to the folder where you want to save the link file.
- 3. Enter a name for the link file.
- 4. Click Save.
- 5. Choose whether or not to save link IDs.





Opening a Control Point file

Control Point files are text files that contain destination coordinates that define part of an adjustment. The Spatial Adjustment tool supports tabdelimited Control Point files that contain either two or three columns. A two-column Control Points file consists of a pair of destination coordinate values. A three-column Control Points file consists of an ID column (string or numeric) that precedes a pair of destination coordinate values. Control points may represent known locations of features from GPS or ground survey and are displayed in the Control Points Window.

1. Click the Spatial Adjustment menu, point to Links, and click Open Control Points File.

The Open dialog box appears.

- 2. Click the Look in dropdown arrow and navigate to the folder where the control point file resides.
- 3. Double-click the control point file to load it.

The Control Points Window appears.

Spatial Adjustment	•	_			
Set Adjust Da	ta				
<u>A</u> djustment M	ethods 🔰	•			
🖳 Adjust					
Preview Wind	W				
Links	•	Open Links File	e		
Attribute Tran	sfer Mapping	Save Links File	a		
Options		- 💷 View Link Table	e		
		Open Control	Points File	-1	
		View Control F	Points		
			2		
			Y		
0					2 1
open					
🛛 Look in: 🔤	Data		主 🕂 🗄	🖣 🕂 📜 🖥	
ElSubdivision	i inkEile.txt				3
	icinity notexe				
I					
File <u>n</u> ame:	SubdivisionLi	nkFile.txt		<u>O</u> pen	
-					
Files of type:	III.out [≚huh]			l ance	
	Liew (. two		<u> </u>		··
	Dpen as re	ead-only			·

Control Points Window								
	ID	X Destination	Y Destination					
		2221127.500000	387486.624999					
		2220816.249999	387697.062498					
		2221114.500000	388563.812500					
		2220842.749999	388476.281249					
I								
ľ								

Creating displacement links from control points

Opening a control point file does not automatically create displacement links as in the case of link files. You must manually create the links from the control points. This requires that you open the Control Points Window with the View Control Points command, then double-click each row to create a destination link in the map. Once the link is created at the destination location, you must then finish adding the link to the source location. This will connect the source feature to the target feature. Repeat this process until all the control point rows are removed from the Control Points Window.

- Click the Spatial Adjustment menu, point to Links, and click View Control Points.
 - The Control Points Window appears.
- 2. Double-click a row in the Control Points Window.

This will create a link that is snapped to a destination location. ►



l	Control P	oints Window		×
I	ID	X Destination	Y Destination	
I		2221127.500000	387486.624999	
		2220816.249999	387697.062498	
		2221114.500000	388563.812500	
I		2220842.749999	388476.281249	
I				
I				
l				

l	Control Points Window 🛛 🛛				
	ID	X Destination	Y Destination		
		2221127.500000 2220816.249999 2221114.500000 2220842.749999	387486.624999 387697.062498 388563.812500 388476.281249		-2
l					



3. Snap the link to a source location.

The row is now removed from the Control Points Window.

4. Repeat steps 2 and 3 until all the rows in the Control Points Window are removed and converted into displacement links.



Control F	Control Points Window 🛛 🛛				
ID	X Destination	Y Destination			
	2221127.500000	387486.624999			
	2220816.249999	387697.062498	_	-4	
	2221114.500000	388563.812500	- 1		
			- 1		
			- 1		
			- 1		

Previewing the adjustment

You can preview an adjustment using the Adjustment Preview Window. This window allows you to view the results of an adjustment prior to performing the adjustment in the map. You can use standard ArcMap Zoom and Pan commands in this window to closely examine how the adjustment will affect your features. This allows you an opportunity to go back in the map and make modifications before you adjust your data. Additionally, the Adjustment Preview Window supports its own display commands from a context menu, such as zooming to the dataframe's extent, and tracking the data frame's extent.

The Adjustment Preview Window can help you save time and unnecessary edits by giving you a glimpse of how the adjustment will turn out. Click the Spatial Adjustment menu and click Preview Window.

The Adjustment Preview Window appears.

- 2. Examine the adjustment more closely by using the Zoom and Pan commands on the standard map display toolbar.
- 3. You can access additional commands by right-clicking inside the Adjustment Preview Window to open the context menu.









Performing the adjustment

Once you have chosen which data to adjust, selected an adjustment method, set the adjustment properties, and created links and limited adjustment areas, you can adjust the data. Clicking the Adjust command will execute the spatial adjustment.

Тір

Use the Undo command to undo an adjustment

All adjustments can be undone by clicking the Undo button:

 ${\bf k} {\bf n}$

 Click the Spatial Adjustment menu and click Adjust. The data is now adjusted.







Attribute Transfer Mapping

The Attribute Transfer Mapping functions support the interactive transfer of attributes between features. The Attribute Transfer Mapping dialog box allows you to set the source and target layers and specify which fields to use as criteria for the attribute transfer. Once you have identified the common fields in the source and target layers, they are matched. These matched fields define which attributes are transferred when using the Attribute Transfer tool. You also have the option to transfer the geometry of the feature by checking the Transfer Geometry check box.

Тір

Using the Auto Match command to match multiple fields at once

You can use the Auto Match command to match multiple fields at once based on common field names. Click the Spatial Adjustment menu and click Attribute Transfer Mapping.

The Attribute Transfer Mapping dialog box appears.

- Click the Source Layer dropdown arrow and choose a layer.
- Click the Target Layer dropdown arrow and choose a layer.
- Click a field in the Source Layer's field list box. ►

DEL AUJUST Data	
Adjustment Methods	
P1 adjust	
Preview Window	
Links	
BTT	
Attribute Transfer Mapping	
Options	
Attribute Transfer Mappin Source Layer Street NAME Type Shape_Length	2 × Target Layer NewStreets NAME Type Auto Match
Transfer Geometry	▶ <u>R</u> emove
Transfer Geometry	
Transfer Geometry	Bemove DK
Transfer Geometry	Bemove
Attribute Transfer Mapping	Bemove OK Cancel
Attribute Transfer Mapping Source Layer	Bemove DK Cancel
Attribute Transfer Mapping Source Layer Streets	Bemove DK Cancel
Attribute Transfer Mapping Source Layer Streets	Bemove Bemove Cancel Cancel Target Layer NewStreets NAME Type
Attribute Transfer Mapping Source Layer Streets	Emove CK Cancel 2 X Target Layer NewStreets NAME Type
Attribute Transfer Mapping Source Layer Streets	Emove OK Cancel C X Target Layer NewStreets NAME Type
Attribute Transfer Mapping Source Layer Streets	Ermove OK Cancel
Attribute Transfer Mapping Source Layer Streets NAME Type Shape_Length	Bernove DK Cancel 2 X Target Layer NewStreets NAME Type
Attribute Transfer Mapping Source Layer Streets NAME Type Shape_Length	Bernove OK Cancel ? × Target Layer NewStreets NAME Type Auto Match
Attribute Transfer Geometry Attribute Transfer Mapping Source Layer Streets MAME Shape_Length Add Matched Fields	Bemove DK Cancel 7 x Target Layer NewStreets NAME Type Auto Match
Attribute Transfer Mapping Source Layer Streets NAME Type Shape_Length Add Matched Fields	Ernove OK Cancel C X Target Layer NewStreets NAME Type Auto Match
Attribute Transfer Mapping Source Layer Streets MME Type Shape_Length Matched Fields	Bernove DK Cancel 7 X Target Layer NewStreets NAME NAME NAME Auto Match
Attribute Transfer Mapping Source Layer Streets MAKE Type Shape_Length Matched Fields Matched Fields Transfer Geometry	Bernove DK Cancel 7 X Target Layer NewStreets XAME Type Auto Match Eernove

Spatial Adjustment 🔻

5. Click a corresponding field in the Target Layer's field list box.

Both fields will be highlighted.

6. Click Add.

Repeat the process for all other fields that are to be used as criteria for the attribute transfer.

	e	•	
Attribute Transfer Mapping		? ×	
Source Layer	Target Layer		
Streets	NewStreets	•	
NAME Type Shape_Length	NAME Type		
- Matched Fields	Auto <u>M</u> atch		- 6
		► <u>R</u> emove	
	OK	Cancel	

Attribute Transfer Mapping	? ×
Source Layer	Target Layer
Streets	NewStreets 💌
Type Shape_Length	Туре
Add Fields	Auto Match
NAME	NAME
•	
Transfer <u>G</u> eometry	<u>H</u> emove
	OK Cancel

Using the Attribute Transfer tool

The Attribute Transfer tool allows you to transfer the attributes of a feature to another feature. This transfer is performed by matching the fields that are specified in the Attribute Transfer Mapping dialog box.

Use the Attribute Transfer tool to select a source feature followed by a target feature. When the transfer is complete, verify the target feature's attributes using the Identify tool.

Tip

Transfer attributes to multiple features

You can transfer attributes to multiple features by holding down the Shift key while selecting the target features.

See Also

For information on using the Attribute Transfer Mapping dialog box, see 'Attribute Transfer Mapping' in this chapter.

- 1. Click the Attribute Transfer tool on the Spatial Adjustment toolbar.
- Position the cursor over the source feature and click once.

This is the feature that contains the desired attribute data.

 Position the cursor over the target feature and click once to transfer the attribute data of the source feature.

The target feature is now updated with the source feature's attribute data.






Editing attributes

IN THIS CHAPTER

- Viewing attributes
- Adding and modifying attributes
- Copying and pasting attributes

Creating and editing features in a GIS usually entails creating or editing some *attributes* of the features, in addition to creating their shape.

ArcMap makes it easy to view and update the attributes of features in your database. You can edit feature attributes in two ways: using the Attributes dialog box or using a feature layer's attribute table. This chapter focuses on editing attributes using the Attributes dialog box. With the Attributes dialog box, you can view the attributes of selected features on your map; add, delete, or modify an attribute for a single feature or multiple features at the same time; and copy and paste individual attributes or all the attributes of a feature.

You can perform similar functions using a feature layer's attribute table. However, with tables you can also do computations—such as adding and sorting records—with attribute values. To learn how to edit attributes in an attribute table—including performing computations with attribute values see *Using ArcMap*.

In the next chapter you will learn how to take advantage of the tight integration of ArcMap with Geodatabases to make editing attributes quicker and more accurate.

Viewing attributes

The Attributes dialog box lets you view the attributes of features you've selected in your map. The left side of the dialog box lists the features you've selected. Features are listed by their primary display field and grouped by layer name. The number of features selected is displayed at the bottom of the dialog box.

The right side of the Attributes dialog box is called the property inspector. The property inspector contains two columns: the attribute properties of the layer you're viewing, such as Type or Owner, and the values of those attribute properties.

Тір

Finding the feature on the map

You can find a selected feature on the map by either highlighting or zooming to it. To highlight the feature, click the primary field and the feature will flash on the map. Right-click the field and click Zoom To in the context menu to get a close-up view of the feature. Click the Back button on the Tools toolbar to return to the previous map extent.

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Select the features whose attributes you want to view.
- 3. Click the Attributes button.
- Click the layer name that contains the features whose attributes you want to view.

The layer's attribute properties appear on the right side of the dialog box. ►



Тір

Unselect a feature

You can remove features from the selection without having to click on the map. To remove a feature from the selection, right-click on the feature and click Unselect from the context menu.

Тір

Delete a selected feature

If you want to delete a feature without losing your selection, simply right-click on the feature and click Delete from the context menu.

Тір

Viewing attributes in the Identify Results window

To view the attributes of a feature quickly, click the Identify Features button on the Tools toolbar, then click the feature whose attributes you want to view. View the feature's attributes in the Identify Results window.

Тір

Changing the primary display field

You can change the primary display field for a layer on the Fields tab of the layer's Properties dialog box. To open the dialog box, right-click the layer name in the table of contents. Double-click a layer name to see the primary display fields, representing the selected features in the layer.

Double-click again to hide the primary display fields.

 Click a primary display field to see the corresponding feature's attribute values.

The corresponding feature flashes on the map.

7. Click the Close button to close the dialog box.

Attributes → Roads ⊕ - 16th Av ⊕ - Deerfoot Trail ⊕ - Deerfoot Trail ⊕ - Spiller Road ⊕ - 17th Av ⊕ - Barlow Trail ⊡ - Wards ⊕ - WARD 3 ⊕ - WARD 4 ⊕ - WARD 5 ⊕ - WARD 10	Property OBJECTID AREA PERIMETER WARDS_ID LABEL ALDERMAN WARD_NUM Shape_Length Shape_Area	Value 8 21237064.022583 22103.7438028993 9 18 WARD 10 DIANE DANIELSON 10 22103.7438490877 21237064.0811026
features	_	

Adding and modifying attributes

The easiest way to make changes to the attributes of a selected feature is by using the Attributes dialog box.

You can add or modify attributes of selected features as needed. For example, you might want to update the attribute values—such as its name and maintenance information—for a park feature you created.

To add or modify an attribute value for a single feature, click the primary display field for the feature on the left side of the dialog box and make your changes in the Value column on the right. ►

Тір

Saving your edits

Click the Editor menu and click Save Edits.

Тір

Attribute domains

You can use attribute domains to create a list of valid values for a feature in a geodatabase. You can also use the Validate command to ensure attribute quality. For more information, see Building a Geodatabase.

Adding an attribute value to a single feature

- Click the primary display field of the feature to which you want to add an attribute value.
- 2. Click in the Value column where you want to add the attribute value.
- 3. Type the attribute value and press Enter.

The attribute value is added to the feature.

Attributes x Value ⊡- Roads Property OBJECTID . ⊕ Battleford Trail 1 7734315 PIN. . ⊕ Battleford Trail Address 276 Lister Kaye Crescent 🗄 - Lister Kaye Crescent City SPEEDY CREEK ⊢- Lots **JSHANER** Owner Assessment Date 9/9/1995 ≟- 274 Lister Kaye Crescent Century 21 Assessor ≟- 278 Lister Kaye Crescent SHAPE Length 1.76572182810603E-03 SHAPE Area 1.69596212457052E-07 6 features •

Adding an attribute value to all selected features in a layer

- 1. Click the layer to which you want to add an attribute value.
- 2. Click in the Value column where you want to add the attribute value.
- 3. Type the attribute value and press Enter.

The attribute value is added to all selected features in the layer.



You can also add or modify an attribute value for all selected features in a layer at the same time. Simply click the layer name on the left and make your changes in the Value column on the right.

Тір

Deleting attributes

To delete an attribute value, rightclick over the value and click Delete. You can also press the Delete key to delete an attribute value.

Тір

Undoing your edits

To undo any edit to feature attributes, click the Undo button on the ArcMap Standard toolbar:

Тір

Performing calculations

When editing attributes, you might need to perform calculations using the field calculator in the feature layer's attribute table dialog box. For more information, see Using ArcMap.

Тір

Adding attribute properties

You can add an attribute property for a feature by working with its attribute table in ArcCatalog. For more information, see Using ArcCatalog.

Modifying an attribute value for a feature

- Click the primary display field of the feature for which you want to modify an attribute value.
- 2. Click the value you want to modify.
- 3. Type a new attribute value and press Enter.

The attribute is modified for the feature.



Modifying an attribute value for all selected features in a layer

- Click the layer for which you want to modify an attribute value.
- Click in the Value column next to the attribute property you want to modify for all selected features in the layer.
- 3. Type a new attribute value and press Enter.

The attribute is modified for all selected features in the layer.



Copying and pasting attributes

Copying and pasting is an easy way to edit the attributes of features on your map. You can copy individual attribute values or all the attribute values of a feature. Attribute values can be pasted to a single feature or to all selected features in a layer.

Tip

Copying and pasting individual attribute values to an entire layer

To copy an attribute value to a layer, click the value you want to copy, right-click, and click Copy. Then, click the layer name and right-click in the Value column next to the appropriate property. Click Paste and the attribute value is copied to every selected feature in the layer.

Tip

Cutting and pasting attributes

Cutting and pasting attributes is similar to copying and pasting them. Right-click and click Cut from the context menu to remove the attribute value from its current location in the Attributes dialog box, then click Paste to paste it elsewhere.

Copying and pasting individual attribute values from feature to feature

- 1. Click the attribute value you want to copy.
- 2. Right-click the value you want to copy and click Copy.
- Click the primary display field of the feature to which you want to paste the value.
- 4. Click where you want to paste the value.
- 5. Right-click where you want to paste the value and click Paste.

The attribute value is pasted to the feature.





Attributes		×
Poads Deerfoot Trail Spiller Road Doerfoot Trail Spiller Road Doerfoot Trail Barlow Trail Barlow Trail	Property OBJECTID RoadName SHAPE_Length RoadType Description	Value 188 Barlow Trail 1848.22162991345 Single Iane <null></null>
5 features	Th	e attribute value pasted to the feature.

Тір

Copying and pasting all attribute values from one feature to an entire layer

You can copy all attribute values from one feature to all selected features in a layer. Right-click the primary display field of the feature whose attribute values you want to copy and click Copy. Right-click the layer name to which you want to paste the attribute values. Click Paste and the attribute values are copied to every selected feature in the layer.

Copying and pasting all attribute values from feature to feature

- Right-click the primary display field of the feature whose attribute values you want to copy and click Copy.
- 2. Right-click the primary display field of the feature to which you want to paste the attribute values and click Paste.

The attribute values are pasted to the feature.





10

Editing geodatabase attributes

IN THIS CHAPTER

- Editing a geodatabase with ArcMap
- Editing features with subtypes and default values
- Editing attribute domains
- Validating features

Some features in a geodatabase are designed with subtypes, default values, and attribute domains. These can make it quicker and easier to edit feature attributes and can help prevent data entry errors.

Subtypes are logically distinct categories of a given type of feature that may have different attributes, network roles, or topology rules. When you create a new feature in a feature class with subtypes, you can choose which subtype of feature to create. For example, when creating a new building footprint, you might get the choice of residential, high-density residential, mobile home, commercial, industrial, school, and public administration building subtypes.

Because subtypes represent logical groups within a class of feature, they may typically have different attributes. In addition to a code identifying the subtypes, each subtype might have codes identifying how the data was collected. Residential buildings might get a default source description of 'digitized from plats', while mobile homes might get a default source description of 'digitized from ortho photographs'. These might be two out of a list of five permissible source descriptions.

Attributes in a geodatabase can have rules that specify that their values must fall within a particular range or be one of a list of permissible values. Building features might all have an occupancy figure for emergency planning. Residential buildings might have a valid occupancy range from 0–15, while commercial buildings might have a valid range of 0–500.

After you enter attributes for features that have domains specified in the geodatabase, you can validate your edits to check that the attributes fall in the permissible domain.

Editing a geodatabase with ArcMap

ArcMap editing capabilities are tightly integrated with the various aspects of the geodatabase, such as *geometric networks* and validation rules. While each component of the geodatabase can act independently, the true power of the geodatabase becomes evident when you bring all of these things together.

In this chapter, you will learn how editing in ArcMap takes advantage of the aspects of a geodatabase that help you maintain a valid *database*.

Validation rules

The geodatabase supports several broad types of validation rules: attribute validation rules, network *connectivity rules*, and relationship rules. It is important to understand that these validation rules can be broken; in certain cases, a geodatabase permits invalid *objects* to be stored in the database.

For example, if you have an attribute rule stating that the valid pressure range for a water distribution main in your water network is between 50 and 75 psi, the geodatabase won't prevent you from storing a value outside that range. However, a distribution main with a water pressure outside of this range will be an invalid object in the geodatabase. ArcMap has many editing tools that help you identify invalid features so that you can correct them.

The exceptions are *edge–edge connectivity rules*, *edge–junction connectivity rules*, and coded value attribute rules. In these cases, ArcMap takes a more active role when editing features with these rules associated with them. You will learn how editing in ArcMap behaves in these contexts later in this chapter.

The general approach to the issue of validating features is that the validation process should not result in valid features being flagged as invalid (false negatives); it is, however, allowable to have features that are invalid being reported as valid (false positives). If the geodatabase did not enforce any validation, every feature would effectively be valid. When performing validation on a particular feature, the validation occurs in five steps:

- 1. Validate the subtype.
- 2. Validate the attribute rules.
- 3. Validate the network connectivity rules—if network feature.
- 4. Perform custom validation—using optional class extension.
- 5. Validate the relationship rules.

This strategy means the least expensive validation is performed first. The validation process stops once a feature is found to be invalid. So, for example, if a feature fails the validity test for check number 1, then checks 2, 3, 4, and 5 are never executed.

When checking connectivity and relationship rules, all associated rules must be valid. With network connectivity rules, if you specify one rule, you must specify them all. Thus, if a type of connectivity exists that doesn't have an associated connectivity rule, the network feature is deemed invalid.

In addition to these rules, topology rules can also be established. To learn more about topology, see Chapter 4, 'Editing topology'.

To learn more about attribute validation rules, see *Building a Geodatabase*. To learn more about connectivity rules, see Chapter 12, 'Editing geometric networks' in this book, or *Building a Geodatabase*.

Editing features with subtypes and default values

Feature classes and individual subtypes of feature classes in a geodatabase can have default values.

Default values help streamline the attribute editing process and help you maintain realistic values for the attributes of the features in your database. If most of the building features that you create in a feature class are residential, you might have a default value of residential for the building type attribute. Then when you create a new building it will automatically be given the residential attribute value. In the few cases where the building is another type, you can change the attribute

If your feature class contains subtypes, then when you change the subtype of a feature, the feature takes on the default field values of the new subtype.

Creating new features of a subtype

- Click the Task dropdown arrow and click Create New Feature.
- Click the Target layer dropdown arrow and click the layer with the type of features you want to create.
- Click the Tool Palette dropdown arrow and click the Sketch tool.
- Click the map to digitize the feature's vertices. ►







- 5. Double-click the last vertex to finish the feature.
- 6. Click the Attributes button.

The Attributes dialog box appears. Notice that some of the fields already have values. These are the default values that were specified when this feature class was created.

- Click the fields whose values you want to modify and type the new values.
- 8. Click the Close button to close the Attributes dialog box.





Attributes		×	– 8
E- Buildings B- 22PW/S0000018062	Property FID AREA PERIMETER TAG STYPECODE FEATURETYPE NUMSTORIES STATUS	Value 13003 13003 2347.105 22347.105 222.7229 222Pvy5000018062	-0
1 features			

See Also

To learn more about subtypes and attribute domains, see Building a Geodatabase.

Changing a feature's subtype

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the feature whose subtype you want to change.
- 3. Click the Attributes button.
- 4. Click the value of the subtype field.

A dropdown list with all the available subtypes appears.

5. Click the subtype you want. ►





🖃 - Buildings	Property	Value	
⊕ 22Pw5000018062	FID AREA PERIMETER TAG STYPECODE FEATURETYPE NUMSTORIES STATUS	13003 2347.105 2227229 22PwyS0000018062 Residential Industrial Residential Commercial Unknown	- 4 5

Тір

Default values

When you change a feature's subtype, the fields will take on the default values for the new subtype. If a field does not have a default value associated with it for the new subtype, its value remains unchanged. The feature's symbology changes to match the new subtype. The fields with default values assume the default values for the new subtype.



The building is now marked with the symbology of the feature's new subtype.

Editing attribute domains

Feature classes and subtypes in a geodatabase can have attribute domains. These are rules that control the permissible values for a feature's attributes. These help maintain the data quality and consistency of the attributes of the features in your database.

There are two types of attribute domains: range domains and coded value domains. In a water network database you may have a feature class that stores water transmission mains. Transmission mains could have a range domain that specifies that the pressure value must be within the valid pressure range of between 40 and 100 psi.

If there are only three diameters of transmission main in your water system, you could have a coded value domain that specifies that transmission mains can have a diameter of 10, 24, or 30 inches. Coded value domains can speed attribute editing because when you edit them, ArcMap gives you a dropdown list of the permissible values that you can choose from.

Modifying coded value fields

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the feature whose attributes you want to edit.
- 3. Click the Attributes button.
- Click the value of the coded value field you want to modify.

A dropdown list of all the coded value descriptions in the domain appears.

5. Click the value you want for the field.





Attributes		×	
E- Buildings È- [22PW/\$0000018062]	Property FID AREA AREA PERIMETER TAG STYPECODE FEATURETYPE NUMSTORIES STATUS	Value 13003 2347.105 227.7229 227V:5000018052 Residential BLD 1 Under construction Condenned Planned No status	-4
1 features			

Validating features

When you edit features that have coded value or range domains, you should validate the features with the database to check that the attributes have appropriate values.

Validating features also validates any geometric network connectivity rules or relationship rules that may be defined for the feature class. For more information on relationship and connectivity rules, see Chapter 12, 'Editing geometric networks', and *Building a Geodatabase*.

Тір

Validating topology

Validating features and attributes is not the same as validating topology. For more information, see Chapter 4, 'Editing topology'.

Validating features

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the features that you want to validate.
- Click Editor and click Validate Features. ►



Task

🥖 👻

Editor 💌



If your selection contains any invalid features, a message box appears with the number of invalid features. Only invalid features remain selected.



- 4. Click OK.
- 5. Click one of the invalid features.
- 6. Repeat step 3.
- 7. A message box appears telling you why the feature is invalid.
- 8. Click OK.
- Click the Attributes button to view the attributes of the invalid feature.
- 10. Click the values that are invalid and change them.
- 11. Close the Attributes dialog box.
- 12. Repeat steps 5 through 11 for all of the invalid features.
- 13. Repeat steps 2 and 3. You should see a message box informing you that all the features are valid.
- 14. Click OK.



Attributes			■ 11
Euldings	Property FID AREA PERIMETER TAG STYPECODE FEATURETYPE NUMSTORIES STATUS	Value 13003 2347.105 222.723 22Pw\$0000018602 Commercial BLD 2 Planned	
1 features			



Editing related objects

IN THIS CHAPTER

- Understanding relationships and related objects
- Editing relationships and related objects

Some feature classes and tables in a geodatabase are designed to have relationships to other feature classes or tables. When you create, modify, or delete such geodatabase objects with ArcMap, messages can be automatically sent to the geodatabase to create, modify, or delete the related objects. These types of built-in relationships are stored in *relationship classes* in the geodatabase.

If there are relationship classes between feature classes and tables in your geodatabase, you can use ArcMap editing tools to take advantage of the relationships. Using ArcMap editing tools, you can find all of the objects related to a particular object and edit them. For example, you can select a parcel and find the owner of that parcel, then edit some of the *attributes* of that owner without ever having to add the *table* that stores the owners to your ArcMap session.

You can also use ArcMap editing tools to establish a new relationship between objects or to break existing relationships between objects. For example, if a parcel changes ownership, you can delete the relationship between the parcel and its original owner, then establish a new relationship to its new owner.

After you edit related geodatabase features or tables that have relationship rules you can validate your edits to check that the related objects still conform to the geodatabase relationship rules.

To learn more about relationship classes, see Building a Geodatabase.

Understanding relationships and related objects

Relationship classes allow you to maintain associations between objects in your geodatabase. These relationships can be simple and passive or they can be composite. Composite relationships imply parent/child relationships, or composition, and, therefore, have behavior, which is triggered through changes to objects on one side of the relationship to objects on the other side.

Relationships in a relationship class can be stored using primary and foreign keys in the object classes on either side of the relationship class. Alternatively, in the case of many-to-many relationship classes (M–N) and attributed relationship classes, the relationships are rows stored in a separate table.

You can use the Attributes dialog box or the table dialog box to find all objects related to any selected object. Once you have navigated to the related object, you can edit its attributes. You can also use the editing tool in ArcMap to break the relationship between any two objects or create new relationships between objects. When you edit objects and relationships in this way, all referential integrity is maintained.

Creating and deleting relationships

You can use the Attributes dialog box to create and delete relationships between two objects. If the relationship is managed by primary and foreign keys, the foreign key in the destination object is populated with the value of the primary key from the origin object. If a relationship between two objects is deleted, then the value for the foreign key in the destination object is replaced with a null.

If the relationship class is M–N or is attributed, then the relationships are stored in a separate table in the database. When a new relationship is created between two objects in this type of relationship class, a new row is added to that table. This new row is populated with the values from the primary keys in the origin and destination objects. If a relationship between two objects is



If the relationships in a relationship class are managed by primary and foreign keys (nonattributed 1–1 or 1–M relationships), creating and deleting relationships populate and null the foreign key in the destination class objects.

hiectl	OwnerName	OwnerType			e inici i b	- aroone	Decabate	1				
bjectit	Gwnenvanie	ownerrype		1	1	3	4/12/1971		ObjectID	Shape	Area	ParcelType
1	Liz Freeman	PRI		2	2	1	7/7/1957	A->	1	∇	8167.55	RES
2	Maurice Richard	PRI	1	3	3	2	5/4/2000	← ੈ	2	\triangleleft	8222.30	RES
3	Gary Carter	PRI	-		Relations	hin clas	·		3	\diamond	8278.54	RES
4	Algometrics Inc.	COM	J		Parcel	lOwners			4	\bigtriangledown	8174.22	RES
Origii	n class—Owne	rs		Cr	eate new	relatior	nship			Desti	nation class	s—Parcels
jectID	OwnerName	OwnerType		RID (OwnerID F	ParcelID	DeedDate	¢	ObjectID S	Shape	Area	ParcelType
1	Liz Freeman	PRI		2	2	1	7/7/1957	1	1	∇	8167.55	RES
2	Maurice Richard	PRI	**	3	2	2	5/4/2000		2	<u> </u>	8222.30	RES
3	Gary Carter	PRI		4	4	4	7/11/2000	_ ×	3	Ď	8278.54	RES
4	Algometrics Inc.	COM		-					4	0	8174.22	BES
bjectli	D OwnerName	OwnerType	•	RID	OwnerID	ParcellD	DeedDate	•	ObjectID	Shape	Area	ParcelTyp
1	Liz Freeman	PRI		2	2	1	7/7/1957	1	1	∇	8167.55	RES
2	Maurice Richard	PRI	-	3	3	2	5/4/2000		2	0	8222.30	RES
3	Gary Carter	PRI		4	4	4	7/11/2000		3	Ò	8278.54	RES
4	Algometrics Inc.	COM			-				4	\bigtriangledown	8174.22	RES
Origi	in class—Owne	ers			Relation Parc	nship cla elOwne	iss— rs			Destir	nation class	-Parcels
				PID	Delete re		nip					
bjectll	D OwnerName	OwnerType	•		ownerib	arcent	Alloutoza		ObjectID	Shape	Area	ParcelTyp
1			1		1	3	4/12/19/1					
_	Liz Freeman	PRI		3	3	2	5/4/2000	17	1		8167.55	BES
2	Liz Freeman Maurice Richard	PRI		3	3	2	5/4/2000 7/11/2000	N.	1		8167.55 8222.30	RES

If the relationship class is M–N or is attributed, the relationships are stored as rows in the relationship class's table. Creating and deleting relationships adds and removes rows in the relationship class's table.

8174.22

RES

deleted, then the row corresponding to that relationship is deleted from the relationship table.

Deleting objects with relationships

When an object that participates in relationships with other objects is deleted from the database, all of its relationships are also deleted. If the relationships are maintained using primary and foreign keys, and the object deleted is the origin object, then the foreign key in the destination object is made null. If the object deleted is the destination object, then the origin object is not affected.

If relationships are maintained as rows in a relationship table (M–N relationships or attributed relationships) and either an origin or destination object and its relationships are deleted, then the rows corresponding to those relationships are also deleted from the relationship's table.

Creating new related objects

In ArcMap, you can select an object, then use the Attributes dialog box to create a new nonspatial object in a related class. When this new object is created, all of its attributes are populated with their appropriate default values (see *Building a Geodatabase*), and a relationship is created back to the object it was created from. You can only create nonspatial objects in this way; you cannot create new features.

If the relationships are maintained using primary and foreign keys, then the foreign key in the destination object is populated with the primary key of the origin object, regardless of whether the origin or destination object is created using the Attributes dialog box. If the relationships are maintained as rows in a relationship table (M–N relationships, attributed relationships), then a new row is added to the relationship class's table.

COM

Algometrics Inc.





When you use the Attributes dialog box to create new related objects, a relationship is created back to the object from which it was created. If the relationships are maintained using primary and foreign keys, then the foreign key in the destination object is populated with the primary key of the origin object.

Editing composite relationships

2001

<null>

3

5

Composite relationships have some specialized behavior. When editing the objects that participate in a composite relationship, this behavior carries over to the editing process. Edits made to the origin object in a composite relationship often directly affect its related destination objects. This behavior is partially dependent on relationship class messaging.

By default, composite relationship classes have forward messaging (see *Building a Geodatabase*)—that is, when the origin object in a composite relationship is edited, it sends messages to its related destination objects. The related objects will respond to that messaging in a standard way: if the



When an object that participates in relationships with other objects is deleted from the database, all of its relationships are also deleted.

destination objects are nonspatial objects, then they will not change. However, if the destination objects are features when the origin object is moved, then the destination objects will also move the same distance. If the origin object is rotated, then the destination objects will also be rotated by the same angle.

Similar to simple relationships, composite relationships also maintain referential integrity when objects are deleted, but they do this in a different way. When the origin object in a composite relationship is deleted, all of the objects related to it through that composite relationship are also deleted. This cascade deletion will happen whether messaging is set to forward, back, both, or none.



When an origin object in a composite relationship is moved and messaging is set to forward or both, if the related objects are features, they will move the same distance to follow the feature. In this example, the selected pole is the origin object and the transformer is the destination object.



When an origin object in a composite relationship is deleted, all destination objects related to it through a composite relationship are also deleted.

Overhead2

2

3

When a destination object is deleted, the relationship between it and the origin object is deleted; the origin object itself is not deleted or modified.

Splitting features that participate in relationships

Splitting a single geodatabase feature into two separate features is actually a delete and create operation—that is, the original feature is deleted and two new features are created. This has implications when the feature being split has relationships with other objects in the database.

With simple relationships, when an origin feature is split, the relationships between the original feature and its related destination objects are deleted. When the new features are

created from the split operation, new relationships are created between the new feature with the larger portion of the original feature's geometry and the destination objects that were related to the original feature.

In the case of a composite relationship, the behavior is different. When an origin feature in a composite relationship is split, any objects related to it through that composite relationship are deleted before the two resulting new features are created from the split.

When splitting a destination feature in either a simple or composite relationship, the relationships between the original



When an origin object in a composite relationship is split, its destination objects are deleted.



When splitting a destination feature in either a simple or composite relationship, the relationships between the original feature and the related origin objects are deleted, and the new relationships are created between the origin objects and both new features that result from the split.

feature and the related origin objects are deleted, and the new relationships are created between the origin objects and both new features that result from the split.

The behavior of splitting objects with relationships described here is the default behavior. You can override this behavior at the class level by writing a class extension that implements the IFeatureClassEdit interface. The IFeatureClassEdit interface has a property called CustomSplitPolicyForRelationship that allows you to specify how relationships are handled when features are split. To learn more about class extensions and how to implement them, see *Exploring ArcObjects*.

Editing relationships and related objects

The tasks presented here are all examples of editing relationships between water laterals and hydrants in a water network. The rules of this relationship class state that a hydrant lateral must have a hydrant related to it and that hydrants cannot be related to other lateral types.

Тір

Relationship rules and topology

It is important to distinguish relationships and relationship rules from topology and its associated rules. To learn more about topology, see Chapter 4, 'Editing topology'.

Editing a related object

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- Click the hydrant lateral whose related hydrant you want to modify.
- 3. Click the Attributes button.
- 4. Double-click the lateral in the left panel of the Attributes dialog box.
- 5. Double-click the relationship path label.

The related hydrant objects are listed below the path label.

- Click the ID number of the related hydrant whose attributes you want to modify.
- 7. Modify the attributes of the hydrant object by clicking the value and typing a value or clicking the value and choosing the new value from the list.







Selecting a related object

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the hydrant lateral whose related hydrant you want to modify.
- 3. Click the Attributes button.
- 4. Double-click the lateral in the left panel of the Attributes dialog box.
- 5. Double-click the relationship path label.

The related hydrant objects are listed below the path label.

 Right-click the related hydrant you want to add to the map's selection and click Select. ►





The hydrant is added to the selection.



The hydrant is added to the selection.

Тір

Relating objects

Before adding a relationship between two objects, you must first create a relationship class between the feature classes or tables containing the objects you want to relate. To learn more about how to create relationship classes, see Building a Geodatabase.

Creating a new relationship between features

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the features between which you want to create relationships.
- 3. Click the Attributes button.
- 4. Double-click one of the features in the left panel.
- Right-click the relationship path label and click Add Selected. ►









The selected object or objects are now added to the list of selected objects under the relationship class path label.

Relationships to the selected _____ objects are added.

Hydranis	Property	Value	
iii - Uaheronta iiii - Shanda iiii - Shanda iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii	PD SYMBOL ACAD_ANGLE FEATURE_ID FACTURE_ID FACTURE_ID VAM_TYPE PYTTYPE PYTYPE PYTYPE SYMDDDE SYMDDDE SYMDDDE SYMDDDE SYMDDDE SYMDDDE SYMDDDE SYMDDDE SYMDDDE SYMDDDE SYMDDDE SYMDDDE SYMDDDE SYMDDDE SYMDDDE SYMDDDE SYMD SYMDDE SYMD SYMD SYMD SYMD SYMD SYMD SYMD SYMD	471 0 0 137485 649 04958EH/tD 04958EH/tD 0 0 34 34 0 0 0 11/20/99	

Creating a new relationship between a feature and a nonspatial object

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the feature to which you want to create a relationship.
- In the table of contents, rightclick the table that contains the objects that you are relating to, then click Open. ►





- 4. Click the object in the table with which you want to create a relationship to the selected feature.
- 5. Click the Attributes button.
- 6. Double-click the feature in the left panel.
- 7. Right-click the relationship path label and click Add Selected.

The selected object or objects are now added to the list of selected objects under the relationship class path label.

	Г	OBJECTID*	MaintenanceCD	MainID*	Year_	_
(4)-	F	- 4	44659-0F	<null></null>	1987	
		5	44660-RP	<nul></nul>	1999	
		8	44780-RP	283	2001	
		9	44805-0F	283	2001	
		10	44807-OF	283	2001	
		6	44661-RP	<null></null>	2000	
						<u>•</u>



Attributes			2
∃-pipes	Property	Value	
ė−220000000071977	OBJECTID	4	
A MaintenanceRecords	MaintenanceCD	44659-OF	
<u></u> 9	MainID	283	
	Year_	1987	
#1 2			
B-10			
	-		
teatures			

The object is listed under the relationship path label.

Deleting a relationship

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the feature from which you want to delete a relationship.
- 3. Click the Attributes button.
- 4. Double-click the feature in the left panel.
- 5. Double-click the relationship path label to see a list of related objects.
- Right-click the object from which you want to delete the relationship and click Remove From Relationship. ►









The object is no longer listed under the relationship path label.

7. Click the Close button to close the Attributes dialog box.



The object is no longer listed under the relationship path label.

Тір

Creating new related features

You cannot use the Add New command in the Attributes dialog box to create new related features. See 'Creating new related features', later in this chapter, to learn how to create new related features.

Creating new related nonspatial objects

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the feature for which you want to create a new related object.
- 3. Click the Attributes button.
- 4. Double-click the feature in the left panel. ►





	Attributes			×
	B-pipes	Property	Value	
(4)—	± 22000000071977	FID	283	
	MaintenanceRecords	FNODE#	344	
		TNODE#	350	
		LPOLY#	0	
		RPOLY#	0	
		LENGTH	36.93725	
		PIPE#	283	
		PIPE-ID	515	
		TAG	22000000071977	
		TYPE	PIP	
		SUBTYPE	MNMPCS	
		PIP_SIZE	2	
		PIP_MATERIAL	CS	
		PIP_LENGTH	36.9	
		LENGTH_SRC_I	MS	
		CUATING_TYPE	WH	
		PIP_PRESSURE	M	
		PIP_USE_CD	м	
		INSTALL_DATE		
		SYMBUL Chase Level	MP Loated Steel Main	
		Enabled	36.3372306313003	
		Enableu	The	
	1 features			

5. Right-click the relationship path label and click Add New.

A new object is created and related to the selected feature.

6. Click the new object in the left panel to see its attributes.



	Attributes		×
	🖃 pipes	Property	Value
	<u>⊨</u> -22000000071977	OBJECTID	2
	MaintenanceRecords	MaintenanceCD	<nul></nul>
0	<u>2</u>	Year	283
-		real_	2001
	1 fastures		
	1.10010100	1	

A new object is created in the related class and a relationship is created between it and the selected feature.

See Also

To learn more about ArcMap sketch tools and how to create new features, see Chapter 2, 'Editing basics', and Chapter 3, 'Creating new features'.

Creating new related features

- 1. Use ArcMap sketch tools to create the new feature.
- 2. Click the Edit tool.
- 3. Hold down the Shift key and click the feature for which you want to create a relationship to the new feature.

Both the new feature and the feature you are relating it to should be selected. ►


- 4. Click the Attributes button.
- 5. Double-click the feature in the left panel.
- 6. Right-click the relationship path label and click Add Selected.

The selected object or objects are now added to the list of selected objects under the relationship class path label.



	Attributes		2
		Property	Value
	⊟- Parcels	FID	3163
3	Contains	ParcelType Shape_Length Shape_Area	Muliple Residential 356,23907254978 6627.25758871465
	2 features		

Attributes				
⊕ Buildings		Property	Value	
⊡ Parcels				
i⊟- 3163				
contain	s			
-	 Add Selecter 	d		
	Add New			
	Hemove All			



Тір

Deleting related features

You can also delete related features using the Delete command on the Relationship context menu in the Attributes dialog box.

Deleting related objects

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the feature whose related object you want to delete.
- 3. Click the Attributes button.
- 4. Double-click the feature in the left panel.
- Double-click the relationship path label to see a list of related objects.
- 6. Right-click the object you want to delete and click Delete.

The object is deleted and no longer listed under the relationship path label.



Attributes			×
E pipes	Property OBJECTID HantonanceCD HantD Year_	Value 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 20 9 20 1 20 0 1	

The object is no longer listed under the relationship path label.

Тір

The Attributes dialog box

The Attributes dialog box behaves the same way with composite relationships as it does with creating or deleting new features or relationships.

Editing features with composite relationships

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the origin feature in the composite relationship you want to edit.
- 3. Click and drag the feature to a new location.

The related features move the same x,y distance as the origin feature you moved. ►





The related features move the same distance as the feature you moved.

- 4. Click the Rotate tool.
- 5. Click anywhere on the map and drag the pointer to rotate the feature to the desired location.

The related features rotate with the feature.

- Click the Edit tool and click a destination feature in a composite relationship.
- 7. Click and drag the feature to a new location.

The origin feature in the relationship doesn't move. ►



The related features rotate with the features.



The origin feature doesn't move.

8. Click the origin feature again and click Delete.

Both the feature and its related feature are deleted.



Both the origin feature and its related feature are deleted.

Тір

Relationship rules

Relationship rules can be broken in two ways: when a feature is related to a subtype of the related class for which no valid rule applies or when a cardinality rule is broken.

To learn more about relationship rules, see Building a Geodatabase.

Validating relationships

- 1. Click the Edit tool and click the feature or features you want to validate.
- 2. Click Editor and click Validate Features.

A message box appears telling you how many features are invalid. Only invalid features remain selected. ►



Editor 👻 🕨 🖉 👻 Ta	ask: [
Star <u>t</u> Editing	
Stop Editing	
Save Edits	
<u>M</u> ove	
Spljt	
🖍 Divide	
// Buffer	
🍫 Copy Parallel	
Merge	
Union	
Intersect	
⊆lip	
More Editing Tools	
Validate Features	-2
S <u>n</u> apping	
Options	

- 3. Click OK.
- 4. Click one of the invalid features.
- 5. Repeat step 2.

A dialog box appears informing you why the selected feature is invalid.

- 6. Click OK.
- 7. Make the necessary edits to the relationships or the related objects to make the feature valid. This may involve adding and deleting relationships or altering the subtype of one or all of the features.
- Repeat step 2—a message box appears informing you that all the features are valid.
- 9. Click OK.





12

Editing geometric networks

IN THIS CHAPTER

- Editing network features
- Creating network edges
- Subsuming network junctions
- The Network Editing toolbar
- Validating network features

In addition to simple features, ArcMap lets you edit collections of features related in a geometric network. In a geodatabase, a geometric network contains special types of network features that enable connectivity tracing, network connection rules, and specialized junction or switch modeling behavior.

Geometric networks are useful for modeling networks of wires, pipes, or natural water flow networks. Networks are built of edge and junction features. Edges model linear features such as pipes, wires, and streams. Junction model nodes in the network—places where edges connect to each other—such as fittings, valves, and hydrants; switches, fuses, and transformers; or confluences, gauging stations, and water quality monitoring devices.

There are two broad categories of network features: simple and complex. Simple edge features are connected to junctions at each end. Snapping another feature along the length of a simple edge feature splits the edge into two simple edges. Complex edge features are connected to junctions at each end but may also have junctions connected to them along their length; they do not split when junctions are added. Simple junction features connect edges. Complex junctions are single custom features that can have internal networks of edges and junctions. A pump station might be modeled as a single complex junction feature in a water network, but it might be composed of a group of pipes, valves, and pumps that have complex internal network connectivity.

Editing network features

Geometric network features store various mechanisms and behaviors that maintain the topological connectivity between them. ArcMap editing capabilities are tightly integrated with the geodatabase when it comes to editing network features.

Creating connectivity

Topological connectivity in a network feature class is based on geometric coincidence. If a junction is added along an edge or one edge is added along another edge, they will become topologically connected to one another.

By using the ArcMap *snapping* environment, you can create new edge and junction features on the fly while maintaining network connectivity. The ArcMap snapping functionality will guarantee geometric coincidence when adding new network features along existing network features.

Simple and complex edges

An edge in a geometric network can be either simple or complex. A simple edge in a geometric network has a 1–1 relationship with edge elements in the logical network. A complex edge has a 1–M relationship with edge elements in the logical network. So one complex edge in the geometric network can represent multiple edges in the logical network.

If you snap a junction or edge along a simple edge, then the edge being snapped to is split both in the logical network and in the geometric network, giving you two edge features. If you snap a junction or an edge along a complex edge, then that edge is split in the logical network but remains a single feature in the geometric network. It will remain a single feature; however, a new vertex is created at the point where the new junction or edge connects to it.

Default junctions

When you snap an edge to another edge where there is no junction, a junction is automatically inserted to establish connectivity. If a default junction type has been specified as part of the connectivity rules for the network, that default junction type is used. If there is no edge–edge rule between these edge types, an orphan junction is inserted, which is stored in the <network>_Junctions feature class.

Similarly, if you create a new edge in the network that is not snapped to an existing junction or edge at both ends, a junction is automatically created and connected to the free end of the new edge. If there is a connectivity rule in place that defines a default junction type for the type of edge that is being added, that default junction type is the junction that is added to the free end of the new feature. If an edge type does not have a default junction type associated with it through a connectivity rule, then an orphan junction is inserted, which is stored in the <network>_Junctions feature class.

Junction subsumption

When you snap a junction to an existing junction, the old junction is subsumed by the new junction. That is, the original junction is deleted from the network and the new junction is inserted in its place. All network connectivity is maintained.

When you create a new edge feature in the network that has an end that does not connect to anything and there is not a connectivity rule stating what type of junction to put at its free end, the network orphan junction type is inserted. This orphan junction can be replaced by snapping another junction to it.

Moving existing network features

When a network edge or junction is moved, the network features to which it is connected respond by rubber-banding and adjusting themselves to maintain connectivity. When you move a network feature and snap it to another network feature, the features may become connected (see below).

Connectivity models

Edit operations that involve adding, deleting, moving, and subsuming network features can all affect the connectivity of a geometric network. Each type of operation may or may not create connectivity, depending on the type of network features involved. The following set of diagrams illustrates various editing scenarios and their resulting connectivity or lack thereof. In these diagrams, use the key below to identify what types of features are illustrated in each scenario:

- Orphan Junction
- Standard Junction
- SEF Simple Edge
- CEF Complex Edge

Stretching and *moving*: When stretching or moving junctions, any edges connected to them rubber-band to remain connected. When you snap these junctions to other network features, the following illustration summarizes the network connectivity that results:



Connectivity behavior when stretching and moving network features

Deleting: Deleting network features can affect those features connected to them. When you delete an edge feature, the edge is physically deleted from the geometric network and logically deleted from the logical network; however, its connected junction features will not be deleted. When deleting junction features, if the junction being deleted is not of an orphan junction type, it will not be physically deleted from the geometric network. Rather than being deleted, the junction will become an orphan junction. When you delete an orphan junction, it is physically deleted from the geometric network. When this happens, depending on what type it is and how many edges are connected to it, some edges may also be deleted. The following illustration summarizes the results of deleting network junctions:



Connectivity behavior when deleting network features

Disconnecting features: The following illustration summarizes how connectivity is affected when disconnecting network edge features and junction features using the Disconnect command in ArcMap:



Connectivity behavior when disconnecting network features

Connecting features: The following illustration summarizes how connectivity is affected when connecting network features use the Connect command in ArcMap:



Connectivity behavior when connecting network features. NOOP indicates that the Connect command resulted in no edit operation.

Creating new network features: When creating new network features and snapping them to other network junction and edge features, the resulting connectivity and the effects on the features you connect them to are summarized below:



Connectivity behavior when creating new network features. NOOP indicates that the new feature was not created.

Repairing network topology

Connectivity between network features is maintained on the fly as you create, delete, and modify network features. In some circumstances, the association between some network features and their logical elements may become out of sync. This can happen, for example, when using a custom tool that does not correctly handle aborting edit operations.

This kind of network corruption is localized to a collection of features in the network. You will be able to see what features have corrupt topology in two ways: (1) when moving a network feature, if rubber-banding does not occur with other network features it is connected to and the edit operation fails, the topology is corrupt, and (2) reconciling a version with corrupt network features will result in an error (to learn more about reconciling versions, see Chapter 15, 'Working with a versioned geodatabase').

The Rebuild Connectivity tool in ArcMap rebuilds connectivity for a set of network features in an extent by re-creating their logical elements. Connectivity is established based on geometric coincidence using the same rules as described in *Building a Geodatabase*.

Performance considerations

Connectivity is established for new network features based on geometric coincidence. When you add or move a feature in a network, each feature class in the network must be analyzed so connectivity can be established. Performing a spatial query against each network class will determine if the new feature or moved feature is coincident with other network features at any point.

If the network is in an ArcSDE geodatabase, then analyzing for connectivity requires a number of spatial queries against the server. By using the edit cache while editing the network, these spatial queries don't go against the server, are much faster, and are not as much of a load on the server. When editing network data in an ArcSDE geodatabase, always use the edit cache. Using the edit cache can make your edits five times faster than without the cache, and it is not as much of a load on the server.

Creating network edges

Through the basic editor tools in ArcMap, you can create network edges in conjunction with your preexisting features. This includes adding network edges at an existing junction, along a complex edge, or along a simple edge.

Tip

Geometric networks and topology

It is important to distinguish geometric networks and their relationships from topology and its associated rules. To learn more about topology, see Chapter 4, 'Editing topology'.

See Also

For more information on the ArcMap snapping environment, see Chapter 3, 'Creating new features'.

Creating a new network edge at an existing iunction

- 1. Add your network feature classes to ArcMap and add the Editor toolbar.
- 2. Click Editor and click Start Editing.
- 3. Zoom to the area where you want to add the new feature.
- 4. Click the Tool Palette dropdown arrow and click the Sketch tool.
- 5. Click the Task dropdown arrow and click Create New Feature.
- 6. Click the Target layer dropdown arrow and click the type of edge feature you want to create.





Task:	Create New Feature	-		
	⊡- Create Tasks	귀		_
	Create New Feature	+	-	5
	🚊 Modify Tasks			
	Reshape Feature			
	Cut Polygon Features			
	Mirror Features			
	Extend/Trim Features			
	Modify Feature			
	Calibrate Route Feature			
	Modify Portion of a Line			
	🗄 Topology Tasks			
	Modify Edge			
	Reshape Edge			
	Auto Complete Polygons			
		_		
Targe	t: Water laterals	-	1	



- Check the appropriate boxes in the Snapping Environment window to set snapping to the vertex of the junction feature class to which you want to snap the new edge.
- Move the pointer near the junction to which you want to snap this edge until the pointer snaps to it.
- 9. Click the map to create the new feature's vertices.
- 10. Double-click the last vertex to finish the feature. ►

Snapping Environm	ent			×				
Layer	Vertex	Edge	End					
Water distribution n	\checkmark			- 11				
System valves				- 11				
Distribution mains	Z			- 1	— 7			
Blocks				- 11				
Parceis	님			- 11				
Water laterals	H			- 11				
WaterLateralDiamet		H	H	- 11				
Hydrants		H	H	- 11				
Road edge of paver				- 11				
Road names				- 11				
Road centerlines				- 11				
1								
🖃 🗌 Edit Sketch								
Edit sketch vertices								
Edit sketch edges								
Perpendicular to sketch								
Topology Ele	ments							
				_				





Тір

Default junction

You can specify what type of junction is placed at the free end of new edges by creating an edge– junction rule. For more information on connectivity rules, see Building a Geodatabase. You have now created a new network edge. Since you snapped it to an existing network junction, it is automatically connected to the network.

If there is an edge-junction rule for the new edge with a default end junction type specified, this junction type will be placed at the free end of the new edge. If there is not an edge-junction rule that specifies a default junction, an orphan junction will be placed at the end of the new edge. For information on how to replace the orphan junction with another junction type, see 'Subsuming network junctions' later in this chapter.

The network junction or orphan junction is added to the end of the edge.



Тір

Adding junctions along complex edges

You can also snap a junction along a complex edge. Similar to snapping an edge, the junction is connected to the network. The complex edge is split in the logical network but remains a single feature.

Creating a new network edge along a complex edge

- 1. Follow steps 1–6 for 'Creating a new network edge at an existing junction' in this chapter.
- 2. Check the appropriate boxes in the Snapping Environment window to set snapping to the edge of the complex edge feature class to which you want to snap the new edge.
- Move the pointer over the complex edge where you want the edge to snap until the pointer snaps to it.
- 4. Click the map to create the new feature's vertices.
- Double-click the last vertex to finish the feature. ►







Тір

Default junction

You can specify what type of junction is placed at the free end of new edges by creating an edgejunction rule. For more information on connectivity rules, see Building a Geodatabase. You have now created a new network edge. Since you snapped it to the edge of an existing edge, if there is an edge–edge connectivity rule between these edges, a new junction is created—the default junction type for that rule. If there is no edge–edge rule, then the new junction is the default network junction.

If there is an edge–junction rule for the new edge that has a default end junction type specified, this junction type will be added. If there is no edge–junction connectivity rule, an orphan junction is added.

Since the edge that was snapped to is a complex edge, it remains as a single feature but is split in the logical network.

- 6. Click the Edit tool.
- Click the complex edge to which you snapped your new edge.

The entire edge is selected even though another edge and junction are connected along it. It remains a single feature. The default junction for the edge-edge rule is added.







Creating a new network edge along a simple edge

- Follow steps 1–6 for 'Creating a new network edge at an existing junction' in this chapter.
- 2. Check the appropriate boxes in the Snapping Environment window to set snapping to the edge of the simple edge feature class to which you want to snap the new edge.
- Move the pointer near the simple edge to which you want to snap this edge until the pointer snaps to it.
- 4. Click the map to create the new feature's vertices.
- Double-click the last vertex to finish the feature. ►







Tip

Adding junctions along simple edges

You can also snap a junction along a simple edge. Similar to snapping an edge, the junction is connected to the network. The simple edge is split into two new features.

Тір

Default junction

You can specify what type of junction is placed at the free end of new edges by creating an edgejunction rule. For more information on connectivity rules, see Building a Geodatabase.

See Also

For more information on split policies and how they affect attribute values, see Building a Geodatabase. You have now created a new network edge. Since you snapped it to the edge of an existing edge, if there is an edge–edge connectivity rule between these edges, a new junction is created, which is the default junction type for that rule. If there is no edge– edge rule, then the new junction is the default network junction.

If there is an edge–junction rule for the new edge with a default end junction type specified, this junction type will be added. If there is no edge–junction connectivity rule, an orphan junction is added.

Because the edge that was snapped to is a simple edge, it is split into two new edge features. The value of the attributes in the new features is determined by their split policies.

- 6. Click the Edit tool.
- Click the simple edge to which you snapped your new edge.

There are now two edges split at the new junction.

The default junction for the edge–edge rule is added.







Subsuming network junctions

You may wish to replace network junction attributes with attributes associated with another junction type. For example, in a utilities network, a valve type or pole characteristic might change. Through basic editing functions, the properties of a junction can be subsumed by properties of another type.

- Follow steps 1–4 for 'Creating a new network edge at an existing junction' in this chapter.
- 2. Click the Target layer dropdown arrow and click the type of junction feature you want to create.
- 3. Check the appropriate boxes in the Snapping Environment window to set snapping to the vertex of the junction feature class that you want to subsume.
- Move the pointer near the junction you want to subsume with a new junction until the pointer snaps to it. ►



Snapping Environm	ent			×	
Layer	Vertex	Edge	End		
Water distribution m System valves Distribution mains Blocks Parcels DistDiam Layer Water laterals DistDiam Layer Water LateralDiamet Hydrants Road edge of paver Road names Road centerlines					-3
Edit Sketch Edit sketch Edit sketch Edit sketch Perpendi Topology Ele					



5. Click once to subsume the junction.

The original junction is deleted and replaced with the new junction; network connectivity is maintained.



The original junction is deleted and replaced with the new junction.

Тір

Undoing network edits

If you move a network feature, other network features also move. Clicking the Undo button will undo the edits to all the affected features. To learn more about undoing edits, see Chapter 2, 'Editing basics'.

Moving existing network features

- 1. Follow steps 1 and 2 for 'Creating a new network edge at an existing junction'.
- 2. Click the Edit tool.
- 3. Click the network junctions and edges that you want to move.
- 4. Click and drag the features to the new location.

Other network elements that are connected to the features rubber-band. This shows how other network elements are affected by moving the selected features.

All of the features that rubberbanded while you dragged your selected features are automatically updated to maintain network connectivity.









EDITING GEOMETRIC NETWORKS

ArcInfo and ArcEditor

Тір

Ancillary roles

Not all network junction features can have ancillary roles. Those that don't have them can't act as sources or sinks in the network. To learn more about network ancillary roles, see Building a Geodatabase.

See Also

To learn how to set flow direction for a network and other network analysis tools, see Building a Geodatabase.

Altering a junction's ancillary network role

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the network junction whose ancillary role you want to change.
- 3. Click the Attributes button.
- 4. Click the value for AncillaryRole.
- 5. If you want this junction feature to act as a sink in the network, click Sink.

If you want this junction feature to act as a source in the network, click Source.

If you don't want this junction feature to be either a source or a sink, click None.

- Repeat steps 3–5 until all the junctions whose ancillary roles you want to change are updated.
- Use the tools found in the Network Analysis toolbar to recalculate the flow direction of the network.









Enabled and disabled network features

If a feature in the network is disabled, it cannot be traced through. To learn more about network tracing, see *Building a Geodatabase*.

Enabling and disabling network features

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the network feature you want to enable or disable.
- 3. Click the Attributes button.
- 4. Click the value for Enabled.
- 5. Click True if you want to enable the feature in the network.

Click False if you want to disable the feature in the network.









The Network Editing toolbar

The Network Editing toolbar contains tools used for managing geometric network connectivity. The connectivity between coincident network features can be explicitly changed. Instances can arise when parts of a geometric network need to be repaired; a feature having invalid geometry or connectivity between features is incorrect. Features with invalid geometry may exist within feature classes used in building a geometric network. These features can be identified and their geometries repaired. Network connectivity between features may become out of sync or corrupt. These features can be identified and their connectivity repaired and reestablished.

Adding the Network Editing toolbar

 Click Editor, point to More Editing Tools, and click Network Editing.

The Network Editing toolbar will appear in the ArcMap window.





Tip

About connecting and disconnecting network features

In some cases, you may wish to disconnect a feature from the network. Disconnecting a feature does not delete it from the database; it removes the topological associations it has to other features in the network. Similarly, connecting a feature to the network creates topological relationships between the feature and its coincident features.

Disconnecting a feature from the network

- Select the feature that you want to disconnect from the network.
- 2. Click the Disconnect tool on the Network Editing toolbar.



Connecting a feature to the network

- Select the feature that you want to connect to the network.
- 2. Click the Connect tool on the Network Editing toolbar.



Тір

Assuring network connectivity

The Verify Connectivity tool verifies the connectivity between edges and junctions in the logical network.

The tool searches for features with no corresponding network elements, features with one or more missing network elements, features with duplicate network elements, features associated with corrupt or invalid network elements, and features associated with or connected to a nonexistent network feature.

Tip

Canceling the Verify Connectivity operation

Pressing Esc while defining the area of interest will cancel the operation.

Tip

Verifying the entire geometric network

The Verify Connectivity command will verify the connectivity of the entire network or any subset of selected features.



The Verify Connectivity command

Verifying network connectivity

- Click one of the feature classes in the geometric network in the ArcMap table of contents.
- 2. Click the Verify Connectivity tool on the Network Editing toolbar.
- Click and drag a box around the network features whose connectivity you wish to verify.

The tool will examine the features and create a selection set of the network features whose connectivity is corrupt. You can then use the Rebuild Connectivity tool to repair the connectivity of the features. If all connectivity is correct, a message box will appear informing you so.



Network Editing 🛛 🛛 🛛							
- % 🕺 🚯 Hi 🔯 🏹 🔯 🕻							i.
			2				



Тір

Rebuilding connectivity

During the course of editing, network connectivity is maintained on the fly. You do not need to use the Rebuild Connectivity tool unless the network connectivity has become corrupted for some of your network features.

Rebuilding network connectivity

- 1. Click one of the feature classes in the geometric network in the ArcMap table of contents.
- Click the Rebuild Connectivity tool on the Network Editing toolbar.
- Click and drag a box around the network features whose network connectivity you want to rebuild.





Tip

Ensuring network feature geometry

The Verify Network Feature *Geometry tool verifies that the* geometry of features that participate in the geometric network are valid shapes. Invalid shapes include features that have empty geometry, edge features that contain multiple parts, edge features that form a closed loop, and edge features that have zero length.

Tip

Canceling the Verify Network Feature Geometry operation

Pressing Esc while defining the area of interest will cancel the operation.

Tip

Verifying the entire geometric network

The Verify Network Feature Geometry command will verify the feature geometry of the entire network or any subset of selected features.

The Verify Network Feature Geometry command

Verifying network feature geometry

- 1. Click one of the feature classes in the geometric network in the ArcMap table of contents.
- 2. Click the Verify Network Feature Geometry tool on the Network Editing toolbar.
- 3. Click and drag a box around the network features whose geometry you wish to verify.

The tool will examine the features and create a selection set of the network features whose feature geometry is corrupt. You can then use the basic editing tools to correct the geometry of the features. If all feature geometry is correct, a message box will appear informing you so.





Tip

Repairing connectivity

The Repair Connectivity command will repair connectivity errors in the logical network.

During the process of repairing network connectivity, actions may occur that require review by the user. A message box will appear at the end of the process listing the type of warning, the feature class, and the object ID of the feature.

H The Repair Connectivity command

Тір

Network Build Errors command

The Network Build Errors command creates a selection of the features with invalid shapes using the error table generated during the network build. Invalid shapes include lines that contain multiple parts, lines that form a closed loop, lines that have zero length and features that do not contain shapes. Once created, the selection set may be used to identify and find the features that cause the particular error. For more information on building geometric networks, see Building a Geodatabase.



2

Validating network features

The validation process ensures that the network features follow the connectivity rules. This enables you to find those features that were modified so as to be in conflict with the predetermined network connectivity rules.

For more information on how to create and modify connectivity rules, see *Building a Geodatabase*.

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the network features you want to validate.
- Click Editor and click Validate Features. ►



Тір

Validation rules

Network features may have connectivity rules as well as attribute and relationship validation rules associated with them. To learn more about validating attribute and relationship rules, see the tasks outlined earlier in this chapter. If there are any invalid features, a message box appears telling you how many of the features are invalid. Only those features that are invalid remain selected.

- 4. Click OK.
- 5. Click one of the invalid network features.
- 6. Repeat step 3.

A dialog box appears informing you why the selected feature is invalid.

- 7. Click OK.
- 8. Make the necessary edits to the network to make the feature valid. This may involve performing some of the network editing tasks described earlier in this chapter.
- Repeat step 3—you should see a message box informing you that all the features are valid.

10. Click OK.

Validate 🛛 🔀					
2 features are invalid.					
OK					
4					



Editing annotation

IN THIS CHAPTER

- Annotation in the geodatabase
- Editing annotation
- Converting labels to annotation
- Converting coverage annotation to geodatabase annotation

In addition to geometry and location, geographic features may also have some descriptive text associated with them. For example, a feature class that contains streets may have text with the street's name associated with it. Annotation may also be a geographically located piece of text that exists independently of any other feature, such as the name of a mountain range on a physical map.

 $\mathbf{13}$

Annotation refers either to the process of automating text placement or to the text itself. This chapter describes how to create annotation for your feature classes and how to convert annotation that you have in coverages to geodatabase annotation.

Annotation in the geodatabase

Annotation in the *geodatabase* is stored in special feature classes called annotation classes. Unlike points, lines, and polygons, which are stored as ESRI Simple Features, annotation is stored as ESRI Annotation Features.

What is geodatabase annotation?

Like other feature classes in the geodatabase, all features in an annotation class have a geographic location and *attributes* and can either be inside a *feature dataset* or a standalone annotation class. Each annotation feature has its own symbology including font, color, and so on. Annotation need not only be text; it can also include shapes, such as boxes and arrows.

There are two kinds of annotation in the geodatabase: featurelinked annotation and nonfeature-linked annotation. Nonfeaturelinked annotation is geographically placed text strings that are not associated with features in the geodatabase. An example of nonfeature-linked annotation is the text on a map for a mountain range. No specific feature represents the mountain range, but it is an area you would want to mark.

Feature-linked annotation is associated with a specific feature in another feature class in the geodatabase. The text in feature-linked annotation reflects the value of a *field* or fields from the feature to which it is linked. The annotation feature class participates in a composite *relationship* with the feature class that it is annotating. The annotation feature class is the destination class in the relationship, while the feature class it is annotating is the origin class. This means the feature controls the location and lifetime of the annotation (see *Building a Geodatabase*).

As an example of feature-linked annotation, a hydrant in a water network may be annotated with its pressure, which is stored in a field in the feature class. In the same network, the water transmission mains may be annotated with their names.

As with other composite relationships, the origin feature controls the destination feature. Therefore, when the origin feature is moved or rotated, the linked annotation moves or rotates with it. When the origin feature is deleted from the *database*, its linked annotation feature is also deleted. If the value of a field from which the annotation text is derived changes in the feature, the annotation feature has special *behaviors* to respond to those changes and to automatically update its text string.

In the water network example, a hydrant may be too close to a busy intersection and may need to be moved by 50 feet. When the hydrant is moved, its linked annotation moves with it. In the same network, the name of a transmission main may change. When the value in its name field is modified, the text stored in its linked annotation feature is automatically changed to reflect this.
Editing annotation

You can use the editing tools in ArcMap to edit both featurelinked annotation and nonfeature-linked annotation. While you can perform the same edit operations on both kinds of annotation, a feature with linked annotation has special behaviors when edited. The annotation feature will respond to changes in its linked feature, such as attribute updates.

You can use the drawing tools in ArcMap to edit the string, the symbology, or the location of any annotation feature. You can also use the drawing tools to create new annotation features.

When you edit features with linked annotation, all of the behaviors that apply to editing features with composite-related objects apply—for example, move and delete. In addition, when you edit the attributes of the feature, the linked annotation is also modified to reflect the changes.

You can use the same tools for editing related objects and breaking and creating new relationships; see Chapter 11, 'Editing related objects'.

Creating new nonfeaturelinked annotation

- Add your annotation feature class to ArcMap and add the Editor and the Draw toolbars.
- 2. Click Editor and click Start Editing.
- 3. On the Draw toolbar, click Drawing, point to Active Annotation Target, then check the feature class name of the annotation you want to create.
- 4. Use the font settings buttons on the Draw toolbar to set the properties of the annotation text you want to create.
- 5. Click the Create a new text element button.
- Click the map where you want to add the new annotation feature.
- 7. Type the annotation's text string and press Enter. ►









See Also

To learn more about geodatabase annotation, see Building a Geodatabase.

Nonfeature-linked annotation is added to your *map*.



Nonfeature-linked annotation is created.

See Also

The ability to add and edit annotation features with ArcMap is extensive and cannot be fully covered here. If you want to learn more about this tool, see Building a Geodatabase.

Editing an existing annotation feature

- 1. Click the Select Elements tool.
- 2. Click the annotation that you want to edit.
- 3. Right-click the annotation string you want to change and click Properties.
- 4. Edit the text string as desired.
- 5. Click OK. ►



Align Distribute Rotate or Flip Properties...

3



The text is updated on the map.

6. To move the annotation string, click and drag it to a new location.



Creating new features with linked annotation

- 1. Zoom to the area where you want to add the new feature.
- 2. Click the Tool Palette dropdown arrow and click the Sketch tool.
- Click the Task dropdown arrow and click Create New Feature.
- 4. Click the Target layer dropdown arrow and click the type of feature you want to create.
- 5. Click the map to create the new feature's vertices. ►



6. Double-click the last vertex to finish the feature.

An annotation feature is automatically created and linked to the new feature.

If your feature has default values for the field from which the annotation is derived, the annotation appears and reflects the values from those fields.



An annotation feature is created along with the new feature.

Тір

Composite relationships

The feature and its annotation participate in a composite relationship with each other. The feature is the origin feature, and the annotation is the destination feature. Editing these features is similar to editing any features that participate in a composite relationship.

Modifying features with linked annotation

- 1. Click the Edit tool.
- 2. Click the feature you want to edit.
- 3. Click the Attributes button.
- 4. Click the value from which the annotation is derived and type the changes.

The annotation is automatically updated to reflect these changes.

 Click the Close button to close the Attributes dialog box.►







6. Click and drag the feature to a new location.

The linked annotation feature moves the same x,y distance as the feature you moved. \blacktriangleright



The linked annotation is automatically updated.



Linked annotation and feature move together to the new location.

- 7. Click the Rotate tool.
- 8. Click anywhere on the map and drag the pointer to rotate the feature to the desired location.

The annotation rotates with the feature.

9. Click the Delete tool.

The feature you selected, along with its linked annotation, is deleted from the database.





The feature is rotated along with its linked annotation.



Тір

Versioning

When possible, generate your annotation before you version your data.

Generating feature-linked annotation

- In ArcMap, click the Add Data button to add a feature class and its linked annotation class to your map.
- 2. Click the Select Features button to select the features for which you want to generate annotation. To create annotation for all of the features, select all of the features.
- 3. Right-click the feature class in the table of contents.
- 4. Point to Selection.
- 5. Click Annotate Selected Features.
- 6. Check the related annotation classes in which you want to store the annotation.
- Check the check box to add unplaced labels to the overflow window.
- 8. Click OK.





Converting labels to annotation

ArcMap lets you label features stored in a feature class. Once you have created labels, you can store them within the ArcMap document or as graphics in a database or convert them to annotation features.

If you choose to convert them to annotation features, ArcMap will create an annotation class to store the annotation. If you specify that you want them linked to the features, ArcMap will also create the relationship class to maintain the link.

The annotation class and relationship class are created inside the same feature dataset in which the feature class is stored or at the geodatabase level for a standalone feature class.

See Also

For a detailed discussion about labeling maps and the different advanced labeling methods you can use, see Using ArcMap.

- In ArcMap, click the Add Data button to add the feature class for which you want to create annotation to your map.
- 2. Label the features in your map.
- 3. Right-click the feature class in the table of contents.
- Click Convert Labels to Annotation. ►



Tip

New annotation class

When all of the labels have been converted to annotation, the new annotation class is automatically added to the map.

Тір

Versioning

When possible, convert your labels to annotation before you version your data.

Тір

Annotation storage

When storing geodatabase annotation in a database management system (DBMS), the row length is between 80 and 100 bytes.

- Click the feature class for which you want to save labels.
- 6. Click the third Annotation storage option.
- Type a name for the new annotation class that will be created to store the annotation.
- 8. Click All features in the layer to create annotation for all of the features.

Click Features displayed in the current extent to create annotation for features displayed only in the current extent of the map.

Click Features currently selected to create annotation for the selected features only.

 Click Display overlapping labels in the overflow window to display annotation that cannot be created without overlapping others.

10. Click OK.



Converting coverage annotation to geodatabase annotation

ArcMap lets you convert annotation stored in a coverage annotation feature class to geodatabase annotation. You must convert the annotation into an existing annotation class in your geodatabase.

If the coverage annotation feature class contains attributes, when you convert it to geodatabase annotation, these attributes will automatically be converted as well.

The command to convert coverage annotation is available through the Customize dialog box in ArcMap.

See Also

For more information on how you can customize ArcMap, see Using ArcMap and Exploring ArcObjects.

Adding the Convert Coverage Annotation command to ArcMap

- In ArcMap, click View, point to Toolbars, and click Customize.
- 2. Click the Commands tab in the Customize dialog box.
- 3. Click the Label category.
- 4. Drag the Convert Coverage Annotation command from the Commands list and drop it on the Standard toolbar.

The command appears on the toolbar.

5. Click the Close button on the Customize dialog box.







Тір

Annotation class

You can only convert coverage annotation into existing annotation classes. To create an annotation class, see the 'Creating new nonfeature-linked annotation' and the 'Generating feature-linked annotation' tasks in this chapter.

Тір

Annotation storage

When storing geodatabase annotation in a DBMS, the row length is between 80 and 100 bytes.

Tip

Target annotation class

The annotation class into which you convert your coverage annotation must exist in the geodatabase before you perform the conversion. You can create a new annotation class using ArcCatalog.

See Also

For more information on using ArcMap to add feature classes to maps, symbolize annotation, and create plots, see Using ArcMap.

See Also

For more information on symbolizing layers in ArcMap, see Using ArcMap.

Converting coverage annotation

- Add to your map the coverage annotation feature classes you want to convert.
- 2. Set the symbology for the coverage annotation feature class. Create test plots of your data to ensure the symbology is correct before continuing to step 3.
- 3. Click the Convert Coverage Annotation command.
- Check the annotation classes that you want to convert. You can convert multiple coverage annotation classes into a single geodatabase annotation class.
- 5. Click the option to convert the annotation into a database.
- 6. Click the Browse button to browse for an existing annotation class within your geodatabase.
- 7. Click Convert.
- Click the Close button to close the Convert Coverage Annotation dialog box when your conversion is complete.





14

Editing dimension features

IN THIS CHAPTER

- Editing dimension features
- Adding the Dimensioning toolbar
- Creating dimension features
- Modifying dimension features

Dimension features are used to communicate information about the dimensions of geographic features, or distances between them, on a map. In this respect, they are similar to annotation. However, dimension features exclusively express distance measurements. Dimension features can be used to show the length of a property line, the distance between bridge spans, or the length of a feature along one axis.

Dimension features are stored in dimension feature classes in a geodatabase. Dimension feature classes can have one or more styles to ensure that the dimension features you create are consistent with your mapping standards.

Editing dimension features

Dimension features, unlike simple features, know how they are created. A dimension feature requires a specific number of points to be entered into the edit sketch to describe its geometry. The standard edit tools can be used to manually input the points required for these *construction methods*. In addition to the manual construction methods, there are several tools that allow you to create new dimension features from existing dimension features and other features. These tools are collectively called the Autodimension tools.

You can assign a style to a dimension feature when you create it or change an existing dimension feature's style. Dimension features draw and symbolize themselves based on the properties of their assigned style.

Construction methods

The type of dimension feature you are creating will dictate the number of points that are required as input.

The following is a list of dimension types and the number of points required for their construction:

• Simple aligned: two points



• Aligned: three points



• Linear (horizontal and vertical): three points



• Rotated linear: four points



You can specify what type of construction method to use with which to create your dimension feature. The construction method dictates the type of dimension that is created. Each construction method knows how many points are required to create a specific kind of dimension feature. When using these methods, Finish Sketch is automatically called once you have input the correct number of points. The exceptions are the free construction methods.

The free construction methods also know how many points are required for input; however, they do not call Finish Sketch automatically. With the free construction methods, you can add as many points into the edit sketch as you need to construct your dimension feature. When you call Finish Sketch, the type of dimension feature that is created will depend on the number of points in your sketch.

The following summarizes the different construction methods:

- *Simple aligned:* creates simple aligned dimension features. It requires two points as input: the beginning dimension point and the end dimension point. Finish Sketch is automatically called after the second point is input.
- *Aligned:* creates aligned dimension features. It requires three points as input: the beginning dimension point, the end dimension point, and a third point describing the height of the dimension line. Finish Sketch is automatically called after the third point is input.
- *Linear:* creates horizontal and vertical dimension features. It requires three points as input: the beginning dimension point, the end dimension point, and a third point describing the height of the dimension line. The location of the third point relative to the beginning and ending dimension points will dictate whether the dimension feature is horizontal or vertical. Finish Sketch is automatically called after the third point is input.
- *Rotated linear:* creates rotated linear dimension features. It requires four points as input: the beginning dimension point, the end dimension point, a third point describing the height of the dimension line, and a fourth point describing the extension line angle. Finish Sketch is automatically called after the fourth point is input.
- *Free aligned:* creates simple aligned and aligned dimension features. It requires either two or three points as input. If you call Finish Sketch with two points in the edit sketch, a simple aligned dimension feature is created. If you call Finish Sketch with three points in the edit sketch, an aligned dimension feature is created. If you call Finish Sketch with less than two or more than three points in the edit sketch, the edit operation will fail.

• *Free linear:* creates horizontal linear, vertical linear, and rotated linear dimension features. It requires either three or four points as input. If you call Finish Sketch with three points in the edit sketch, a horizontal or vertical linear dimension feature is created. If you call Finish Sketch with four points in the edit sketch, a rotated linear dimension feature is created. If you call Finish Sketch with linear dimension feature is created. If you call Finish Sketch with linear dimension feature is created. If you call Finish Sketch with linear dimension feature is created. If you call Finish Sketch with less than three or more than four points in the edit sketch, the edit operation will fail.

The Autodimension tools

The Autodimension tool palette contains four tools for automatically creating dimension features: Dimension Edge, Perpendicular Dimensions, Baseline Dimension, and Continue Dimension. Using these tools, you can create new dimension features based on existing dimension features or other features on your map.

Dimension Edge works on any type of feature. The Dimension Edge tool will automatically create a dimension whose baseline is defined by a line segment of an existing feature.

Perpendicular Dimensions simultaneously created two dimension features that are perpendicular to one another.

Baseline Dimension and Continue Dimension are both used only on existing dimension features. Baseline Dimension creates a new dimension feature whose beginning dimension point is based on the same beginning point of a previous dimension feature. The Continue Dimension tool creates a new dimension feature whose beginning dimension point is the same as the end dimension point of the existing dimension feature being continued. The Baseline Dimension and Continue Dimension tools create the same type of dimension as the existing dimension they are applied to and assign it the style selected in the Style dropdown list in the Dimensioning toolbar.

Dimension styles

All dimension features are associated with a *dimension style*. When you create a new dimension feature, you must assign it a dimension style. This dimension style must exist in the dimension feature class in which you are creating your new dimension feature. Once a dimension feature is created, it assumes all of the properties of its style. You can use the Attributes dialog box to modify some of those properties; however, some properties, such as the symbology of the dimension feature elements, cannot be modified.

To learn more about dimension styles and how to create them, see *Building a Geodatabase*.

The Dimensioning toolbar

The Autodimension tools and the controls for setting the construction method and assigning a dimension style are located on the Dimensioning toolbar. The controls on the Dimensioning toolbar are only active when you are editing, and the feature class selected in the Editor toolbar's Target dropdown list is a dimension feature class.



The Construction dropdown list contains all of the methods for constructing dimension features. The construction method dictates the number of points required to construct a dimension feature and the type of dimension feature that is created.

The Styles dropdown list contains all of the styles in the dimension feature class that are selected in the Target dropdown list in the Editor toolbar. New dimension features are created and assigned the style that is selected in the Style dropdown list.

It is important to remember that the Baseline Dimension and Continue Dimension tools will only be active if a dimension feature is selected. The Dimension Edge tool will be active when any feature is selected.

Modifying a dimension feature's geometry

Dimension features not only draw and symbolize themselves based on their assigned style but are also able to regulate the modification of their geometry. By using the editing tools in ArcMap that you use to modify the geometry of other types of features, you can modify a dimension feature's geometry while maintaining the correct configuration of points for a valid dimension feature.

When you are modifying a dimension feature, there are a series of vertices you can pick up and move with the Edit tool and move to alter the dimension feature's geometry. You can't add additional vertices or delete any of the existing vertices. The following diagram illustrates what aspect of a dimension feature is modified when one of these vertices is moved:



A dimension feature's geometry can be modified by moving a set of vertices while maintaining a valid dimension feature.

You can move a dimension feature's text away from its dimension line. The way the text is shown is dependent on the style chosen for the dimension feature. Some styles have line decoration including a leader line. For these styles, if you move the dimension feature's text far enough from the dimension line that it surpasses the leader line tolerance, then that leader line will automatically be displayed.



If a dimension feature's style has a text symbol with a leader line, that leader line is drawn when the text is moved farther away from the dimension line than the leader tolerance for the text symbol. The extension line angle and the other properties of a dimension feature's geometry can be modified by altering the values of some of its fields. The following is a list of the fields you can modify for a dimension feature and how they correspond to its geometry:

Field	Property	
BEGINX	x-coordinate of the beginning dimension point	
BEGINY	y-coordinate of the beginning dimension point	
ENDX	x-coordinate of the end dimension point	
ENDY	y-coordinate of the end dimension point	
DIMX	x-coordinate of the dimension line height	
DIMY	y-coordinate of the dimension line height	
TEXTX	x-coordinate of the text point (null if the text	
	hasn't been moved relative to the dimension	
	feature)	
TEXTY	y-coordinate of the text point (null if the text	
	hasn't been moved relative to the dimension	
	feature)	
EXTANGLE	Extension line angle	

For more information on editing a feature's geometry, see Chapter 7, 'Editing existing features'. For more information on text symbols and text decoration, see *Using ArcMap*.

Modifying a dimension feature's properties

A dimension feature gets most of its properties from its style. However, you can override some aspects of a dimension feature's style. The following are the properties that can differ between a dimension feature and its style:

- Dimension line display
- Dimension line arrow symbol display
- Extension line display

For more information about dimension styles, see *Building a Geodatabase*.

In addition to overriding these style properties, you can also change a dimension feature's style, specify a custom value to use for the dimension text instead of the length of the dimension feature and change the extension line angle.

Dimension features can be modified using the Attributes dialog box. Dimension features have a special Attributes dialog box to allow you to easily modify their various properties. However, you can also use the standard Attributes dialog box to modify the properties of a dimension feature or to modify the values of fields that you have added to your dimension feature class.



A dimension feature's properties can be modified by a Dimension Attributes dialog box or by using the standard Attributes dialog box.

Each property of a dimension feature that you can change in the dimensioning Attributes dialog box can also be changed by altering the values of some of its fields. A list of the fields that you can modify for a dimension feature and how they correspond to its properties are illustrated on the following page:

Field	eld Property		Null indicates both dimension line end
STYLEID	ID of the dimension style.		indicates only the beginning
USECUSTOMLENGTH	0 indicates that the feature's length is		dimension line end arrow marker is
	used for the dimension text; 1		displayed: 2 indicates only the end
	indicates a custom value is used for		dimension line end arrow marker is
	the dimension text.		displayed: 3 indicates none of the
CUSTOMLENGTH	Value used for the dimension text if		dimension line end arrow markers
	USECUSTOMLENGTH is 1.		are displayed.
DIMDISPLAY	Null indicates both dimension lines are	n lines are For more information on using the Attributes dialog box in ArcMap, see Chapter 9, 'Editing attributes'.	
	displayed; 1 indicates only the		
	beginning dimension line is displayed;	1 / 1	, U
	2 indicates only the end dimension line		
	is displayed; 3 indicates none of the		
	dimension lines are displayed.		
EXTDISPLAY	Null indicates both extension lines are		
	displayed; 1 indicates only the		
	beginning extension line is displayed;		
	2 indicates only the end extension line		
	is displayed; 3 indicates none of the		
	extension lines are displayed.		

Adding the Dimensioning toolbar

The Autodimension tools and the controls for setting the construction method and assigning a dimension style are located on the Dimensioning toolbar. The controls on the Dimensioning toolbar are only active when you are editing, and the feature class selected in the Editor toolbar's Target dropdown list is a dimension feature class.

Тір

Adding the toolbar

You can also add the toolbar by clicking the View menu, pointing to Toolbars, then clicking Dimensioning.

- 1. Right-click the Main menu.
- 2. Click Dimensioning.
- Dock the toolbar to the ArcMap window. Now each time you start ArcMap the toolbar will be displayed.



Creating dimension features

By using the tools provided on the basic Editor toolbar and those provided on the Dimensioning toolbar, you can create many types of dimension features.

Tip

The edit sketch

ArcMap contains many tools to help you enter points into your edit sketch. All of the same tools can be used to enter the points required for the various dimension feature construction methods.

Creating a simple aligned dimension feature

- Add your dimension feature class to ArcMap, then add the Editor toolbar and the Dimensioning toolbar.
- 2. Click Editor and click Start Editing.
- 3. Zoom to the area where you want to add the new feature.
- 4. Click the Tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Sketch tool.
- 5. Click the Task dropdown arrow and click Create New Feature.
- Click the Target layer dropdown arrow and click the dimension feature class. ►





Тір

Edit sketch display

When creating dimension features, the edit sketch will actually show you how the resulting dimension feature will look as you move your mouse.

The exceptions are the free dimension construction methods. With these construction methods, the edit sketch display is the same as that for creating simple features.

Тір

Using the Magnifier Window

To more accurately place your vertices, use the Magnifier Window found under Window on the Main menu. To learn more about the Magnifier Window, see Using ArcMap.

Tip

Adjusting the Snapping Environment

By adjusting the settings in the Snapping Environment dialog box, you can more accurately place your vertices. To learn more about the Snapping Environment, see Chapter 3, 'Creating new features'.

- Click the Style dropdown arrow and click the style you want your new dimension feature to have.
- Click the Construction dropdown arrow and click Simple Aligned.
- 9. Click the map at the beginning dimension point to start the edit sketch.

As you move the mouse, you will see that the new dimension dynamically draws itself with your mouse location as the end dimension point. ►



10. Click the map at the end dimension point.

The sketch is automatically finished and the new simple aligned dimension feature is created with the style you selected.



Тір

Aligned dimension features

An aligned dimension feature's dimension line is always parallel to its baseline.

To learn more about the different types of dimension features, see Building a Geodatabase.

Creating an aligned dimension feature

- 1. Follow steps 1–7 for 'Creating a simple aligned dimension feature' in this chapter.
- 2. Click the Construction dropdown arrow and click Aligned.
- 3. Click the map at the beginning dimension point to start the edit sketch.

As you move the mouse, you will see that the new dimension dynamically draws itself with your mouse location as the end dimension point. ►



4. Click the map at the end dimension point.

The new dimension continues to dynamically draw itself; now, however, the beginning and end dimension points are fixed, and the height of the dimension line changes as you move your mouse.

5. Click the map where you want the dimension line to be.

The sketch is automatically finished, and the new aligned dimension feature is created with the style you selected.

Since you selected Aligned as your construction method, the dimension line is parallel to the baseline.



Тір

Linear dimension features

A linear dimension feature's dimension line is generally not parallel to its baseline. Therefore, the distance represented by a linear feature is not the length of the baseline.

To learn more about the different types of dimension features, see Building a Geodatabase.

Creating a linear dimension feature

- 1. Follow steps 1–7 for 'Creating a simple aligned dimension feature' in this chapter.
- 2. Click the Construction dropdown arrow and click Linear.
- 3. Click the map at the beginning dimension point to start the edit sketch.

As you move the mouse, you will see that the new dimension dynamically draws itself with your mouse location as the end dimension point. ►



4. Click the map at the end dimension point.

The new dimension continues to dynamically draw itself; now, however, the beginning and end dimension points are fixed, and the height of the dimension line changes as you move your mouse.

If you move your mouse to the left or right of the baseline, you will see a vertical linear dimension feature. If you move your mouse above or below the baseline, you will see a horizontal linear dimension feature. ►



5. Click the map where you want the dimension line to be.

The sketch is automatically finished, and the new linear dimension feature is created with the style you selected.



Creating a rotated linear dimension feature

- Follow steps 1–7 for 'Creating a simple aligned dimension feature' in this chapter.
- 2. Click the Construction dropdown arrow and click Rotated Linear.
- Click the map at the beginning dimension point to start the edit sketch.

As you move the mouse, you will see that the new dimension dynamically draws itself with your mouse location as the end dimension point. ►



4. Click the map at the end dimension point.

The new dimension continues to dynamically draw itself; now, however, the beginning and end dimension points are fixed, and the height of the dimension line changes as you move your mouse.

If you move your mouse above or below the baseline, you will see a horizontal linear dimension feature. If you move your mouse to the left or right of the baseline, you will see a vertical linear dimension feature. ►



5. Click the map where you want the dimension line to be.

The new dimension continues to dynamically draw itself; now, however, the beginning and end dimension points and dimension line height are fixed, and the angle of the extension lines changes as you move your mouse.

6. Click the map at the angle you want the extension lines to be.

The sketch is automatically finished, and the new rotated linear dimension feature is created with the style you selected.





Тір

Free construction methods

The free construction methods allow you to enter as many vertices as you like into the edit sketch to help you define your dimension feature points. However, it is your responsibility to delete any vertex from the edit sketch that does not correspond to one of the required dimension feature points before you click Finish Sketch. If you have too few or too many vertices, your edit operation will fail.

Creating a dimension feature with the free aligned construction method

- Follow steps 1–7 for 'Creating a simple aligned dimension feature' in this chapter.
- Click the Construction dropdown arrow and click Free Aligned.
- Click the map at the beginning dimension point to start the edit sketch.

As you move the cursor, the dimension feature won't dynamically draw itself.

4. Use ArcMap sketch tools and construction methods to enter the end dimension point.

If you are creating a simple aligned dimension feature, skip to step 6. ►



- 5. Use ArcMap sketch tools and construction methods to enter the point where you want the dimension line to be.
- If your sketch has more than three vertices or has any vertices that do not represent the beginning or end dimension point or dimension line height, click Delete Vertex to delete them before continuing to step 7. ►





7. Right-click the sketch and click Finish Sketch.

The new dimension feature is created with the style you selected. If the edit sketch has two points, then a simple aligned feature is created. If the sketch has three points, then an aligned dimension feature is created.

The dimension feature points that the vertices represent will be determined by the order in which you entered them into the edit sketch. The vertex first entered will be used as the beginning dimension point. The second vertex entered will be used as the end dimension point. If the edit sketch has three vertices, the third vertex will be used as the dimension line height point.


Creating a dimension feature with the free linear construction method

- Follow steps 1–7 for 'Creating a simple aligned dimension feature' in this chapter.
- 2. Click the Construction dropdown arrow and click Free Linear.
- Click the map at the beginning dimension point to start the edit sketch.

As you move the cursor, the dimension feature won't dynamically draw itself.

 Use ArcMap sketch tools and construction methods to enter the end dimension point. ►



Тір

Extension line angle

When creating rotated linear dimensions, the extension line angle is calculated such that the dimension line is parallel to the line between the third and fourth construction points. 5. Use ArcMap sketch tools and construction methods to enter the point where you want the dimension line to be.

If you are creating a horizontal or vertical linear dimension feature, skip to step 7.

 Use ArcMap sketch tools and construction methods to enter the point that describes the extension line angle. ►





- If your sketch has more than four vertices or has any vertices that do not represent the beginning or end dimension point, dimension line height, or extension line angle, you must delete them before continuing to step 8.
- 8. Right-click the sketch and click Finish Sketch.

The new dimension feature is created with the style you selected. If the edit sketch has three points, then a vertical or horizontal linear dimension feature is created. If the sketch has four points, then a rotated linear dimension feature is created.

The dimension feature points that the vertices represented will be determined by the order in which you entered them into the edit sketch. The vertex first entered will be used as the beginning dimension point. The second vertex entered will be used as the end dimension point. The third vertex will be used as the dimension line height point. If the edit sketch has four vertices, the fourth vertex will be used to describe the extension line angle.



Tip

Autodimension tools

The Dimension Edge tool only creates linear dimension features by automatically using vertices on existing features for their beginning and end dimension points.

Тір

The Dimension Edge tool and diagonal features

To use the Dimension Edge tool to obtain diagonal measurements, after clicking on the line, position the cursor over the beginning vertex of the line segment. The diagonal measurement will appear.

Creating a dimension feature with the Dimension Edge tool

- Follow steps 1–7 for 'Creating a simple aligned dimension feature' in this chapter.
- Select the feature whose edge you want to use as the baseline for your new dimension feature.
- 3. Click the Tool Palette dropdown arrow and click the Dimension Edge tool.
- 4. Click the edge you want to use as the baseline for your dimension feature.

As you move your mouse, the new dimension dynamically draws itself with the beginning and end dimension points fixed at the ends of the edge you clicked; the height of the dimension line changes.

If you move your mouse to the left or right of the baseline, a vertical linear dimension feature is shown. If you move your mouse above or below the baseline, a horizontal linear dimension feature is shown.

5. Click the map where you want the dimension line to be.

The sketch is automatically finished and a new linear dimension feature is created with the style you selected.





Style: Parcel dimensions

Construction: Aligned

Creating two dimension features with the Perpendicular **Dimensions tool**

- 1. Follow steps 1-7 for 'Creating a simple aligned dimension feature' in this chapter.
- 2. Click the Tool Palette dropdown arrow and click the Perpendicular Dimensions tool.
- 3. Click the map at the beginning dimension point to start the edit sketch.

A line will appear on the map that runs through the first vertex placed and the location of the cursor.

4. Click the map again to establish the angle of the first dimension feature.

As the cursor is moved away from the first line, two dimension features will appear. The first along the established line and the second running perpendicular from the line to the location of the cursor. ►





5. Click the map once again to establish the length of the perpendicular measurement.

This will complete the two dimension features.



Creating a dimension feature with the Baseline Dimension tool

- Follow steps 1–7 for 'Creating a simple aligned dimension feature' in this chapter.
- 2. Select the dimension feature whose beginning dimension point you want to use as the beginning dimension point for your new dimension feature.
- 3. Click the Autodimension tool palette dropdown arrow and click the Baseline Dimension tool.

As you move your mouse, the new dimension feature dynamically draws itself with the beginning dimension point fixed at the beginning dimension point of the dimension feature you selected in step 2. The height is fixed at the height of the dimension feature you selected, plus the baseline height for the style you selected in step 2.

The end dimension point changes as you move your mouse, keeping the baseline for the new dimension feature parallel to the baseline of the dimension feature you selected in step 2. ►



Тір

Baseline height

For a dimension feature created with the Baseline Dimension tool, the height of the dimension line will be controlled by the baseline height property of its style.

The baseline height is only used for creating dimension features. If you change an existing dimension feature's style to a style with a different baseline height, the height of the dimension line will not change.

For more information about styles and how to set the baseline height property, see Building a Geodatabase. 4. Click the map where you want the end dimension point to be.

The sketch is automatically finished, and a new dimension feature is created with the style you selected. The dimension type will be the same as the dimension feature you selected in step 2.



Creating a dimension feature with the Continue Dimension tool

- Follow steps 1–7 for 'Creating a simple aligned dimension feature' in this chapter.
- 2. Select the dimension feature whose end dimension point you want to use as the beginning dimension point for your new dimension feature.
- Click the Tool Palette dropdown arrow and click the Continue Dimension tool.

As you move your mouse, the new dimension feature dynamically draws itself with the beginning dimension point fixed at the end dimension point of the dimension feature you selected in step 2. The height is also fixed at the height of the dimension feature you selected in step 2.

The end dimension point changes as you move your mouse, keeping the baseline for the new dimension feature parallel to the baseline of the dimension feature you selected in step 2. ►



4. Click the map where you want the end dimension point to be.

The sketch is automatically finished, and a new dimension feature is created with the style you selected. The dimension type will be the same as the dimension feature you selected in step 2.



Modifying dimension features

Modifying the dimension feature geometry goes beyond modifying the dimension line height. You can also modify the beginning dimension point, the end dimension point, and the dimension text placement.

In addition to using the Modify tool, you can also use the Attributes dialog box to modify the dimension feature's geometry. You can use the Attributes dialog box to modify:

- Dimension line display
- Dimension line arrow symbol display
- Extension line display
- Extension line angle
- Dimension text value

Tip

Modifying perpendicular dimensions

Once the perpendicular dimensions have been created, they act independently of one another and can be selected and modified as described in this chapter.

Modifying a dimension feature's geometry

- 1. Click the Task dropdown arrow and click Modify Feature.
- Click the Edit tool and click the dimension feature whose geometry you want to modify.
- Position the pointer over the vertex that corresponds to the aspect of the dimension's geometry you want to modify.
- 4. Click and drag the vertex to the desired location.

As you move your mouse, the dimension feature dynamically updates itself so you can see how the feature will look after you have modified its geometry. ►

🕨 🔊 🔻 Task: Modify Feature	•	1
Task: Modify Feature Greate Tasks Greate Tasks Greate A-Point Line Feat Greate A-Point Line Feat Greate A-Point Line Feat Modify Tasks Modify Tasks Greate A-Point Line Feat Getter A-Cut Polyogn Features Minor Features Modify Feature Galbrate Route Features Modify Features Modify Features Galbrate Route Feature Galbrate Galbrate	e e e b Line n Area	1
•	Þ	

Edito<u>r</u> 🔻





Тір

Modifying a dimension feature's geometry attributes

In addition to using the Modify tool, you can also use the Attributes dialog box to modify the dimension feature's geometry. 5. Right-click over any part of the sketch and click Finish Sketch.

The dimension feature's geometry is updated.



Modifying a dimension feature's style

- Click the Edit tool and click the dimension feature whose style you want to modify.
- 2. Click the Attributes button.

The Attributes dialog box appears. Notice that there is a special Attributes dialog box for modifying the attributes of a dimension feature.

 Click the Dimension Style dropdown list and click the dimension style you want to assign to this feature. ►







4. Click Commit.

The dimension feature updates itself to reflect the new style.

 Click the Close button to close the Attributes dialog box.



15

Working with a versioned geodatabase

IN THIS CHAPTER

- Integrating versioning with your organization's work flow
- Registering data as versioned
- Creating and administering versions in ArcCatalog
- Working with versions in ArcMap
- Editing and conflict resolution
- Editing a version
- Versioning scenarios

With ArcGIS 8, multiple users can access geographic data in a geodatabase through versioning. Versioning lets users simultaneously create multiple, persistent representations of the database without data replication. Users can edit the same features or rows without explicitly applying locks to prohibit other users from modifying the same data.

An organization can use versioning to manage alternative engineering designs, solve complex what-if scenarios without impacting the corporate database, and create point-in-time representations of the database.

Primarily, versioning simplifies the editing experience. Multiple users can directly modify the database without having to extract data or lock features and rows before editing. If, by chance, the same features are modified, a conflict resolution dialog box guides the user through the process of determining the feature's correct representation and attributes.

Versioned databases may contain topologies. For more information on how versioning affects topologies, see *Building a Geodatabase*.

Versioned databases may also be the checkout databases for disconnected editors. For more on using a versioned database for disconnected editing, see *Building a Geodatabase*.

Integrating versioning with your organization's work flow

The geodatabase and versioning provide organizations with advanced data storage techniques that revolutionize the *work flow* process in many applications where spatial information is used. Engineers can generate design alternatives using the entire database. Spatial analysts can perform complex what-if scenarios without affecting the current representation of the database. Database administrators can create historical snapshots of the database for archiving or database recovery.

In the long run, an organization benefits from implementing a versioned database. The data is centrally located in one corporate database. There is never a need to extract units of the database to update, or lock, map sheets or individual features. These factors simplify the administrative process.

The work flow process

The evolution of the work flow process—how projects or *work orders* transpire over time—varies greatly from organization to organization and throughout each sector of the business community. Therefore, the geodatabase's versioning process has been designed to be flexible enough to accommodate the most basic of work flow processes as well as the most complex and to be sufficiently restrictive with or without additional application customization.

Common work flow processes usually progress in discrete stages. At each stage, different requirements or business rules may be enforced. Typically, during each stage of the process, the project or work order is associated by a named stage. For example, within the utility domain, common stages include working, proposed, accepted, under construction, and as built. The process is essentially cyclical. The work order is initially generated and assigned to an engineer and modified over time as it progresses from stage to stage, and finally the changes are posted, or applied, back to the corporate database.



A common work flow process evolving through each stage of a project

This is one example of how versioning can help simplify the work flow process. Because the work flow process may span days, months, and even years, the corporate database requires continuous availability for daily operations. If a work order applied restrictive locks to the data involved in the process, other database users might not be able to perform their daily work assignments.

To implement your work flow in the geodatabase, versions can be created to correspond with each stage of the work flow process. Alternatively, you may want to create one version for each work order and modify the version's name to represent the current stage as the process proceeds through each step.

The current structure of your organization's work flow significantly influences how the geodatabase's versioning process is implemented to manage your spatial transactions. The flexibility and openness of the system allows you to determine the best solution to meet the requirements of your business processes.

The remaining sections of this chapter will help illustrate how to use ArcCatalog and ArcMap to perform various versioning tasks. In particular, the last section provides examples of how an organization can implement work flow processes using the geodatabase's versioning capabilities. For additional details on managing your organization's work flow with versions, read *Modeling Our World*.

Registering data as versioned

Before editing *feature datasets*, *feature classes*, and *tables*, you must first register the data as versioned in ArcCatalog.

Making a feature class or table multiversioned requires a unique integer *field*. Only the owner of the data may register or unregister the object as versioned.

When unregistering a dataset or feature class as versioned in ArcCatalog, a warning dialog box may appear informing you that outstanding edits still remain in existing versions. Therefore, unregistering the class as versioned will remove all the edits. To preserve the edits, you must compress the database.

Тір

Registering data as versioned

Registering a feature dataset as versioned registers all feature classes within the feature dataset as versioned.

- In the ArcCatalog tree, rightclick the feature dataset, feature class, or table you want to register as versioned.
- 2. Click Register As Versioned.

₩ C:\				
🕂 🔯 C:\Data	9			
🕂 🧖 D:\work	king\arekans	sas\data\access		
🕂 🐻 \\Ella\d	d\oub\buas			
🕂 🧑 Databa	se Connectio	ons		
🕺 🕺 Ado	OLE DB Co	nnection		
	d Spatial Dat	abase Connection	1	
🖻 💆 mic	key_gdb.sde	•		
🚊 🕀 🐯	Geocoding	Services		
1 →→ ⊕ ∰	gdb.GrUtilitie	es		
 ⊕⊡	gdb.Mor 🖻	<u>C</u> opy	Ctrl+C	
±- -	gdb.Mor 💼	l Paste	Ctrl+V	
±- - -	gdb.GrL 🔍	D-I-I-		
÷	gdb.Elec 🔨	<u>. D</u> elete		
÷	gdb.CAG	Rena <u>m</u> e		
±- _	gdb.Erik	<u>R</u> efresh		
≞⊸⊡	gdb.CAE	D 11 A V	2	
± tot	gdb.US/	Hegister As Ver	sioned -	
±	gdb.Dim	Analyze		
	gdb.wat —	Nou		
±	gdb.GrU	New	<u> </u>	
±	gdb.Simj	Import	•	
	gablinae	Europet.		
	gab.Mis(Export	· · · ·	
	gub.Far(Privileges		
±	gdb Brac			
i i	gab.brat 🖺	 Properties 		

🔊 Catalog

Creating and administering versions in ArcCatalog

ArcCatalog lets you create new versions, rename existing versions, delete versions, and modify version properties. These administrative tasks are accomplished using the Version Manager dialog box.

Initially, the database consists of one version named DEFAULT owned by the ArcSDE administrative user. The new versions that are created are always based on an existing version. When the new version is created, it is identical to the version from which it was derived. Over time, the versions will diverge as changes are made to the parent version and to the new version.

A version consists of several properties: an alphanumeric name, an owner, an optional description, the creation date, the last modified date, the parent version, and the version's permission.

Creating a new version

- Create a new connection to the database in ArcCatalog with the Add SDE Connection dialog box.
- Right-click your database connection in the Catalog tree and click Versions. ►



Version Manager (gdb on mickey)			
Name	Owner	Access	Last Modified
DEFAULT	SDE	Public	9/6/2000 5:17:07 PM

A version's permission can only be changed by its owner. The available permission settings are:

- Private—only the owner may view the version and modify available feature classes.
- Protected—any user may view the version, but only the owner may modify available feature classes.
- Public—any user may view the version and modify available feature classes.

Only the version's owner can rename, delete, or alter the version. A parent version cannot be deleted until all dependent child versions are first deleted.

To improve database performance, the database should be compressed periodically. Compressing the database removes all unreferenced database states and redundant rows. Only the ArcSDE administrator can perform this task. When the *Compress* command is executed, the database is unavailable until compression is completed. For additional details, see the versioning scenarios section at the end of the chapter. ►

- 3. Right-click a version and click New.
- 4. Type the new version's name.
- 5. Type a description.
- Click the appropriate permission type; the default is Private.
- 7. Click OK.



	New Version 🗙
	Name
4-	REDLANDS SUB 16A
	Description
5-	Work Order number - NRA33074
	Permission
Γ	O Prįvate
6	○ <u>P</u> ublic
	Protected
	I
	QK Cancel
	0

Finally, after compressing the database or editing the data, the Analyze command should be executed to update the database statistics for each dataset or feature class. This will help improve display and query performance.

Тір

Descriptions

Descriptions are useful for providing meaningful information regarding the version's purpose.

Renaming a version

- 1. Right-click your database connection and click Versions.
- 2. Right-click the version you want to rename and click Rename.
- 3. Type a new name and press Enter.

Version Manager (gdb on mick) Name Owner DESIGN ORDER E73 GDB REDLANDS SUB 164 GDB DEFAULT New... Rename 2 Delete Refresh Properties... Properties...

2

Deleting a version

- Right-click your database connection and click Versions.
- 2. Right-click the version you want to delete.
- 3. Click Delete or press Delete on your keyboard.



Тір

Refresh

Use the Refresh command to update the properties of each version with their current values.

Changing a version's properties

- Right-click your database connection and click Versions.
- 2. Right-click a version.
- 3. Click Properties.
- 4. Type the new description.
- 5. Click the new permission type.
- 6. Click OK.



Version Properties	s <u>?</u>
General	
÷	REDLANDS SUB 16A
Owner:	GDB
Parent Version:	SDE.DEFAULT
Created:	9/7/2000 6:21:48 PM
Modified:	9/6/2000 5:17:07 PM
Description	
Work order num	ber - NRA33074
Permission C Private C Public © Protected	
	OK Cancel Apply

See Also

For more information on how to customize ArcCatalog, see Using ArcCatalog and Exploring ArcObjects.

Adding the Compress command to ArcCatalog

- 1. In ArcCatalog, click View, point to Toolbars, and click Customize.
- Check Context Menus in the list of toolbars. ►

🔊 ArcInfo - ArcCatalog - Database Connections\mic			
<u>File Edit View Go</u> Tools <u>H</u> elp	2		
🔁 😋 <u>T</u> oolbars 🕨	🖌 Main menu		
Status Bar	🖌 Standard 🗕		
Catalog Tree	🖌 Geography		
<u>R</u> efresh F5	Location		
	Metadata 📃 N		
	<u>C</u> ustomize		
E:\working\arckansas\dat	⊻iew Source		
Image: Construction with the second secon			

Customize	?
Tool <u>b</u> ars <u>C</u> ommands <u>O</u> ptions	
Toolb <u>a</u> rs:	
Main menu	<u>N</u> ew
✓ Standard ✓ Geography	Rename
✓ Location	Delete
Metadata	Beset
	<u> </u>
Save in: 🔽 🔣	eyboard Add from file Close

- 3. Click the Context Menus menu.
- Click the arrow next to the Remote Database Context Menu.

The Remote Database Context Menu submenu will remain open.

- 5. Click the Commands tab in the Customize dialog box.
- 6. Click Geodatabase tools.
- Click and drag the Compress Database command from the Commands list and drop it on the Remote Database Context Menu submenu.

The command appears in the context menu.

8. Click Close on the Customize dialog box.



Тір

Analyze

After compressing a database, always analyze your data to update the database statistics.

See Also

For more information on how to administer an ArcSDE database, see Managing ArcSDE Services.

See Also

For more information on how to create connections to databases in ArcCatalog, see Using ArcCatalog.

Compressing the database

- In ArcCatalog, create a new database connection as the ArcSDE administrative user.
- 2. Right-click the new database connection and click Compress Database.



Working with versions in ArcMap

In ArcMap, you can view and work with multiple versions simultaneously, create new versions, and change the feature classes or tables from one version to another version. You can also use the version manager, refresh a version's *workspace* connection, and modify available feature classes in ArcMap.

To create a new version, at least one version must be present in the map. If multiple versions are present, you will need to specify the parent version. The newly created version will then be identical to the parent version.

Changing versions allows you to quickly navigate between two versions by changing the feature classes currently in the map. This simplifies the process of viewing the differences between feature classes or performing an analysis with two versions. ►

Тір

Creating new versions

Create alternative versions as online backups to the original version.

Creating a new version in ArcMap

- 1. Add the Versioning toolbar to the map.
- Click the Create New Version button. At least one version is required to be in ArcMap prior to the command becoming enabled.
- Click the Parent Version dropdown arrow and click the parent version from which you want to create the new version.
- 4. Type the new version's name.
- 5. Optionally, type a description.
- 6. Click the appropriate permission type.
- Optionally, if you are not currently editing, check the check box to switch the parent version to the new version.
- 8. Click OK.



New Version 🗙	
Parent Version:	
SDE.DEFAULT	-3
Name	
CHESTNUT SQUARE SUBDIVISION	-4
Description	
New subdivision - 1110 Chestnut	
	_5
Permission	_
Private	
O Public	6
C Protected	
Switch to this new version	
OK Cancel	
0 0	

When a version workspace is changed to a different version, all feature classes present in the workspace will represent the target version.

Two methods are available in ArcMap for changing versions. You can change versions from the Versioning toolbar or in the table of contents.

When you work in a multiuser environment, the database may be modified by another user at the same time you're viewing the database. Therefore, the feature classes present in ArcMap may become outdated.

To update the feature classes in ArcMap, you can refresh one or all of the version workspaces present.

To refresh all the versions, click the Refresh button on the Versioning toolbar. To refresh an individual workspace, use the Refresh command on the table of contents context menu.

While you are editing, the Refresh button and the Refresh command for the version's workspace are unavailable. ►

Тір

The Change Version command

Use the Change Version command instead of adding multiple version workspaces to your map document.

Changing versions

- Click the Source tab at the bottom of the ArcMap table of contents to list the workspaces in your map.
- 2. Right-click a version workspace.
- 3. Click Change Version.
- 4. Click the version to which you want to change.
- 5. Click OK.







You can have as many versions in the map as needed, but you can only edit one version per *edit session*.

Tip

Preserving a version

If you need to preserve a current representation of the database, create a new version before refreshing.

Refreshing a workspace

1. Click the Refresh button on the Versioning toolbar.



Editing and conflict resolution

The geodatabase is designed to efficiently manage and support long *transactions* using versions. The geodatabase also allows multiple users to edit the same version at the same time. Each edit session in ArcMap is its own representation of the version until you save. Saving the edit session applies your modifications to the version, making these changes immediately accessible in the database.

When multiple users simultaneously edit a version or *reconcile* two versions, *conflicts* can occur. Reconciling is the process of merging two versions. Conflicts occur when the same feature or topologically related features are edited by two or more users and the database is unclear about which representation is valid. Conflicts are rare but can occur when overlapping geographic areas in the database are edited. To ensure database integrity, the geodatabase detects when a feature has been edited in two versions and reports it as a conflict. ArcMap provides the necessary tools for conflict resolution, but your interaction is still required to make the final decision as to the feature's correct representation.

ArcMap provides tools to resolve conflicts as well as the necessary tools to reconcile and *post* versions. The next sections explain these capabilities in more detail.

Geodatabases that contain topologies have additional rules, error detections, and validation techniques. For more information on topologies, see Chapter 4, 'Editing topology', or *Building a Geodatabase*.

Reconcile

The Reconcile button in ArcMap merges all modifications between the current edit session and a target version you select. Any differences between the features in the target version and the features in the edit session are applied to the edit session. Differences can consist of newly inserted, deleted, or updated features. The reconcile process detects these differences and discovers any conflicts. If conflicts exist, a message is displayed followed by the conflict resolution dialog box. Reconciling happens before posting a version to a target version. A target version is any version in the direct ancestry of the version, such as the parent version or the DEFAULT version.

In addition, the reconcile process requires that you are the only user currently editing the version and that you are the only user able to edit the version throughout the reconcile process until you save or post. If another user is simultaneously editing the version or attempts to start editing since you have reconciled, an error message will inform you that the version is currently in use.

The reconcile process requires that you have full permissions to all the feature classes that have been modified in the version being edited. If a feature class is modified in the version for which you do not have update privileges, an error message appears. You will not be able to reconcile the versions; a user with adequate permissions to perform the reconcile must do this for you.



An error message appears when you do not have permissions to a feature class to reconcile versions.

For example, suppose you have completed your changes in a version and need to post the version to the database. You must first reconcile the version with a target version you select, resolve any conflicts if necessary, then post.

Autoreconciliation

When multiple users are simultaneously editing the same version and one user has already saved his or her edit session, ArcMap can notify you when you save that the edit session has been reconciled with the version's current representation. You also have the option to explicitly perform the reconcile and save without notification. You may want the notification to allow further inspection of the results from the reconciliation. It's an opportunity to review the difference introduced from the reconciliation between the edit session and the current version's representation. If conflicts are detected, you will be informed with a warning message, and the save process will fail.

Save Edits
Your edits could not be saved because the target version has been updated since you started editing. These edits have been merged into your edit session. Review the changes and save again.
OK.

This message indicates when an edit session could not be saved because other users have modified and saved their edit session prior to the current user saving his or her edit session.

Post

You can post a version after you have first performed a reconcile. Once the edit session has reconciled with a target version, clicking the Post button synchronizes the edit session with the reconciled version and performs a save. Posting cannot be undone, as you are applying changes to a version that you are not currently editing. If the reconciled version is modified between reconciling and posting, you will be notified to reconcile again before posting.



This message indicates that the target version has been modified since the reconciliation; reconcile again before posting.

Conflicts

Conflicts occur when the same feature, or topologically related features or relationship classes, is modified in two versions: the current version being edited and a target version. Conflict detection only occurs during the reconciliation process. If conflicts are detected, a message appears followed by the conflict resolution dialog box.

There are three categories of conflicts: when the same feature has been updated in each version, when the same feature has been updated in one version and deleted in the other or vice versa, and when the same feature has been deleted in one version and updated in the other version.

When conflicts are detected, the parent version's feature representation takes precedence over the edit session's representation. Therefore, all conflicting features in the current edit session are replaced by their representation in the parent version. If multiple users are editing the same version and conflicts are detected, the feature that was first saved, the current version's representation, is preserved by replacing the edit session's feature representation. ArcMap ensures database integrity by forcing you to interactively inspect each conflict and resolve the conflict by replacing the feature in the current version with your edit session's representation.

Conflict resolution

Once conflicts are detected, a conflict resolution dialog box appears, containing all the conflict classes and their features or rows in conflict. The conflict resolution dialog box allows you to interactively resolve conflicts at the level of the feature class or individual feature. Resolving the conflict implies that you will make a decision as to the feature's correct representation; this could mean doing nothing at all if you are satisfied with the current feature's representation.

You can choose from three representations of the conflicting feature or row to resolve the conflict. The pre-edit version is the feature's representation when you initially started editing, before making any changes. The edit session version represents the feature as it existed before you performed the reconcile. The last representation is the conflict version, the feature's representation in the conflicting version.



The lateral in blue as it existed prior to editing (A), the lateral after being modified (B), and the three representations during conflict resolution (C).

Selecting a feature class or individual feature displays any of the three representations of the feature in the map. The pre-edit's version is displayed in yellow, the edit session's version is displayed in green, and the conflict's version is displayed in red. You can also optionally enable or disable the display settings for each version—pre-edit, edit session, and conflict—by clicking

the Display command on the context menu and checking or unchecking the corresponding version.

When you select a feature in the conflict resolution dialog box, each version's representation of the feature's or row's attributes is listed in the bottom half of the box. A red dot to the left of the field name identifies why the feature is a conflict. For example, if the feature's geometry was edited in each version, a red dot appears next to the shape field. The same principle holds true for attribute conflicts. If a feature has been deleted in either version, <deleted> appears for that version's attribute value. Therefore, a red dot marks each column, signifying that each column is an update/delete or a delete/update conflict.

Conflicts			×
Conflicts			
Property	Conflict	Edit	Pre-Edit
FID SHAPE SEG_JD SYMBOL PIPE_SIZE ACC_NO SEW_NO MATERIAL SEW_SHAPE HEIGHT WIDTH INST_YEAR DRAIN_AREA SEP_COMB PUB_PRI	1 33211070 14 8 38952 STEEL CIRC 0 0 1982 S.BRANCH SEPTIC PUBLIC	1 33211070 6 8 16-A 38952 STEEL CIRC 0 0 1982 S.BRANCH SEPTIC PUBLIC	1 33211070 14 8 16-A 38952 STEEL CIRC 0 0 1982 S.BRANCH SEPTIC PUBLIC

This conflict resolution dialog box shows three feature classes with conflicts and a feature with each of its version's attributes.

Resolving a conflict implies that you made a conscious decision about the feature's correct representation. You can select the feature in the conflict resolution dialog box and replace the

current feature in the map with any of the three representations of the feature. This allows you to quickly update and replace conflicting features. If further modifications are required, you can simply use any of the ArcMap editing tools to update the feature.

Conflicts with geometric networks, feature-linked annotation, relationships, and topology

Resolving conflicts with features that are related to other features through *geometric networks*, feature-linked *annotation*, and *relationship classes* is different than resolving conflicts with simple feature classes. Because each of these feature classes has



The original water main (A), the water main changed to an 8-inch diameter in the first edit session (B), a new service was inserted in the second edit session (C), and the water main in red is shown as a conflict (D).

specific geodatabase behaviors that can impact other feature classes, resolving a feature conflict may impact related features.

When you edit network features, changes to the geometric network and to the logical network may create conflicts. For example, when you add a service to a main, the main will not be physically split in the geometric network but will be split in the *logical network*. Therefore, while you have not directly edited the main's geometry, it has been edited logically. If the target version you are reconciling has also modified the main, then the new service you inserted will create a conflict with the main.

Resolving a conflict involving geometric network feature classes requires understanding how the Replace With command in the conflict resolution dialog box will update the existing network topology present in the edit session.

In the previous example, two users modified the water main—one by changing an attribute and the second by connecting a new service. Resolving the conflict would merely require investigating the differences and seeing that the conflict is valid and no further resolution is required. Since the main contains the correct attribute for the diameter, the new service is correctly connected to the main. But there are cases when resolving conflicts involving a junction feature class will also update the connected network edge.

Working with feature-linked annotation requires remembering one rule: when replacing a feature that has feature-linked annotation, both the feature and the annotation are replaced with the new feature and annotation. You may have to further edit the new annotation. For example, you may encounter a conflict in which you have moved a feature and repositioned its annotation. The conflict version has performed the same edit, moving the feature and rotating the annotation. Your decision is to replace the feature with the conflict version's feature. This action deletes the existing feature-linked annotation, inserts the conflict feature, and

creates a new annotation. You will then need to further edit the new annotation by moving and rotating it as necessary.

Relationships have similar dependencies to feature-linked annotation. Deleting a feature from an origin relationship class may trigger a message to delete a feature from the destination relationship class. Therefore, be aware of the ramifications of simply replacing conflicts involving feature classes that participate in relationship classes.

An example of when a conflict can arise between relationship classes is if you were to update the origin class primary field, breaking the relationship in version A. At the same time, in version B, the destination class-related feature is also updated. When you reconcile the versions, since the destination class is dependent on the origin class, a conflict is detected. A similar example is if you were to delete a pole that has a relationship to a transformer, the transformer is also deleted. But in the conflict version, the transformer's attributes are edited. An update/delete conflict would be detected when reconciled.

For more information on topologies, see Chapter 4, 'Editing topology', or *Building a Geodatabase*.

Editing a version

The ArcMap editing toolbar provides the arena for editing versions, reconciling versions, resolving conflicts, and posting versions.

When you start editing, if multiple versions are present in the map, you will have to select one version. Starting an edit session on a version creates a new, unnamed, temporary version that exists until you save or end the edit session. You are the only user who can see your changes until you explicitly save.

When saving an edit session, you have an option to enable or disable autoreconciliation. If enabled, autoreconciliation will automatically reconcile your edit session with the version's current database state and save, making your changes available to others using the database. If autoreconciliation is not enabled, then when you save, your edit session will be reconciled with the version's current database state. A message will inform you that the edit session has been reconciled but has not been saved. This will only occur if a second user has also edited the version and saved since you ►

Enabling and disabling autoreconciliation

- 1. Click Editor and click Start Editing.
- 2. Click Editor and click Options.
- 3. Click the Versioning tab.
- Check the check box to enable or disable autoreconciliation.
- 5. Click OK.



started editing. You will need to save again to make your changes available to others using the database.

Based on your organization's work flow, you may eventually need to reconcile two versions. Reconciliation is the process of merging features from a target version into the current edit session. Reconciliation must be done before posting changes to another version.

During reconciliation, conflicts may be discovered. Conflicts arise when the same feature is updated in each version or updated in one and deleted in the other.

When conflicts arise, an interactive conflict resolution dialog box will provide the tools necessary to resolve the conflicts. For each conflict, you can choose whether to replace the feature in your edit session with the conflict version, the version from your edit session, or the version as it existed at the beginning of your edit session.

Once you have successfully completed the reconciliation, you can post the version. The post operation synchronizes your edit session with the target version. They are then identical.

Reconciling

- 1. Click the Reconcile button on the Versioning toolbar.
- 2. Click the target version.
- 3. Click OK.



Posting

1. Click the Post button on the Versioning toolbar.



Displaying conflicts

- 1. Click the Conflicts button on the Versioning toolbar.
- 2. Right-click Conflicts and click Display.
- 3. Click the appropriate check box to display each conflict category.
- 4. Click OK.
- Click the Close button to close the Conflicts dialog box.




ArcInfo and ArcEditor

See Also

For information on typology and versioning, see Building a Geodatabase.

Resolving conflicts

- 1. Click the Conflicts button on the Versioning toolbar.
- 2. Click a feature class.
- 3. Click a feature and right-click to display the context menu.
- 4. Click the appropriate Replace With command to resolve the conflict.
- 5. Click the Close button to close the Conflicts dialog box.

Conflicts				×
⊡ - Conflicts ⊡ - Mains 				
Junctions				
Property	Conflict	Edit	Pre-Edit	
FID • SHAPE	1	1	1	
SEG_ID	33211070	33211070	33211070	
SYMBOL	14	6	14	
ACC NO	8 16.4	8 16.A	8 16.A	
SEW NO	38952	38952	38952	
MATERIAL	STEEL	STEEL	STEEL	
SEW_SHAPE	CIRC	CIRC	CIRC	
HEIGHT	0	0	0	
WIDTH	1000	0	0	
DBAIN ABEA	S BRANCH	1982 9 ddanigu	C PDANCU	
	J. DI MINUT	J. DHANCH	J. DHANCH	
SEP COMB	SEPTIC	SEPTIC	SEPTIC	



ArcInfo and ArcEditor

Versioning scenarios

The following scenarios show how an organization can implement its work flow process using a versioned database. These examples demonstrate several techniques available for performing long transactions in a multiuser environment. It is likely that organizations will, in some manner, use each of these techniques, depending on the task.

Scenario 1: Simple database modifications

Task: Multiple users are concurrently editing the database, performing common map sheet changes, such as inserting new features, updating attributes, and removing out-of-date facilities.

Solution: Users can simply connect to the DEFAULT version, simultaneously, start editing, and save their changes when their work is complete. Users do not have to create new versions to modify the database. If another user has edited the DEFAULT version since the current user has started editing, the user saving is notified that the version has been changed, and therefore, the version will need to be saved again. Users may bypass this warning message by enabling autoreconciliation in the ArcMap Options dialog box. Also, if two users modify the same feature during their edit sessions, the second user to save encounters a conflict. The user then has to decide what the feature's correct representation is and save the edit session.

Scenario 2: Transactions spanning multiple days

Task: Update the database to incorporate new and updated facilities in the field, which will likely require multiple edit sessions and a couple of days to complete.

Solution: A user creates and switches to a new version derived from the DEFAULT version. The user starts editing the new version and begins modifying features and saving as required. The user can resume the edit session, as appropriate, the following day or possibly the following week. When the changes are complete and ready to be posted to the DEFAULT version, the user must first click the Reconcile button on the Versioning toolbar. If conflicts are detected, the user can resolve the differences and complete the transaction by clicking the Post button. The posting process applies all the changes in the user's version to the DEFAULT version. The user can then delete the version.

Scenario 3: A work flow process

Task: Create individual versions for each step or stage of the work order and work flow process and post the work order to the database.

Solution: A user or supervisor creates a new version derived from the DEFAULT version. The user starts editing the new version and begins modifying features or creating a new design. When the user has completed the design or proposed modifications, the work order can be submitted to a supervisor for review. At this time, a new version can be created to ensure the preservation of the initial design. The new version can then be further modified or adjusted as required. Once the work order has been approved for construction, another version can be created. The purpose of this version is to reflect any changes that may occur while the work order is being constructed in the field. Finally, as the construction is completed and the new facilities are in service, the work order must be posted to the database. A user can then start editing the work order, perform a reconcile with the DEFAULT version, resolve any conflicts, if necessary, and post.

The solution allows the organization to create new versions of the work order for each step of the project—the initial design or proposed version, a working or accepted version, and a version for the construction phase. Each version is preserved and available to look back on for historical purposes. The final step is to post the constructed version to the database. The project

ArcInfo and ArcEditor

completes a full circle from start to finish, creating individual versions at each step.

Scenario 4: Restricting permissions to the database

Task: The organization's supervisor has restricted write access to the DEFAULT version, requiring managerial review of each user's edits prior to posting the changes to the database.

Solution: To restrict write permissions to the database (the DEFAULT version), the ArcSDE administrative user can set the permission of the DEFAULT version to protected using the version manager. This allows users to continue to view the DEFAULT version but does not allow users to start editing the version. Therefore, users will need to create new versions for editing the database, similar to Scenario 2. When a user has completed and saved the edit session, the ArcSDE administrator can reconcile the version with the DEFAULT version. To accomplish this task, the manager who connects to the database as the ArcSDE administrator starts editing the user's version and clicks the Reconcile button. The process will merge all the changes in the user's version and the DEFAULT version. If conflicts are detected, the manager can resolve the conflicts and save the edit session. Once the edits are acceptable to the manager, the version is ready to be posted to the DEFAULT version. The ArcSDE administrative user can then start editing the version, perform a reconcile, and post the version. The user's version can then be deleted.

Scenario 5: Compressing the database

Task: The geodatabase has been edited for an extended time, and the number of database states and rows in each feature classes' delta tables has significantly increased. How do we improve performance by running the Compress command? Solution: The Compress command will remove all database states that are no longer referenced by a version and move all the rows in the delta tables, which are common to all versions, to the base table. To achieve the maximum benefit when running the Compress command, you will need to first reconcile, post, and delete each version with the DEFAULT version. Sometimes this may not be a reasonable option based on your organization's work flow. At minimum, to improve performance, simply reconcile each version with the DEFAULT version and save, then perform the compress. This will ensure that all the edits in the DEFAULT version will be compressed from the delta tables to the business table. Remember, the Compress command can still be executed without first reconciling, posting, and deleting each version, but the benefits may not be as noticeable.

Glossary

active data frame

The data frame in a map that is currently being worked on—for example, the data frame to which layers are being added. The active data frame is shown in bold text in the ArcMap table of contents.

alias

Another name for a field in a table.

aligned dimension

A dimension that runs parallel to the baseline and represents the true distance between the beginning and end dimension points.

annotation

1. Descriptive text used to label features. It is used for display, not for analysis.

2. A feature class used to label other features. Information stored for annotation includes a text string, the location at which it is displayed, and a text symbol—color, font, size, and so on—for display.

3. The process of automating text placement or the text associated with a feature or an area on a map.

arc-node topology

Arcs represent linear features and the borders of area features in a coverage. Every arc has a fromnode, which is the first vertex in the arc, and a to-node, which is the last vertex. Nodes indicate the endpoints and intersections of arcs. They do not exist as independent features. Together they define the direction of the arc. Arc-node topology defines connectivity in coverages—arcs are connected to each other if they share a common node.

ArcInfo workspace

A file-based collection of coverages, grids, TINs, or shapefiles stored as a directory of folders in the file system.

ArcSDE

A gateway to a multiuser commercial RDBMS—for example, Oracle[®], Microsoft[®] SQL ServerTM, Informix[®], and IBM[®] DB2[®]. ArcSDE is an open, high-performance spatial data server that employs

client/server architecture to perform efficient spatial operations and manage large, shared geographic data. Was known as a Spatial Database EngineTM (SDE[®]) before 1999.

asynchronous

Operations or events that do not happen at the same time. In disconnected editing, modifying the properties of a check-out is an asynchronous operation; changes made to the check-out in a master geodatabase do not affect the associated check-out in a check-out geodatabase.

attribute

A characteristic of a map feature. Attributes of a river might include its name, length, average depth, and so on.

attribute domain

A named constraint in the database. An attribute constraint can be applied to a field of a subtype of a feature class or object class to make an attribute rule. Types of attribute domains include range and coded value domains.

attribute table

A database management system (DBMS) or other tabular file containing rows and columns. In ArcInfo, attribute tables are associated with a class of geographic features such as wells or roads. Each row represents a geographic feature. Each column represents one attribute of a feature, with the same column representing the same attribute in each row. See also feature attribute table.

Attributes dialog box

A dialog box that lets you view and edit attributes of features you've selected in ArcMap.

azimuth

An angle measured from north. Often used to define an oblique cylindrical projection or the angle of a geodesic between two points.

behavior

Properties of an object in a geodatabase that describe how it can be edited and drawn. Behavior includes, but is not limited to, validation rules, subtypes, default values, and relationships.

buffer

A zone of a specified distance around features. Both constantand variable-width buffers can be generated on each feature's attribute values. The resulting buffer zones form polygons that are either inside or outside the specified buffer distance from each feature. Buffers are useful for proximity analysis—for example, to find all stream segments within 300 feet of a proposed logging area.

CAD

See computer-aided design.

CAD feature class

A feature class in a CAD dataset. A CAD feature dataset is composed of feature classes representing all the points, lines, polygons, or annotation in the CAD drawing—for example, a CAD drawing may contain two line layers representing roads and parcel boundaries, respectively. The CAD dataset's line feature class represents all features in both the road and parcel boundary layers.

centroid

The mathematical or geographical center point of a polygon or the midpoint of a line.

check-out

A geodatabase entity that represents data that has been checked out to or from another geodatabase.

check-out geodatabase

A personal or ArcSDE geodatabase that contains data checked out from a master geodatabase.

check-out version

A version created in a check-out ArcSDE geodatabase when data was checked out. This version is created as a child of the synchronization version. Only the edits made to this check-out version can be checked back in to the master geodatabase.

checking in

The process of transferring changes to a master geodatabase.

checking out

The process of copying data to a check-out geodatabase.

circle

A geometric shape for which the distance from the center to any point on the edge is equal.

circular arc

When creating features, it is often necessary to create a circular arc. Instead of being made of numerous vertices, a circular arc has only two vertices as endpoints. ArcMap offers four ways to create a segment that is a circular arc. These include the Arc tool, the Endpoint Arc tool, the Tangent Curve tool, and the Tangent Curve command.

cluster tolerance

The minimum distance between vertices in the topology. Vertices that fall within the cluster tolerance will be snapped together

during the validate topology process. The default cluster tolerance is the minimum possible cluster tolerance, based on the precision and extent defined for the spatial reference of the dataset. See also fuzzy tolerance, used analogously in coverage data model.

clustering

A part of the topology validation process in which vertices that fall within the cluster tolerance are snapped together.

coincident

Vertices or boundaries are coincident when they are within the cluster tolerance of one another. See also cluster tolerance.

column

The vertical dimension of a table. A column has a name and a data type applied to all values in the column. See also item, field, and attribute.

compress

The process of shrinking the size of a database or file. Improves database performance by removing redundant rows shared by multiple versions. The process can only be run by the ArcSDE administrator.

computer-aided design

An automated system for the design, drafting, and display of graphically oriented information.

conflict

In the versioning reconciliation process, if the same feature in the edit version and reconciliation version have both been edited, the feature is said to be in conflict. Resolving the conflict requires you to make the decision as to the feature's correct representation using the conflict resolution dialog box.

connectivity

1. In a geodatabase, the state of edges and junctions in a logical network that controls flow, tracing, and pathfinding.

2. The topological identification in a coverage of connected arcs by recording the from- and to-node for each arc. Arcs that share a common node are connected. See also arc–node topology.

connectivity rules

Network rules that constrain the type of network features that may be connected to one another and the number of features of any particular type that can be connected to features of another type. In most networks, not all edge types can logically connect to all junction types. Similarly, not all edge types can logically connect to all other edge types through all junction types. There are two types of connectivity rules: edge–junction and edge– edge.

constraints

In real-world databases, an object's attributes can't have any particular value based solely on what data types and ranges a particular field type in the database allows. In reality, the permissible values are a range or list of values.

construct features

The process of taking selected features from one or more feature classes and creating new features in a target feature class in an edit session. The Construct Features tool uses the input geometries of the selected features to construct polygons or lines following polygon boundaries, depending on the geometry of the target feature class.

contiguity

In coverages, the topological identification of adjacent polygons by recording the left and right polygons of each arc. See also polygon–arc topology.

control points

Points you establish on a paper map to represent known ground points or specific locations. Control points are used to register a paper map before you begin digitizing features on it with a digitizer.

coordinate

A set of numbers that designate location in a given reference system such as x,y in a planar coordinate system or x,y,z in a three-dimensional coordinate system. Coordinates represent locations on the earth's surface relative to other locations.

coordinate system

1. A reference system used to measure horizontal and vertical distances on a planimetric map. A coordinate system is usually defined by a map projection; a spheroid of reference; a datum; one or more standard parallels; a central meridian; and possible shifts in the x- and y-directions to locate x,y positions of point, line, and area features.

2. In ArcInfo, a system with units and characteristics defined by a map projection. A common coordinate system is used to spatially register geographic data for the same area.

coverage

A file-based vector data storage format for storing the location, shape, and attributes of geographic features. A coverage usually represents a single theme, such as soils, streams, roads, or land use. It is one of the primary vector data storage formats for ArcInfo.

A coverage stores geographic features as primary features, such as arcs, nodes, polygons, and label points, and secondary features, such as tics, map extent, links, and annotation. Associated feature attribute tables describe and store attributes of the geographic features.

cracking

A part of the topology validation process in which vertices are created at the intersection of feature edges.

current task

During editing in ArcMap, a setting in the Current Task dropdown list that determines with which task the sketch construction tools—Sketch, Arc, Distance–Distance, and Intersection—will work. The current task is set by clicking a task in the Current Task dropdown list. All tasks in the Current Task dropdown list work with a sketch that you create—for example, the Create New Feature task uses a sketch you create to make a new feature. The Extend/Trim Feature task uses a sketch you create to determine where the selected feature will be extended or trimmed. The Cut Polygon Feature task uses a sketch you create to determine where the polygon will be cut.

custom behavior

Behavior is the implementation of an object class method. ESRIprovided objects have a set of methods associated with them. A developer can choose to override one of these methods or create additional methods. In this instance, the object is said to have custom behavior.

custom feature

A feature with specialized behavior instantiated in a class by a developer.

custom object

Objects that have custom behavior provided by a developer.

dangle tolerance

The minimum length allowed for dangling arcs in coverages in the ArcInfo Clean process. Clean removes dangling arcs that are shorter than the dangle length. Also known as the dangle length.

dangling arc

In coverages, an arc having the same polygon on both its left and right sides and having at least one node that does not connect to any other arc. It often identifies where a polygon does not close properly—for example, undershoot—where arcs don't connect properly, or where an arc was digitized past its intersection with another arc—for example, overshoot. A dangling arc is not always an error—for example, dangling arcs can represent cul-de-sacs in street centerline maps.

data

A collection of related facts usually arranged in a particular format and gathered for a particular purpose.

data frame

In ArcMap, a frame on the map that displays layers occupying the same geographic area. You may have one or more data frames on your map depending upon how you want to organize your data. For instance, one data frame might highlight a study area, and another might provide an overview of where the study area is located.

data integrity

Maintenance of data values according to data model and data type—for example, to maintain integrity, numeric columns will not accept character data.

data source

Any geographic data, such as a coverage, shapefile, raster, or feature class, in a geodatabase.

data type

The characteristic of columns and variables that defines what types of data values they can store. Examples include character, floating point, and integer.

data view

An all-purpose view in ArcMap for exploring, displaying, and querying geographic data. This view hides all map elements such as titles, North arrows, and scalebars. See also layout view.

database

A collection of related files organized for efficient retrieval of information. In the context of an ArcSDE geodatabase, some relational databases group data together in discretely named databases—for example, SQL Server, Sybase[®]—while others do not—for example, Oracle.

dataset

1. Any feature class, table, or collection of feature classes or tables in the geodatabase.

2. A named collection of logically related data items arranged in a prescribed manner.

decimal degrees

Degrees of latitude and longitude expressed as a decimal rather than in degrees, minutes, and seconds.

default junction type

Two edge types may be connectable through more than one junction type. You can establish which of those junction types is the default for connecting the two edge types. This junction type is the default junction type.

digitizing

1. To encode geographic features in digital form as x,y coordinates.

2. The process of converting the features on a paper map into digital format. When you digitize a map, you use a digitizing tablet, or digitizer, connected to your computer and trace over

features with a digitizer puck, which is similar to a mouse. The x,y coordinates of these features are automatically recorded and stored as spatial data.

digitizing mode

Also called absolute mode, digitizing mode is one of the ways in which a digitizing tablet operates. In digitizing mode, the location of the tablet is mapped to a specific location on the screen. Moving the digitizer puck on the tablet surface causes the screen pointer to move to precisely the same position.

dimension contruction methods

Dimension construction methods dictate what type of dimension feature is created and the number of points required to complete the feature's geometry. Construction methods include simple aligned, aligned, linear, rotated linear, free aligned, and free linear.

dimension feature

Dimension features are a special kind of map annotation that show specific lengths or distances on a map. A dimension feature may indicate the length of a side of a building or land parcel or it may indicate the distance between two features such as a fire hydrant and the corner of a building. Dimension features are stored in a dimension feature class.

dimension feature class

In the geodatabase, dimension features are stored in dimension feature classes. Like other feature classes in the geodatabase, all features in a dimension feature class have a geographic location and attributes and can either be inside or outside of a feature dataset.

dimension style

A dimension feature's style describes its symbology, what parts of it are drawn, and how it is drawn. Every time you create a new

dimension feature, it is assigned a particular style. A collection of dimension styles is associated with a dimension feature class.

Dimensioning toolbar

A toolbar in ArcMap that facilitates the creation of dimension features.

direct connect

A two-tiered architecture for connecting to spatial databases. Direct connect does not require the ArcSDE application server to connect to a spatial database.

dirty areas

Areas that have been edited after the initial topology validation process. Dirty areas represent regions surrounding features that have been altered and that require an additional topology validation to be performed in order to discover any topology errors that may be present.

disconnected editing

The process of copying data to another geodatabase, editing that data, then merging the changes with the data in the source or master geodatabase.

distance units

The units—for example, feet, miles, meters, or kilometers— ArcMap uses to report measurements, dimensions of shapes, distance tolerances, and offsets.

double precision

Refers to a high level of coordinate accuracy based on the possible number of significant digits that can be stored for each coordinate. ArcInfo datasets can be stored in either single- or double-precision coordinates. Double-precision coverages store up to 15 significant digits per coordinate—typically, 13 to 14 significant digits—retaining the accuracy of much less than one meter at a global extent. See also single precision.

edge (topology)

A line segment in a topology that defines lines or polygon boundaries. Multiple features in one or more feature classes may share topology edges.

edge element

See logical network.

edge-edge rule

A connectivity rule that establishes that an edge of type A may connect to an edge of type B through a junction of type C. Edge–edge rules always involve a junction type.

edge-junction cardinality

A rule may exist that allows an edge of type A to connect to a junction of type B. By default, any number of edges of type A can connect to a single junction of type B. You may want to restrict this. You can specify that between two and five edges of type A can connect to a junction of type B; if there are less than two edges, or more than five edges, the connectivity rule is being violated. Similarly, you can restrict the number of junctions of type C that can connect to any junction of type D. This range of permissible connections is edge–junction cardinality.

edge-junction rule

A connectivity rule that establishes that an edge of type A may connect to a junction of type B.

edit cache

A setting used in spatial data editing in ArcMap that causes the features visible in the current map extent to be held in memory on your local machine. Designed to be used when working with large

amounts of data, an edit cache results in faster editing because ArcMap doesn't have to retrieve the data from the server.

edit session

In ArcMap editing takes place within an edit session. An edit session begins when you choose Start Editing from the Editor menu and ends when you choose Stop Editing.

Editor toolbar

A toolbar that lets you create and modify features and their attributes in ArcMap.

ellipse

A geometric shape equivalent to a circle that is viewed obliquely; a flattened circle.

error

Violations of a topology rule detected during the topology validation process.

extent

The coordinates defining the minimum bounding rectangle—that is, xmin, ymin and xmax, ymax—of a data source. All coordinates for the data source fall within this boundary.

feature

1. An object class in a geodatabase that has a field of type geometry. Features are stored in feature classes.

- 2. A representation of a real-world object.
- 3. A point, line, or polygon in a coverage or shapefile.
- 4. A representation of a real-world object in a layer on a map.

feature attribute table

A table used to store attribute information for a specific coverage feature class. ArcInfo maintains the first several items of these tables. Feature attribute tables supported for coverages include the following:

<cover>.PAT</cover>	for polygons or points
<cover>.AAT</cover>	for arcs
<cover>.NAT</cover>	for nodes
<cover>.RAT</cover>	for routes
<cover>.SEC</cover>	for sections
<cover>.PAT</cover>	for regions
<cover>.TAT</cover>	for annotation (text)

where <cover> is the coverage name.

feature class

1. The conceptual representation of a category of geographic features. When referring to geographic features, feature classes include point, line, area, and annotation. In a geodatabase, an object class that stores features and has a geometry field type.

2. A classification describing the format of geographic features and supporting data in a coverage. Coverage feature classes for representing geographic features include point, arc, node, routesystem, route, section, polygon, and region. One or more coverage features are used to model geographic features—for example, arcs and nodes can be used to model linear features such as street centerlines. The tic, annotation, link, and boundary feature classes provide supporting data for coverage data management and viewing.

3. The collection of all the point, line, or polygon features or annotation in a CAD dataset.

4. In a geodatabase, an object class that stores features and has a field of type geometry.

feature dataset

In geodatabases, a collection of feature classes that share the same spatial reference. Because the feature classes share the same spatial reference, they can participate in topological relationships with each other such as in a geometric network, linear network, or topology. Several feature classes with the same geometry may be stored in the same feature dataset. Object classes and relationship classes can also be stored in a feature dataset.

field

A column in a table. Each field contains the values for a single attribute.

fuzzy tolerance

An extremely small distance used to resolve inexact intersection locations due to the limited arithmetic precision of computers. It defines the resolution of a coverage resulting from the Clean operation or a topological overlay operation such as Union, Intersect, or Clip.

In geodatabase feature classes, this concept is replaced by cluster tolerance.

geocoding

The process of creating geometric representations for locations, such as point features, from descriptions of locations, such as addresses.

geocoding index

An index on geocoding reference data used by geocoding services.

geocoding reference data

Data that a geocoding service uses to determine the geometric representations for locations.

geocoding service

An object that defines a process for creating geometric representations for locations, such as point features, from descriptions of locations, such as addresses.

geodatabase

A geographic database that is hosted inside a relational database management system that provides services for managing geographic data. These services include validation rules, relationships, and topological associations.

geodatabase data model

Geographic data model that represents geographic features as objects in an object-relational database. Features are stored as rows in a table; geometry is stored in a shape field. Supports sophisticated modeling of real-world features. Objects may have custom behavior. Compare to the georelational data model.

geometric network

A geometric network can be thought of as a one-dimensional nonplanar graph, or logical network, that is composed of features. These features are constrained to exist within the network and can, therefore, be considered network features. ArcInfo will automatically maintain the explicit topological relationships between network features in a geometric network.

georelational data model

A geographic data model that represents geographic features as an interrelated set of spatial and descriptive data. The georelational model is the fundamental data model used in coverages. Compare to the geodatabase data model.

index

A data structure used in a database to improve query performance. Feature classes also have spatial indexes that improve spatial query performance.

instance

The name of the process running on the ArcSDE server that allows connections and access to spatial data.

intersect

The topological integration of two spatial datasets that preserves features that fall within the area common to both input datasets. See also union.

IP address

The server's address on the network. The address consists of four numbers, each separated by a ".".

item

1. A column of information in an INFO table.

2. An element in the Catalog tree. The Catalog tree can contain both geographic data sources and nongeographic elements, such as folders, folder connections, and file types.

junction element

See logical network.

label point

A feature class in a coverage used to represent point features and identify polygons.

layer

1. A collection of similar geographic features, such as rivers, lakes, counties, or cities, of a particular area or place for display on a map. A layer references geographic data stored in a data source, such as a coverage, and defines how to display it. You can create and manage layers as you would any other type of data in your database.

2. A feature class in a shared geodatabase managed with SDE 3.

layout view

The view for laying out your map in ArcMap. Layout view shows the virtual page upon which you place and arrange geographic data and map elements, such as titles, legends, and scalebars, for printing. See also data view.

left-right topology

A topological data structure used to represent contiguity between polygons in the coverage data model. Left–right topology supports analysis functions, such as adjacency. See also topology.

linear dimension

A dimension whose length doesn't represent the true distance between the beginning and end dimension points. Linear dimensions can be vertical, horizontal, or rotated. A vertical dimension's line represents the vertical distance between the beginning and end dimension points. A horizontal linear dimension's line represents the horizontal distance between the begin and end dimension points. A rotated linear dimension is a dimension whose line is at some angle to the baseline and whose length represents the length of the dimension line itself, not the baseline.

logical network

A logical network is an abstract representation of a network. A logical network consists of edge, junction, and turn elements and the connectivity between them. You can ask a logical network which elements are connected but you cannot ask it for the geometry of these elements. A logical network does not contain any coordinate data, so you cannot ask it for the location of its elements. For this, you need a geometric network. In a logical network, an edge element is connected to two junction elements—a from-junction and a to-junction—and a junction can have zero or more edges connected to it. A turn has a from-edge,

a junction, and a to-edge. Each element can also have many weights associated with it. Weights are typically used to describe the cost to traverse an edge or turn or the cost to pass through a junction.

map

1. A graphical presentation of geographic information. It contains geographic data and other elements, such as a title, North arrow, legend, and scalebar. You can interactively display and query the geographic data on a map and also prepare a printable map by arranging the map elements around the data in a visually pleasing manner.

2. The document used in ArcMap that lets you display and work with geographic data. A map contains one or more layers of geographic data and various supporting map elements, such as scalebars. Layers on a map are contained in data frames. A data frame has properties, such as scale, projection, and extent, and also graphic properties such as where it is located on a map's page. Some maps have one data frame while other more advanced maps may have several data frames.

map document

In ArcMap, the disk-based representation of a map. Map documents can be printed or embedded into other documents. Map documents have an .mxd file extension.

map topology

A temporary set of topological relationships between coincident parts of simple features on a map, used to edit shared parts of multiple features.

map units

The units—for example, feet, miles, meters, or kilometers—in which the coordinates of spatial data are stored.

master check-out version

A version in the master geodatabase, created when data is checked out, that represents the state of the data at the time it was checked out.

master geodatabase

An ArcSDE geodatabase from which data has been checked out.

merge policy

In geodatabases, all attribute domains have a merge policy associated with them. When two features are merged into a single feature in ArcMap, the merge policies dictate what happens to the value of the attribute to which the domain is associated. Standard merge policies are default value, sum, and weighted average.

minimum bounding rectangle

A rectangle, oriented to the x- and y-axes, that bounds a geographic feature or a geographic dataset. It is specified by two coordinates: xmin, ymin and xmax, ymax—for example, the extent defines a minimum bounding rectangle for a coverage.

multipart feature

A feature that is composed of more than one physical part but only references one set of attributes in the database—for example, in a layer of states, the state of Hawaii could be considered a multipart feature. Although composed of many islands, it would be recorded in the database as one feature.

multipoint feature

A feature that consists of more than one point but only references one set of attributes in the database—for example, a system of oil wells might be considered a multipoint feature, as there is a single set of attributes for the main well and multiple well holes.

multiuser geodatabase

A geodatabase in an RDBMS served to client applications—for example, ArcMap—by ArcSDE. Multiuser geodatabases can be very large and support multiple concurrent editors. They are supported on a variety of commercial RDBMSs, including Oracle, Microsoft SQL Server, IBM DB2, and Informix.

network trace

In the most generic sense, a network trace means to navigate through the network following the connectivity of the network for some purpose.

node

An endpoint of a topology edge. Topology nodes may also be introduced along an edge during editing.

null value

The absence of a value. A geographic feature for which there is no associated attribute information.

object

The representation of a real-world entity stored in a geodatabase. An object has properties and behavior.

object class

A collection of objects in the geodatabase that have the same behavior and the same set of attributes. All objects in the geodatabase are stored in object classes.

overshoot

That portion of an arc digitized past its intersection with another arc. See also dangling arc.

pan

To move the viewing window up, down, or sideways to display areas in a geographic dataset that, at the current viewing scale, lie outside the viewing window.

password

The password used for authentication when you log on to an ArcSDE geodatabase.

personal geodatabase

A geodatabase, usually on the same network as the client application—for example, ArcMap—that supports one editor at a time. Personal geodatabases are managed in a Microsoft Jet Engine database. Personal geodatabases can contain geometric networks, linear networks, and topologies and can be used as check-out databases for disconnected editing of geographic data in the field.

planarize

The process of creating multiple line features by splitting longer features at the places where they intersect other line features. This process can be useful when you have nontopological linework that has been spaghetti digitized or imported from a computer-aided design (CAD) drawing.

point

A single x,y coordinate that represents a single geographic feature such as a telephone pole.

point mode digitizing

One of two methods of digitizing features using the ArcMap Editor's Sketch tool or from a paper map using a digitizer. With point mode digitizing, you can create or edit features by digitizing a series of precise points, or vertices. Point mode digitizing is effective when precise digitizing is required—for example, when digitizing a perfectly straight line. See also stream mode digitizing.

polygon

A two-dimensional feature representing an area such as a state or county.

polygon-arc topology

PAT. A coverage polygon is made up of arcs that define the boundary and a label point, which links the polygon feature to an attribute record in the coverage PAT. In the coverage data model, polygons are represented topologically as a list of arcs and a label that make up each polygon. In the geodatabase data model, polygons are stored as simple features, which may participate in topological relationships with other features.

port number

The TCP/IP port number that an ArcSDE geodatabase instance is communicating on.

post

Posting is the process of applying the current edit session to the reconciled target version.

precision (dataset)

The number of system units per one unit of measure in the XY domain of the coordinate system dataset. Precision defines the smallest storable distance between coordinates in the dataset. A spatial reference with a precision of one will store integer values, while a precision of 1,000 will store three decimal places.

preliminary topology

In coverages, refers to incomplete region or polygon topology. Region topology defines region–arc and region–polygon relationships. A topological region has both the region–arc relationship and the region–polygon relationship. A preliminary region has the region–arc relationship but not the region– polygon relationship. In other words, preliminary regions have no polygon topology. Polygon topology defines polygon–arc–label point relationships. A preliminary polygon has the polygon–label point relationship but not the polygon–arc relationship. Coverages with preliminary topology have red in their icons in the Catalog.

projection

A mathematical formula that transforms feature locations from the earth's curved surface to a map's flat surface. A projected coordinate system employs a projection to transform locations expressed as latitude and longitude values to x,y coordinates. Projections cause distortions in one or more of these spatial properties: distance, area, shape, and direction.

property

An attribute of an object defining one of its characteristics or an aspect of its behavior—for example, the Visible property affects whether a control can be seen at run time. You can set a data source's properties using its Properties dialog box.

pseudonode

A node connecting only two edges or a logical split defined in the topology cache while editing. Pseudonodes of the latter sort become a vertex after editing.

pull check-in

A check-in operation initiated from a master geodatabase.

push check-in

A check-in operation initiated from a check-out geodatabase.

pyramids

In raster datasets, reduced resolution layers, or pyramids, record the original data in decreasing levels of resolution. The coarsest level of resolution is used to quickly draw the entire dataset. As you zoom in, layers with finer resolutions are drawn; performance is maintained because you're drawing successively smaller areas.

query

A question or request used for selecting features. A query often appears in the form of a statement or logical expression. In ArcMap, a query contains a field, an operator, and a value.

radius

The distance from the center to the outer edge of a circle or circular curve.

rank

A method of assigning an accuracy value to feature classes to avoid having vertices from a feature class collected with a high level of accuracy being snapped to vertices from a less accurate feature class. Vertices from higher ranking feature classes will not be moved when snapping with vertices with lower ranked feature classes. The highest rank is 1 and you can assign up to 50 different ranks.

raster

Represents any data source that uses a grid structure to store geographic information.

RDBMS

Relational database management system. A database management system with the ability to access data organized in tabular files that can be related to each other by a common field (item). An RDBMS has the capability to recombine the data items from different files, providing powerful tools for data usage. ArcSDE supports several commercial RDBMSs.

reconcile

Reconciling is the process of merging all modified datasets, feature classes, and tables in the current edit session and a

second target version. All features and rows that do not conflict are merged into the edit session, replacing the current features or rows. Features that are modified in each version are conflicts and require further resolution via the conflict resolution dialog box.

record

1. In an attribute table, a single row of thematic descriptors. In SQL terms, a record is analogous to a tuple.

2. A logical unit of data in a file—for example, there is one record in the ARC file for each arc in a coverage.

reference data

Tables or feature classes containing address information that geocoding services use to find the locations of addresses.

relate

An operation that establishes a temporary connection between corresponding records in two tables using an item common to both—for example, key attributes. Each record in one table is connected to those records in the other table that share the same value for the common item. See also relational join.

relational join

The operation of relating and physically merging two attribute tables using their common item.

relationship

An association or link between two or more objects in a geodatabase. Relationships can exist between spatial objects (features in feature classes) or nonspatial objects (rows in a table), or between spatial and nonspatial objects.

relationship class

Objects in a real-world system often have particular associations with other objects in the database. These kinds of associations

between objects in the geodatabase are called relationships. Relationships can exist between spatial objects (features in feature classes), nonspatial objects (rows in a table), or between spatial and nonspatial objects. While spatial objects are stored in the geodatabase in feature classes, and nonspatial objects are stored in object classes, relationships are stored in relationship classes.

row

1. A record in an attribute table. The horizontal dimension of a table composed of a set of columns containing one data item each.

2. A horizontal group of cells in a raster.

rule (connectivity)

A constraint on the type of network features that may be connected to one another and the number of features of any particular type that can be connected to features of another type. There are two types of connectivity rules: edge–junction and edge–edge rules.

rule (topology)

An instruction to the geodatabase defining the permissible relationships of features within a given feature class or between features in two different feature classes. Topology rules are compared against the features in the feature class during the topology validation process and violations are marked as errors. After the topology validation process, the errors can be corrected by editing the feature class; occasionally, violations of a topology rule may represent acceptable conditions. In these cases, the errors can be marked as exceptions.

scanning

The process of capturing data in raster format with a device called a scanner. Some scanners also use software to convert raster data to vector data.

schema

The structure or design of a database.

schema-only check-out

A type of check-out that creates the schema of the data being checked out in the check-out geodatabase but does not copy any data.

segment

A line that connects vertices—for example, in a sketch of a building, a segment would represent one wall.

select

To choose from a number or group of features or records; to create a separate set or subset.

Selectable layers list

A list on the Selection toolbar that lets you choose from which layers you can select.

For example, suppose you wanted to select a large number of buildings by drawing a box around them but selected a parcel by mistake as you drew the selection box. To avoid this, you might uncheck the Parcels layer in the Selectable layers list so that parcels cannot be selected.

selected set

A subset of the features in a layer or records in a table. ArcMap provides several ways to select features and records graphically or according to their attribute values.

selection anchor

When editing in ArcMap, a small x located in the center of selected features. The selection anchor is used when you move features using snapping. It is the point on the feature or group of features that will be snapped to the snapping location. This is

also the point around which your selection will rotate when you use the Rotate tool and around which your feature will scale when you use the Scale tool. You can reposition the selection anchor.

server

The computer where the ArcSDE geodatabase you want to access is located.

shape

The characteristic appearance or visible form of a geographic object. Geographic objects can be represented on a map using one of three basic shapes: points, lines, or polygons.

shapefile

A vector data storage format for storing the location, shape, and attributes of geographic features. A shapefile is stored in a set of related files and contains one feature class.

shared boundary

A segment or boundary common to two features—for example, in a parcel database, adjacent parcels will share a boundary. Another example might be a parcel that shares a boundary on one side with a river. The segment of the river that coincides with the parcel boundary would share the same coordinates as the parcel boundary.

shared vertex

A vertex common to multiple features—for example, in a parcel database, adjacent parcels will share a vertex at the common corner.

simple feature

A feature that implements ESRI Simple Feature. Simple features with shared geometry can be edited with a map topology using ArcView and higher licensed seats of ArcMap

single precision

Refers to a level of coordinate accuracy based on the number of significant digits that can be stored for each coordinate. Single-precision numbers store up to seven significant digits for each coordinate, retaining a precision of ± 5 meters in an extent of 1,000,000 meters. ArcInfo datasets can be stored as either single-or double-precision coordinates. See also double precision.

sketch

When editing in ArcMap, a shape that represents a feature's geometry. Every existing feature on a map has an alternate form, a sketch. A sketch lets you see exactly how a feature is composed, with all vertices and segments of the feature visible. To modify a feature, you must modify its sketch. To create a feature, you must first create a sketch. You can only create line and polygon sketches, as points have neither vertices nor segments.

Sketches help complete the current task—for example, the Create New Feature task uses a sketch you create to make a new feature. The Extend/Trim Feature task uses a sketch you create to determine where the selected feature will be extended or trimmed. The Cut Polygon Feature task uses a sketch you create to determine where the polygon will be cut into two features.

sketch constraints

In ArcMap editing, the angle or length limitations you can place on segments you're creating. These commands are available on the Sketch tool context menu—for example, you can set a length constraint that specifies that the length of the segment you're creating will be 50 map units. At whatever angle you create that segment, its length will be constrained to 50 map units.

Angle constraints work in the same way—for example, you can set an angle constraint that specifies that the angle of the segment you're creating will be 45 degrees measured from another feature that already exists. At whatever length you create that segment, its angle will be constrained to 45 degrees.

sketch operations

In ArcMap, editing operations that are performed on an existing sketch. Examples are Insert Vertex, Delete Vertex, Flip, Trim, Delete Sketch, Finish Sketch, and Finish Part. All of these operations are available from the Sketch context menu, which is available when you right-click any part of a sketch using any editing tool.

snapping

The process of moving a feature to coincide exactly with coordinates of another feature within a specified snapping distance or tolerance.

snapping environment

Settings in ArcMap Editor's Snapping Environment window and Editing Options dialog box that help you establish exact locations in relation to other features. You determine the snapping environment by setting a snapping tolerance, snapping properties, and a snapping priority.

snapping priority

During ArcMap editing, the order in which snapping will occur by layer. You can set the snapping priority by dragging the layer names in the Snapping Environment window to new locations.

snapping properties

In ArcMap editing, a combination of a shape to snap to and a method for what part of the shape you will snap to. You can set your snapping properties to have a feature snap to a vertex, edge, or endpoint of features in a specific layer—for example, a layer snapping property might let you snap to the vertices of buildings. A more generic, sketch-specific snapping property might let you snap to the vertices of a sketch you're creating.

snapping tolerance

The distance within which the pointer or a feature will snap to another location during ArcMap editing.

If the location being snapped to (vertex, boundary, midpoint, or connection) is within the distance you set, the pointer will automatically snap. For example, if you want to snap a power line to a utility pole and the snapping tolerance is set to 25 pixels, whenever the power line comes within a 25-pixel range of the pole, it will automatically snap to it. Snapping tolerance can be measured using either map units or pixels.

spatial database

Any DBMS that contains spatial data.

spatial domain

Describes the range and precision of x,y coordinates and z- and m-values that can be stored in a feature dataset or feature class in a geodatabase.

spatial join

A type of spatial analysis in which the attributes of features in two different layers are joined together based on the relative locations of the features.

spatial reference

Describes both the projection and spatial domain extent for a feature dataset or feature class in a geodatabase.

split policy

All attribute domains have a split policy associated with them. When a feature is split into two new features in the ArcMap Editor, the split policies dictate what happens to the value of the attribute to which the domain is associated. Standard split policies are duplicate, default value, and geometry ratio.

SQL

Structured Query Language. A syntax for defining and manipulating data from a relational database. Developed by IBM in the 1970s, it has become an industry standard for query languages in most relational database management systems.

stream mode digitizing

One of the two methods of digitizing features from a paper map. Also known as streaming, stream mode digitizing provides an easy way to capture features when you don't require much precision—for example, to digitize rivers, streams, and contour lines. With stream mode, you create the first vertex of the feature and trace over the rest of the feature with the digitizer puck. You can also use digitize in stream mode with the ArcMap Sketch tool when editing freehand. See also point mode digitizing.

stream tolerance

The minimum distance the pointer must be moved from the last vertex before the next vertex will be created when using the Sketch tool in stream mode.

When streaming, vertices are automatically created at a defined interval as you move the mouse—for example, if the stream tolerance is set to 10 map units, you must move the pointer at least 10 map units before the next vertex will be created. If you move the pointer more than 10 map units, there may be more space between vertices, but there will always be a minimum interval of 10 map units. Stream tolerance is measured in map units.

subtypes

Although all objects in a feature class or object class must have the same behavior and attributes, not all objects have to share the same default values and validation rules. You can group features and objects into subtypes. Subtypes differentiate objects based on their rules.

symbol

A graphic pattern used to represent a feature—for example, line symbols represent arc features; marker symbols, points; shade symbols, polygons; and text symbols, annotation. Many characteristics define symbols including color, size, angle, and pattern.

symbology

The criteria used to determine symbols for the features in a layer. A characteristic of a feature may influence the size, color, and shape of the symbol used.

synchronization version

A verion created in a check-out ArcSDE geodatabase when a check-out is made to that geodatabase. This version is created as a child of the DEFAULT version and represents the state of the data at the time the check-out was created.

table

Information formatted in rows and columns. A set of data elements that has a horizontal dimension (rows) and a vertical dimension (columns) in an RDBMS. A table has a specified number of columns but can have any number of rows. See also attribute table.

table of contents

In ArcMap, lists all the data frames and layers on the map and shows what the features in each layer represent.

tabular data

Descriptive information that is stored in rows and columns and can be linked to map features.

tagged values

Tagged values are used to set additional properties of UML elements—for example, you can set the length, in characters, of a string field by using a tagged value.

target layer

Used in ArcMap editing, a setting in the Target layer dropdown list that determines to which layer new features will be added. The target layer is set by clicking a layer in the Target layer dropdown list. For instance, if you set the target layer to Buildings, any features you create will be part of the Buildings layer. You must set the target layer whenever you're creating new features whether you're creating them with the Sketch tool, by copying and pasting, or by buffering another feature.

tic

Registration of geographic control points for a coverage representing known locations on the earth's surface. Tics allow all coverage features to be recorded in a common coordinate system such as Universal Transverse Mercator (UTM). Tics are used to register map sheets when they are mounted on a digitizer and to transform the coordinates of a coverage—for example, from digitizer units (inches) to the appropriate values for a coordinate system, which are measured in meters for UTM.

tolerances

A coverage uses many processing tolerances (fuzzy, tic match, dangle length) and editing tolerances (weed, grain, edit distance, snap distance, and nodesnap distance). Stored in a TOL file, ArcInfo uses the values as defaults in many automation, editing, and processing operations. You can edit a coverage's tolerances using its Properties dialog box in ArcCatalog.

topological association

The spatial relationship between features that share geometry, such as boundaries and vertices. When you edit a boundary or vertex shared by two or more features using the topology tools in the ArcMap Editor, the shape of each of those features is updated.

topological feature

A feature that supports network connectivity that is established and maintained based on geometric coincidence.

topology

1. In geodatabases, relationships between connected features in a geometric network or shared borders between features in a topology.

2. In coverages, the spatial relationships between connecting or adjacent features—for example, arcs, nodes, polygons, and points. The topology of an arc includes its from- and to-nodes and its left and right polygons. Topological relationships are built from simple elements into complex elements: points (simplest elements), arcs (sets of connected points), areas (sets of connected arcs), and routes (sets of sections, which are arcs or portions of arcs). Redundant data (coordinates) is eliminated because an arc may represent a linear feature, part of the boundary of an area feature, or both.

topology rules

An instruction to the geodatabase defining the permissible relationships of features within a given feature class or between features in two different feature classes. Topology rules are compared against the features in the feature class during the topology validation process and violations are marked as errors. After the topology validation process, the errors can be corrected by editing the feature class; occasionally, violations of a topology rule may represent acceptable conditions. In these cases, the errors can be marked as exceptions.

tracing

The building of a set of network elements according to some procedure.

transaction

1. A group of atomic data operations that comprise a complete operational task such as inserting a row into a table.

2. A logical unit of work as defined by a user. Transactions can be data definition (create an object), data manipulation (update an object), or data read (select from an object).

true curve

See circular arc.

undershoot

An arc that does not extend far enough to intersect another arc. See also dangling arc.

union

A topological overlay of two polygonal spatial datasets that preserves features that fall within the spatial extent of either input dataset; that is, all features from both coverages are retained. See also intersect.

username

The identification used for authentication when you log in to an ArcSDE geodatabase.

validate (topology)

The process of comparing the topology rules against the features in the dataset. When you validate a topology, features that violate the rules are marked as error features. Topology validation is typically performed after the initial topology rules have been defined, after the feature classes have been modified, or if additional feature classes or rules have been added to the map topology.

validation rule

Validation rules can be applied to objects in the geodatabase to ensure that their state is consistent with the system that the database is modeling. The geodatabase supports attribute, connectivity, relationship, and custom validation rules.

version

A version is an alternative representation of the database that has an owner, a description, a permission—private, protected, or public—and a parent version. Versions are not affected by changes occurring in other versions of the database.

vertex

1. One of a set of ordered x,y coordinates that defines a line or polygon feature.

2. A point that joins two segments of a feature. For instance, a square building would have four vertices, one at each corner.

virtual page

The map page, as seen in layout view.

wizard

A tool that leads a user step by step through an unusually long, difficult, or complex task.

work flow

An organization's established processes for design, construction, and maintenance of facilities.

work order

One specific task that proceeds through each stage of an organization's work flow processes such as design, acceptance, and construction in the field.

workspace

A container of geographic data. This can be a folder that contains shapefiles, an ArcInfo workspace that contains coverages, a personal geodatabase, or an ArcSDE database connection.

Index

Α

Absolute mode. See Digitizing: in digitizing (absolute) mode Absolute X, Y 53 Active data frame defined 427 Adding data to be edited 27 Adjustment Preview Window 274 Affine transformation spatial adjustment 242 Alias defined 427 Aligned dimension defined 427 Annotation and versioning 418-419 class and topology 142 coverage annotation feature class 363 described 350 in ArcMap 351, 361 standalone 350 converting Convert Coverage Annotation command 363 coverage 363 labels 361 creating 361 defined 349, 427 described 350 feature-linked creating 360 described 350 editing 351 features 350, 353, 356, 361 nonfeature-linked 350, 351 string 354 Annotation feature class. See Annotation: class Arc tool. See Editing tools Arc-node topology defined 427

ArcCatalog and topology 137 and versioning 403, 404, 405 customizing 409 ArcInfo workspace defined 427 ArcMap active annotation target 351 and topology 137 and versioning 403, 412-414, 415 converting annotation 361 customizing 363, 372 Customize dialog box 363 edit cache 31 task menu 33 document 361 drawing tools 351 network analysis 339 overflow window 360 Selectable layers list 441 table of contents 360, 361 ArcSDE defined 427 Association. See Relationships Attribute defined 428 Attribute domains browsing in ArcCatalog. See Attributes: dialog box coded value domain in ArcMap Editor 288 defined 428 mentioned 122, 288 range domain in ArcMap 288 split policy in ArcMap 335 Attribute transfer and spatial adjustment 245, 276 Attribute validation rule. See Attribute domains Attributes adding 282-283 and annotation 363 and relationship classes 350 Attributes dialog box 280

Attributes (continued) copying and pasting 42, 284 deleting 283 dialog box and dimension features 370 defined 428 editing 22 editing in ArcMap 289, 293, 335 from point features 137 mentioned 297, 401, 417, 424 modifying 282-283 primary display fields 281 rules. See Attribute domains tables defined 428 editing 279 undoing edits to 283 viewing 280 Auto-cache 32 Autoreconciliation 416 Azimuth defined 428

В

Behavior 350, 351, 418
and topology 122
defined 428
Buffers
clipping a feature using a buffer 237
creating 198
defined 428
Build Topology Cache. See Topology: cache

С

CAD (computer-aided design) and planarize 138 CAD feature class defined 428 defined 428 mentioned 2 Canceling a trace 82. See also Editing tools CASE tools. See UML model Centroid defined 428 Chain described 118 Check-out checking out defined 429 geodatabase defined 429 version defined 429 Checking in defined 429 Choose Input for Adjustment dialog box 250 Circle defined 429 Circular are defined 429 Circular arcs 45 creating 77-79 described 50 Clipping features 237 Cluster tolerance. See also Topology: cluster tolerance defined 429 described 123 Clustering defined 429 COGO convert angles and distances 115 creating two-point line features 95 description 89 required fields 95 Coincident defined 429, 434 Column defined 429 Combining features from different layers 204

with common areas 206

Compass correction traverse adjustment 98 Complex edge and junction. See Network features Composite relationships. See Relationships: composite Compress 406 defined 429 in ArcCatalog 409 Computer-aided design (CAD). See also CAD (computer-aided design) defined 429 Conflict 401, 415, 416-417, 420-421 defined 429 Connectivity creating 324 defined 430 Connectivity rules defined 430 edge-edge rule default junction 333, 432 in ArcMap Editor 288, 324, 333 edge-junction rule defined 433 mentioned 288 Constraints. See also Attribute domains defined 430 Construct features defined 430 tool described 137 Contiguity defined 430 Control points defined 430 digitizing 185 establishing 184 point file and spatial adjustment 271 Converting data. See Loading: data from a geodatabase

Coordinate defined 430 Coordinate system defined 430 Copy feature tool 83 Copy Parallel command 196 Copying a line parallel to an existing line 196 and pasting attributes 42, 284 and pasting features 42 Coverage annotation 349 defined 430 Cracking. See also Topology: validation defined 431 Crandall correction traverse adjustment 98 Current task defined 431 Custom behavior. See also Behavior defined 431 feature See also Behavior defined 431 object. See also Behavior defined 431 rules. See Validation rules Customization. See ArcCatalog: customizing; ArcMap: customizing

D

Dangle Dangling arc defined 431 tolerance defined 431 Data 401, 402 adding for editing 27 defined 431 editor mentioned 3 Data (continued) field collected 90 integrity defined 431 loading from a geodatabase 27 quality and topology 122 source defined 431 stopping the drawing of 27, 255, 256 Data frame defined 431 Data frames editing a map with multiple 30 Data type defined 431 Data view defined 432 editing in mentioned 4 Database 401, 402 defined 432 Dataset defined 432 Decimal degrees defined 432 Default junctions described 324 junction type defined 432 Default values editing in ArcMap 356 mentioned 122 Deflection 69-70 Degrees described 112 Degrees Minutes Seconds described 112 valid input formats 112 Deleting features 43

Delta X. Y 54 Digitizer aligning the map on 184 attaching the map to 184 configuring puck buttons for streaming 194 using programming code 184, 191, 194 using WinTab manager setup program 184 creating features with 183 installing driver software 184 setting up 184 Digitizing a projected map 184 creating a line or polygon 63 creating a point or vertex 52 defined 432 described 183 digitizer tab missing 186 freehand 183, 189 in digitizing (absolute) mode 189, 190-191 in mouse (relative) mode 189 in point mode 189, 190-191 in stream mode 189, 192–193, 194 installing digitizer driver software 184 mode defined 432 preparing the map 184 switching between digitizing and mouse modes 189 switching between point and stream modes 193 using snapping 191 Digitizing tablet. See Digitizer Dimension feature class and topology 142 defined 432 **Dimension** features Attributes dialog box 370 auto-dimension tools 366, 367 baseline dimension 367, 393 continue dimension 367, 391, 395

Dimension features (continued) auto-dimension tools (continued) dimension edge 367, 390 mentioned 368, 372 changing style 399 construction methods aligned 367, 376 defined 432 described 366 free aligned 367, 384 free linear 367, 387 linear 367, 378 rotated aligned 367, 381 simple aligned 365, 367, 373 creating. See Dimension features: autodimension tools defined 432 editing 366 modifying 368, 370 process described 397 properties (table) 369, 371 Dimension style defined 432 Dimension styles baseline height 394 described 368 Dimensioning toolbar 368, 372 defined 433 Direct connect defined 433 Direction measuring system North Azimuth 111 Polar angle 111 Quadrant Bearing 112 setting 111, 113 South Azimuth 111 Direction measuring units Degrees 112 Degrees Minutes Seconds 112 Gons 112 Gradians 112

Direction measuring units (continued) Radians 112 setting 114 Direction offset 117 Direction type setting 113 Direction units setting 114 Dirty areas defined 433 described 124 Disconnected editing defined 433 Displacement links and spatial adjustment 255 Distance conversion factor 116 Distance units automated conversion 118 defined 433 described 118 Distance-Distance tool. See Editing tools Distortions and rubber sheeting 244 Dividing a line feature. See Placing points along a line Double precision defined 433 Douglas–Poiker algorithm 103 Dragging features 38. See also Moving features

Е

Edge. See also Topology: edge Edge element. See also Logical network defined 433 Edge feature class editing in ArcMap 332, 334 Edge features. See Network features Edge Snap adjustment 254 Edge-Edge rule defined 433 Edge-Junction cardinality defined 433 Edge-Junction rule defined 433 Edgematching 245 Edge match tool 260 Edges described 140 Edit cache auto-cache 32 building 32 creating 28, 29 defined 433 toolbar 29 adding 31 tools 32 using 31 zooming to extent 29 Edit session. See also Editing; Editing in ArcMap and versioning 414, 415, 416, 420, 424 defined 434 starting 28 stopping 30 Edit sketch and topology edits 158 Editing 413. See also Editing in ArcMap absolute X, Y 53 adding and deleting sketch vertices 224-225 data 27 the Editor toolbar 25 Advanced Editing toolbar 24 attributes. See Attributes combining features from different layers 204 copying a line parallel to an existing line 196 and pasting features 42 Copy Feature tool 83

Editing (continued) creating buffers around features 198 edit cache 29 fillet between two lines 84 line and polygon features 63-67 line feature to populate COGO attributes 95 mirror image of a feature 200 multipoint feature 61, 65 multipoint features 61 point features and vertices 52-56 segment that is a circular arc 77-79 segment using an angle and a length 69 segments, parallel 75 segments. perpendicular 75 sketch 20 sketch using Traverse tool 90 creating features described 20-21, 46 duplicating 83 from features with common areas 206 single from multipart 102 using a sketch 46-47 creating multipart features combining features 204 merging 202 creating segments tracing features 82 using angles and lengths 69-70 using angles from existing segments 73-75 deleting features 43 delta X, Y 54 edit session 28 exploding a multipoint feature 102 extending line features 85, 217 feature datasets 17–18 flipping line features 219 generalizing a feature 103 in layout view 30 keyboard shortcuts 23

Editing (continued) measurements automated conversion 115 merging features 202 modifying features 21-22 more than one data frame 30 moving features 38-40 sketch vertices 226-227 multipart to single feature 102 network features ancillary roles 339 creating a new network edge 324, 329, 332, 334 enabling and disabling network features 340 subsuming network junctions 324, 336 undoing edits 338 validation 347 overview of process 14-15, 247-248 placing points along a line feature 220 proportionally dividing a line 87–88 relationships composite relationships 317 creating 306, 308 deleting 298, 310, 312, 314, 316, 321, 323, 351 described 303 editing related objects 303 relationship rules 320 reshaping a line or polygon feature. See Reshaping features rotating a point's symbology 41 saving edits 29 scaling features 235 selecting features 34-35 setting the direction measuring system and units 111 setting the Target layer 47, 52 shapefiles 17-18 Sketch context menu 51

Editing (continued) smoothing a feature 104 Snapping Environment window 105 spatial adjustment 250. See also Spatial adjustment adding toolbar 249 toolbar diagram 246 splitting line or polygon features 210-211 squaring a polygon 67 starting 28 stopping 30 task menu changing options 33 tasks you can complete with a sketch 46-47 trimming a line feature 86, 214-216 upgrading a geodatabase 26 using the snapping environment 39-40, 107-109 vertices in a sketch 21-22 with more than one collection of datasets 28 Editing in ArcMap adding the edit cache 31 and annotation creating new 351 creating new features with linked annotation 355 described 351 editing annotation features 353 editing features with linked annotation 357 and attribute domains coded value domains 293 described 289, 293 validating 294 and attributes 303 and default values 289, 293 and features creating new 289 deleting 319, 359 and subtypes 291, 292, 321 and validation rules 288

Editing in ArcMap (continued) and versioning 415 Attributes dialog 290, 295, 298, 303, 304, 311, 317, 357, 399 building an edit cache 32 Edit tool 318, 320, 333, 335, 338, 340, 347. See also Editing tools; Editor toolbar selection 348 snapping environment 324, 330, 332, 334. 336 start editing 351 Target layer 289, 329, 336, 355, 373 undo 338 validate selection 294, 320, 347 Editing tools Arc tool 48, 50, 77 Arc tools described 79 Direction-Distance tool creating a point or vertex 59 Distance-Distance tool 48, 55 creating a point or vertex 55 Editing toolbar 16 Intersection tool 49, 58 creating a point or vertex 58 Midpoint tool creating a point or vertex 57 Scale tool 235 Sketch tool 46, 289, 329, 355, 373 Split tool 210 Tangent curve tool 50 tool palette 46, 48 Trace tool 50, 82 Editor toolbar. See Editing tools adding 25 advanced diagram 24 defined 434 diagram 16 Rotate tool 318, 359

Ellipse defined 434 Ellipsoid surface and measured distances 115 Embedded foreign key. See Key field Endpoint coordinate and traverse 97 Error defined 434 Error inspector described 172 mentioned 125 Errors and exceptions described 125 ESRI Annotation Feature. See Feature type ESRI Simple Edge Feature. See Feature type ESRI Simple Feature. See Feature type ESRI Simple Junction Feature. See Feature type ESRI Simple Row. See Feature type Extending line features 85, 217

F

Feature. See also Feature class: Feature type: Object attribute table defined 434 creating from geometry of other features 179 defined 434 duplicating 83 editing 289, 293. See also Editing mentioned 349, 401, 415, 424 selecting 297 simple 442 Feature class defined 434 labeling 361 mentioned 293, 404, 412, 417 Feature dataset and annotation classes 350

Feature dataset (continued) defined 435 mentioned 404 Feature type ESRI Annotation Feature 350 ESRI Simple Feature 350 network. See Network features topological 445. See also Topology Feature-linked annotation. See Annotation. See also Annotation Field and annotation 350 defined 435 mentioned 404, 417 Fillets described 84 Finishing a part in a multipart feature 66 Finishing a sketch shortcut 63, 214 using the Square and Finish command 67 Flipping line features 219 Following features. See Editing tools Foot described 118 Fuzzy tolerance defined 435

G

Generalizing a feature 103 Geocoding defined 435 Geocoding index defined 435 Geocoding reference data defined 435 Geocoding service defined 435 Geodatabase and versions 401 Geodatabase (continued) compress 406, 411 defined 435 loading data from 27 mentioned 402, 415 structure of 17 upgrading 26 Geodatabase data model defined 435 Geometric adjustment and rubber sheeting 244 Geometric elements and topology 131 Geometric network and the edit cache 328 and topology 142 and versioning 418 connectivity models 325 connecting features 327 creating new network features 327 deleting 326 disconnecting features 326 stretching and moving 325 defined 435 editing 288 flow direction 339 network corruption 327 performance 328 repairing topology 327 Geometric rules and topology 122 Geometry mentioned 349, 417 Georelational data model defined 435 Global Positioning System (GPS) mentioned 124 Gons described 112 Gradians described 112

Graphics 361 Ground to grid conversion setting 115 using 116

Identity links and spatial adjustment 258 Inch described 118 Index defined 435 Instance defined 436 Intersect 206 defined 436 Intersection tool. See Editing tools Invalid features 288, 295, 348 objects 288 Inverse tool 89 IP address defined 436 Item defined 436

J

Junction subsumption described 324 Junction element defined 436 Junction feature class and versioning 418 in ArcMap Editor 330, 336 Junction features. *See* Network features

Κ

Key field 419 Kilometer described 118

L

Label point defined 436 Labels converting to annotation 361 Laver defined 436 Layers creating 53 setting selectable 37 Layout view defined 436 editing in 30 mentioned 4 Left-right topology defined 436 Limited Adjustment Area tools and spatial adjustment 259 Line features copying 196 creating 20, 47, 63-67, 68 extending 217 flipping 219 placing points along 220 reshaping. See Reshaping features splitting 210-211 trimming 214-216 Linear dimension defined 436 Link (distance unit) described 118 Loading data from a geodatabase 27

Logical network 333. See also Geometric network defined 436

Μ

M values editing 234 Map 360, 412. See also ArcMap defined 437 elements 4 Map document defined 437 Map topology. See also Topology creating 140, 141 defined 437 described 140 Map units defined 437 Master check-out version defined 437 Master geodatabase defined 437 Measurements entering into GIS 115 setting number of decimal places for reporting 44 viewing 44 Measuring system setting 111 Merge and topology 174 features 202 Merge policy. See also Attribute domains defined 437 Meter described 118 Midpoint tool 49. See Editing tools Mile described 118

Millimeter described 118 Minimum bounding rectangle defined 437 Mirror image of a feature 200 Missing Digitizer tab 186 Modifying features by moving vertices 226-227 shortcut 214 Moving features. See also Reshaping features by dragging 38 by rotating 39, 41 relative to their current position 39 undoing a move 40 using delta x,y coordinates 38-39, 39-40 using the snapping environment 39 Multipart feature defined 437 exploding 102 Multipart features creating 65-66, 204 described 65 merging features to create 202 removing parts 233 shortcut for finishing a part 66 Multipoint feature defined 437 Multipoint features creating 61-62 line or polygon 65–66 described 61 Multiuser geodatabase defined 438

Ν

Nautical mile described 118 Network connectivity 325, 335, 338

Multiversioned See Version

Network elements 338 Network features ancillary role 339 and versioning 418 complex 324 editing 324 editing in ArcMap 347 feature class. See Edge feature class: Junction feature class iunctions 339 moving 325 sources and sinks 339 validation 347 Network topology. See Geometric network Network trace defined 438 Node defined 438 Nodes described 140 North Azimuth described 111 Null value defined 438

0

Object and relationships 298 defined 438 Object class defined 438 Object Loader. *See also* Loading data Overshoot defined 438

Ρ

Pan defined 438 Parallel segments. See Segments: creating: parallel to existing Password defined 438 Pasting features. See Copying: and pasting features Perpendicular segments. See Segments: creating: perpendicular to existing Personal geodatabase defined 438 Placing points along a line 220 Planarize 181 defined 438 tool 179 mentioned 138 Point defined 438 Point features creating 20, 47, 52–56, 65, 68 Point mode digitizing. See also Digitizing: in point mode defined 438 Polar angle described 111 Polygon arc topology defined 439 defined 439 Polygon Feature Class creating from lines 178 From Lines tool 137 Polygon features creating 20-21, 63-67 cutting a polygon shape out of 213 reshaping. See Reshaping features splitting 210–211 squaring 67-68 Port number defined 439 Post 402, 415, 416, 420-421, 424 defined 439

Precision setting 44 Precision (dataset) defined 439 Preliminary topology defined 439 Primary display field 281 Privileges and versioning described 405, 415, 425 private 406 protected 406 public 406 Projection defined 439 Projective transformation spatial adjustment 243 Property changing for a sketch 231 defined 439 Proportionally dividing a line 87-88 Pseudonode 439 Pseudonodes described 140 topology rules 128 Pull check-in 439 Push check-in 439 Pyramids defined 439

Q

Quadrant Bearing described 112 Query defined 440

R

Radians described 112 Radius defined 440 Rank defined 440 described 123 Raster defined 440 Reconcile 415, 420-421, 424 defined 440 described 415 Record defined 440 Reference data defined 440 Registering a map adding additional control points 187 described 185-186 digitizing control points 185 ensuring accuracy when 188 entering ground coordinates 185 error reporting 184, 186 establishing control points 184 for the first time 185 removing ground coordinate records 187 saving ground coordinates 185–186 using existing tic files or saved coordinates 187-188 Relate defined 440 Related objects. See Relationships deleting 316 Relational database management system (RDBMS) defined 440 Relational join defined 440 Relationship defined 440 Relationship class and annotation 361 and topology 142

Relationship class (continued) and versioning 416, 418-419 composite 350, 351 defined 440 destination class 350 foreign key. See Foreign key origin class 350 path labels editing in ArcMap 303, 304, 306, 309, 310, 313, 315 in ArcMap Editor 316 Relationships and versioning 419 composite 317, 357 creating 297, 306 creating and deleting 298 creating new 299 deleting 299, 310 destination object 318, 350 editing 303 origin object 317, 350 related object 310, 316, 317, 418 rules in ArcMap Editor 320 mentioned 288 splitting features 301 validating 320 Relative mode. See Digitizing: in mouse (relative) mode Remote geodatabase. See SDE: geodatabase Reporting measurements. See Measurements: setting number of decimal places for reporting Reshaping features by adding vertices 224-225 by deleting vertices 224–225 by moving vertices 226-227 using a sketch you draw 222-223 Residual understanding 243

RMS error 184, 186 equation 244 understanding 243 Rod described 118 Root mean square error. See RMS error Rotate a point's symbology 41 features 39, 41 Row. See also Object defined 441 Rubber sheeting 244. See also Spatial adjustment: rubber sheeting Rule connectivity defined 441 topology 123 defined 441

S

Saving edits 29 Scaling features 235 Scanning defined 441 Scenarios and versioning 424 Schema defined 441 SDE. See ArcSDE SDE for coverages. See ArcSDE SDE server 442 Segment Deflection. See Editing: creating segments: using angles from existing segments command 73 Segments creating at an angle from the last segment 71-72 by tracing features 82 circular arcs 77-79

Segments (continued) creating (continued) parallel to existing 75 perpendicular to existing 75 using angles and lengths 69–70 using angles from existing segments 73 defined 441 described 46 Select defined 441 Selectable lavers list defined 441 Selected set defined 441 Selecting features described 34 removing features from the selection 34 setting selectable layers 37 using a line 35 using a polygon 36 using the Edit tool 34 using the Selection menu 36 Selection 298, 333, 360 Selection anchor and snapping 40 defined 441 described 35 moving when rotating or snapping a feature 40 when scaling a feature 235 Server defined 442 Shape defined 442 Shapefile defined 442 Shared boundary defined 442 Shared geometry editing 143
Shared vertex defined 442 Shortcuts editing 23 Similarity transformation spatial adjustment 243 Simple feature defined 442 Single precision defined 442 Sketch constraints defined 442 context menu 51 creating 20 defined 442 deleting 64 described 18, 20, 46 editing z- and m- values 234 finishing shortcut 63 using the Square and Finish command 67 inserting vertices 232 modifying 21-22 moving vertices 226 operations defined 443 properties changing 231 removing parts 233 tool. See Editing tools Smoothing a feature 104 Snapping agent 443 and topology nodes 166 defined 443 environment creating points and vertices using 52 defined 443 described 107

Snapping (continued) environment (continued) Environment dialog box 166 moving features 39-40 setting the snapping tolerance. See Snapping: tolerance window 105 priority defined 443 described 109 setting 109 properties comparing (table) 106 defined 443 described 106 laver 106, 109 setting 108 sketch 106, 109 Snap to Feature command 110 snap tolerance defined 443 tolerance described 108 setting 107 viewing 107 using to split a line 210 using when digitizing 191 Source layer. See Target layer South Azimuth described 111 Spatial adjustment attribute transfer Attribute Transfer tool 278 mapping 276 changing symbology of links and adjustment areas 261 choosing input data 250 control point file 271 creating displacement links 255 creating identity links 258 creating multiple displacement links 256

Spatial adjustment (continued) described 242 displacement links creating from control points 272 deleting links 266 link table 268 modifying links 264 opening a link file 269 saving a link file 270 selecting links 262 edge matching choosing method 253 line 253 setting edge snap properties 254 Smooth 253 using Edge Match tool 260 Edge Snap adjustment 254 limited adjustment area tools 259 previewing 274 process 275 described 247 references 245 rubber sheeting choosing method 252 Linear 252 Natural Neighbor 252 Spatial Adjustment toolbar adding 249 diagram 246 transformations affine 242 choosing method 251 projective 243 similarity 243 Spatial database defined 443 Spatial domain defined 443 Spatial extent. See extent Spatial join defined 443

Spatial reference defined 443 spatial domain 443 Split line features 210-211 polygon features 210-211 tool. See Editing tools Split policy. See also Attribute domains defined 443 setting up 212 SQL (Structured Query Language) defined 444 Squaring polygon features 67–68 Stream mode digitizing defined 444 Stream tolerance. See also Digitizing: in stream mode defined 444 Streaming. See Digitizing: in stream mode Stretching features 164 Stretching features. See Stretching geometry proportionately Stretching geometry proportionately 238 Structured Query Language (SQL) defined 444 Subtypes 21 defined 444 editing in ArcMap 289 mentioned 122 Survey units survey chain described 119 survey foot described 119 survey link described 119 survey mile described 119 survey rod described 119

Survey units (continued) survey yard described 119 Symbol defined 444 Symbology 292, 350, 351 defined 444 Synchronization version defined 444

Т

Table defined 444 editing in ArcMap 297 mentioned 404, 412 Table of Contents defined 444 Tabular data defined 444 Tagged values defined 445 Tangent curve. See Circular arcs Target layer 21, 47 and attribute transfer 245 defined 445 Task menu changing options 33 Tic defined 445 Tolerances defined 445 Tool palette. See Editing tools Tools. See Editing tools Topological association defined 445 Topological feature defined 445 Topology and ArcCatalog 137

Topology (continued) and ArcMap 137 and edit sketch 158 and geometric relationships 122 and workflow 122 basics 123 cache automation 152 rebuilding 152 changing symbology 168 cluster tolerance changing 140 described 123, 140 setting 142 concepts 140 connected edges merging 157 creating 141 creating new features from geometry of existing features 179 lines 180 multiple line features 179 polygons 179 data reliability 124 defined 445 described 122 dirty areas creating 125 described 124 storing 125 symbology 170 edge defined 433 editing 121 described 133 edit tool 142 modifying an edge 158 multiple features 121 reshaping an edge 162 snapping to nodes 166 splitting an edge 147, 148

Topology (continued) editing (continued) stretching features 164 unselecting elements 153 with edit sketch 158 element sharing 155 error inspector mentioned 125, 134 merging into a polygon 175 opening 172 errors affected features 175 and Error Inspector 172 available fixes 136, 174 changing symbology 167 correcting 174 correcting methods 136 creating summary 172 finding 172 finding in visible extent 172 for particular rule 173 managing 172 merging into polygon 174 pan or zoom 172 errors and exceptions described 125, 130 finding exceptions 173 marking as an exception 176 report 125 symbology 169 geometric elements 131 integrated features 415, 416 moving by a given X, Y distance 145 edge 144 node 144 shared endpoint 150 to given location 146 vertex on shared edge 143 network topology 324. See also Network connectivity

Topology (continued) new features creating 137 polygons 137 nodes adding temporarily 132 parameters 123 planarize 137, 178, 179, 181 Polygon Feature Class From Lines tool 137, 178 purpose 122 ranks described 123 rules described 123, 126 detecting violations 171 getting a description 177 line rules 127–129 mentioned 121 point rules 129 polygon rules 126-127 selecting node 143 shared topology features 156 shared elements 154 turning off 155 shared geometry editing 143 Show Shared Features tool 132, 154 split-move 150 symbology 168 layers 169 toolbar adding 139 tools edit tool-moving nodes and edges 131 edit tool mentioned 124, 133 editing and managing 5 toolbar functionality 139

Topology (continued) validation 171 selected area 171 visible extent 171 whole topology 171 Topology rules. See Rule: topology Trace tool. See Editing tools Tracing. See also Editing tools defined 446 Transaction 415, 424-425 defined 446 Transit correction traverse adjustment 98 Traverse adding segment angle-distance 92 curve 93 direction-distance 91 tangent curve 94 adjusting compass correction 98 crandall correction 98 process 99 techniques 98 transit correction 98 closure report 97 convert angles and distances 115 loading 101 modifying segment 96 saving 100 starting from known coordinate 90 Traverse tool 90 Trimming line features 86, 214–216 True curve. See also Circular arcs defined 446

U

UML model setting tagged values 445 Undershoot defined 446 Union. See also Combining features from different layers defined 446 Username defined 446

V

Valid feature 321 Validate topology defined 446 Validation geometric network 347 topology 171 Validation rules. See Topology: validation. See also Attribute domains; Connectivity rules; Relationship rules defined 446 mentioned 122 validation order 288 VBA configuring digitizer puck buttons using 184, 191 Vector datasets comparing the structure of 17 Version administering in ArcCatalog 405 and ArcMap 412-414 and editing 415-419 and geodatabase 415 autoreconciliation 416 enabiling and disabling 420 changing 413 Change Version command 413 conflict. See Conflict displaying 422 resolution 415 resolving 423

Version (continued) creating in ArcCatalog 405 in ArcMap 412 defined 401, 446 described 402-403 editing 420-421 in ArcMap 412-414 modifying changing properties 408 compressing 411 deleting 407 renaming 407 permissions 405 post. See also Post process 421 reconcile. See also Reconcile process 421 refresh 408, 413 registering data 404 scenarios 424 transaction. See Transaction Vertex defined 446 described 46 Vertices adding 21, 224, 232 and dimension features 368 creating 52-56 deleting 21, 64, 191, 224 deleting multiple while streaming with a digitizer 193 moving by dragging 226 by specifying x,y coordinates 227-228 relative to the current location 229-230 undoing and redoing 55, 65 Virtual page defined 446 Visual Basic for Applications. See VBA

W

Wizard defined 446 Work flow 402 defined 447 Work order 402 defined 447 Workspace 412 defined 447 refreshing (versioning) 414

Υ

Yard described 118

Ζ

Z values editing 234 using the current control 234